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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
(¢H) $43,360 $48,891 $48,162 $45,239 $41,486
( 4,806,022) ( 5,419,078) ( 5,338,276) ( 5,014,291) ( 4,598,308)
@ $42,168 $42,353 $42,858 $41,887 $42,012
( 4,673,901) ( 4,694,407) ( 4,750,381) ( 4,642,755) ( 4,656,610)
( @ $85,528 $91,244 $91,020 $87,126 $83,498
( 9,479,924) ( 10,113,485) ( 10,088,657) ( 9,657,046) ( 9,254,918)
$11,320 $3,590 $3,282 $3,396 $3,597
( 1,254,709) ( 397,916) ( 363,777) ( 376,413) ( 398,691)
$18,995 $32,754 $34,584 $29,213 $25,021
( 2,105,406) ( 3,630,453) ( 3,833,291) ( 3,237,969) ( 2,773,328)
$17,894 $27,430 $28,147 $18,232 $17,822
( 1,983,371) ( 3,040,341) ( 3,119,813) ( 2,020,835) ( 1,975,390)
$1.88 $2.77 $2.64 $1.63 $1.57
( 208) ( 307) ( 293) ( 181) ( 174)
$1.87 $2.75 $2.61 $1.56 $1.49
( 207) ( 305) ( 289) ( 173) ( 165)
$0.72 $0.66 $0.54 $0.39 $0.25
( 80)  73) ( 60)  43) ( 28)
6.76% 10.62% 11.04% 6.72% 6.69%
( ) $37,993 $61,777 $39,520 $9,864 $17,277
(@A) ( 4,211,144) ( 6,847,363) ( 4,380,397) ( 1,093,326) ( 1,914,983)
( ) $(177,665) $(80,630) $(71,468) $(51,541) $(62,285)
(A6 ( 19,692,389) ( 8,937,029) ( 7,921,513) ( 5,712,804) ( 6,903,669)
( ) $355,819 $3,377 $53,118 $49,268 $33,153
@0 ( 39,438,978) ( 374,307) ( 5,887,599) ( 5,460,865) ( 3,674,679)
$2,819,627 $2,434,079 $2,354,507 $2,281,234 $2,188,067
( 312,527,457) ( 269,793,316) ( 260,973,556) ( 252,851,977) ( 242,525,346)
$927,861 $983,426 $946,895 $936,749 $906,683
( 102,844,113) ( 109,002,938) ( 104,953,842) ( 103,829,259) ( 100,496,744)
$1,795,480 $1,434,803 $1,381,476 $1,309,545 $1,260,934
( 199,011,003) ( 159,033,565) ( 153,122,800) ( 145,149,968) ( 139,761,925)
$380,463 $161,560 $177,404 $157,434 $147,738
( 42,170,519) ( 17,907,310) ( 19,663,459) ( 17,449,985) ( 16,375,280)
$248,414 $241,409 $242,999 $244,823 $240,975
( 27,534,208) ( 26,757,774) ( 26,934,009) ( 27,136,181) ( 26,709,669)
$28.72 $27.32 $25.13 $23.80 $23.97
( 3,183) ( 3,028) ( 2,785) ( 2,638) ( 2,657)
( ) 8,651 8,836 9,669 10,287 10,053
$30.31 $35.22 $24._64 $29.52 $22.10
( ) ( 3,360) ( 3,904) ( 2,731) ( 3,272) ( 2,450)
@
Tier 11.9% 11.2% 11.6% 11.5% 10.8%
Tier 13.5% 12.6% 13.2% 13.0% 12.4%
16.1% 14.7% 15.1% 14.8% 14.2%
( ) 213,000 208,000 204,000 209,000 211,000
n/a(not applicable)=
(€D) 2019
() 2017 2016
(©)) 2016 ( FASB ) ( ASC )310-20
( SFAS91 )
)
(4) 2018
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$19,039 $37,396 $36,066 $19,361 $7,311
( 2,110,283)  ( 4,144,973)  ( 3,997,555)  ( 2,145,973) ( 810,351)
$5,906 $7,991 $8,260 $7,416 $8,769
( 654,621) ( 885,722) ( 915,538) ( 821,989) ( 971,956)
$13,133 $29,405 $27,806 $11,945 $(1,458)
« ) ( 1,455,662)  ( 3,259,250)  ( 3,082,017)  ( 1,323,984) (  161,605)
$16,473 $25,998 $26,696 $16,618 $16,140
( 1,825,867)  ( 2,881,618)  ( 2,958,985)  ( 1,841,939) ( 1,788,958)
$17,894 $27,430 $28,147 $18,232 $17,822
( 1,983,371)  ( 3,040,341)  ( 3,119,813)  ( 2,020,835) ( 1,975,390)
@ $533,166 $490,660 $471,011 $473,085 $470,229
( 59,096,119)  ( 54,384,754)  ( 52,206,859)  ( 52,436,741) ( 52,120,182)
@ $272,924 $264,810 $265,325 $267,146 $266,195
( 30,250,896)  ( 29,351,540) ( 29,408,623)  ( 29,610,463) ( 29,505,054)
( ) $26,787 $46,037 $24,381 $8,402 $(2,007)
« ) ( 2,969,071)  ( 5,102,741)  ( 2,702,390) ( 931,278) ( 222,456)
() $(33,122) $(19,131) $(2,163) $(6,776) $(65,789)
(  3,671,242) (  2,120,480)  ( 239,747y  (  751,052) (  7,292,053)
( ) $6,533 $(26,352) $(21,824) $(17,127) $(9,980)
( ( 724,118) (  2,920,856) (  2,418,972) (  1,898,357) (  1,106,183)
12 31 $5,893 $5,695 $5,141 $4,747 $20,248
( 653,180) ( 631,234) ( 569,828) ( 526,157) ( 2,244,288)
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$ 43,360 $ 48,891
42,168 42,353
( ) 85,528 91,244
11,320 3,590
55,213 54,900
18,995 32,754
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17,894 27,430
1,421 1,432
$ 16,473 $ 25,998
$ 1.88 $ 2.77
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3,297 5,396
$ 55,213 $ 54,900
2020 2019 313 552
COVID-19
2019
21
) 2020 2019
$ 18,995 $ 32,754
1,101 5,324
5.8% 16.3%
2020 2019 53 11
16.3 5.8
2020
( ESG )
ESG 2020

21
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2020 2020 22

2020 700
2019

(unusual items) 2021 ESG
10 12
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12 31
) 2020 2019 )
$ 380,463 $ 161,560 135%
304,058 274,597 11
198,854 229,826 (13)
684,850 472,197 45
927,861 983,426 (6)
(18,802) (9,416) 100
342,343 321,889 6
$2,819,627 $2,434,079 16
$1,795,480 $1,434,803 25
170,323 165,109 3
71,320 83,270 (14)
19,321 24,204 (20)
262,934 240,856 9
227,325 221,027 3
2,546,703 2,169,269 17
272,924 264,810 3
$2,819,627 $2,434,079 16
2020 12 31 2.8 2019 12 31 3,855

2,189

295

310
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2.5

94
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( MBS )(
2,127
556
CoVID-19
2019 12 31 3,774
3,607

52
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120

( FHLB

10

221
11
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FTE

DVA )

GAAP
)
GAAP
bps
FTE

) )

GAAP

GAAP
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) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

$ 43,360 $ 48,891 $ 48,162 $ 45,239 $ 41,486

42,168 42,353 42,858 41,887 42,012
( ) 85,528 91,244 91,020 87,126 83,498
11,320 3,590 3,282 3,396 3,597
55,213 54,900 53,154 54,517 54,880
18,995 32,754 34,584 29,213 25,021
1,101 5,324 6,437 10,981 7,199
17,894 27,430 28,147 18,232 17,822
16,473 25,998 26,696 16,618 16,140
8,753.2 9,390.5 10,096.5 10,195.6 10,248.1
8,796.9 9,442.9 10,236.9 10,778.4 11,046.8
(€)) 0.67% 1.14% 1.21% 0.80% 0.81%
@ 6.76 10.62 11.04 6.72 6.69
(@) 9.48 14.86 15.55 9.41 9.51
(€D) 6.69 10.24 10.63 6.72 6.70
(@) 9.07 13.85 14.46 9.08 9.17
( ) 9.68 10.88 11.27 11.71 12.17
9.96 11.14 11.39 11.96 12.14
38.18 23.65 20.31 24.24 15.94
$ 1.88 $ 2.77 $ 2.64 $ 1.63 $ 1.57
1.87 2.75 2.61 1.56 1.49
0.72 0.66 0.54 0.39 0.25
(€)) 28.72 27.32 25.13 23.80 23.97
(2) 20.60 19.41 17.91 16.96 16.89
$ 262,206 $ 311,209 $ 238,251 $ 303,681 $ 222,163
$ 982,467 $ 958,416 $ 933,049 $ 918,731 $ 900,433
2,683,122 2,405,830 2,325,246 2,268,633 2,190,218
1,632,998 1,380,326 1,314,941 1,269,796 1,222,561
220,440 201,623 200,399 194,882 204,826
243,685 244,853 241,799 247,101 241,187
267,309 267,889 264,748 271,289 265,843
(©))
() $ 20,680 $ 10,229 $ 10,398 $ 11,170 $ 11,999
5) 5,116 3,837 5,244 6,758 8,084
) 2.04 % 0.97 % 1.02% 1.12% 1.26%
) 380 265 194 161 149
$ 4,121 $ 3,648 $ 3,763 $ 3,979 $ 3,821
5) 0.42% 0.38% 0.41% 0.44% 0.43%
( )(6)
Tier 11.9% 11.2% 11.6% 11.5% 10.8%
Tier 13.5 12.6 13.2 13.0 12.4
16.1 14.7 15.1 14.8 14.2
Tier 7.4 7.9 8.4 8.6 8.8
7.2 6.4 6.8 n/a n/a
(@) 7.4 8.2 8.6 8.9 9.2
(@) 6.5 7.3 7.6 7.9 8.0
@
(@) GAAP GAAP
GAAP
A3) 2017 75 2016
243
92 175 2017
(©))]
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®)
28
35
(6) 2018

n/a(not applicable)

2020 2019
)
$ 10,253 $ 10,129 $ 10,848 $ 12,130 $ 12,140 $ 12,187 $ 12,189 $ 12,375
9,846 10,207 11,478 10,637 10,209 10,620 10,895 10,629
(
) 20,099 20,336 22,326 22,767 22,349 22,807 23,084 23,004
53 1,389 5,117 4,761 941 779 857 1,013
13,927 14,401 13,410 13,475 13,239 15,169 13,268 13,224
6,119 4,546 3,799 4,531 8,169 6,859 8,959 8,767
649 (335) 266 521 1,175 1,082 1,611 1,456
5,470 4,881 3,533 4,010 6,994 5,777 7,348 7,311
5,208 4,440 3,284 3,541 6,748 5,272 7,109 6,869
8,724.9  8,732.9  8,739.9  8,815.6 9,017.1  9,303.6  9,523.2  9,725.9
8,785.0  8,777.5  8,768.1  8,862.7 9,079.5  9,353.0  9,559.6  9,787.3
[6H) 0.78% 0.71% 0.53% 0.65% 1.13% 0.95% 1.23% 1.26%
® 0.67 0.75 0.81 0.99 1.14 1.17 1.24 1.22
[6H) 8.39 7.24 5.44 5.91 11.00 8.48 11.62 11.42
®) 11.73 10.16 7.63 8.32 15.43 11.84 16.24 16.01
[6H) 8.03 7.26 5.34 6.10 10.40 8.48 11.00 11.14
®) 10.84 9.84 7.23 8.29 14.09 11.43 14.88 15.10
«C ) 9.68 9.82 9.69 10.11 10.88 11.06 11.33 11.23
9.71 9.76 9.85 10.60 10.89 11.21 11.17 11.28
30.11 35.36 47.87 44.57 23.90 31.48 19.95 21.20
$ 060 $ 051 $ 038 $ 040 $ 075 % 057 $ 075 $  0.71
0.59 0.51 0.37 0.40 0.74 0.56 0.74 0.70
0.18 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.15 0.15
@ 28.72 28.33 27.96 27.84 27.32 26.96 26.41 25.57
3) 20.60 20.23 19.90 19.79 19.41 19.26 18.92 18.26
$ 262,206 $ 208,656 $ 205,772 $ 184,181 $ 311,209 $ 264,842 $ 270,935 $ 263,992
$ 934,798 $ 974,018 $1,031,387 $ 990,283 $ 973,986 $ 964,733 $ 950,525 $ 944,020
2,791,874 2,739,684 2,704,186 2,494,928 2,450,005 2,412,223 2,399,051 2,360,992
1,737,139 1,695,488 1,658,197 1,439,336 1,410,439 1,375,052 1,375,450 1,359,864
225,423 224,254 221,167 210,816 206,026 202,620 201,007 196,726
246,840 243,896 242,889 241,078 243,439 246,630 245,438 243,891
271,020 267,323 266,316 264,534 266,900 270,430 267,975 266,217
0 $ 20,680 $ 21,506 $ 21,001 $ 17,126 $ 10,229 $ 10,242 $ 10,333 $ 10,379
®) 5,116 4,730 4,611 4,331 3,837 3,723 4,452 5,145
G) 2.04% 2.07% 1.96% 1.51% 0.97% 0.98% 1.00% 1.02%
®) 380 431 441 389 265 211 228 197
$ 88l $ 972 $ 1,146 $ 1,122 $ 959 $ 81l $ 887 $ 991

73/648



EDINETOOOO

OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

oOoOooodn

(5) 0.38% 0.40% 0.45% 0.46% 0.39% 0.34% 0.38% 0.43%
( )(6)
Tier
11.9% 11.9% 11.4% 10.8% 11.2% 11.4% 11.7% 11.6%
Tier 13.5 13.5 12.9 12.3 12.6 12.9 13.3 13.1
16.1 16.1 14.8 14.6 14.7 15.1 15.4 15.2
Tier 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.9 7.9 8.2 8.4 8.4
7.2 6.9 7.1 6.4 6.4 6.6 6.8 6.8
?) 7.4 7.4 7.3 7.7 8.2 8.4 8.7 8.5
(©) 6.5 6.6 6.5 6.7 7.3 7.4 7.6 7.6
27 .4% 26.9% 26.0% 24 6% 24 6% 24 8% 25.5% 24._.8%
14.5 13.7 14.2 12.8 12.5 12.7 13.0 12.8
13.3 12.9 12.4 11.6 11.5 11.4 11.8 11.4
7.1 6.6 6.7 6.1 5.8 5.8 6.0 5.9
@
@
(©)) GAAP GAAP
GAAP
(O]
®
28
35
®)
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— FTE

€3] @ @
) 2020 2019 2018

$ 253,227$¢ 359 0.14% $ 125,555% 1,823 1.45% $ 139,848% 1,926  1.38%
8,840 29 0.33 9,427 207 2.19 9,446 216 2.29
309,945 903  0.29 279,610 4,843  1.73 251,328 3,176 1.26
148,076 4,185  2.83 148,076 5,269  3.56 132,724 4,901  3.69
532,266 9,868  1.87 450,090 11,917  2.65 437,312 11,837  2.66
@
236,719 7,338 3.10 220,552 7,651  3.47 207,523 7,294  3.51
38,251 1,290  3.37 44,600 2,194  4.92 53,886 2,573  4.77
85,017 8,759 10.30 94,488 10,166 10.76 94,612 9,579 10.12
) 89,974 2,545  2.83 90,656 3,261  3.60 93,036 3,104  3.34
449,961 19,932  4.43 450,296 23,272  5.17 449,057 22,550  5.02
0 344,095 9,712 2.82 321,467 13,161  4.09 304,387 11,937  3.92
0 106,487 2,208  2.07 103,918 3,402  3.27 97,664 3,220  3.30
®) 63,428 1,790  2.82 62,044 2,741  4.42 60,384 2,618  4.34
18,496 559  3.02 20,691 718 3.47 21,557 698  3.24
532,506 14,269  2.68 508,120 20,022  3.94 483,992 18,473  3.82
982,467 34,201  3.48 958,416 43,294  4.52 933,049 41,023  4.40
83,078 2,539  3.06 69,089 4,478  6.48 76,524 4,300  5.62
2,317,899 52,084 2.25 2,040,263 71,831 3.52 1,980,231 67,379  3.40
31,885 26,193 25,830
) 333,338 339,374 319,185
$2,683,122 $2,405,830 $2,325,246
$ 58,113% 6 0.01% $ 52,020% 5 0.01% $ 54,2268 6  0.01%
829,719 977 0.12 741,126 4,471 0.60 676,382 2,636  0.39
47,780 405  0.85 47,577 471 0.9 39,823 157 0.39
64,857 323 0.50 66,866 1,407  2.11 50,593 991  1.96
1,000,469 1,711  0.17 907,589 6,354  0.70 821,024 3,790  0.46
1,476 4 0.27 1,936 20 1.04 2,312 39 1.69
184 - 0.0 181 - 0.0 810 - o.01
75,386 228 0.30 69,351 814  1.17 65,097 666  1.02
77,046 232 0.30 71,468 834  1.17 68,219 705 1.03
1,077,515 1,943  0.18 979,057 7,188  0.73 889,243 4,495  0.51
293,466 987  0.34 276,432 7,208  2.61 269,748 5,839  2.17
41,386 974  2.35 45,449 1,249 275 50,928 1,358  2.67
220,440 4,321  1.96 201,623 6,700  3.32 200,399 6,915  3.45
1,632,807 8,225 0.50 1,502,561 22,345 1.49 1,410,318 18,607 1.32
555,483 401,269 425,698
) 227,523 234,111 224,482
267,309 267,889 264,748
$2,683,122 $2,405,830 $2,325,246
1.75% 2.03% 2.08%
0.15 0.40 0.37
@ $ 43,859  1.90% $ 49,486  2.43% $ 48,772 2.45%
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ooooooo
@
@
®3) 29 (2020 ) 29 (019 ) 28 (2018 )
(%) 2019
) 598 (2020 ) 573 (2019 ) 564 (018 )
36 (2020 ) 47 (019 ) 40 (018 )
6) 343 (2020 ) 355 (2019 ) 304 (2018 )
() FTE 499 (2020 ) 595 (2019 ) 610 (2018 )
— FTE
(€5) )
C ) C )
) 2019 2020 2018 2019
(@)
$ 1,849 $ (3,313) $ (1.,464) $ (193) $ Q0 $ (103)
(13) (165) (178) - © ©
519 (4,459) (3,940) 347 1,320 1,667
3 (1,087) (1,084) 563 (195) 368
2,188 (4,237) (2,049) 135 (55) 80
563 (876) (313) 447 (90) 357
(312) (592) (904) (446) 67 (379)
(1,018) (389) (1,407) @an 604 587
(22) (694) (716) (76) 233 157
(3,340) 722
(D) 912 (4,361) (3,449) 665 559 1,224
(@) 80 (1,274) (1,194) 209 @7 182
63 (1,014) (951) 75 48 123
(76) (83) (159) (28) 48 20
(5,753) 1,549
(9,093) 2,271
905 (2,844) (1,939) (417) 595 178
() $ (19,747) $ 4,452
)
$ 1% -3 1% @ s - % @
507 (4,001) (3,494) 254 1,581 1,835
2 (68) (66) 29 285 314
(39) (1,045) (1,084) 320 9 416
(4,643) 2,564
®) (11) (16) ) (13) 19
68 (654) (586) 41 107 148
(602) 129
(5,245) 2,693
451 (6,672) (6,221) 160 1,209 1,369
(111) (164) (275) (145) 36 (109)
619 (2,998) (2,379) 41 (256) (215)
() (14,120) 3,738
() ® $  (5,627) $ 714
@
@
(3) FTE (96 (2019 2020 ) 15 (2018 2019 )
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) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 ()
$ 13,739 $ 16,904 $ 10,959 $ 11,254 $ 24,698 $ 28,158 Q2%
(20) (33) 4,693 5,117 4,673 5,084 )
3,416 4,216 1 2 3,417 4,218 19)
310 833 164 294 474 1,127 (58)
3,706 5,016 4,858 5,413 8,564 10,429 (18)
( 17,445 21,920 15,817 16,667 33,262 38,587 4
379 269 5,386 3,503 5,765 3,772 53
11,508 10,718 7,370 6,928 18,878 17,646 7
5,558 10,933 3,061 6,236 8,619 17,169 (50)
1,362 2,679 750 1,528 2,112 4,207 (50)
$ 4,196 $ 8,254 $ 2,311 $ 4,708 $ 6,507 $ 12,962 (50)
@ 24.5% 24.5%
1.69% 2.40% 3.53% 3.80% 2.88 3.81
35 69 9 19 17 35
65.97 48.90 46.60 41.56 56.76 45.73
$ 5,144 $ 5,371 $310,436 $ 295,562 $ 315,580 $ 300,933 5%
) 813,779 703,481 310,862 296,051 858,724 738,807 16
0 849,924 735,298 314,599 306,169 898,606 780,742 15
816,968 702,972 6,698 5,368 823,666 708,340 16
12,000 12,000 26,500 25,000 38,500 37,000 4
$ 4,673 $ 5,467 $ 295,261 $ 311,942 $ 299,934 $ 317,409 )%
0 899,951 724,573 295,627 312,684 945,343 760,174 24
@ 939,629 758,459 299,186 322,717 988,580 804,093 23
906,002 725,665 6,560 5,080 912,652 730,745 25
@
@
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31

2020

189

17

ATM

35
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4,300

2019
247

ALM )

COVID-19

ooooooo
GWIM
38
17,000  ATM
39
65 65
( )
19 86
20 58

12

( ) 35
250,000

ATM

79/648



EDINETOOOO

OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

OoOoOoOoOodno
41 42
32 137 ( )
COVID-19 ALM
13 37
2020 COVID-19 110
379
790 115
2020 793
344 1,140 8,170
2020 2019
( Y@ 1.94% 2.34%
( ) $ 306,104 $ 240,132
( YR 39,315 38,266
( Y(4) 30,783 29,174
4,312 4,300
ATM 16,904 16,788
@
@ AUM
®)
Q)
2020 660

12
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OoOoOoOoOodno
RV
C )
(
)
24 23
295 110 (
) ALM
555 49
COVID-19 19 54
442 74
PPP 149 3,104
( )
2020 2019
()
) 10.27% 10.76%
®3) 9.16 8.28
( ) 2,505 4,320
$ 251,599 $ 277,852
$ 384,503 $ 360,672
(1) GwIM

@
®
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ooo0000
2020
2019 88bps
263 2,516 COVID-19
2020
2019 2020 COVID-19
238 3,845

2020
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OoooooO
@
2020 2019
$ 43,197 $ 49,179
6,930 9,755
@
$ 69,086 $ 72,467
8,160 11,131
@
@ GWIN
2020
60 34
2020
28 30
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oooooono
) 2020 2019 ()
$ 5,468 6,504 (16)%
12,270 11,870 3
846 1,164 @27
13,116 13,034 1
( ) 18,584 19,538 5)
357 82 n/m
14,154 13,825 2
4,073 5,631 (28)
998 1,380 (28)
$ 3,075 4,251 (28)
24..5% 24 5%
1.73 2.33
21 29
76.16 70.76
$ 183,402 168,910 9%
316,008 279,681 13
328,384 292,016 12
287,123 256,516 12
15,000 14,500 3
$ 188,562 176,600 %
356,873 287,201 24
369,736 299,770 23
322,157 263,113 22
n/m(not meaningful)
GWIM MLGWM )
MLGWM 250,000
MLGWM
MLGWM
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10
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2,871
MLGWM
AUN

33

EDINETOOOO

OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

55
131 (AUM
)
COVID-19
142
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ooooooo
) 2020 2019

$ 15,292 $ 16,112
3,292 3,426
( ) $ 18,584 $ 19,538

( )
$ 2,808,340 $ 2,558,102
541,464 489,690
$ 3,349,804  $ 3,047,792

( )
$ 1,408,465 $ 1,275,555
1,479,614 1,372,733
322,157 263,103
(€)) 191,124 179,296
(51,556) (42,895)
$ 3,349,804  $ 3,047,792
( ) $ 1,275,555  $ 1,072,234
C ) 19,596 24,865
113,314 178,456
( ) $ 1,408,465 $ 1,275,555

( )
17,331 17,458
19,373 19,440
21,213 20,586
( ) O] $ 1,126 % 1,082
( )
1,759 1,766
(€H)
@
GWIM AUM
AUM AUM
AUM AUM (
)
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 3,020 (10 ) 3.3
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) 2020 2019 ()
$ 9,013 $ 10,675 6)%
3,238 3,015 7
4,010 3,137 28
2,726 3,656 (25)
9,974 9,808 2
( ) 18,987 20,483 @
4,897 414 n/m
9,337 9,011 4
4,753 11,058 7
1,283 2,985 7
$ 3,470 $ 8,073 7

27.0% 27.0%

1.86 2.75

8 20

49.17 43.99
$ 382,264 $ 374,304 2
485,688 388,152 25
542,302 443,083 22
456,562 362,731 26
42,500 41,000 4
$ 339,649 $ 379,268 Q0)%
522,650 407,180 28
580,561 464,032 25
493,748 383,180 29

n/m(not meaningful)
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35
17 90
)
COVID-19
)
2020

(2019 20 )

PPP

15 190

166

45
326 (
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ooooood
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 3,552% 3,994 $  3,743% 4,132 $ 261% 363 $ 7,556% 8,489
2,986 3,994 3,169 3,499 893 1,064 7,048 8,557
( ) $ 6,538% 7,988 $ 6,9128 7,631 $  1,154$ 1,427 $ 14,604$ 17,046
$ 179,393% 177,713 $ 182,212 181,485 $ 14,410$ 15,058 $ 376,015$ 374,256
216,371 177,924 191,813 144,620 48,214 40,196 456,398 362,740
$ 153,126$ 181,409 $ 164,641$ 182,727 $ 13,242$ 15,152 $ 331,009$ 379,288
233,484 185,352 207,597 157,322 52,150 40,504 493,231 383,178
2020 2019 933
2020 ALM 2019
15 ( )
2020 2019
26
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OooooOodd
2020 2019 2020 2019

$ 1,458 $ 1,336  $ 1,621  $ 1,460
1,555 1,348 3,443 3,107

997 453 2,328 1,259

4,010 3,137 7,392 5,826

(93) (62) (212) (184)

$ 3,917 $ 3,005  $ 7,180 $ 5,642

(
27 72
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) 2020 2019 ()
$ 4,646 $ 3,915 19%
1,973 1,738 14
2,991 2,288 31
8,471 7,065 20
685 608 13
14,120 11,699 21
( ) 18,766 15,614 20
251 ([©)) n/m
11,422 10,728 6
7,093 4,895 45
1,844 1,395 32
$ 5,249 $ 3,500 50

26.0% 28.5%

15 10

60.86 68.71
$ 243,519 $ 246,336 W%
104,697 116,883 (10)
87,125 83,216 5
47,655 43,273 10
482,996 489,708 ()
73,062 71,334 2
482,171 476,225 1
685,047 679,300 1
47,400 31,380 51
36,000 35,000 3
$ 421,698 $ 452,499 %
78,415 72,993 7
447,350 471,701 )
616,609 641,809 @
53,925 34,676 56

n/m(not meaningful)
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) DVA(
DVAC )
17
133

23

COVID-19
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)

252
10
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15

OooooOodd
MBS
DVAC )
DVAC ) 2019
17
32 188
22
114
6,850
(



EDINETOOOO

OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)
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( )
( MBS
) ( )
) (
)
DVAC ) ( GAAP )
DVA( )
DAEG)
) 2020 2019
$ 9,595 $ 8,189
5,422 4,493
$ 15,017  $ 12,682
O©VAC ) O]
$ 9,725  $ 8,397
5,425 4,507
OVAC ) ) $ 15,150 $ 12,904
@
() FTE 196 (020 ) 187 (019 )
®) 478 (2020 ) 538 (019 )
(4) FICC DVAC ) GAAP FICC DVA () 130 (2020
) 208 (019 ) VA () (020 ) 14 (019 )
FICC
13
918
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) 2020 2019 ()
$ 34 $ 234 (85)%
« ) (3,606) (2.617) 38
( ) (3,572) (2,383) 50
50 (669) (107)
1,422 3,690 (61)
(5,044) (5,404) ()
(4,637) (4,048) 15
$  (407) $ (1,356) (70)
$ 28,159 $ 42,935 (B4)%
[€h) 228,783 210,689 9
18,247 21,359 (15)
$ 21,301 $ 37,156 (43)%
€Y 264,141 224,375 18
12,998 23,089 (44)
@ ( ) ( )
7,631 (2020 ) 5,443 (019 )
9,777 (2020 12 31 ) 5,654 (2019 12 31 )
ALM
ALM
ALM
ALM 23
ALM
2020 ALM
127 90
2020 ( FHA
) 30 126 ( )
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OooooOodd
2019
949 407 (
)
ESG
12 (
)
2019
COVID-19 2019 669 719
50
2019 21 23 14
)
ESG
589 (2019
)
FTE
11 12
( )
( ) 2020 2019
115 135 2021 136
17
( SBLC

12
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( VIE ) VIE
(VIE)
10 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
10
2019
12 31
2020 12 31
)
$ 20,352% 50,824$ 48,568$ 143,190$ 262,934 $ 240,856
1,927 3,169 2,395 4,609 12,100 11,794
551 700 80 103 1,434 3,530
50,661 3,206 426 1,563 55,856 74,673
1,656 1,002 953 781 4,482 4,099
@ 4,542 8,123 6,958 30,924 50,547 44,385
$ 79,689% 67,114$ 59,380$ 181,170$ 387,353 $ 379,337
(1) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31

12

ERC
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( CAE )
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ERC
ERC

ESG

(ESG)
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( MRC )
MRC
FRB
( FLU ) IRM
FLU  IRM (
)
FLU
FLU IRM
(ESG) ( ) ) (

PP )
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IRM
( FLU )
ESG CD PP
IRM  FLU
IRM

ERC

CAE FLU IRM
CAE

FLU
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( FLU
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ERC

( ICAAP ) ICAAP

1CAAP
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CCAR
FRB  CCAR
2020 FRB 2020
2020 10 2021 30
SCB )
)
CET 2.5
SCB )
FRB
2020 11
2020 12
FRB
2020
2020 70
2020 12 FRB 2021
2021 19
2021
2021 31
FRB
(
)
(1934 (

CCAR

FRB

0.18

2021
29
( 300

)(
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( RWA )

( PCA )
BANA
RWA PCA

2020 12 31 CET Tier
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ooOoooOoo
2.5
G-SIB
2020 10
SCB CET
(
SLR )3.0 2.0
PCA 6.0
SLR SLR Tier
( )
11 2020 12 31 2019

12 31
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ooooooo
11
[O]O)) 1) (©)
) 2020 12 31
Tier 176,660 $ 176,660
Tier 200,096 200,096
(O] 237,936 227,685
( ) 1,480 1,371
Tier 11.9% 12.9% 9.5%
Tier 13.5 14.6 11.0
16.1 16.6 13.0
( - )6) 2,719 $ 2,719
Tier 7.4% 7.4% 4.0
( )(6) $ 2,786
7.2% 5.0
2019 12 31
Tier 166,760 $ 166,760
Tier 188,492 188,492
[0)) 221,230 213,098
( ) 1,493 1,447
Tier 11.2% 11.5% 9.5%
Tier 12.6 13.0 11.0
14.8 14.7 13.0
( - )(5) 2,374 $ 2,374
Tier 7.9% 7.9% 4.0
( ) $ 2,946
6.4% 5.0
(1) 2020 12 31 CECL
(@) 2020 12 31
2019 12 31
(©) G-SIB 2.5 (2020 12 31 2019 12 31 ) 2020 12 31
2.5  SCB
SLR 2.0
O] Tier
5) Tier
(6) 2020 12 31
2020 12 31 CET 1,767 ( OClI )
( AFS 2019 12 31 99
CET Tier
167 RWA 2020 12 31 CET
2020 137 14,800
) 12 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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OooooOodd
12
12 31
( ) 2020 2019
$ 248,414 $ 241,409
CECL () 4,213 -
( (68,565) (68,570)
5,773) (5,193)
( (1,617) (1,328)
(1,164) (1,003)
C )
( ) 1,753 1,278
(601) 167
Tier 176,660 166,760
( 23,437 22,329
() (597)
Tier 200,096 188,492
Tier 22,213 22,538
@ 15,649 10,229
22) (29)
237,936 221,230
(@) (10,251) (8,132)
$ 227,685 $ 213,098
(1) CECL 2020 CECL 2020 2020 12 31
(2 2020 12 31 # CECL
13 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 RWA
13
(€)) (€))
12 31
) 2020 2019
$ 1,420 % 896 $ 1,437 % 858
60 60 56 55
(@) n/a 372 n/a 500
n/a 43 n/a 34
$ 1,480 % 1,371 $ 1,493 $ 1,447
(€)) 2020 12 31
2019 12 31
(2 2020 12 31 2020

n/a(not applicable)
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ooooooo
14 2020 12 31 2019
12 31 BANA BANA
PCA
14
M@ 1) (©)
) 2020 12 31
Tier 164,593 $ 164,593
Tier 164,593 164,593
(O] 181,370 170,922
( ) 1,221 1,014
Tier 13.5% 16.2% 7.0%
Tier 13.5 16.2 8.5
14.9 16.9 10.5
)E)] 2,143 $ 2,143
Tier 7.7% 7.7% 5.0
( ) $ 2,525
6.5% 6.0
2019 12 31
Tier 154,626 $ 154,626
Tier 154,626 154,626
() 166,567 158,665
( ) 1,241 991
Tier 12.5% 15.6% 7.0%
Tier 12.5 15.6 8.5
13.4 16.0 10.5
)(5) 1,780 $ 1,780
Tier 8.7% 8.7% 5.0
( ) $ 2,177
7.1% 6.0
(1) 2020 12 31 CECL
(@) 2020 12 31
2019 12 31
() 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 2.5
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 PCA
() Tier
) Tier
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( TLAC ) Tier
TLAC TLAC
SLR
TLAC
15 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 TLAC
15
TLAC(1) ® ?)
) 2020 12 31
$ 405,153 $ 196,997
[0 27.4% 22.0% 13.3% 8.5
5)(6) 14.5 9.5 7.1 4.5
2019 12 31
$ 367,449 $ 171,349
(O)) 24..6% 22.0% 11.5% 8.5%
() 12.5 9.5 5.8 4.5
(1) 2020 12 31 TLAC CECL
(2) TLAC 2.5 1.5 G-SIB TLAC
18.0 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
TLAC 7.5 2.0 TLAC
TLAC TLAC CET Tier
(©) 6.0 G-SIB
2.5 4.5
O] TLAC 2020 12 31 2019
12 31
(5) 2020 12 31
(6) 2020 12 31
2019 12 31
2020 ECL
2020 (
2020 26 ) CECL
2020 2021
( ) CECL
100 25 CET (
) 2022 CECL
CET
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2020 17
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2020 15
2020
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FRB  CCAR
2.5
2020 CCAR
2.5  SCB
FRB 2020  CCAR
CCAR
scB
2020 12 31
2021 31 )

CCAR

FRB

2020 30
SLR 1.0

2020 12 31
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2020 30
2020 22
8.0
6-SIB
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6.5

FRB

(
RWA 150
( CFTC
CET
(FDIC)
G-SIB
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SBA PPP
2020 10 28
COVID-19
SA-CCR ) SA-CCR
660
)
8.0
2.0
( )
TLAC
G-SIB

2021
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ooOoooOoo
2020
Tier
FRB 2,500 (
SCCL ) SCCL
2020 G-SIB
G-SIB Tier SCCL G-SIB
FRB Tier 15
Tier 25
(
BofAS ) ( MLPCC )
( MLPF&S )
( MLI
) ( BofASE )
15c3-1
BofAS 15c3-1e
MLPCC MLPF&S 15c3-1
BofAS MLPCC CFTC 1.17
( FINRA ) FINRA 4110

FINRA 15c3-1
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ooooOoog
BofAS BofAS 10
500
BofAS 50 ( SEC )
BofAS CFTC
2020 12 31 BofAS 168
BofAS 141 29
MLPCC BofAS
2020 12 31 MLPCC
86 14
MLPF&S 2020 12 31 MLPF&S 36
180
MLI
FCA 2020 12 31 MLI
341 147 BofASE
2020 12 31
BofASE 62 19
2020
COVID-19
ALM
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ERC
MRC
MRC

NB

NB

NB

NB
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( GLS )
MBS
GLS
16 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 GLS
16
12 31
) 2020 2019
$ 773 $ 454
(¢H) 170 122
$ 943 $ 576
@ NB
FHLB
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
3,060 3,720 FHLB

FHLB FRB FHLB FRB
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OooooOodd
NB
NB BANA
17 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 GLS
17
12 31
) 2020 2019
$ 322 $ 103
141 98
462 358
18 17
$ 943 $ 576
GLS ( LCR )
( HQLA ) LCR HQLA
LCR 30
HQLA
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 HQLA( )
5,840 4,640 LCR 122 116 LCR
(
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( )
2020 10 20
( NSFR )
LCR
2021 NSFR ( )

NSFR
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2019 12 31
GWIM
2020
2020
525
(

123

1.80

10

569

TLAC

83

221

1.43
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2020 12 31
FDIC
FHLB
( GSE ) FHA
( )
2,629
438
TLAC ) 48
2019
293
) 109
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oOoOooodn
2020 471
226
115 130 2019
506 211
199 96
2020 12 31 1,912 TLAC
1,466
2021 120 2022 2025 153 146 117
132 798 TLAC
TLAC 2020
73

11

ALM

121/648



EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)
oOoOooodn

( oTC )
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OooooOodd
2020 22 ( )
2020 28
(2020
)
MLI  BoFASE
M- Fl+
BBB A-
2020 BANA A
2020 11 18 ( )
2020
2020

18
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18
A2 P-1 A- A-2 A+ F1
Aa2 P-1 A+ A-1 AA- F1+
NR NR NR A+ A-1 AA- F1+
NR NR NR A+ A-1 AA- F1+
NR NR NR A+ A-1 AA- F1+
NR NR NR A+ A-1 AA- F1+
NR NR NR A+ A-1 AA- F1+
NR
) oTC
2020 2021 24

13
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X XIV(
) 100 2020 12 31

)
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12

2020
2020

GDP
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OooooOodd
( 2020
CARES 2020 12 ) 2020
COVID-19
2020
2020
COVID-19
2020 GDP
2020
( )
COVID-19
2020
COVID-19 2021

COVID-19
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COVID-19
2020
COVID-19 2020
334 27
2020 CECL
COVID-19 55 101

TDR

19 90
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ooooooo
19
90
12 31
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
(&Y) $223,555 $236,169 $ 2,005 $ 1,470 $ 762 $ 1,088
34,311 40,208 649 536 - -
78,708 97,608 n/a n/a 903 1,042
2 91,363 90,998 71 47 33 33
124 192 - - - -
$428,061 $465,175 $ 2,725 $ 2,053 $ 1,698 $ 2,163
[€)) 735 594
$428,796 $ 465,769
4 n/a n/a 0.64% 0.44% 0.40% 0.47%
4) n/a n/a 0.65 0.46 0.22 0.24
1 90 FHA
537 (2020 12 31 ) 740 (2019 12 31 )
225 (2020 12 31 ) 348 (2019 12 31 )
O 464 (2020 12 31 )
504 (2019 12 31 ) 411 (2020 12 31 ) 367 (2019 12 31 )
30 (2020 12 31 ) 28 (2019 12 31 )
®) 298 (2020 12 31 ) 257
(2019 12 31 ) 437 (2020 12 31 ) 337 (2019 12 31 )
21
0)) 11 (2020 12 31
) (2019 12 31 ) 90

n/a(not applicable)

20

20
(€D)
) 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 30) % 7 (0.01)% (0.02)%
(73) (358) (0.19) (0.81)
2,349 2,948 2.76 3.12
122 209 0.14 0.23
284 234 n/m n/m
$ 2,652 $ 2,986 0.59 0.66
)

n/m(not meaningful)
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21

( LTV )
( FICO )

2010 GSE
2015
21
GWIM
ALM
21 2020 154
105 49
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Ooooooog
21 (€))
12 31
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 215,273 $ 225,770 $ 1,390 $ 883 § 25) $ 7
30,328 35,226 462 363 (6) 51
245,601 260,996 1,852 1,246 (31) 58
8,282 10,399 615 587 ®) (54)
3,983 4,982 187 173 (67) (409)
12,265 15,381 802 760 72) (463)
223,555 236,169 2,005 1,470 (30) @n
34,311 40,208 649 536 (73) (358)
$ 257,866 $ 276,377 $ 2,654  $ 2,006 $  (103) $ (405)
12 31
2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 374 $ 229 § 136 $ 22
599 120 135 (58)
973 349 271 (36)
85 96 75 (134)
0) (63) 101 1) (510)
22 197 54 (644)
459 325 211 (112)
®) 536 221 114 (568)
$ 995 $ 546 $ 325 $ (680)
@
298 (2020 12 31 )y 257 (2019 12 31 )
437 (2020 12 31 ) 337 (2019 12 31 ) 21
©) 2020 12 31
®) 137 (2020 12 31 )

131/648



EDINETOOOO

OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

OooooOodd
2020 12 31 52
52
40 GWIM
ALM
FHA
2020
126
2020 12 31 118 2019 12 31 187
2020 12 31 28 2019 12 31 112
FHA
2020 FHA
22
22 —
(€D) (€))
12 31
( ) 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 223,555 $ 236,169 $211,737  $217,479
30 2,314 3,108 1,224 1,296
90 762 1,088 - -
0) 2,005 1,470 2,005 1,470
LTV 90 100 2% 2% 1% 2%
LTV 100 1 1 1 1
FICO 620 2 3 1 2
2006 2007 (3) 3 4 3 4
(€]
@ TDR  TDR

(©)) 503
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oooooog
2020 COVID-19
535 2020 12 31
45 892
30 72
2020 2019 47 17 30
22 2020 12 31 2,117 27 10
2020 12 31 10
59 (10 )
2020 12 31
10 113 ( ) 30
12 ( ) 2020 12
31 10 356 C ) (
96 ) 20
( ) 10
10 10 98 2022
23
— — (
MSA ) 2020 12 31 16 (2019 12 31 16 )
— — MSA 2020 12 31
14 (2019 12 31 13 )
23
(€5) (€5)
12 31
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 83,185 § 88,998 $ 570 $ 274 $ a8 2)
23,832 22,385 272 196 3 5
13,017 12,833 175 143 ®) 12)
8,868 8,943 78 65 - 1
8,806 8,734 98 77 @ o)
74,029 75,586 812 715 ©) (15)
$ 211,737 $217,479 $ 2,005 $ 1,470 $ (30) $ 47)

11,818 18,690

$ 223,555  $236,169

@
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2020 12 31
( HELOC )
HELOC 10
15 20
2020 12 31 80 12
GWIM 2020
59 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
138 (40 ) 150 @7 ) 2020 12
31
59 a7 )
2020 12 31 HELOC 423 (2019 12 31 436 ) HELOC
2020 12 31 43 (2019 12 31 46 )
24
24 — €H)
12 31
( ) 2020 2019
$ 34,311 $ 40,208
30 ®) 186 218
A1) 649 536
CLTV 90 100 1% 1%
CLTV 100 1 2
FICO 620 3 3
2006 2007 (4) 16 18
@
(@) 30 25 (2020 12 31 ) 30
(2019 12 31 ) 88 (2020 12 31 ) 57 (2019 12 31 )
®3) TDR
TDR 90
(0)) 36 (2020 12 31 ) 34 (2019 12 31 )
2020 COVID-19
113 2020 12 31 259
(40 )
237 (36 ) 180
2020 30 32
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Ooooooog
2020
2019 358 285 73
24 2020 12 31 343
15 2020 12 31 HELOC
92 HELOC HELOC
2020 12 31 HELOC 121
( ) 30 2020 12 31 477 «C )
10 2008
HELOC
2020 HELOC
25
— — MSA
2020 12 31 13 (2019 12 31 13 )
2020 12 31 — — MSA
11 (2019 12 31 11 )
25
1) (€))
12 31
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 9,488% 11,232 $  143$ 101 $  (26) $  (117)
3,715 4,327 80 71 @ 74)
2,749 3,216 67 56 @A) ()
2,495 2,899 103 85 @ @
1,719 2,023 32 29 @ (5)
14,145 16,511 224 194 (31) (153)

$ 34,311$% 40,208 $ 649% 536 $  (73) $  (358)

@
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2020 12 31 97
GWIN 2020
189 787 2020 CovID-
19 599 23 (2019 29
) 30 346 90
139
2020 12 31 3,424 (2019 3,369 )
26
26
90
(€H)
12 3l
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 12,543 $ 16,135 $ 166 $ 178 $ 419 $ 526
7,666 9,075 135 135 306 363
6,499 7,815 87 93 202 241
4,654 5,975 76 80 188 243
3,685 4,639 21 26 56 71
43,661 53,969 418 530 1,178 1,504
$ 78,708 $97,608 $ 903 $ 1,042 $ 2,349 $ 2,948
)
2020 12 31 51 (
RV ) 49 GWIM( ) 2020
365 914

27
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27
90
@
12 31
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 12,248 $11,912 $ 6 $ 4 $ 20 $ 49
10,891 10,154 4 4 20 27
8,981 9,516 6 5 20 29
6,609 6,394 2 1 9 12
3,572 3,468 - 1 2 4
49,062 49,554 15 18 51 88
$ 91,363 $90,998 $ 33 $ 33 $122 $209
€))
28 2020 2019
2020 CovID-19
144
672 27
2020 12 31 892 (33 ) 180
2020 12 31 12
45 )
2020 2020
106 123
TDR TDR
TDR 28
( )TDR

COVID-19
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28
) 2020 2019
( ) $ 2,063 $ 3,842
2,278 1,407
(440) (701)
(38) (1,523)
w (1,014) (766)
(78) (111)
(36) (95)
) 672 (1,789)
(12 31 ) 2,725 2,053
(12 31 () 123 229
(12 31 ) $ 2,848 $ 2,282
®3) 0.64% 0.44%
) 0.66 0.49
(D)
@) FHA 119 (2020 12 31
) 260 (2019 12 31 )
(€)]
29 TDR TDR 28
( )TDR
COVID-19
29 TDR
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
)
(@]IN) $ 1,195 $ 2,899 $ 4,09 $ 921 $ 3,832 $ 4,753
3) 248 836 1,084 252 977 1,229
TDR $ 1,443 $ 3,735 $ 5,178 $ 1,173 $ 4,809 $ 5,982
[€H) TDR 14 (2020 12 31 )y 12 (2019 12 31 )
10 (2020 12 31 ) 748 (2019 12 31 ) 361 (2020 12 31 )
468 (2019 12 31 )
(@) TDR 15 (2020 12 31 Yy 21 (2019 12 31 )
®3) TDR 407 (2020 12 31 ) 442 (2019 12 31 )
216 (2020 12 31 ) 209 (2019 12 31 ) 191 (2020 12
31 ) 233 (2019 12 31 )
60
2020 12 31
TDR 701 (2019 12 31 679 ) 614
(2019 12 31 570 ) 30
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( )
12
2020 COVID-19
2020 672
CARES 2020 12 31
PPP 227
PPP
COVID-19
2020 COVID-19
39 87
2020 150
6,203 SBLC

2020 12 31 57 (2019 12 31 58 )
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30
SBLC
30
(€Y) @M
12 31
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 499,065 $517,657 $ 404,740 $405,834 $ 903,805 $ 923,491
©) 47,179 40,485 - - 47,179 40,485
34,616 36,062 538 468 35,154 36,530
22,618 25,546 4,827 5,101 27,445 30,647
8,378 7,047 9,556 15,135 17,934 22,182
6,424 6,660 - - 6,424 6,660
855 1,049 280 451 1,135 1,500
1,168 800 - - 1,168 800
$ 620,303 $635,306 $ 419,941 $426,989 $1,040,244 $1,062,295
(6 59 (2020 12 31 y 77 (2019 12 31 ) 89
(2020 12 31 ) 170 (2019 12 31 )
@ 39
(2020 12 31 ) 42 (2019 12 31 )
(€)]
(O] ( )
105 (2020 12 31 ) 106 (2019 12 31 )
) 425
(2020 12 31 ) 339 (2019 12 31 ) (
)393 (2020 12 31 ) 352 (2019 12 31 )
2020
186 2020 12 31 PPP
227 728
COVID-19
272 31 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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31
90
3
12 31
) 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 288,728 $ 307,048 $ 1,243 $ 1,004 $ 228 $ 106
90,460 104,966 418 43 10 8
379,188 412,014 1,661 1,137 238 114
60,364 62,689 404 280 6 19
17,098 19,880 87 32 25 20
456,650 494,583 2,152 1,449 269 153
() 36,469 15,333 75 50 115 97
493,119 509,916 2,227 1,499 384 250
2 5,946 7,741
$ 499,065 $ 517,657
()
@ 29 (2020 12 31 ) 47 (2019 12 31
) 30 (2020 12 31 ) 31 (2019 12 31 )
21
®
32 2020 2019
32
(€D)
) 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 718 $ 256 0.23% 0.08%
155 84 0.15 0.08
873 340 0.21 0.08
270 29 0.43 0.05
59 21 0.32 0.10
1,202 390 0.24 0.08
267 272 0.86 1.83
$ 1,469 % 662 0.28 0.13
(€}
33
2020 COVID-19
272 2020 12 31
79 (2019 12 31 90 )
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33 1)
12 31
) 2020 2019
$21,388 6.83% $ 8,272 2.46%
5,051 5.03 989 0.89
26,439 6.40 9,261 2.07
10,213 16.42 1,129 1.75
714 4.18 329 1.66
37,366 7.59 10,719 2.01
1,300 3.56 733 4.78
(€Y) $38,666 7.31 $11,452 2.09
(€)) 366 (2020 12 31 ) 107
(2019 12 31 ) 21 (2020 12 31 ) 715 (2019 12 31 )
@
2020 12 31 ( ) 65
18 15 GWIM( )
2020
183
COVID-19 131
2020 12 31 79 21
2020
145
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2020
23 11 01
102 2020 12 31 16.42 (2019 12 31
1.75 ) COVID-19
2020 12 31
23 (2019 12 31 24 )

2020

34
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34
12 31
) 2020 2019
$14,028 $ 14,910
11,628 12,408
8,551 8,408
6,588 5,937
4,294 3,984
3,483 3,203
2,594 3,349
2,370 2,468
1,634 1,638
3,187 3,724
(1) 2,007 2,660
$ 60,364 $62,689
$17,667 $ 17,902
8,330 8,677
7,931 8,183
7,226 6,982
7,051 7,250
2,336 3,438
1,460 1,788
7,146 6,958
59,147 61,178
1,217 1,511
$60,364 $62,689
¢))

2020 12 31 227 PPP
PPP 2020 12 31

50 (2019 12 31 52 ) 2020

91 (2019 94 )
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35 2020 2019
2020
COVID-19 728 22
2020 12 31 84 66
81
35 @)
) 2020 2019
( ) $ 1,499 $ 1,102
3,518 2,048
(1,002) (648)
(350) (215)
®3) 72 (120)
(1,208) (478)
@ (©)]
(56) (181)
728 397
(12 31 ) 2,227 1,499
(12 31 ) 41 56
(12 31 ) 2,268 1,555
(O] 0.45% 0.29%
(O) 0.46 0.30
w 359 (2020 12 31 ) 239 (2019 12 31 )
@
(€)]
TDR
(O]
36 TDR TDR
180 TDR
( )TDR

COVID-19
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36 TDR
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 509 $ 850 $ 1,359 $ 617 $ 999 $ 1,616
49 119 168 41 193 234
558 969 1,527 658 1,192 1,850
137 - 137 212 14 226
42 2 44 18 31 49
737 971 1,708 888 1,237 2,125
- 29 29 - 27 27
TOR $ 737 1,000$ 1,737 $ 888 % 1,264 $ 2,152
37
2020
221 «C ) 1.0
2020
85 «C ) 1,015
2020
«C ) 924
2020
2020
33 ) 330
COVID-19

COVID-19
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37 [€))
2
12 31
) 2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 68,003% 71,386 $ 101,540 $ 110,069
(©) 69,267 70,361 92,414 96,370
39,911 41,082 80,959 80,892
46,948 40,173 70,004 63,942
33,759 34,353 57,880 55,918
41,669 41,889 56,212 53,566
24,548 26,663 50,792 52,129
24,749 25,868 49,710 48,317
32,000 28,434 48,026 49,071
22,871 24,163 44,628 45,956
21,154 23,103 38,149 38,944
23,426 23,449 33,444 33,028
13,936 16,406 32,983 36,326
12,387 12,383 29,234 36,060
18,784 18,927 25,881 27,817
10,515 10,646 24,796 24,072
13,144 12,445 24,677 23,645
11,709 10,432 23,647 20,556
20,751 30,171 22,922 32,345
10,956 7,345 20,765 14,910
9,232 10,193 20,223 21,245
15,028 18,013 18,696 21,435
5,217 5,964 16,349 20,206
9,411 9,154 15,605 16,113
5,921 6,673 13,491 15,218
5,209 6,290 11,810 10,392
( ) 4,939 5,496 8,648 7,997
4,769 3,844 6,759 5,756
$ 620,303 $ 635,306  $1,040,244 $1,062,295
() $  (4,170) $  (3,349)
w
@ ( )
105 (2020 12 31 ) 106 (2019 12 31 )
©)
O]
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2020 12 31
) 42 (2019 12 31 33
) 2020 240 (2019
145 )
( VaR ) 44
38 39 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
«C )
38 C )
12 31
2020 2019
65% 54%
34 45
1 1
) 100% 100%
39 « )
C ) C )
12 31
( ) 2020 2019
2)(3)
A $  (250) 6.0% $  (897) 20.8%
BBB (1,856) 44.5 (1,089) 32.5
BB (1,363) 32.7 (766) 22.9
B (465) 11.2 (373) 11.1
cee (182) 4.4 (119) 3.6
NR(4) (54) 1.2 (305) 9.1
C ) $ (4,170) 100.0% $ (3,349) 100.0%
) « )
@
(3) BBB-
4) NR
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40 2020 12 31 20
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
90 88 20 ( ) 2020
212
« )
( cDS )
( )
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151/648



EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

Ooooooog
40 ( 20 )
( ) 2019
(2020 12 31
(2020 12 12 31
) C ) D) ) Q)
$ 31,817 % 18,201 $ 6,601 $ 4,086 $ 60,705  (1,233)$ 59,472$ 3,628
29,169 10,772 2,155 4,492 46,588 (1,685) 44,903 14,075
8,657 8,681 1,624 2,628 21,590 (456) 21,134 1,012
8,219 8,353 988 4,329 21,889 (1,098) 20,791 4,536
12,679 1,086 1,115 3,325 18,205 (709) 17,496 6,964
10,098 67 1,529 1,952 13,646 (226) 13,420 (2,167)
6,559 4,242 372 2,235 13,408 (321) 13,087 1,985
5,854 696 708 3,288 10,546 (253) 10,293 (1,479)
4,654 4,109 486 997 10,246 (562) 9,684 (643)
4,115 278 359 4,603 9,355 73) 9,282 1,456
5,161 856 488 2,214 8,719 (168) 8,551 (154)
5,428 221 353 1,989 7,991 (180) 7,811 (4,206)
3,811 2,817 412 130 7,170 @75) 6,895 (490)
4,434 452 584 1,128 6,598 (61) 6,537 (519)
3,712 1,379 205 1,112 6,408 (121) 6,287 (1,524)
2,456 1,784 553 1,568 6,361 (669) 5,602 315
2,471 1,334 505 797 5,107 (140) 4,967 (1,540)
2,835 1,156 262 914 5,167 (351) 4,816 94
2,785 1,050 100 253 4,188 (23) 4,165 798
2,218 136 266 77 2,697 (10) 2,687 (900)
( 20
) $  157,132% 67,670$ 19,665 $ 42,117$  286,584$  (8,614)$  277,970% 21,241
2020 12 31
( ) 2019 12 31 36 595
( ) 2019 12 31 141 2020
12 31 449
COVID-19
COVID-19
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41 2020 12 31
« )
2020 12 31 « )
2020 12 31 0.75
4
12 31
)
2020 $ 4,733 $ 2,269% 95,180% 102,182 3.62%
2019 1,859 3,580 93,232 98,671 4.05
2018 1,505 3,458 46,191 51,154 2.17
2020 3,073 1,726 26,399 31,198 1.11
2019 736 2,473 23,172 26,381 1.08
2018 633 2,385 29,847 32,865 1.40
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2020 ECL
33 29
310
31
2020 12 31 2020 72 207
50 22
COVID-19
2020 12 31 2020 2019 12 31 (CECL )
42
1) @ @
) 2020 12 31 2020 1 1 2019 12 31
$ 459 2.44% 0.21% $ 212 1.72% 0.09% $ 325  3.45% 0.14%
399 2.12 1.16 228 1.84 0.57 221 2.35 0.55
8,420 44.79 10.70 6,809 55.10 6.98 3,710 39.39 3.80
752 4.00 0.82 566 4.58 0.62 234 2.49 0.26
41 0.22 n/m 55 0.45 n/m 52 0.55 n/m
10,071 53.57 2.35 7,870 63.69 1.69 4,542 48.23 0.98
@) 5,043 26.82 1.55 2,723 22.03 0.84 3,015 32.02 0.94
1,241 6.60 1.37 668 5.41 0.64 658 6.99 0.63
2,285 12.15 3.79 1,036 8.38 1.65 1,042 11.07 1.66
162 0.86 0.95 61 0.49 0.31 159 1.69 0.80
8,731 46.43 1.77 4,488 36.31 0.88 4,874 51.77 0.96
18,802 100.00% 2.04 12,358 100.00% 1.27 9,416 100.00% 0.97
1,878 1,123 813
$ 20,680 $ 13,481 $ 10,229
@ ( )
298 (2020 12 31
) 257 (2020 2019 12 31 ) 437 (2020 12 31 )
337 (2020 2019 12 31 )
29 (2020 12 31 ) 51 (2020 ) 47 (2019 12 31 ) 30
(2020 12 31 ) 32 (2020 ) 31 (2019 12 31 )
(@) 15 (2020 12 31 ) 831 (2020
) 523 (2019 12 31 )

n/m(not meaningful)
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2019

2020

49
)

2019

Ogoooood
2019 36 4
77 113
72
COVID-19
( ) 2019
2020 (
57 65
( )

155/648



EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

ooooooo
43
) 2020 2019
( ) $ 12,358 $ 9,601
(40) (93)
(59) (429)
(2,967) (3,535)
(372) (518)
(307) (249)
(3,744) (4,824)
[6H) (1,163) (650)
(168) (115)
(275) (3D
(69) (26)
(1,675) (822)
(5,419) (5,646)
70 140
131 787
618 587
250 309
23 15
1,092 1,838
D) 178 122
13 31
5 2
10 5
206 160
1,298 1,998
(4,121) (3,648)
10,565 3,574
- (111)
(12 31 ) 18,802 9,416
( ) 1,123 797
755 16
(12 31 ) 1,878 813
(12 31 ) $ 20,680 $ 10,229
(12 31 YB) $ 921,180 $ 975,091
(12 31 )
(€)) 2.04% 0.97%
(12 31 ) @ 2.35 0.98
(12 31 )
) 1.77 0.96
®3) $ 974,281 $ 951,583
®3) 0.42% 0.38%
(12 3 ) 380 265
(12 31 ) 4.56 2.58
(12 31 )
6) $ 9,854 $ 4,151
( (12 31 )
)(6) 181% 148%
(6 321 (2020 ) 320 (2019 )
(@) 54 (020 ) 48 (019 )
®3) 67 (2020 12 31 ) 83 (2019
12 31 ) 82 (2020 ) 68 (2019 )
() 735 (2020 12 31 ) 5% (2019 12 31 )
®) 59 (2020 12 31 y 77 (2019 12 31 )
®)
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VaR 99

VaR 100 99 VaR
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44 ( )
VaR
(
)
44
44 VaR
VaR VaR 10
VaR
44 VaR (
CVA ) DVA
44 2020 2019 VaR 99
44 45
2020
VaR VaR

2019
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44 VaR
2020 2019
) (€)) (€)) (€)) (€))
$ 8 $ 7% 25% 2 $ 4 3 6 $ 13$ 2
30 19 39 7 25 24 49 14
79 58 91 25 26 23 32 16
20 24 162 12 29 22 33 14
4 6 12 3 4 6 31 4
(72) (61) - - 4n (49) - -
69 53 171 27 41 32 47 24
52 27 - - - 3 _ _
121 80 169 30 41 35 53 27
52 52 84 7 8 10 13 7
11 13 17 9 10 10 17 4
an (24) - - (C)) (10) - -
46 41 86 9 9 10 16 5
(O) (15) - - 5) () - -
$ 163 $ 106 171 2 % 45 $ 38 56 28
@
2020
VaR 44 2020 VaR
- hoi—F -l a L RULYEBEDED b L—F o 2 - F— 2 V2RO B R Vak DiEEE
18D
140
120 Wik,
E 100
L]
E B
n
]
&3
::;:lumm :I..".Il:":l'v}ﬂ w.'u;'.lmu w:l:,:rmn Pl la F e o]
VaR VaR 44 45
VaR VaR
45 2020 2019 99
95 VaR 2020 99 VaR 99
VaR 95 VaR COVID-19
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45 VaR 99 95 VaR
2020 2019
) 99 95 99 95
$ 7 % 4 6 $ 3
19 9 24 15
58 18 23 15
24 13 22 11
6 3 6 3
(61) (26) (49) (29)
53 21 32 18
27 2 3 2
80 23 35 20
52 13 10 5
13 7 10 6
(24) ®) (10) ®)
41 12 10 6
(15) (6) ™ ®)
106 $ 29 38 % 21
VaR VaR
VaR
VaR VaR
VaR 99
100 VaR VaR
VaR
VaR
VaR VaR
2020

VaR
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 12 31
10
LIBOR
0.25% 0.24% 0.93%
0.25 0.19 1.06
2019 12 31
1.75% 1.91% 1.90%
1.50 1.62 1.92
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 12
( )
AFS ocClI
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47
12 31
(bps) (bps) 2020 2019

+100bps +100 +100 $ 10,468 $ 4,190
-25hps -25 -25 (2,766) (1,500)

+100 - 6,321 2,641
- -25 (1,686) (653)
-25 - (1,084) (844)

- +100 4,333 1,561

47
ALM

47
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ALM
2020
( ) 2020 12 31
ocl
( ) 580 (2019 12 31 496 )
2020
12 31
( )
187 358 10 59 50
180
oCl ( )

2020 12 31
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ALM
MSR
2020
48
2020 12 31
) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
@ $ 14,885 8.08
$269,015 $ 11,050 $ 20,908 $ 30,654 $ 31,317 $ 32,898 $142,188
1.54% 3.25% 0.91% 1.48% 1.17% 1.07% 1.69%
@ (5,502) 6.52
$252,698 $ 7,562 $ 21,667 $ 24,671 $ 24,406 $ 32,052 $142,340
0.89% 0.57% 0.10% 1.28% 0.86% 0.68% 1.00%
@ (235)
$223,659 $ 18,769 $ 12,245 $ 9,747 $ 22,737 $ 28,222 $131,939
OG@H (1,014
112,465 27,424 16,038 8,066 3,819 4,446 52,672
W@ EG) 349
(6) (42,490) (69,299) 2,841 2,505 4,735 4,369 12,359
47
14,255 14,255 - - - i} _
17 - - 17 - - -
ALM $ 8,530
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48 ( )
2019 12 31
) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
() $ 12,370 6.47
$215,123 $ 16,347 $ 14,642 $ 21,616 $ 36,356 $ 21,257 $104,905
2.68% 2.68% 3.17% 2.48% 2.36% 2.55% 2.79%
(€)) (2,669) 6.99
$ 69,586 $ 4,344 $ 2,117 $ - $13,993 $ 8,194 $ 40,938
2.36% 2.16% 2.15% % 2.52% 2.26% 2.35%
@ (290)
$152,160 $ 18,857 $ 18,590 $ 4,306 $ 2,017 $ 14,567 $ 93,823
OE@  (1,258)
113,529 23,639 24,215 14,611 7,111 3,521 40,432
(OIOIO)] 414
6) (53,106) (79,315) 4,539 2,674 2,340 4,432 12,224
15 - - - 15 - -
ALM $ 8,567
(6 AFS
@ 2,237 (2020
12 31 ) 1,522 (2019 12 31 )
(€)]
(O]
(5) 2020 12 31 (425) 342
(743) (31) 711
2019 12 31 (531) 290
(824) (313) 644
®)
( IRLC ) ( LHFS
) IRLC
MSR
2020 2019 2018 MSR IRLC
LHFS 321 291 244 MSR
20
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RWA

FLU ( )
FLU

FLU
FLU

FLU
1RM

FLU

ERC ERC

172/648



EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)
oOoOooodn

ERC

ERC FLU

~
o/ S

173/648



EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

ooooood
FLU
ESG ERC FLU
2020 CRO
FLU
(
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2020 (
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LTV
COVID-19

MSR

21
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MSR
MSR

2020 2019 2018
20

100
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( ) (
)
3.68
12
( )
109
213
( )

12
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GAAP
49 50 GAAP GAAP
49 GAAP €D
) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
$ 267,309 $ 267,889 $ 264,748 $ 271,289 $ 265,843
(68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (69,286)  (69,750)
(VSR ) (1,862) @,721) (2,058) (2,652) (3,382)
821 773 906 1,463 1,644
$ 197,317 $ 197,990 $ 194,645 $ 200,814 $ 194,355
(23,624)  (23,036)  (22,949)  (24,188)  (24,656)
$ 173,693 $ 174,954 $ 171,696 $ 176,626 $ 169,699
$ 272,924 $ 264,810 $ 265,325 $ 267,146 $ 266,195
(68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (69,744)
(VSR ) (2,151) (1,661) 1,778) (2,312) (2,989)
920 713 858 943 1,545
$ 202,742 $ 194,911 $ 195,458 $ 196,826 $ 195,007
(24,510)  (23,401)  (22,326)  (22,323)  (25,220)
$ 178,232 $ 171,510 $ 173,132 $ 174,503 $ 169,787
$2,819,627 $2,434,079 $2,354,507 $2,281,234 $2,188,067
(68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (69,744)
(VSR ) (2,151) (1,661) Q,774) (2,312) (2,989)
920 713 858 943 1,545
$2,749,445 $2,364,180 $2,284,640 $2,210,914 $2,116,879
(1)  GAAP GAAP GAAP
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50 GAAP D
2020 2019
)
$ 271,020 $ 267,323 $ 266,316 $ 264,534 $ 266,900 $ 270,430 $ 267,975 $ 266,217
(68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951) (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)
(MSR ) (2,173) (1,976) (1,640) (1,655) (1,678) (1,707) (1,736) (1,763)
910 855 790 728 730 752 770 841
$ 200,806 $ 197,251 $ 196,515 $ 194,656 $ 197,001 $ 200,524 $ 198,058 $ 196,344
(24,180)  (23,427)  (23,427)  (23,456) (23,461)  (23,800)  (22,537)  (22,326)
$ 176,626 $ 173,824 $ 173,088 $ 171,200 $ 173,540 $ 176,724 $ 175,521 $ 174,018
$ 272,924 $ 268,850 $ 265,637 $ 264,918 $ 264,810 $ 268,387 $ 271,408 $ 267,010
(68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951) (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)
(MSR ) (2,151) (2,185) (1,630) (1,646) (1,661) (1,690) (1,718) (1,747)
920 910 789 790 713 734 756 773
$ 202,742 $ 198,624 $ 195,845 $ 195,111 $ 194,911 $ 198,480 $ 201,495 $ 197,085
(24,510)  (23,427)  (23,427)  (23,427) (23,401)  (23.606)  (24,689)  (22,326)
$ 178,232 $ 175,197 $ 172,418 $ 171,684 $ 171,510 $ 174,874 $ 176,806 $ 174,759
$2,819,627 $2,738,452 $2,741,688 $2,619,954  $2,434,079 $2,426,330 $2,395,892 $2,377,164
(68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951) (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)  (68,951)
(VSR ) (2,151) (2,185) (1,630) (1,646) (1,661) (1,690) (1,718) (1,747)
920 910 789 790 713 734 756 773
$2,749,445 $2,668,226 $2,671,896 $2,550,147  $2,364,180 $2,356,423 $2,325,979 $2,307,239
(1)  GAAP GAAP GAAP
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12 31
) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
$ 223,555 $ 236,169 $ 208,557 $ 203,811 $ 191,797
34,311 40,208 48,286 57,744 66,443
78,708 97,608 98,338 96,285 92,278
- - - - 9,214
@ 91,363 90,998 91,166 96,342 95,962
©) 124 192 202 166 626
428,061 465,175 446,549 454,348 456,320
) 735 594 682 928 1,051
428,796 465,769 447,231 455,276 457,371
288,728 307,048 299,277 284,836 270,372
90,460 104,966 98,776 97,792 89,397
) 60,364 62,689 60,845 58,298 57,355
17,098 19,880 22,534 22,116 22,375
456,650 494,583 481,432 463,042 439,499
(5) 36,460 15,333 14,565 13,649 12,993
493,119 509,916 495,997 476,601 452,492
) 5,946 7,741 3,667 4,782 6,034
499,065 517,657 499,664 481,473 458,526
) - - - - (9,214)
$ 927,861 $ 983,426 $ 946,895 $ 936,749 $ 906,683
@ 464 (2020 12 31 )
504 (2019 12 31 ) 501 (2018 12 31 ) 524 (2017 12 31 ) 507 (2016 12 31 )
411 (2020 12 31 ) 367 (019 12 31 ) 370 (018 12 31 )
398 (2017 12 31 ) 401 (2016 12 31 ) 30 (2020 12 31 ) 28
(2019 12 31 ) 29 (2018 12 31 ) 30 (2017 12 31 ) 30 (2016 12 31 )
() 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 2018 12 31 2017 12 31
465 (2016 12 31 )
®) 298 (2020 12 31 ) 257
(2019 12 31 ) 336 (2018 12 31 ) 567 (2017 12 31 )y 710 (2016 12 31 )
437 (2020 12 31 ) 337 (2019 12 31 ) 346 (2018 12 31
) 361 (2017 12 31 ) 341 (2016 12 31 )
29 (2020 12 31 ) 47 (2019 12 31 ) 25 (2018 12 31 ) 26
(2017 12 31 )y 29 (2016 12 31 ) 30 (2020 12 31 ) 31
(2019 12 31 ) 11 (2018 12 31 ) 22 (2017 12 31 ) 31 (2016 12 31 )
0 572 (2020 12 31 ) 590 (2019 12 31 ) 566 (2018 12 31 )
548 (2017 12 31 ) 543 (2016 12 31 ) 32 (2020 12
31 ) 37 (2019 12 31 ) 42 (2018 12 31 ) 35 (2017 12 31 ) 31 (2016 12 31
)
®)
)
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1 ()
12 31
) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
$ 2,006 $ 1,470 $ 1,803 $ 2,476 $ 3,056
649 536 1,893 2,644 2,918
71 47 56 46 28
- - - - 2
D) 2,725 2,053 3,842 5,166 6,004
1,243 1,004 794 814 1,256
418 43 80 299 279
404 280 156 112 72
87 32 18 24 36
2,152 1,449 1,048 1,249 1,643
75 50 54 55 60
®) 2,227 1,499 1,102 1,304 1,703
4,952 3,552 4,944 6,470 7,707
164 285 300 288 377
$ 5,116 $ 3,837 $ 5,244 $ 6,758 $ 8,084
[€H) FHA 119
(2020 12 31 ) 260 (2019 12 31 ) 488 (2018 12 31 ) 801 (2017 12 31 ) 12
(2016 12 31 )
(2) 2020 27 (2020 12 31 )
TDR44 (2020 12 31 ) 372 372
254 2020
(3) 2020 22 (2020 12 31 )
TDR10 (2020 12 31 ) 115 115
71 2020
111 90 @
12 31
) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
) $ 762 $ 1,088 $ 1,884 $ 3,230 $ 4,793
903 1,042 994 900 782
- - - - 66
33 33 38 40 34
- - - - 4

1,698 2,163 2,916 4,170 5,679

228 106 197 144 106
10 8 - 3 5
6 19 4 4 7
25 20 29 19 19
269 153 230 170 137
115 97 84 75 71
384 250 314 245 208
90

$ 2,082 $ 2,413 $ 3,230 $ 4,415 $ 5,887

)

920
@
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v 0
2020 12 31

$ 82,577 $ 198,898 $ 46,642 $ 328,117
14,073 37,552 5,552 57,177
3) 33,196 54,488 8,989 96,673
$ 129,846 $ 290,938 $ 61,183 $ 481,967
27% 60% 13% 100%

$ 46,911 $ 32,280

244,027 28,903

$ 290,938 $ 61,183

@
O]
®
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v €))
) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
( ) $ 12,358 $ 9,601 $ 10,393 $ 11,237 $ 12,234
(40) (93) (207) (188) (403)
(58) (429) (483) (582) (752)
(2,967)  (3,535)  (3,345)  (2,968)  (2,691)
@ - - - (103) (238)
G372) (518) (495) (491) (392)
(307) (249) 197) (212) (232)
(3,744)  (4,824)  (4,727)  (4,544)  (4,708)
®) (1,163) (650) (575) (589) (567)
(168) (115) (82) (446) (133)
275) 31) (10) 24) (10)
(69) (26) ® (16) (30)
(1,675) (822) (675)  (1,075) (740)
(5.419)  (5,646)  (5,402)  (5.619)  (5,448)
70 140 179 288 272
131 787 485 369 347
618 587 508 455 422
@ - - - 28 63
250 309 300 277 258
23 15 15 49 27
1,092 1,838 1,487 1,466 1,389
D) 178 122 120 142 175
13 31 14 6 13
5 2 9 15 4
10 5 9 11 9
206 160 152 174 238
1,298 1,998 1,639 1,640 1,627
(4,121)  (3,648)  (3,763)  (3.,979)  (3.821)
10,565 3,574 3,262 3,381 3,581
(5) - (111) (291) (246) (514)
12 31 18,802 9,416 9,601 10,393 11,480
(6) - - - - (243)
12 31 18,802 9,416 9,601 10,393 11,237
( ) 1,123 797 777 762 646
755 16 20 15 16
(5) - - - - 100
(12 31 ) 1,878 813 797 777 762
(12 31 ) $ 20,680 $ 10,229 $ 10,398 $ 11,170 $ 11,999
(1) 2020 CECL 29
310
@) 2017
®) 321 (2020 ) 320 (2019 ) 287 (2018 ) 258
(017 ) 253 016 )
) 54 (2020 ) 48 (019 ) 47 (2018 ) 43 017 )
45 (2016 )
(5) 2020
C )
(6) 2017
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v « )
) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
©)
(12 31 )(8) $921,180  $975,091  $942,546  $931,039  $908,812
(12 31 ) (8) 2.04% 0.97% 1.02% 1.12% 1.26%
12 31 ) ©) 2.35 0.98 1.08 1.18 1.36
12 31 ) (10) 1.77 0.96 0.97 1.05 1.16
®) $974,281  $951,583  $927,531  $911,988  $892,255
() 0.42% 0.38% 0.41% 0.44% 0.43%
12 31 ) 380 265 194 161 149
12 31 ) 4.56 2.58 2.55 2.61 3.00
12 31 )
11 $ 9,854 $ 4,151 $ 4,031 $ 3,971 $ 3,951
(
12 31 )
Y(11) 181% 148% 113% 99% 98%
(7) 2016 243 2017
92
) 67
(2020 12 31 ) 83 (2019 12 31 ) 43 (2018 12 31 ) 57 (2017 12 31 )y 7 (2016
12 31 ) 82 (2020 ) 68 (2019 ) 55
(2018 ) 67 (017 ) 82 (2016 )
) 735 (2020 12 31 ) 594 (2019 12 31 ) 682
(2018 12 31 ) 928 (2017 12 31 )y 11 (2016 12 31 )
(10) 59 (2020 12 31 )y 77 (2019 12 31 ) 37 (2018 12
31 ) 48 (2017 12 31 ) 60 (2016 12 31 )
1) 2017 2016
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12 31
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
)
$ 459  2.44% $ 325  3.45% $ 422 4.40% $ 701 6.74% $ 1,012 8.820%
399 2.12 21 2.35 506 5.27 1,019 9.80 1,738 15.14
8,420  44.79 3,710 39.39 3,507  37.47 3,368  32.41 2,934 25.56
- - - - - - - - 243 2.12
752 4.00 234 2.49 248 2.58 264 2.54 244 2.13
41 0.22 52 0.55 29 0.30 31 0.30 51 0.44
10,071  53.57 4,542 48.23 4,802 50.02 5,383 51.79 6,222  54.21
@ 5,043  26.82 3,015 32.02 3,010 31.35 3,113 29.95 3,326 28.97
1,241 6.60 658  6.99 677  7.05 803  7.73 874 7.61
2,285 12.15 1,042 11.07 958  9.98 935  9.00 920 8.01
162 0.86 159 1.69 154 1.60 159 1.53 138 1.20
8,731  46.43 4,874 51.77 4,799  49.98 5,010 48.21 5,258  45.79
18,802 100.00% 9,416 100.00% 9,601 100.00% 10,393 100.00% 11,480  100.00%
® - - - - 43)
18,802 9,416 9,601 10,393 11,237
1,878 813 797 777 762
$ 20,680 $ 10,229 $ 10,398 $ 11,170 $ 11,999
(1) 2020 CECL
@ 15 (2020 12 31 ) 523 (2019
12 31 ) 474 (2018 12 31 ) 439 (2017 12 31 ) 416 (2016 12 31 )
(3) 2017
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( )
LTV
(AUM) WM
AUM
( )
(CVA)
(DVA)
(FVA)
(IRLC)

L) LTV
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(VSR)

(PCA)

(TDR)

TDR

(VaR) VaR
VaR

VaR
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ABS

AFS

Al

ALM

ARR

AUM

AWM

BANA

BHC

BofAS

BofASE

bps

CAE

CAO

CCAR

CDO

CDS

CECL

CET1 Tier

CFPB

CFTC

CLO

CLTV

CRO

CVA

DIF
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DVA

ECL
EMRC

EPS

ERC

ESG

EU

FCA

FDIC

FDICIA 1991
FHA

FHLB

FHLMC

FicC

FICO ( )
FLU

FNMA

FTE

FVA

GAAP

GDPR

6LS

GNMA

G-SIB

GSE
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GWIM

HELOC

HQLA

HTM

1BOR

1CAAP

IRLC

1RM

1SDA

LCR

LHFS

LIBOR

LTV

MBS

MD&A

MLGWM

MLI

MLPCC

MLPF&S

MRC

MSA

MSR

NOL

NSFR
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0cC

0Cl

OREO

0TC

PCA

PPP

RMBS

RSU

RWA

SBA

SBLC

SCB

SCCL

SEC

SLR

SOFR

SONIA

TDR

TLAC

VA

VaR

VIE
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2020 12 31 « )

........................................................................ $ 1,371
C ) 3,085
C ) 2,151

........................................................................ 634

2020 12 31

( )O)

60 1,212,177

GWIM
55 @ 1,836,575

565,362

62 149,790

€ ( ) ( )

@ 49.9
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(50 )
69.2 35 5.4 20,000 ATM
74.6
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@
(2020 12 31 )
( )
12,800,000,000 8,650,814,105 4,149,185,895*
100,000,000 3,931,440 96,068,560
7.25 61,603,640
401,440,358
012 ) 50,132,636
513,176,634
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(2020 12 31 )

)

0.01 8,650,814,105

7,110
12,691

1,409.22
4,925.37

3,080,182

7.25

3,275

9,967

7,010

14,056
354

40,000

80,000

56,000

0.01 AA 76,000

6.200 cC 44,000

0D 40,000

6.000 EE 36,000

= 94,000

6.000 GG 54,000

5.875 HH 34,160

13 40,000

5.375 KK 55,900

5.000 LL 52,400

MM 44,000

4.375 NN 44,000

3,931,439.59

8,654,745,544.59
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0.01 )( )
( )
( )
100.00
) 7.00 ( 7.00 )
1.75
1988 10 31
100.00
( )
( )
25,000.00
( )
) () LIBOR 0.35  ( )4.00
2007 15 15 15 15 11 15 (
)
2011 11 15
( )

100,000

) () LIBOR 0.40 ( )4.00
15 15 15 12 15 (
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ooooOoog
) ( )
100,000
( ) () LIBOR 0.40 ( )4.00
15 15 15 12 15 (
)
) 7.25 ( )
1,000
( )
( ) 7.25 ( 72.50 )
2008 30 30 30 30 10 30 (
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367/648




EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

OooooOodd
(€)
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
36,430 | 4,037,901 30,152 | 3,342,048
344,033 | 38,132,618 131,408 | 14,565,263
380,463 | 42,170,519 161,560 | 17,907,310
6,546 725,559 7,107 787,740
304,058 | 33,701,789 274,597 | 30,436,331
2020 12 31 108,856 (12,065,599 )
2019 12 31 50,364 (5,582,346 )
198,854 | 22,040,977 229,826 | 25,473,914
2020 12 31 91,510 (10,142,968 )
2019 12 31 90,946 (10,080,455 )
47,179 | 5,229,320 40,485 | 4,487,357
246,601 | 27,333,255 256,467 | 28,426,802
«C ) 438,249 | 48,575,519 215,730 | 23,911,513
2020 12 31 448,180 (49,676,271
)
2019 12 31 219,821 (24,364,960
)
684,850 | 75,908,774 472,197 | 52,338,315
927,861 | 102,844,113 983,426 | 109,002,938
2020 12 31 6,681 (740,522 )
2019 12 31 8,335 (923,851 )
(18,802) (2,084,014) (9,416) (1,043,669)
( ) 909,059 | 100,760,100 974,010 | 107,959,268
«C ) 11,000 | 1,219,240 10,561 | 1,170,581
68,951 | 7,642,529 68,951 | 7,642,529
9,243 | 1,024,494 9,158 | 1,015,073
2020 12 31 1,585 (175,681 )
2019 12 31 3,709 (411,106 )
64,221 | 7,118,256 55,937 | 6,200,057
135,203 | 14,985,901 129,690 | 14,374,840
2020 12 31 15,718 (1,742,183 )
2019 12 31 15,518 (1,720,015 )
2,819,627 | 312,527,457 | 2,434,079 | 269,793,316
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
650,674 | 72,120,706 403,305 | 44,702,326
1,038,341 | 115,089,716 940,731 | 104,270,624
2020 12 31 481 (53,314 )
2019 12 31 508 (56,307 )
17,698 | 1,961,646 13,719 | 1,520,614
88,767 | 9,838,934 77,048 | 8,540,000
1,795,480 [ 199,011,003 | 1,434,803 | 159,033,565
170,323 | 18,878,601 165,109 | 18,300,682
2020 12 31 135,391 (15,006,738 )
2019 12 31 16,008 (1,774,327 )
71,320 | 7,905,109 83,270 | 9,229,647
45,526 | 5,046,102 38,229 | 4,237,302
19,321 | 2,141,540 24,204 | 2,682,771
2020 12 31 5,874 (651,074 )
2019 12 31 3,941 (436,820 )
181,799 | 20,150,601 182,798 | 20,261,330
2020 12 31 16,311 (1,807,911 )
2019 12 31 15,434 (1,710,705 )
2020 12 31 1,878 (208,158 )
2019 12 31 813 (90,113 )
262,934 | 29,143,605 240,856 | 26,696,479
2020 12 31 32,200 (3,569,048 )
2019 12 31 34,975 (3,876,629 )
2,546,703 [ 282,276,561 | 2,169,269 | 240,441,776
(
12 )
24,510 | 2,716,688 23,401 | 2,593,767
0.01
100,000,000
2020 12 31 3,931,440
2019 12 31 3,887,440
85,982 | 9,530,245 91,723 | 10,166,577
0.01
12,800,000, 000
2020 12 31 8,650,814,105
2019 12 31 8,836,148, 954
164,088 | 18,187,514 156,319 | 17,326,398
« ) (1,656)|  (183,551) (6,633)|  (735,202)
272,924 | 30,250,896 264,810 | 29,351,540
2,819,627 [312,527,457 | 2,434,079 | 269,793,316
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(©) (
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
(
)
5,225 579,139 5,811 644,091
23,636 | 2,619,814 38,837 | 4,304,693
(1,693)|  (187,652) (807) (89,448)
( ) 21,943 | 2,432,162 38,030 [ 4,215,245
1,387 153,735 540 59,854
28,555 | 3,165,036 44,381 | 4,919,190
454 50,321 2,175 241,077
2020 12 31 22 (2,438 )
2019 12 31 ( )
7,053 781,755 8,718 966,303
2020 12 31 7,053 (781,755 )
2019 12 31 8,717 (966,192 )
16 1,773 22 2,438
2020 12 31 16 1,773 )
2019 12 31 19 (2,106 )
7,523 833,849 10,915 | 1,209,819
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( )
2017 12 31 22,323 10,287.3 138,089 113,816 (7,082) 267,146
(32) 57 25
) 1,270 (1,270) —
28,147 28,147
« ) (3,953) (3,953)
C ) 749 749
C (53) (53)
(405) (405)
« D (254) (254)
(5,424) (5,424)
(1,451) (1,451)
4,515 4,515
(4,512) (4,512)
« ) 58.2 901 (12) 889
(676.2) (20,094) (20,094)
2018 12 31 22,326 9,669.3 118,896 136,314 (12,211) 265,325
165 165
27,430 27,430
« D 5,875 5,875
« ) (963) (963)
« ) 616 616
136 136
« D (86) (86)
(6,146) (6,146)
(1,432) (1,432)
3,643 3,643
(2,568) (2,568)
¢ ) 123.3 971 (12) 959
(956.5) (28,144) (28,144)
2019 12 31 23,401 8,836.1 91,723 156,319 (6,633) 264,810
(2,406) (2,406)
17,894 17,894
C ) 4,799 4,799
« ) (498) (498)
« ) 826 826
(98) (98)
« D (52) (52)
(6,289) (6,289)
(1,421) (1,421)
2,181 2,181
(1,072) (1,072)
( ) 41.7 1,284 ©)) 1,275
(227.0) (7,025) (7,025)
2020 12 31 24,510 8,650.8 85,982 164,088 (1,656) 272,924
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( )
2017 12 31 2,474,281 10,287.3 | 15,305,785 | 12,615,365 (784,969)| 29,610,463
(3,547) 6,318 2,771
C ) 140,767 (140,767) —
3,119,813 3,119,813
« ) (438,151) (438,151)
C ) 83,019 83,019
« ) (5.875) (5.875)
(44,890) (44,890)
« ) (28,153) (28,153)
(601,196)| (601,196),
(160, 829), (160,829),
500,443 500,443
(500,110))| (500,110),
« ) 58.2 99,867 (1,330) 98,537
(676.2)| (2,227,219) (2,227,219)
2018 12 31 2,474,614 9,669.3 | 13,178,433 | 15,109,044 | (1,353,467)| 29,408,623
18,289 18,289
3,040,341 3,040,341
« ) 651,185 651,185
C ) (106,739) (106,739),
C ) 68,277 68,277
15,074 15,074
« ) (9,532) (9,532)
(681,223))| (681,223),
(158,723)| (158,723),
403,790 403,790
(284,637))| (284,637)|
¢ ) 123.3 107,626 (1,330) 106,296
(956.5)|  (3,119,481) (3,119,481)
2019 12 31 2,593,767 8,836.1| 10,166,577 | 17,326,398 (735,202)| 29,351,540
(266,681)| (266,681),
1,983,371 1,983,371
« ) 531,921 531,921
C ) (55,198) (55,198)
C ) 91,554 91,554
(10,862) (10,862)
« ) (5,764) (5,764)
(697,073))| (697,073),
(157,504), (157,504),
241,742 241,742
(118,820))| (118,820),
« ) 41.7 142,319 (998)), 141,321
(227.0) (778,651)| (778,651)
2020 12 31 2,716,688 8,650.8 9,530,245 | 18,187,514 (183,551)| 30,250,896
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®)
12 31
2020 2019 2018
17,894 | 1,983,371 | 27,430 | 3,040,341 | 28,147 | 3,119,813
C )
11,320 | 1,254,709 3,590 397,916 3,282 363,777
(411) (45,555) 17) (24,052) (154) (17,069)
1,843 204,278 1,729 191,642 2,063 228,663
¢ ) / 4,101 454,555 2,066 228,995 1,824 202,172
@,737)  (192,529)] 2,435 269,895 3,041 337,064
2,031 225,116 1,974 218,798 1,729 191,642
— — 2,072 229,660 — —
(19,657)| (2,178,782)| (28.874)| (3,200,394)| (28,071)| (3,111,390)
19,049 | 2,111,301 | 30,191 | 3,346,370 | 28,972 | 3,211,256
C )
y 16,942 | 1,877,851 7,920 877,853 | (23.,673) (2.623,915)
(12,883) (1,427,952)| (11,113) (1,231,765)| 11,920 | 1,321,213
(4,385)|  (486,033)| 16,363 | 1,813,675 | 13,010 | 1,442,028
«C ) 3,886 430,724 6,211 688,427 | (2,570)[  (284,859)
«C ) 37,993 | 4,211,144 | 61,777 | 6,847,363 | 39,520 | 4,380,397
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® C )

12 31
2020 2019 2018

561 62,181 387 42,895 3,659 405,564

(29,461)| (3,265,457) (13,466) (1,492,571) (48,384)| (5.362,883)

77,524 8,592,760 52,006 5,764,345 5,117 567,168
91,084 | 10,095,751 79,114 8,768,996 78,513 8,702,381
(194,877)| (21,600,167)| (152,782)( (16,934,357)| (76,640)| (8,494,778)

93,835 | 10,400,671 | 34,770 | 3,853,907 | 18,789 | 2,082,573
(257,535)| (28,545,179)| (37,115) (4,113,827)| (35,980)| (3,988,023)

13,351 1,479,825 12,201 1,352,359 21,365 2,368,097

(5.229)|  (579,582)| (5,963)|  (660,939)| (4,629)| (513,078)
36,571 | 4,053,530 | (46,808)| (5,188,199)| (31,292)| (3,468,405)
') (3,489)|  (386,721)| (2,974)|  (329,638)[ (1,986)| (220,128)

( ) | @77,665)| (19,692,389)| (80,630) (8,937,029)| (71,468) (7,921,513)
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12 31
2020 2019 2018
C )
360,677 | 39,977,439 | 53,327 | 5,010,765 | 71,931 | 7,972,832
5,214 577,920 | (21,879)| (2,425,068)] 10,070 | 1,116,159
4,893)  (542,340)] 4,004 443,803 | (12,478) (1,383,062)

57,013 | 6,319,321 | 52,420 | 5,810,233 | 64,278 | 7,124,574
(47,948)| (5,314,556)| (50,794)| (5,630,007)| (53,046)| (5.879,619)

2,181 241,742 3,643 403,790 4,515 500,443
1,072 (18,820)| (2.568) (284,637)| (4,512)|  (500,110)
7,025  (778,651) (28,144) (3.119,481) (20,094)| (2,227,219)
@. 720 (856,461) (5.934)  (657.725)| (6.895)|  (764,242)

« ) (601) (66,615) (698) (77.366) (651) (72,157)
«C ) 355,819 | 39,438,978 3,377 374,307 | 53,118 | 5,887,599
2,756 305,475 (368) (40,789)|  (1,200)|  (133,008)
() 218,903 | 24,263,209 | (15,844)| (1,756,149)( 19,970 | 2,213,475
161,560 | 17,907,310 | 177,404 | 19,663,459 | 157,434 | 17,449,985
12 31

380,463 | 42,170,519 | 161,560 | 17,907,310 | 177,404 | 19,663,459

8,662 960,096 22,196 2,460,205 19,087 2,115,603
( ) 2,894 320,771 4,359 483,152 2,470 273,775
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( VIE )
VIE
2020 (
ECL )
2020 33 32

24
2020
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( FASB ) 2020 2021

( LIBOR )

2020
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2020 2019 12 31 8,124 6,930
7,585 5,938
(
)
VIE VIE
VIE VIE
(
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oTC )

( MSR ) ( IRLC )
( LHFS )
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( )

( ocl )

0oCl1
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( ALM )
( HTM )
( AFS )
ocl
HTM
AFS
50
AFS ECL
AFS
AFS

0Cl1

HTM
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ECL
ECL
HELOC ) ( SBLC )
ECL
ECL

ECL
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( TDR )

TDR ECL
TDR (
TOR

90
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ECL
( )
ECL ( LTV )
LTV( CLTV )
(
)
( FHA )
HELOC (
) ECL
ECL
180 TDR
( AVM ) AVM
180

TDR ( )
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(
) ECL
2009 (Credit Card Accountability Responsibility
and Disclosure Act of 2009) (
)
ECL
ECL
LTV
ECL
ECL
LTV
ECL
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90

TDR

120
60
180
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FHA

LHFS

60
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TDR
LHFS
TDR
TDR
TDR
TDR
TDR
TDR TDR
180 120

TDR
TDR
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covip-19
CoVID-19 ( )
(Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act CARES )
2019 12 31 2020
CoVID-19 TDR
TDR 2022
CoVID-19 60
( 2019 12 31 )
(
)
TDR TDR
HELOC
LHFS
LHFS LHFS
LHFS
LHFS

40 12
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ECL ECL

12
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50

VIE
VIE VIE VIE

VIE VIE VIE
VIE

VIE
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AFS

VIE ( cDo )
cDo cDo

CDO CDO
CDO

VIE

HTM

0TC
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( MBS )
( ABS ) LHFS

MSR ABS
LHFS IRLC
CDO

50

50
50
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ATM /

SBLC

150
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( GWINM )

2020 12 31
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( EPS )
EPS

( RSU )

ocl
( PPP ) CARES
PPP PPP
( SBA )
SBA
SBA 100 2020 12 31 332,000

PPP 227 SBA

SBA
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2020 2019 2018
23
( )
2020 2018

34,029 43,086 40,811
9,790 11,806 11,724
903 4,843 3,176
4,128 5,196 4,811
2,735 6,305 6,247
51,585 71,236 66,769
1,943 7,188 4,495
987 7,208 5,839
974 1,249 1,358
4,321 6,700 6,915
8,225 22,345 18,607
43,360 48,891 48,162
(€)) 3,954 3,834 3,866
1,702 1,963 1,958
5,656 5,797 5,824
5,991 6,588 6,667
1,150 1,086 1,100
7,141 7,674 7,767
10,708 10,241 10,189
3,866 3,661 3,971
14,574 13,902 14,160
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4,698 2,998 2,722
861 1,184 1,347
1,621 1,460 1,258
7,180 5,642 5,327
34,551 33,015 33,078
8,355 9,034 9,008
«C ) (738) 304 772
42,168 42,353 42,858
@ 2020 2019 2018 92 100 95
55 62 56
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2020 2019 12 31
( )
2020 12 31
/
@

13,242.8 199.9 10.9 210.8 209.3 1.3 210.6
3,222.2 3.5 0.1 3.6 3.6 — 3.6
1,530.5 — — — 40.5 — 40.5
1,545.8 45.3 — 45.3 — — —
1,475.8 37.1 0.3 37.4 39.7 0.6 40.3
3,710.7 53.4 — 53.4 54.5 0.5 55.0

289.6 — —_ — 4.8 — 4.8
279.3 5.0 — 5.0 — — —
320.2 13.3 — 13.3 14.5 — 14.5
106.2 0.3 — 0.3 1.4 — 1.4
599.1 — — — 48.8 — 48.8
541.2 52.6 —_ 52.6 — — —
36.4 1.9 — 1.9 4.4 — 4.4
63.6 2.0 — 2.0 1.0 — 1.0
24.6 — — — 1.4 — 1.4
24.7 1.5 — 1.5 — — —
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@
322.7 2.3 — 2.3 4.4 — 4.4
/ 63.6 0.2 — 0.2 1.0 — 1.0
301.5 4.4 — 4.4 1.9 — 1.9
/ 68.6 0.6 — 0.6 0.4 — 0.4
/ 423.3 11.3 434.6 431.6 2.4 434.0
(344.9) (344.9)
/ (42.5) (43.6)
/ 47.2 45.5
® /
@
«C ) 2020 12 31 22
2,698
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( )
2019 12 31
/
@

15,074.4 162.0 9.7 171.7 168.5 0.4 168.9
3,279.8 1.0 — 1.0 1.0 — 1.0
1,767.7 — —_ — 32.5 — 32.5
1,673.6 37.4 — 37.4 — — —
1,657.7 30.3 0.7 31.0 31.7 0.9 32.6
3,792.7 35.9 0.1 36.0 38.7 0.3 39.0

274.3 — — — 3.8 — 3.8
261.6 4.0 —_ 4.0 — — —
315.0 6.5 — 6.5 8.1 — 8.1
125.1 0.3 — 0.3 1.1 — 1.1
731.1 — — — 34.6 — 34.6
668.6 42.4 — 42.4 — — —
42.0 2.1 — 2.1 4.4 — 4.4
61.3 1.7 — 1.7 0.4 — 0.4
33.2 — — — 1.4 — 1.4
37.9 1.4 — 1.4 — — —
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3,007
1SDA )
2020
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321.6 2.7 — 2.7 5.6 — 5.6
86.6 0.4 — 0.4 1.3 — 1.3
300.2 5.4 — 5.4 2.0 — 2.0
86.2 0.8 — 0.8 0.4 — 0.4
334.3 10.5 344.8 335.5 1.6 337.1
(270.4) (270.4)
(33.9) (28.5)
40.5 38.2

/

«C ) 2019 12 31 28
(
2019 12 31
( )
10

402/648



EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

Ogoooood
@
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

247.7 243.5 203.1 196.6
— — 0.1 0.1
) 10.2 9.1 6.0 5.3
92.2 96.5 69.2 73.1
) 1.4 1.3 0.5 0.5
31.3 28.3 21.3 17.8
32.3 31.0 26.4 22.8
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@ 13,477 12,554 250 340 1,031 1,622 46 98 1,169 1,036
152 627 2 5 8 54 12 24 60 65
7,588 6,392 103 193 676 1,178 33 72 — —
5,737 5,535 — — — — — — 925 809
— — 6 2 26 49 1 2 50 38
13,477 12,554 111 200 710 1,281 46 98 1,035 912
@ 133,497 160,226 6,081 7,268 6,691 8,594 16,554 19,878 59,268 60,129
VIE
@ 1,328 10,857 66 5 53 44 — — — —
1,328 780 350 116 260 149 — — — —
— 9,017 — — — — — — — —
— 161 — — — — — — — —
1,328 10,858 350 116 260 149 — — — —
— 4 284 111 207 105 — — — —
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2 11 — — 2,727 1,126 — —
— — — — 4,868 4,212 — —
2 11 — — 8,543 7,526 — —
VIE 609 1,023 — — 17,250 21,234 4,042 4,395
VIE
58 64 14,606 17,915 217 54 1,030 2,656
— — — — 217 73 990 2,480
218 122 21,310 26,985 — — — —
14 @ (1,704) (800) — — — —
4 3 1,289 119 — — 40 176
236 123 20,895 26,304 217 73 1,030 2,656
_ _ — — _ — 432 2,175
178 64 6,273 8,372 — 19 — —
— — 16 17 — — — —
178 64 6,289 8,389 — 19 432 2,175
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w — 9 9 — 10 10
(&Y 2,108 184 2,292 1,810 533 2,343
» ® ® ® @ - @
(&Y 54 22,553 22,607 81 19,354 19,435
(&Y 4,239 23,366 27,605 4,102 20,446 24,548
22 — 22 — — —
111 — 111 46 — 46
(&) — 5,658 5,658 2 4,896 4,898
(¢H) 133 5,658 5,791 48 4,896 4,944
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2021 843 5,424 1,927
2022 748 4,934 1,715
2023 630 3,637 1,454
2024 479 2,089 1,308
2025 339 1,143 1,087
886 1,668 4,609
3,925 18,895 12,100
1,268 1,626
®) 17,627 10,474
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2020 2019 12 31 100,000
2020 2019 12 31 ( FDIC )
107 158
1 100,000
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
12
12,485 10,668 1,445 24,598 39,739
8,568 1,925 1,432 11,925 13,034
2020 12 31
( )
2021 40,052 10,609 50,661
2022 2,604 167 2,771
2023 431 4 435
2024 222 5 227
2025 186 13 199
276 1,287 1,563
43,771 12,085 55,856
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21
( )
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2020 2019
309,945 0.29 279,610 1.73
451,179 n/a 281,684 n/a
192,479 0.69 201,797 2.31
206,493 n/a 203,063 n/a
22,486 0.54 24,301 2.42
30,118 n/a 36,538 n/a
750
2020 2019 12 31 39 117
( )
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358,652 (188,329) 170,323 (158,867) 11,456
) 16,210 — 16,210 (16,210) —
374,862 (188,329) 186,533 (175,077) 11,456
2019 12 31
@ 434,257 (159, 660) 274,597 (244,486) 30,111
324,769 (159, 660) 165,109 (141,482) 23,627
) 15,346 — 15,346 (15,346) —
340,115 (159, 660) 180,455 (156,828) 23,627
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@
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158,400 122,448 32,149 22,684 335,681
19,140 211 1,029 2,531 22,971
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193,750 122,719 33,178 25,215 374,862
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129,455 122,685 25,322 21,922 299,384
18,766 3,329 1,241 2,049 25,385
15,346 — — — 15,346
163,567 126,014 26,563 23,971 340,115
@
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2020 12 31

195,167 5 — 195,172

8,633 1,628 1,217 11,478

14,752 21,125 14,931 50,808

113,142 213 62 113,417
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335,681 22,971 16,210 374,862
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 12 31

( )

12 31

)
() 2020 2019
@
3.05 0.25 - 8.05 2021 -2051 174,385 140,265
0.74 0.09 - 4.96 2021 -2044 16,788 19,552
17,033 16,941
4.89 2.94 - 8.57 2021 -2045 23,337 21,632
1.15 0.88 - 1.41 2022 -2026 799 782
6.71 6.45 - 8.05 2027 -2066 738 736
1.03 1.03 2056 1 1
233,081 199,909
3.34 3.34 2023 511 508
0.33 0.28 - 0.49 2021 -2041 2,323 6,519
6.00 6.00 2036 1,883 1,744
0.99 0.01 - 7.72 2021 -2034 599 112
— 2,500
BANA VIE(2) 6,296 8,373
683 402
12,295 20,158
16,792 20,442
VIE(2) 757 347
9 —_
17,558 20,789
262,934 240,856
@
@ VIE
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2020 12 31 48
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2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

8,888 15,380 23,872 21,407 15,723 105,903 191,173

469 2,034 597 190 549 13,194 17,033
371 393 — 3,351 5,537 14,484 24,136
— — — — — 739 739

9,728 17,807 24,469 24,948 21,809 134,320 233,081

1,340 975 511 — — 8 2,834
— — — — — 1,883 1,883
502 3 1 — 18 75 599
VIEQD) 4,056 1,241 977 — — 22 6,296
112 16 189 — 279 87 683
6,010 2,235 1,678 — 297 2,075 12,295
4,613 2,414 2,221 655 859 6,030 16,792
VIE(L) 1 — — — — 756 757
— — — — — 9 9
4,614 2,414 2,221 655 859 6,795 17,558
20,352 22,456 28,368 25,603 22,965 143,190 262,934
(€D VIE
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( )
2020 2019 12 31
105 106
2020 2019 12 31 19 829
2020 2019 12 31 40 44
2020 2019
12 31 99 90
21
( )
2020 12 31
@ 109,406 171,887 139,508 16,091 436,892
710 2,992 8,738 29,892 42,332
©) 19,962 12,038 2,397 1,257 35,654
®) 886 197 25 27 1,135
130,964 187,114 150,668 47,267 516,013
4) 384,955 — — — 384,955

515,919 187,114 150,668 47,267 900,968
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2020 2019 12 31
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321
2020 2019 12 31
12
12
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97,454 148,000 173,699 24,487 443,640
1,137 1,948 6,351 34,134 43,570
21,311 11,512 3,712 408 36,943
1,156 254 65 25 1,500
121,058 161,714 183,827 59,054 525,653
376,067 — — — 376,067
497,125 161,714 183,827 59,054 901,720
48 51
102 2019 12 31 279
SBLC 500 413
18 14
93 86
LHFS
11
582 830 (
665 972
249
12
39 33
2022 11
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(€))
( )
2021 19 2021 2021 26 0.18
2020 10 21 2020 12 2020 12 24 0.18
2020 22 2020 2020 25 0.18
2020 22 2020 2020 26 0.18
2020 29 2020 2020 27 0.18
(1) 2020 2021 24
2020 2019 2018 0.72
0.66 0.54
2020 2019 2018
( )
2020 2019 2018
(CCAR ) 227 956 676
CCAR 7,025 25,644 16,754
— 2,500 3,340
7,025 28,144 20,094
2020 COVID-19
2020 (
)
2020
2020 227 70
2020 66
26 2020 12 31
513
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2020 24 MM 44,000 11
MM
25,000
2020 10 29 4.375 NN 44,000 11 2021
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2021 28 4.125 PP 36,000 915 2021
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2020 11 2021 29
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0.01
( )
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20
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(€Y}
( Y, . (
( : ) )
7 1997 7,110 100 1 7.00 7 — n/a
2011 11 15
@ 2006 11 12,601 25,000 7 | soreasbpsa) | 02 13
2012 5
2012 1,400 100,000 1| soreaobps(a) +088-67 6
2012 5
2012 4,926 100,000 193 | sopedobps(a) 4+088-67 20
7.25
2008 3,080,182 1,000 3,080 7.25 72.50 223 n/a
6 2011 354 100,000 35 6.00 6,000.00 p 2019
2023
) 2013 40,000 25,000 1,000 5.2 52.00 5 2023
L1BOR+313.5bps
2024
) 2014 80,000 25,000 2,000 6.250 62.50 125 2024
LIBOR+370.5bps
2024 10 23
) 2014 10 56,000 25,000 1,400 6.500 65.00 g1 2024 10 23
LIBOR+417. 4bps
2025 7
M) 2015 76,000 25,000 1,900 6.100 61.00 116 205 17
LIBOR+389.8bps
ccey 6-200 2016 44,000 25,000 1,100 6.200 1.55 gg 2021 2
2026 0
DD(4) 2016 40,000 25,000 1,000 6.300 63.00 63 2026 10
L1BOR+455. 3bps
g 000 2016 36,000 25,000 900 6.000 1.50 54 2021 2
2028 5
FF(4) 2018 94,000 25,000 2,350 5.875 58.75 138 2028 15
L1BOR+293. 1bps
o2y ©8-000 2018 54,000 25,000 1,350 6.000 1.50 g1 2023 16
ey °-87° 2018 34,160 25,000 854 5.875 1.47 50 2023 24
2024 20
3 2019 40,000 25,000 1,000 5.125 51.25 51 2024 20
L1BOR+329.2bps
ke °-37° 2019 55,900 25,000 1,398 5.375 1.34 75 2024 2
Ly °-00 2019 52,400 25,000 1,310 5.000 1.25 66 2024 1
() 2020 44,000 25,000 1,100 4.300 43.48 4g 2025 28
wey 437 2020 10 44,000 25,000 1,100 4.375 0.29 13 2025 11
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2009 11 28
) 2004 11 3,275 30,000 98 LIBOR+75bps(6) 0.75 3
2009 11 28
) 2005 9,967 30,000 299 LIBOR+65bps(6) 0.76 10
2010 11 28
5) 2005 11 7,010 30,000 210 LIBOR+75bps(3) 1.02 9
2012 21
) 2007 14,056 30,000 422 LIBOR+50bps(3) 1.02 17
(348)
3,931,440 24,510
(€H)
@ 1,000
3) 4.00
@4 25
®) 1,200
) 3.00
n/a =
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2017 12 31 (1,206)  (1,060) (831)  (3,192) (793)  (7,082)
(393) (220) (189) (707) 239 (1,270)
— — 57 — — 57
« ) (3,953) 749 (53) (405) (254)  (3,916)
2018 12 31 (5,552) (531)  (1,016)  (4,304) (808) (12,211)
« ) 5,875 (963) 616 136 (86) 5,578
2019 12 31 323 (1,494) (400)  (4,168) (894)  (6,633)
« ) 4,799 (498) 826 (98) (52) 4,977
2020 12 31 5,122 (1,992) 426 (4,266) (946)  (1,656)
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C ) 6819 (@,712) 5,107 8,020 (2,000) 6,020 (5,189) 1,329 (3,860)

C o (411) 103 (308) (193) 48  (145) (123) 30  (93)
« ) 6,408 (1,609) 4,799 7,827 (1,952) 5,875 (5,312) 1,359 (3,953)
C ) (e69) 156 (513) (1,276) 289  (987) 952  (224) 728
o 19 4 15 18 6 2 26 G 2
« ) (650) 152 (498) (1,258) 295  (963) 978  (229) 749
C ) 1008 (268 830 692  (I156) 536  (232) 74 (158)
6 ) 5 104  (26) 18 165  (40) 125
(12) 3 © 2 _ 2 @D 7 @)
- ) 2 (4) 106  (26) 80 138  (33) 105
« ) 1,002  (266) 826 798  (182) 616  (94) 41 (53)
C ) (s 80 (301) 41 (21) 20 (703) 164 (539)
261 (63) 198 150  (36) 114 171 (46) 125

@
5 — 5 3 ) 2 11 @ 9
« ) (115) 17 (98) 194  (s8) 136  (521) 116  (405)
« ) (251) 199 (52) (13)  (52) (65  (8) (195)  (203)
¢ o ) 1 — @10) 89 (1) (149 9% (51
« ) (252) 200  (52) (123) 37 (86) (I57)  (97)  (254)
, C 6,483 (1,506) 4,977 7,438 (1,860) 5,578 (5,106) 1,190 (3,916)

o DVA ()

)
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2020

(1) RSU

2020

EPS

2019

2019
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@

2018 EPS EPS EPS
( )
2020 2019 2018
17,894 27,430 28,147
(1,421) (1,432) (1,451)
16,473 25,998 26,696
8,753.2 9,390.5 10,096.5
1.88 2.77 2.64
16,473 25,998 26,696
8,753.2 9,390.5 10,096.5
43.7 52.4 140.4
8,796.9 9,442.9 10,236.9
1.87 2.75 2.61
2018
2018
2019 2018
2019 16
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( 0ce ) FDIC( )
0cc
BANA
( PCA )

(

SLR )3.0 2.0

PCA
6.0  SLR
2020 2019 12 31

BANA
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Tier

Tier

Tier

Tier

Tier

Tier

Tier

Tier

)
2020 12 31
176,660 176,660 164,593 164,593
200,096 200,096 164,593 164,593
237,936 227,685 181,370 170,922
1,480 1,371 1,221 1,014
11.9 12.9 9.5 13.5 16.2 7.0
13.5 14.6 11.0 13.5 16.2 8.5
16.1 16.6 13.0 14.9 16.9 10.5
2,719 2,719 2,143 2,143
7.4 7.4 4.0 7.7 7.7 5.0
2,786 2,525
7.2 5.0 6.5 6.0
2019 12 31
166,760 166,760 154,626 154,626
188,492 188,492 154,626 154,626
221,230 213,098 166,567 158,665
1,493 1,447 1,241 991
11.2 11.5 9.5 12.5 15.6 7.0
12.6 13.0 11.0 12.5 15.6 8.5
14.8 14.7 13.0 13.4 16.0 10.5
2,374 2,374 1,780 1,780
7.9 7.9 4.0 8.7 8.7 5.0
2,946 2,177
6.4 5.0 7.1 6.0
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OooooOodd
(1) 2020 12 31 CECL
@ 2020 12 31
2019 12 31
(©) 2020 2019 12 31
2.5 2020 12 31
2.5 SLR
2.0
(4) 2020 2019 12 31 2.5
PCA
®)
Tier
(6) Tier
@) 2020 12 31
2020
2019 12 31
2020
( )
2020 12 2021
13
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2019
49

2020 2019 12 31
109

0cC

146 2020
63
76
2020
62
0cC
2021 BANA

2021
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2020 38
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168 147
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)
2020
( PBO )
PBO
Aa
2020

2020 2019 PBO

(
2020 2019
2019 12 31
( ABO

2019 12 31

484/648

oOoOooodn

)  PBO

2020 2019
PBO 19 22



EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)
oOoOooodn

€Y

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

12 31

12 31

12 31
12 31

ABO

12 31

20,275 18,178 2,696 2,461 2,666 2,584 199 252
2,468 3,187 379 273 285 228 1 5
— — 23 20 86 91 6 24
— — 1 1 — — 110 103
— — (61) (42) — — — —
(967) (1,090) (€)) (108) (248) (237) (174) (185)
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1 —
n/a n/a 97 91 n/a n/a n/a n/a
21,776 20,275 3,078 2,696 2,789 2,666 143 199
15,361 14,144 2,887 2,589 2,919 2,779 989 928
— — 20 17 1 1 5 5
500 593 49 65 90 113 32 38
— — 1 1 — — 110 103
— — (61) (42) — — — —
1,533 1,714 396 288 243 263 43 99
(967) (1,090) (67 (108) (248) (237) (173) (185)
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1 —
n/a n/a 102 75 n/a n/a — 1
16,427 15,361 3,340 2,887 3,005 2,919 1,007 989
5,349 4,914 428 364 812 733 — —
— — (690) (555) (1,028) (986) (864) (790)
5,349 4,914 (262)  (191)  (216)  (253)  (864)  (790)
16,427 15,361 3,253 2,841 3,005 2,919 n/a n/a
) 5,349 4,914 (175) (145)  (216) (253) n/a n/a
— — 87 46 — — n/a n/a
16,427 15,361 3,340 2,887 3,005 2,919 1,007 989
2.57 3.32 1.37 1.81 2.33 3.20 2.48 3.27
n/a n/a 4.11 4.10 4.00 4.00 n/a n/a
5.02 5.06 1.58 1.53 4.49 4.52 n/a n/a
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) 12 31
n/a =
2021
29 93 14 2021
1974 ( ERISA )
2020 2019 12 31 ABO PBO
ABO PBO
( )
2020 2019 2020 2019
PBO 900 744 1,028 988
ABO 841 720 1,028 988
211 191 1 1
( )
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
C )
— — — 20 17 19
500 593 563 49 65 65
(1,154) (1,088) (1,136) (66) (99) (126)
173 135 147 9 6 10
_ — — 8 4 12
« ) (481) (360) (426) 20 () (20)
12 31
( )
3.32 4.32 3.68 1.81 2.60 2.39
6.00 6.00 6.00 2.57 4.13 4.37
n/a n/a n/a 4.10 4.49 4.31
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( )
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
C )
1 1 1 5 5 6
90 113 105 32 38 36
(71) (95) (84) O] ®) ®)
( ) 50 34 43 29 (24) @n
— — — @ @ ©)
( ) 70 53 65 60 12 6
( )

3.20 4.26 3.58 3.27 4.25 3.58
2.77 3.73 3.19 2.00 2.00 2.00
4.00 4.00 4.00 n/a n/a n/a

60 40

)
50
2021 6.25 2026 5.00
)
25bp 2020
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ocl ( )

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

3,912 3,865 628 559 987 1,008 66 48 5,593 5,480

«C ) — — 18 18 — — ) (6) 14 12
3,912 3,865 646 577 987 1,008 62 42 5,607 5,492

219  (385) 79 110 29 130 47 99 374 (46)

(173) (135)  (12) @ G0 @Y @D 26 (262)  (150)

— — 3 2 — — — — 3 2

46 (520) 70 105 1) 96 20 125 115 (194)

ERISA
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2021
2020 2019 12 31
274 ( 1.26 ) 315 ( 1.55 )
2021

15-50 0-25 0-5

45-80 40-70 95-100

0-10 0-15 0-5

0-5 10-40 0-5

20
2020 2019 12 31
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( )
2020 12 31
1,380 — — 1,380
/ — 383 — 383
4,590 1,238 7 5,835
— 5,021 — 5,021
— 1,967 — 1,967
1,021 1,122 — 2,143
/ 1,224 1,319 — 2,543
4,438 — — 4,438
/ 134 1,542 — 1,676
73 — — 73
/ — 20 943 963
— 184 83 267
@ 5 401 691 1,097
( ) 12,865 13,197 1,724 27,786
@ 2020 2019 12 31 246 233
664 614 187 190
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OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31
1,426 — — 1,426
/ — 250 — 250
4,403 890 8 5,301
— 3,676 — 3,676
— 2,684 — 2,684
748 1,015 — 1,763
/ 804 1,439 — 2,243
4,655 — — 4,655
/ 147 1,355 — 1,502
91 — — 91
/ — 18 927 945
— 173 90 263
@ 11 390 636 1,037
( ) 12,285 11,890 1,661 25,836
@ 2020 2019 12 31 246 233
664 614 187 190
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2020 2019 2018 (

( )
12 31

2020

8 — @ 7
/

927 4) 20 943
90 2 ) 83
636 6 49 691
1,661 4 59 1,724

2019
9 — @ 8
5 — ®) —
/ 885 33 9 927
82 — 8 90
588 6 42 636
1,569 39 53 1,661

2018
9 — — 9
93 0 (81) 5
/ 831 52 2 885
85 12) 9 82
74 — 514 588
1,092 33 444 1,569
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€Y) @
2021 856 127 244 79
2022 943 134 245 76
2023 939 143 229 74
2024 943 135 224 70
2025 934 140 221 67
2026 -2030 4,474 675 977 290
1€))
@
®
2019
12 10 10 2020 2019 12 31
189 2018
115
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2020

2019

2020
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505
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2019
RSU
2020
RSU 25
2019 2018
2020 2019
511 433

KEEP

2019

23

2018
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2020 2019
23
2020
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
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2018
26 23 2020 12 31
2020
d ( )

157,909,315 27.93
83,604,782 33.01
(68,578,284) 27.38
(4,982,584) 30.88
167,953,229 30.60

2020 2019

RSU 81 84 13
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oooooog
19
2020 2019 2018
( )
2020 2019 2018
1,092 1,136 816
1,076 901 1,377
670 852 1,203
2,838 2,889 3,396
(799) 2,001 2,579
(233) 223 240
(705) 211 222
(1,737) 2,435 3,041
1,101 5,324 6,437
0Cl
14 « ) ocCl
15 2019 19 2018 12
2020 2019 2018
2020 2019 2018 21 2020
2019 2018
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OoOoOoOoOodno
( ))
2020 2019 2018
3,989 21.0 6,878 21.0 7,263 21.0
C )
728 3.8 1,283 3.9 1,367 4.0
/ / (2,869) (15.1)  (2,365) (7.2)  (1,888) (5.5)
(699) (3.7 — — — —
(346) (1.8) (433) (1.3) (413) (1.2)
(129) .7 (225) .7 257 ©.7)
uTB ( ) (41) 0.2) (613) (1.9) 144 0.4
324 1.7 290 0.9 302 0.9
218 1.1 504 1.5 98 0.3
(74) (0.3) 5 0.1 (179) (0.6)
( ) 1,101 5.8 5,324 16.3 6,437 18.6
( UTB )
( )
2020 2019 2018
1,175 2,197 1,773
238 238 395
) 99 401 406
) (172) (1,102) (370)
— (541) ()
_ (18) _
12 31 1,340 1,175 2,197
W (41) (613) 144
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2020 2019 2018 12 31
UTB 976 814 16 uTs
UtB( )
UtB( )
uTB 12 166
2020 2019 19 2018
43 2020 2019 12 31
130 147
100 IRS
( )
2020 12 31
o 2020 12 31

2017 -2020

2012 -2017

2016 -2018

@ 2018

@
(2) 2019 2021
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Ogoooood
2020 2019 12 31
( )
12 31
2020 2019
7,717 7,417
4,701 2,354
2,571 1,860
2,400 2,321
1,582 1,622
1,481 1,719
484 183
1,412 1,203
22,348 18,679
(2,346) (1,989)
( ) 20,002 16,690
3,101 2,933
2,296 2,246
1,957 1,505
ESG 1,930 1,577
1,701 100
1,570 1,885
12,555 10,246
7,447 6,444
2020 CECL 760
2020 12 31 ( NOL )
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@
&)
€
)
NOL
2020 12 31

OooooOodd
( )

36 — 36 2028
5,896 — 5,896
506 (441) 65
1,279 (579) 700

484 (484) — 2028

16 733
NOL
NOL
NOL
50
10
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( )
2020 12 31
o’y
1,649 — — — 1,649
— 108,856 — — 108,856
45,219 3,051 — — 48,270
— 22,817 1,359 — 24,176
36,372 31,372 227 — 67,971
5,753 20,884 354 — 26,991
MBS ABS
) — 21,566 75 — 21,641
ABS MBS — 8,440 1,365 — 9,805
3) 87,344 108,130 3,380 — 198,854
15,624 416,175 2,751 (387,371) 47,179
AFS
115,266 1,114 — — 116,380
— 61,849 — — 61,849
— 5,260 — — 5,260
— 631 378 — 1,009
— 16,491 — — 16,491
— 13,999 18 — 14,017
— 2,640 71 — 2,711
— 16,598 176 — 16,774
AFS 115,266 118,582 643 — 234,491
93 — — — 93
MBS — 506 267 — 773
2,619 8,625 — — 11,244
2,712 9,131 267 — 12,110
— 5,964 717 — 6,681
— 1,349 236 — 1,585
4 9,898 3,850 1,970 — 15,718
@) 232,493 772,037 9,964 (387,371) 627,123
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OooooOodd
( ))
2020 12 31
/
€Y) ( )
— 481 — — 481
— 135,391 — — 135,391
9,425 139 — — 9,564
38,189 4,235 — — 42,424
5,853 8,043 — — 13,896
— 5,420 16 — 5,436
53,467 17,837 16 — 71,320
14,907 412,881 6,219  (388,481) 45,526
— 5,874 — — 5,874
12,297 4,014 — — 16,311
— 31,036 1,164 — 32,200
(5) 80,671 607,514 7,399  (388,481) 307,103
o
) 222
®) 168
576
( )
) 10 MSR
) 0.35 0.29
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OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2019 12 31
o’y
1,000 — — — 1,000
— 50,364 — — 50,364
49,517 4,157 — — 53,674
— 25,226 1,507 — 26,733
53,597 32,619 239 — 86,455
3,965 23,854 482 — 28,301
MBS ABS
0 — 24,324 — — 24,324
ABS MBS — 8,786 1,553 — 10,339
3) 107,079 118,966 3,781 — 229,826
14,079 328,442 2,226 (304,262) 40,485
AFS
67,332 1,196 — — 68,528
— 122,528 — — 122,528
— 4,641 — — 4,641
— 653 424 — 1,077
— 15,021 — — 15,021
— 11,989 2 — 11,991
— 3,876 65 — 3,941
— 17,804 108 — 17,912
AFS 67,332 177,708 599 — 245,639
3 — — — 3
MBS — 3,003 — — 3,003
MBS — 1,035 299 — 1,334
400 6,088 — — 6,488
403 10,126 299 — 10,828
_ 7,642 693 — 8,335
— 3,334 375 — 3,709
4 11,782 1,376 2,360 — 15,518
) 201,675 697,958 10,333 (304,262) 605,704
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( )
2019 12 31
/
1
(€)) ( )
— 508 — — 508
— 16,008 — — 16,008
13,140 282 — — 13,422
38,148 4,144 2 — 42,294
10,751 11,310 — — 22,061
— 5,478 15 — 5,493
62,039 21,214 17 — 83,270
11,904 320,479 4,764 (298,918) 38,229
— 3,941 — — 3,941
13,927 1,507 — — 15,434
— 33,826 1,149 — 34,975
) 87,870 397,483 5,930 (298,918) 192,365
(€Y
) 267
?) 147
) 15 MSR
) 0.42 0.27
( )
2020 2019 2018
0oCl ( )
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&
( )
o Y He

2020 12 31
1,507 (138) @)
239 (43) —
482 45 (46)
ABS UBS 1,553 (120) ©)
3,781 (256) (50)
C H® 2,5%) @35) —

AFS

MBS 424 0 3
2 1 —
65 — —
108 1) 3
AFS 599 22) 6
MBS 299 26 —
(5.6) 693 ) —
(5,6) 375 26 (28)
(6,7) 2,360 (288) 3
@ 1 -
(15) 8 —
) (1,149) (46) 2
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oooooog
( )
12 31
)
@
2020 12 31
430 (242) 10 (282) 639 (564) 1,359 (102)
78 (53) — (©) 58 (49) 227 (€I))
76 (61) — (39) 150 (253) 354 47
ABS 577 (746) 11 (96) 757 (493) 1,440 92)
MBS
1,161  (1,102) 21 (420) 1,604  (1,359) 3,380 (178)
« O 120 (646) — Q12 (235) 178  (3,468) (953)
AFS
MBS 23 (54) — (44) 158 (130) 378 (@)
— (€h) — (€h) 17 — 18 1
9 4) — — 1 — 71 —
— — — (169 265 (10) 176 (20)
AFS 32 (59) — (14 441 (140) 643 (1)
— (180) — 4) 190 (44) 267 3
MBS
(5,6) 145 (76) 22 (161) 98 — 717 9
(5.6) — (489) 691  (119) 93 (313) 236 ®)
(6,7) 178 4 224 (506) 5 () 1,970 (374)
— — — — — 1 — —
Q) (©) — 1 — — (16) —
) (104) — @rn 218 (52) 14 (1,164) )
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Ogoooood
( )
oy ¢ Y e
2019 12 31
1,558 105 —
276 (12) —
465 46 12
ABS VBS 1,635 99 )
3,934 238 (14)
« )3 (935) (€D) —
AFS
MBS 597 13 64
2 — —
7 2 —
AFS 606 15 64
VBS 172 36 —
(5.6) 338 — _
(5,6) 542 48 (6)
(6,7) 2,932 (81) 19
J— (2) P
(18) 8 —
(5,8) (817) (59) (64)
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( )
12 31
C )
(@)
2019 12 31
53  (390) 18  (578) 699  (439) 1,507 29
38 6en  — ) 79 (46) 239 18)
1 — 6D 39 6 482 a7
ABS 662  (899) — (175) 738 (505) 1,553 26
MBS

1,235  (1,376) 18  (813) 1,555  (996) 3,781 84
.8 C ) 9 637  —  (O7) 147 (1,077)  (2,538) 228

AFS
MBS — (73) —  (40) 206 (343) 424 —
_ _ _ _ _ _ 2 _
— - ) 61 — 65 —
_ — — —_ 108 — 108 —
AFS _ (3 — (@45 375 (343) 599 —
_ —  —  an 1 @1 299 38

MBS
(5.6) 230 @5 217 (57) — — 693 o)
5.6 12 (1) 36 (245) 59 _ 375 22
6,7 — (10) 179 (683) 5 (1) 2,360 (267)
- - - - - - ® @
(€D (©)] (€] — — — (15) —
(,8) — — @0y 180  (350) 1 (1,149 (55)
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OooooOodd
C D « D
« ) /
« )
AFS
MSR
ocl « ) 2020 2019 12 31
C H@y
2019 12 31 « ) 28 22
62 48
MSR
MSR
14
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( )
oy ¢ Y e

2018 12 31
1,864 (32) @
235 @an —
556 47 (44)
ABS VBS 1,498 148 3
4,153 146 (42)
« H® (1,714) 106 —

AFS

MBS — 27 (33)
25 — @
509 1 ®)
469 — —
AFS (5) 1,003 28 @a37)
MBS - (18) -
6,7) 571 (16) —
(6) 690 44 (26)
(5,7,8) 2,425 414 (38)
(24) 11 —
®) ®) — —
®) (1,863) 103 4
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2018 12 31
ABS
MBS
«C X®
AFS
MBS
AFS G)
MBS
6.7
®)
(5,7,8)
®)
®)

oOoOooodn
( )
12 31
)
@

436 (403) 5  (568) 804 (547) 1,558 (117)

44 (11) — 0)) 78 (49) 276 22)
13 (57 — (30) 117 (137) 465 48
585 (910) —  (158) 705 (236) 1,635 97
1,078  (1,381) 5  (760) 1,704 (969) 3,934 6

531 (1,179) — 7718 39 504 (935) (116)
— 1) — (25) 774 (75) 597 —
— (10) — (15) 3 — 2 _
- (23) — 11 60 (526) 7 —
— — — @ 1 (469) — —
— (104) — (52) 838  (1,070) 606 —

— (©) — (34) 365 (133) 172 (18)

— (134) — (83) — — 338 (©)
71 — 1 (201) 23 (60) 542 31
2 (69) 96  (792) 929 (35) 2,932 149

9 12 @ — - — 18) Q)
— — — 8 — — — —
9 —  (141) 486 (262) 847 (817) 95
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(@) « ) C ) « )
(@) / /

MSR

(3) AFS
ocl « ) 2018 12 31
105

0 « ) 35 44

(5) AFS

®

©) MSR

®) MSR

517/648



EDINETOOOO

OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

oOoOooodn

2020 2019 12 31
2020 12 31
( ) @
@
1,543 (©) 25 6
467 1 56 CPR 20 CPR
ABS MBS
431 0 3 CDR 1 CDR
AFS 0
378 168 110
267 0 47 18
407 0 25 4
0
262 100 52
43
ABS MBS
AFS (
89
)
13
3,066 0 26 9
1,097 10 20 14
354 3 4 4
930 35 40 38
ABS MBS
0
AFS 176 142 66
286 77 n/a
223
( 10
) 937 97 91
8 n/a
MSR 1,033 0 13 4
®
0 10 3
®
7 14 9
9 15 12
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(1,164) 0 11 9
2 100 64
7 64 32
0
G 124 8
1 /MMBtu 3
4  /MBtu  /MVBtu
(112) 5 n/a
0 75
100
15 100
cpr 22 CPR
2 CDR n/a
21 64 57
0
122 69
(1,904) 2 100 64
7 64 32
(©))
1 /MVMBtu 3
(1,426) 4 /MMBtu  /MMBtu
39 85 73
@ 23 70 39
(26) (IR/IR) 15 96 34
(FX/IR) 0 46 3
Q) 84 14
) 0 1 1
0 2 1
) (3,468)
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n/a =

ABS

267
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«c )

156 ( )
14
354
MBS 14 AFS 643
MSR 20 717 LHFS 236
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2019 12 31
) @
@
1,407 0 25 6
332 1 27 CPR 17 CPR
ABS MBS
281 0 3 CDR 1 CDR
4 0 47 14
AFS ( 0
) 491 . 94
299
303 0 30 14
0
201 100 55
85
ABS MBS
17
3,798 1 20 6
1,306 10 20 13
482 3 4 4
1,136 35 40 38
ABS MBS
AFS 0
108 142 72
412 35 n/a
354
( 10
) 815 100 96
MSR 1,545 0 14 5
®
0 9 3
®
7 14 9
9 15 11
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(1,149) 6 5
9 100 63
4 101 32
0
G 116 “
1 /MVMBtu 3
5  /MMBtu  /MVBtu
13 5 n/a
0 63
100
15 100
cpr 22 CPR
1 4 CDR 2 CDR
35 n/a
0
104 3
(1,081) 9 100 63
4 101 32
(©))
1 /MVMBtu 3
(1,357) 5  /MMBtu  /MMBtu
30 69 68
@ 14 54 27
(113) (IR/IR) 15 94 52
(FX/IR) 0 46 2
(23) 56 16
O] 1 1
) (2,538)
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ABS
299

®
*

®)
CPR
CDR =
MMBtu =
IR =
FX =
n/a =

CDO
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482
MBS 16 AFS
MSR

OooooOodd
C D
157 ( )
15
599
24 693 LHFS 375
RMBS MBS
CLO CDO
CLO
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OooooOodd
( )
2020 2019 2018
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,020 792 53 102
@ — 301 — 257
2.3) — 17 — 17
323 576 178 646
( )
C )
2020 2019 2018
79) 19) 18)
@ 73 (81) (202)
® ® 24)
(98) (2.,145) (64)
2019 2018 30 36
83
90
2019 12 31 (  FHA )
260
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2020 2019
( ) (€Y)
2020
8
792 9 95
OREO 13 59 24
(@) 301
8 26 9
2 19 7
(©)] 576
11 14 12
2019
85
102 o7 88
OREO 13 59 24
() 257
8 26 9
0 19 5
) 640
11 19 15
(€Y
)
©)
(O 2019
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(LHFS)
LHFS LHFS LHFS

LHFS
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LHFS

2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019 2018
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€

@

ooooooo
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
108,856 108,811 45 50,364 50,318 46
7,967 17,372 (9,405) 6,989 14,703 (7,714)
22,790 n/a n/a 19,574 n/a n/a
6,681 6,778 (€D 8,335 8,372 @37
1,585 2,521 (936) 3,709 4,879 (1,170)
200 n/a n/a 4 n/a n/a
481 448 33 508 496 12
135,391 135,390 1 16,008 16,029 (1)
5,874 5,178 696 3,941 3,930 11
99 n/a n/a 90 n/a n/a
32,200 33,470 (1,270) 34,975 35,730 (755)
LHFS
« )
( )
2020
107 — 107
(€)) 3,216 — 3,216
22 (©) 19
— 103 103
(170) — (170)
— (65) (65)
(2,175) (53) (2,228)
35 (22) 13
1,035 (40) 995
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oOoOooodn

2019
203 — 203
@ 5,795 — 5,795
92 12 104
@ — 98 98
@4 — @24
— 79 79
®3) (1,098) (78) (1,176)
* 9 @n (18)
4,977 84 5,061
2018
8 — 8
[6H) 1,750 — 1,750
(422) (53) (475)
) 1 24 25
2 — 2
— (49) (49)
®3) 2,157 (93) 2,064
) 6 18 24
3,502 (153) 3,349
IRLC
(
)
ocl 14 « )
20
(
« )
)
2020 2019 2018
172) 43 6
(19) 15 (56)
(105) 57 )
(65) 79 (94)
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2020 2019 12 31
( ))
2020 12 31
887,289 49,372 877,682 927,054
9,243 7,864 1,379 9,243
@) 1,795,480 1,795,545 — 1,795,545
262,934 271,315 1,164 272,479
@ 1,977 99 5,159 5,258
2019 12 31
950,093 63,633 914,597 978,230
9,158 8,439 719 9,158
@) 1,434,803 1,434,809 — 1,434,809
240,856 247,376 1,149 248,525
@ 903 90 4,777 4,867
(1) 2020 2019 12 31 7,990 5,455
@
12
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GWIM

CD IRA

250,000
GWIM
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ALM
ALM
ALM
( ) FTE FTE
( )
ALM
ALM
ALM
ALM ALM

ALM
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2020 2019 2018
C ) ( FTE
) 2020 2019 12 31
( ))
(€))
1231 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018

43,859 49,486 48,772 24,698 28,158 27,025

42,168 42,353 42,858 8,564 10,429 10,593

( N 86,027 91,839 91,630 33,262 38,587 37,618
11,320 3,590 3,282 5,765 3,772 3,664

55,213 54,900 53,154 18,878 17,646 17,672

19,494 33,349 35,194 8,619 17,169 16,282

1,600 5,919 7,047 2,112 4,207 4,150

17,894 27,430 28,147 6,507 12,962 12,132

2,819,627 2,434,079 988,580 804,093
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( )
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
5,468 6,504 6,265 9,013 10,675 10,993
13,116 13,034 13,188 9,974 9,808 9,008
( ) 18,584 19,538 19,453 18,987 20,483 20,001
357 82 86 4,897 414 8
14,154 13,825 14,015 9,337 9,011 8,745
4,073 5,631 5,352 4,753 11,058 11,248
998 1,380 1,364 1,283 2,985 2,923
3,075 4,251 3,988 3,470 8,073 8,325
369,736 299,770 580,561 464,032
( )
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
4,646 3,915 3,857 34 234 632
14,120 11,699 12,326 (3,606) (2,617) (2.257)
) ( 18,766 15,614 16,183 (3,572) (2,383) (1,625)
251 ) — 50 (669) (476)
11,422 10,728 10,835 1,422 3,690 1,887
«C ) 7,093 4,895 5,348 (5,044) (5,404) (3,036)
) ( 1,844 1,395 1,390 (4,637) (4,048) (2,780)
«C ) 5,249 3,500 3,958 (407) (1,356) (256)
616,609 641,809 264,141 224,375
@
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2020 2019 2018
( )
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
3,954 3,834 3,866 3,027 3,174 3,19
1,702 1,963 1,958 1,646 1,910 1,907
5,656 5,797 5,824 4,673 5,084 5,103
5,991 6,588 6,667 3,417 4,218 4,300
1,150 1,086 1,100 — — —
7,141 7,674 7,767 3,417 4,218 4,300
10,708 10,241 10,189 146 144 147
3,866 3,661 3,971 127 149 172
14,574 13,902 14,160 273 293 319
4,698 2,998 2,722 — — —
861 1,184 1,347 — — —
1,621 1,460 1,258 — — _
7,180 5,642 5,327 — — —
34,551 33,015 33,078 8,363 9,595 9,722
8,355 9,034 9,008 2 6 8
(738) 304 772 199 828 863
42,168 42,353 42,858 8,564 10,429 10,593
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Ogoooood
( )
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
36 59 81 499 519 503
42 42 46 14 13 8
78 101 127 513 532 511
67 68 73 2,298 2,121 2,111
— — — 940 894 916
67 68 73 3,238 3,015 3,027
10,578 10,130 10,042 — — —
1,692 1,740 1,917 74 34 94
12,270 11,870 11,959 74 34 94
391 401 335 2,070 1,227 1,090
— — — 482 574 648
— — 2 1,458 1,336 1,153
391 401 337 4,010 3,137 2,891
12,806 12,440 12,496 7,835 6,718 6,523
63 113 112 103 235 260
247 481 580 2,036 2,855 2,225
13,116 13,034 13,188 9,974 9,808 9,008
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( )
@
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
391 81 86 1 1 —
— @ @ — @ @
391 80 84 1 — @
177 156 161 32 25 22
210 192 184 — — —
387 348 345 32 25 22
— — — (16) (33) —
1,973 1,738 1,780 — — 8
1,973 1,738 1,780 (16) (33) 8
2,449 1,555 1,495 (212) (185) (198)
379 610 698 — — 1
163 123 103 — 1 —
2,991 2,288 2,296 (212) (184) (197)
5,742 4,454 4,505 (195) (192) (168)
8,471 7,065 7,260 (284) 1,615 1,368
(93) 180 561 (3,127) (4,040) (3,457)
14,120 11,699 12,326 (3,606) (2,617) (2,257)
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( )
2020 2019 2018
( ) 89,599 94,222 93,255
:
ALM 375 241 (325)
(3,947) (2,624) (1,300)
FTE (499) (595) (610)
( ) 85,528 91,244 91,020
18,301 28,786 28,403
( YD):
ALM 279 202 (222)
(686) (1,558) (34)
17,894 27,430 28,147
( )
12 31
2020 2019
2,555,486 2,209,704
:
ALM ( ) 1,176,071 721,806
(977,685) (565,378)
65,755 67,947
2,819,627 2,434,079
@
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24

oOoOooodn

)

2020 2019 2018
10,352 27,820 28,575
_ — 91
8,825 9,502 8,425
« ) (138) 74 (1,025)
19,039 37,396 36,066
136 451 235
4,119 5,899 6,425
1,651 1,641 1,600
5,906 7,991 8,260
13,133 29,405 27,806
( ) 649 341 (281)
12,484 29,064 28,087

« D

5,372 1,717) 306
38 83 (246)
« ) 5,410 (1,634) 60
17,894 27,430 28,147
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( )
12 31

2020 2019
€Y 5,893 5,695
701 656
206,566 173,301
213 51
410 391
305,818 297,465
3,715 3,663
9,850 9,438
533,166 490,660
15,965 13,381
129 458
11,067 12,102
233,081 199,909
260,242 225,850
272,924 264,810
533,166 490,660

(1) 2020 2019 12 31
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OooooOodd
)
2020 2019 2018
17,894 27,430 28,147
( )
) (5,410) 1,634 (60)
) 14,303 16,973 (3,706)
« ) 26,787 46,037 24,381
o ) @ an 51
) (33,111) (19,121) (2,262)
) @ 7 48
« ) (33,122) (19,131) (2.,163)
«C ) (422) (1,625) 3,867
43,766 29,315 30,708
(23,168) (21,039) (29,413)
2,181 3,643 4,515
(1,072) (2.,568) (4,512)
(7.,025) (28,144) (20,094)
(7.727) (5,934) (6,895)
( Yy () 6,533 (26,352) (21,824)
198 554 394
5,695 5,141 4,747
5,893 5,695 5,141
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25
( )
( )
(
@) )(2)
(©) 2020 2,490,247 75,576 18,247 16,692
2019 2,122,734 81,236 30,699 25,937
2018 80,777 31,904 26,407
2020 99,283 4,232 1,051 788
2019 102,440 3,491 765 570
2018 3,507 865 520
2020 202,701 4,491 (596) 264
2019 178,889 5,310 921 672
2018 5,632 1,543 1,126
2020 27,396 1,229 293 150
2019 30,016 1,207 369 251
2018 1,104 272 94
2020 329,380 9,952 748 1,202
2019 311,345 10,008 2,055 1,493
2018 10,243 2,680 1,740
2020 2,819,627 85,528 18,995 17,894
2019 2,434,079 91,244 32,754 27,430
2018 91,020 34,584 28,147
¢y
@
®
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Q)

)
)

)

(2013 )
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Income

Bie Froliagh, mecepd per ahdew srberrtaoeg 2020 g 2008
Mt INCEAEEL Itames
Ingesmsl income L 51585 % 71238 § 66,769
intesmsl scpenes B, 28 23,345 LR EOT
Mot ntenest roame 43,350 448 851 48,162
Manifleresl inssme
Fieas and comimisuisns 34,881 33,045 33.078
Market making and simiar acthries 8,355 9034 9,008
CHFsed incoeme {738) 30 712
Taital ranintletest income 42,168 42,353 42,858
Totnl revesoe, pet of inberest expense 85,528 91,2448 81,020
Prowision foi emadil loases 11,320 3,590 3.282
Haninlares susenes
Campansalion and Beraiis x5 e 31880
Chorupancy and sgupment 7141 0,588 0380
INfEmELon BRoIESaing and COTaTHInZatong 5.1x 4,548 4,558
Prastiuct dolieery st Transaction seliled 3413 2,762 2857
Markmting 1,701 1,934 1574
Professionnl fons 1,694 1,597 1,609
(et penaral opsrating 3297 5,40 4,304
Total noninterost sapsnse 55,213 54,900 43154
Incsenn belore incame taues 18,095 32754 34,584
Inceme tax 1101 5324 4,437
Net incorme s aresa s A % zeiar
Profared sack dividands 147 1432 1,453
Mol incoma opplicable to common sharsholdsrs % 16473 % 250998 % 20,500
Pe# commaan shane information
Earnings 3 188 % 217§ 284
Diluted warnngs LAT 275 2461
antg pariTman ENars timhad sk siarianing i B.aonH 10,0684
_Avetage diluted esmmsn shared fidusd asd sulstanding 8,796.9 94429 10.235.9

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

[Dssitars: iy ryefisarm | 20 F018 F018
Met income: ] 17894 § dr A3 § 8147
Mt chargm in deb satuftios 47 5675 (3.853)
Met changn in debit valustlion adjustimants (asay 18537 Tag
Piot change in devnmtives. B26 BlG [ ]]
Erepliivss Banelil plan sSuslmeits 18y 138 [405)
Met change in fonsign cumency transiaticn adpstments. sz ®0) _(254)
CHhar comprahaniing incama (kes) 4877 5,578 [3.916]
Comprehanadi ncomse ] FrI T ] 008 % 24.231

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

97 Bonk of Amadica
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet

i
(Cigiary o madsona 020 Joia
ety
iCash and doe from hanks -] 36430 § L L d
Iraammst-baanng daposils. with the Faderal Resene, nonU.5. centm| Banks and otfs banhs 344,033 131.408
Cash and cash squimlents TG AT 1k, 56
Tima depcaits placed nnd other shortiam Fvestmants B.546 7107
Forderal funds sold and seosrities bommwed or porthased undes agreemenits o resell
(inchsdes 108856 and $50, 364 messued ot Tair vakee) 304,058 274,897
Trasdieg accourt nssels (ncludes $91,500 ond S90,046 pledged as collstem) 196,654 219,826
Dermnthve sisets arate 40,485
Debt seourmies:
Carvied ot Tair vabus 246,601 256,867
ks bo-matuttly, 81 cosl (Ia value - S448.180 and $219821) &1 240 215,730
Loand and isades (rcludes 36,681 and §8,335 monswed a8t i vk ST L AZE
Alowance for ioan and lsoes losses (18 80%) 19,418
Loans and keases, ned of afownnce i, 055 874,010
Prmises and gquipmant, ot 12,000 10,561
Goodwll BEP5L 8,951
Loans hald foraals [inchudes 81,685 and §3. 700 massured 5l L5 valia) 3,243 9,158
€1 i et ] 231 85037
Onher assets (includes §16, 718 and $15,518 measued 84 foir wbue) 135203 129,690
Tolal assols $ TEIBEIT § 2434079
Liatiiries
Deponits m WS othors:
Sonintematbanning ] BEOETE § 403 308
Erneiest-bearrg (rcludes 3481 ana S508 measured &1 fair wlun) 2038341 840,731
Deponits o nondl 5, oifices:
Bonintematbeaning A7 598 13,719
IFnanit-baarey BETET TT.04E
Total deposts 1 76, 480 1,434 803
Foderal fimds purchased ond secufilies Inaned of s0id unter agreemess 1o mpuchase
(inchaces $136.381 and $106,006 messured at fair valoe] 1roaEas 166,108
Tracng account lisbites TLE30 B3I
Dwrtentnor Rabilnes 45,526 348,220
Shorttem bormewings (inchudes 5874 and $1.941 measured ol s volue) 19321 24,0
dcrnped expenses and other labdilies inclodes $15.311 and $165.434 veasured ol iné value
and $LETH and $813 of resarve for unfl lenaing 5] 181799 182788
Long derm dest (ncludes $32.900 and 534,975 messurnd at fair vaue) 263934 40 556
T e IS e T
Commitments and contingencien (Note § - Securilipations and Oohey Viratdn Intores! Ereities
and Kote 17 - Caomaniments and Contingencies
Shareholdens egpety
Frafered stock, $0.01 par value: authonmed = 100,000,000 sheres; issued and outstanding = 3,931,440 and 3,857 £40 shams 24510 3401
Commaon sinck and sddfional paidHn capinl, $0.01 par value: suthommed - 12 B00,000,000 shanes:
iwsuesd and outstanding - BE60 814 106 and 8,830,148 554 shams 85,98 81,723
Fntaarad Samings 1f4, 68 155,319
Ascumulsied cEhel compieRarsive income (iees) | LEEE) 18033
T R spic SN 28 A
Total and 3 2EL T § 2434070
Ansats of arialin rderesl pmifies iscleted 1 Intal nuirts L T il o 1 variabiv i=ierrst eitieg
Tracirg acomai, psaiy 3 BI2F B BHIE
Lisar mred lemses FiEM SR RAT
A 108 ko W iBERE VREL ALERE ATy
L ] 1387 S
Tomal asnaty of consstdatid sulshis inesal Jntes 3 ELb i) ¥ A4,
Lttt of wariaio iviermE s ircieded in lotal whove
Shori Sarm bomowangs |nciedes 533 and S0 of non-mcourss shor Asmm bomowng) % ELE 2,195
Longderm dett Prcicos. $7.083 e BA.T17 of nonroodrss debi T.OEE B.T1B
Al T R2A gna 1D ot 18 3
Tomal o il | PRl BT L] THEXE & 10015

Sea aecompanying Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Staements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders” Equity

Aetumsdates
Comman Slock and Dher Taal
Prefered Additional Pald-in Capital Freraimen [ Sh
i il Sbeeh Shaies Arnount Edrnings Ineeene [Losa) Equity
Balanca, Decomber 31, 2007 § RS 07738 135080 & 18818 § Ty & BEraaE
Cumulsiive adjustment for adoption of hedpe sccounting
standand (k] a7 26
Adoption of accounting standand refated 1o conaln i affects
strandad i socumulstnd ot COMprEhanaive incoma (loss) 1270 13,3700 —
Nat Fcome 20,347 28247
Mol changn in Call SeCurass 13,9%53) i3,953)
Het change in debit walustion odjustments Tag Tag
Hal changs in tersativos 153 (53]
Employes berslil plan adjusiments {40%) [40%)
Hat change in fereifn curmncy tranibaten aduatmenls (2545 | 25)
Disidentds decianed:
Camman Saa24) (hab2a)
Predamed (1,451] 11.451)
Issunnce =l predemed stock 4,515 4,518
Redemplion of prefemed stock 14,512 4,512)
Cammon SLck iSiutd under Srgicyss DU, NoL, and othar 582 L i &69
Commaon stock repurchased TG £20,0a4) {0, i |
Balance, Decomber J0. 2008 $ 22328 GEE03 §  iiea0e § 1014 % 21§ K535
Cutmulstim adjusiment for sdoption of keaie sccounting
winndard 1685 165
Mat rcoma 27,430 27,430
Mol changs in debt sscurities 5875 5876
Hal changs in debit wnlustion sdjusimants 1563 263
Mot change in dervaties Bis 51
Emgigyss Eivwlil plan adjusimants 136 136
Met change in feraign currency transiaton adustments [1-167] (|
Dividands dociared
Cammaon 6, 248 00,148
Predoired 11,432 (1.432)
Issuance of prefemed sinck 3,643 3,843
Redemption of prefesed stock |2.568] (2,568
Common stock issusd under amplioyee plard., not, and other 1233 7L i3 959
Commaon sbeck repurchased (956.5) (38,144} (28,244
Balascn, Decombser 31, 2040 5 23404 B.A36.1 % 11,723 § 156310 § I6E3 &  I64.810
Cumblsthm sdustmant for adoplion of credn loss sccounling
slandand 2,408 2406
Mot iecome 17,5594 17,8594
Hel changa in dabit sesurties 4,790 4,799
Mat change in debit snlustion adjustmants j4a8) 488
Mel change in dervatives B26 B2
Envpdoyes baredil plan adjusiments a8 |
Fet change m forelin currency iramsiabon sdarsiments 153 162
Disidends dectared
Commaon i, e s, 2|
Pradeired 14211 T1.421)
Issuance of prefemed stock 2,184 2,281
Regemprion of prifermd siock 11072 (LOT3
Common stock issusd under employes Dland. nel, and olker 417 1,334 = 1,278
Cammon stech regurchaded (=200 F025) (1025
Balance, Decembar 33. 2020 % 410 8608 §  bseer 5 iedoes & (i8%e 3 3raen

e e e e

Spe accompanying Notes to Consolldated Financiad Siatements.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e b el fﬁﬂ : Ml.ﬁ ¥ ﬁui
Oporateg activities
Hel roome 5 aTA%4  § Zrdm % 28147
AGQUNITMINGS 10 MRRCT il INCDMD 1 fi Cakh Proviced By Oponsting Bcvtey
Provision Tor cred® lpsses 41330 3,580 3282
Cliii on daked of d601 Satuiitiog (25 1] 217} [254)
Deprecintion and amorbzation 1843 1.1 2,063
Mt amomastion of premium,/ dicount o debil secutitas. 4,101 2008 1524
Daferred income takes (1,737} 2435 3,041
Sleck-based compeneation 203 1874 1.7m%
It of sguty methsd infvestmaent — .02 =
Loans held-dorsabs:
Onginalions and purthddes {AfBET) (#8.874&) (#8071
Procasas Smm tales and pay af lnans angnny i i hokd Tor ke Bnd insTUTE
Troem nalaned sacurdiation activities 19,049 3010 b A
Met changs in:
Trackrg and cerfative sddats/ lishiltes 16,942 T8930 (23673
Ot assels (12883} 111,113} 11,920
Accrue papensey and olher babililes 4,385) 168362 13.010
DitFsie oporating activities, not 3886 5,211 [3.570]
" Hot cash prowided by operaling acthiios 37,993 G LB
Invesiing activitios
Met change in:
Tirrm dipeaits placed and bt shor-tem mesimaents L3 38T 3.859
Foderl funds soid and secunties Domowed of punchased under Areomants 10 resed |38 461} {13, 464) 48,384
Dbt pecurites camied ol iay value!
Procesds from sales 77534 E3,008 5117
Procesds from paydowrs snd malurities 91084 Ta11 78513
Purchasas (LB4ATT) {152,762} |76,540)
HeridEo-maturity detil secunties:
Frooeeds Im paydowrd snd maleriies 3835 3.7 18,789
Purchases. {357 535} 137115} [ELR=T]]
Loans and leasin!
Procecs from sales of koams onginaily clisaifiod es heid for investment and instrumants
Tram nelabed secuntization acinilies 133681 12201 21366
Purchases. 15230} (%, 963) 4,529
(e Ehisnges in Moars and leases. hel 36671 |l B ) (31282
Oiheer irrvasling actiilins, rat 13,4649} (2974 11, 286)
Fiot cash usad in investing acthites (17T BES) [T [T
Finansing acshilies o
Net change in:
Dhapaiits. AEHATT 53,327 71.931
Federal fords purchased and seruriies iosned of soid onder agreements o repurchass 5214 21873} 13,070
Shoft-bem borowings (4. 883) 4,004 (12,478
Long:term debs:
Procesds. from issuance GT.043 24 G, 2TH
Flistinestn (47 D48} S0, o4} 153,045]
Prefemed stoci:
Proctadi fam iSsuanss 2,181 A643 4,515
Redemption (1072} (2,508} (4,512
Common Shack nepurchaded (T.025) |Z8.144) (200l
Caun dividends paid (7,727} (5,934} (6,504
Dbt financrg activities, netl oBaL) (B |B51)
ol cash provided by Brancing acthies 355819 3ATT EENET]
"EMect of enchange rste changes on e and caah eguivaients 2.786 B0 (1.0
Nat inCreasn (OeCroass] In Cash &nd (ash equimkems 218,903 115,844} 19970
Caeh and cosh squrmbents ot lsmusny 1 161 5E0 177 404 167434
—Cash and eash squivalents al Becember 31 $  sbA8) % IBL5E0 § 1770
E inl cash fow dis
Innevirg) paid ¥ BEs2  § FrALL I 10087
Income taxes pakd, net 2.8%4 4,353 2470

Sew accompanying Motes to Consolidated Financial Siatemants.
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Bank of America Corporation and Subsidiaries
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 Summary of Significant Accounting

Principles

Bank of America Corporation, a bank holding company and a
financial holding company, provides & diverse range of financial
sarvices and products throughout the US. and in cerain
intemational markets. The term “the Corposation” as used
herein may refer to Bank of America Corporation, individually,
Bank of America Corporation and its subsidiaries, or certain of
Bank of Amarica Comoration’s subsidianes or affiliates.

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation
Thir Consalicdated Financial Statements include the accoums of
the Corporation and its majority-owned subsidiaries and those
variabse interest entities (VMIES) where the Corporation is the
primary beneficiary. Intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated. Resulls of operations of acguired
companies are included from the dates of acquisition, and for
VIEs, from the dates thal the Conporation became the primary
benaficiary. Assets held in an agency or fiduciary capacity are
mot Included in the Conaglidated Financial Statements, The
Comporation accounts for immstments in companies for which it
owns & wvoling interest and for which it has the ability to exemncise
significant influence owver operating and fnancing decisions
using the equity method of accounting. These investments are
included in other assets, Equity method investments ang subject
to impalmment testing, and the Coeporation's proportionate
share of income or 1055 is included in ather income,

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in
confarmity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of Amenca reguires management to make
estimales and assumptions thal alfect reporied amounts and
disclosures. Actual results could materially differ from those
estimates and assumptions. Ceram prioeperod amounts have
been reclassified to conform to cument period presentation.

Mew Accounting Standards

Accounting for Financial instruments - Credit Losses

On January 1, 2020, the Corporation adopled the new
accounting standard that requires the measurement of the
allowance for credit losses to be based on managament's bast
estimate of litetime expected credit losses (ECL) inherent in the
Cosporation's relevant financial assets. Upon adoption of the
standard on lanuary 1, 2020, the Corporation recorded a $3.3
billion, or 32 percent, increase o the allowance for credit
losses. After adjusting for deferred taxes and other adeption
effects, a $2.4 billion decrease was recorded in retained
eamings through a cwmulative-effect adjustment. Prior to
January 1, 2020, the allowance for crodd losses was
determined based on management's estimate of probable
incurred losses,

Reference Rate Reform

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASE) issued a new
accounting standard in March 2020, which was subsegquently
amended in January 2021, related (o contracts or hedging
relationships that reference London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR) or other reference rates that are expected to be
discontinued due to reference rate reform. The now Standard
provides for optional expedients and other guidance regarding
the accounting related 10 modifications of contracts, hedging
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relationships and other transactions affected by reference rate
reform. The Corporation has elected to retrospectively adopt the
new standard as of January 1, 2020, The adoption did not have
a material accounting impact on the Corporation’s consolidated
financial position or results of operationa; however, it did sase
the administrative burden in accounting for certain effects of
reference rate refom,

Significant Accounting Principles

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Caszh and cash equivalems include cash on hand, cash ltams in
the process of collection, cash segregated under federal and
other beokerage segulatons, and  amounts  due  from
correspondent banks, the Federal Reserve Bank and certain
non-l. 5. central banks, Cemain cash balances are restricted as
1o withdrawal or usage by legally binding contractual agreemants
or regulatory requirements.

Securities Financing Agreements

Securities bomowed or purchased under agreements to resell
and secunties loaned or sold under areements to repurchage
{securities financing agreements) are treated as collateralized
financing trangactions except in instances where the trangaction
is required to be accounted for as individual sale and purchase
trensactions. Generally, thesa agreemenis ame recorded &t
acquisibon or sale price plus accrued interest, except for
securities financing agreements that the Corporation accownts
for under the fair value option. Changes in the fair value of
securities financing agreements that are accounted for under
the fair value oplion are reconded in market making and simikar
activities in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

The Corporation™s policy IS 1o mondtor the market value of
the principal amount loaned under resale agreements and
obtain  collateral from  or retum  collateral pledged 1o
counterparties when  appropriate.  Secunities  financing
agreements do not create materiad credit nisk dug o these
collateral provisions: tharefore, an allowance for loan losses is
not necessany.

In transactions whera the Corporation acts as the lender in a
securities lending agreement and receives securities that can
be pledged or sold as collateral, it recognizes an asset on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair value, representing the
securities ecanad, and a liability, repeesenting the oblEgation 10
retum those securities.

Collateral

The Corporation accepts securities and loans as collateral that
it is permitted by contract or practice 10 sell or repledge. At
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the fair value of this collateral
was $812.4 billion and $693.0 billion, of which $T58.5 billlon
and $593.8 billion were sold or repledged. The primary source
of this collateral is securities borrowed or purchased under
agreements to resell,

The Corporation also pledges company-owned securities and
loans as collateral in transactions that include repurchase
agreements, securities loaned, public and trust deposits, U.5S.
Treasury tax and loan notes, and shorterm borrowings. This
collateral, which in some cases can be sold or repledged by the
counterpanies o the ransactions, is parenthetically disclosed
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In certain cases, the Comaoration has transfemed assats 1o
consolidated VIEs where those resincted assets serve as
collateral for (e interests issued by the VIES. These assets ane
included on the Consolidated Balapce Sheet in Assets of
Consolidated VIEs.
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In addition, the Corporation obtains collateral in connection
with its derivative contracts. Required collateral levels vary
depending on the credit fsk rating and the type of counterparty.
Generally, the Corporation accepis collateral in the form of
cash, U.5, Treasury secunties and other marketable securities,
Based on provisions contained in master netting agréamants,
the Corporation nets cash collateral received against derivative
assels. The Corporation also pledges collateral on s own
derivative positions which can be applied against derivative
liabilities.

Trading Instruments

Financial instruments utilized in trading activities are camied al
fair value. Fair value is generally based on guoled market prices
for the same or similar assels and liabilities. If ihese market
prices are not available, fair values are estimated based on
dealer  guMes, phRcing models, discounted cash  flow
meathodologies, or similar technigues whera the determination
of falr value may require significant management judgment or
estimation, Realized gains and losses are recorded on a trade-
date basis. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are
recagnized in market making and similar activities.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Derivatives are entered into on behalf of customers, for trading
of 1o support risk managament activities. Denvatives used in
risk management activities include derwatives that are both
designated in gualifng accounting hedge relationships and
derivatives used 1o hedge market risks in relationships that are
not designated in qualifying accounting hedge relationships
(referred to as other risk management activities). The
Corporation  manages interest rale and foreign  curmency
axchange rale sensitivity predominantly through the use of
derivalives. Denvatives utilized by the Corporation include
swaps, futures and forward settlement contracts, and option
contracts.

All dervatives are recorded on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at falr value, taking into consideration the effects of
legally enforceable master netting agreements that allow the
Corporation 1o settie positive and negative positions and offsat
cash collateral held with the same counterparty on a net basis,
For exchange-traded contracts, fair value is based on guoted
markel prices in actve or mactive markets of s derived from
observable market-based pricing parameters, similar to those
applind to overthe-counter (OTC) dervatives, For mn—uchangn
traded contracts, fair value is based on dealer quotes, pricing
models, discounted cash  flow  methodologies or  Similas
techmnigues for which the determination of fair value may require
significant management judgment or estimation,

Valuations of derivative assets and labilities reflect the
value of the instrument incluging countesparty credit risk, These
values also take into account the Corporation’s own credit
standing.

Trading Derivatives and Other Risk Management Activities

Derivatives held for trading purposes are included in denvative
assels of derivative llabilities en the Consolidated Balance
Sheet with changes in fair value included in market making and
gimilar activities,

Derivatives used for other risk management activities are
inciuded in devative assets or derivative liabilities. Derivatives
used in other risk mapagement acthities have not been
designated in qualifying accounting hedge relationships because
thay did not qualify or the risk that is being mitigated perains to
an item that |s reported at fair value through eamings so that

the effect of measuring the derivative nstrument and the asset
or liability to which the risk exposure pertains will offset in the
Consolidated Staternent of Income to the extent effective. The
changes in the fair value of dervatives that serve 1o mitigate
cenain risks associated with momgage sendcing ngnts (MSRs),
intarest rate lock commitments (IRLCS] and firstlien mortgage
lnans heldfor-sale (LHFS) that are onginated by the Corporation
are recorded in other income. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives that serse to mitigate interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk are incleded in market making and similar
activities, Credit denvatives are also used by the Corporation to
mitigate the risk associated with vanous credit exposures. The
changes in the fair value of these derivatives are included in
market making and simikar activities and other income,

Derivatives Used For Hedge Accounting Purposes
{Accounting Hedges)

For accounting hedges, the Corporation formally documents at
Inception all relationships belween hedging instrurments and
hedged ttems, as well as the risk management objectives and
strategies  for undertaking various  accounting  hedges.
Additionally, the Corporation primarily uses regrassion analysis
at the inceplion of a hedge and for each reporing period
thereafter to assess whether the dervative used in an
accounting hedge transaction s expected 1o be and has been
highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash
flows of & hedped item or fofecasted transaction. The
Corporation  discontinues hedge accounting when it s
determined that a derivative is not expected to be or has
coased 0 be highly effective as a hedge, and then reflects
changes in fair value of the derivative In eamings after
termination af the hedge rslationship,

Fair value hedges are used to protect against changes in the
fair value of the Corporation’s as8e1s and liabilities that ane
attributable to interest rate or foreign exchange volatility.
Changes in the fair value of dervatives designated as fair value
hedges are recorded in eamings. together and in the same
income statement line item with changes in the fair valug of the
related hedged item. If a demative instrument in a fair value
hedge is terminated or the hedge designation remowved, the
previous adjustments to the camying value of the hedged asset
or liabllity are subsequently accounted for in the same manner
as other components of the camying value of that asset or
liability, For  interest-eaming assets and nlerest-beaning
liabilities. such adjustments ane amortized to eamings aver the
remaining life of the respective asset or lability,

Cash flow hedges are used primarily 1@ minimize the
variabllity in cash flows of assets and liabilities or forecasted
transactions caused by interest rate or foreign exchange rate
fluctuations. The Corporation also uses cash flow hedges to
hedge the prce risk associaled with deferred compensaton.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives used in cash flow
hedges are recorded n socumulated other comprehensive
income (OCI} and are reclassified into the line item in the
Income statemeant in which the hedged nem is recorded in the
same peried the hedged item affects eamings. Components of
& gerivative 1hat are excluded in 238essing hedge effectiveness
arg recorded in the same income statement lime item as the
hedged iem,

Met investment hedges are used to managa the foreign
exchange rate sensitivity arising from a net investment in a
foraign oparation. Changes in the spol prices of dermatives that
are designated as net investment hedges of foreign operations
are recorded as & component of accumulated OCL The
remaining components of these derivatives are excluded in
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assessing hedge effectiveness and are recorded in market
making and similar activities.

Securitles

Dbt securities are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
at their trade date. Thekr classification is dependent on the
purpose far which the secunties wené acquired. Debt securities
purchased for use in the Corporation’s trading activities are
reported in trading account assets at fair value with unrealized
gains and losses incleded in market making and similar
activities, Substantially all other debt securities perchased are
used in the Corporation’s asset and liability managemeant (ALM)
activities and are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as aither debt securties caried at fair value or as heldto-
maturity (HTM) debt securities, Debt securities camed at fair
value ara  aither available-for-sale [AFS] securities  with
unrealired gains and lesses net-oftax included in accumulated
OCI or camed at fair value with unrealized gains and losses
reported i market making and similar acthvities. HTM debt
securities are debt securities that management has the intent
and ability to hold to maturity and are reported at amortized
cost.

The Corporation evaluates each AFS security whera the value
has declingd balow amontized cost. If the Corparation Inlends o
sell or believes it ks more likely than not that it will be required
1o sell the debt security, It is written down to fair value through
aamings. For AFS debt secunties the Comporation intends to
held, the Comporation evaluates the debt securities for ECL
except for debt secwrities that are guaranteed by the LS.
Treasury, U5, povemment Bgencies of soverelgn entities of high
credit quality where the Corporation applies a zero credit loss
assumption, For the remaining AFS debl securities, the
Corporation considers qualitative parameters such as internal
and extemal credit ratings and the vatue of underlying coltateral,
If an AFS debt secunty fails any of the qualitatve parameters, a
discounted cash flow amalysis is used by the Corporation to
datarming if a porson of the unralized loss is a resull of an
expected credit loss. The Corporation will then recognize either
cradit loss exponse or & reversal of credit loss expanse in other
income for the amount necessary to adjust the debt securities
valuation allowance to its cument estimate of excepted credit
losses. Cash flows expected to be collected are estimated
using all relevant information available such as remaining
payment berms, prepayment speeds, the financial condition of
e igguer, expected defaulls and the value of the underyng
collateral. If any of the decline in fair value is related to markat
factors, that amount is recognized in asccumulated OCL In
cartain instances, the cradit loss may excead the total decline
in fair value, in which case, the allowance recorded (s limited 1o
the difference between the amorized cost and the fair value of
the asset.

Thar Corporalion separately evaluates its HTM debt securities
for any credit losses, of which substantially all qualify for the
mro loss  assumption. For the remaining securities, the
Cogporation performs a discounted cash flow analysis to
estimate any credit losses which ang then recognized as part of
the allowance for credit losses,

Imerest on debt securies, Including amortization ef
premiums and accretion of discounts, is included in interest
income, Premiums and discounts are amortized of accreted 1o
interest income at a constant effective yeld over the contractual
lives of the securities, Realized gains and losses from the sales
of debt secunties are determined wusing the specific
identificatson method,
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Equity securities with readily determinable fair values that
are not held for trading purposes are camied at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses included in other income. Equity
securities that do not have readily determinable fair values ane
recorded at cost less impaiment, o any, plus or minus
gualifying obsarvable price changes. These securties are
repaned in other agsets,

Loans and Leases

Loans, with the exception of loans accounted for under the fair
vahee option, ane measured al histoncal cost and reponed al
their oatstanding principal balances net of any uneamed
incorme, charge-offs, unamorized defermed fees and cos1s on
originated loans, and for purchased loans, net of any
unamorized premiums of discounts, Loan onigination fees and
cartain diract origination costs are deferred and recognized as
adjustments to interest income over the lives of the related
loans. Uneamed income, discounts and premiums  ane
amortized 1o Interest income using a level yield methodology.
The Conporation elects to accoumt for cenain consumer and
commercial loans under the fair velue option with interest
reported in interast ingome and changes in fair value reported in
market making and similar activities or other income.

Under  applicable  accounting  guidance, for reponting
purposes, the loan and lease portfolio is categorized by portfolio
segment and, within each porfolio segment, by class of
financing receivables. A portfolio segment is defined as the lavel
at which an entily develops and documents a systematic
methodology to determine the allowance for credit losses, and a
class of financing receivables |s defined B3 he level of
disaggregation of portfolio segments based om the nitial
measurement attribute, risk characteristics and methods for
assassing risk. The Corporation’s three portfolio segmeants ane
Consumer Real Estate, Credit Card and Other Consumer, and
Commercial. The classes within the Consumer Real Estate
portfalio segment are residential mortgage and home egquity.
Thir classes within the Credit Card and Othar Consumer portfalio
sepment are credst card, direct/indirect consumer and other
consumir, Thi classes within the Commaercial porfolio segmant
are U.S, commercial, nonU.5. commercial, commercial real
estate, commercial lease financing and U5, small business
commercial,

Leases

The Corporation provides equipment financing 1o LS cuslomars
through & variety of lessor arangements. Direct financing
leases and salesdype leases are carmed al the aggregate of
lease payments receivable plus the estimated residual value of
the leased propedy less uneamed meome, which is acereted 1o
interest income owver the lease terms using methods that
approximate the interesl method, Operating lease income is
recognized on a straightdine basis. The Corporation’s lease
arrangements genetally do not contain nofFlease components,

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses includes both the allowance for
loan and lease oases and the resenve fof unfunded lending
commitments and represents management's estimate of the
ECL in the Corporation’s lpan and lease portfolio, excluding
loans and unfunded lending commitments accounted for under
the far value option. The ECL on funded consumer and
commercial loans and leases is referred to as the allowance for
loan &nd lease losses and s reported separately as a contra-
assal to loans and leases on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
The ECL for wnfunded lending commitments, including home
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equity lines of credit (HELOCs), standby letiers of credit (SBLCs)
and binding unfunded loan commitments is reporied on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet in accrued expenses and ather
liabilities. The provision for credit losses related to the loan and
lease portfolie and wnfunded lending commitments is reparted
in the Consolidated Statement of Incomea.

For loans and leases, the ECL is typically estimated using
quantitative mathods that consider a variety of factors such as
historical loss experience, the curremt credit quality of the
portfolio as well a5 an economic outlook over the life of the
loan. The life of the loan for closed-ended products is based on
the contractual maturity of the loan adiusted for any expected
prepayments. The contractual maturity includes any extension
options that are al the sole discretion of the borrower. For open-
ended products (eg.. lines of credit), the ECL is determined
based on the masmuem repayment term associated with future
draws from credit lines unless those lines of credit are
unconditionally cancellable (e.g., credit cards) in which case the
Cosporation does not record any allowance.

In s loss  forecasting  framework, the Corporation
incorporates forward-looking information through the use of
MACrOECONOMIC SCenanos appled over the forecasted life of the
assels, These macroeconomic scenanos include variables that
nave historically been key drivers of increases and decreases in
cradit losses. These variables include, but are not limited to,
unemployment rates, real estate prices, gross domestic product
levals and corporate bond spreads. As any one economic
outlook is inherently uncertaim, the Corporation leverages
multiple scenanos, The scenarios that are chosen each quarer
and the weighting given to each scenario depend on a varnety of
factors including recent economic events, leading economic
indicators, views of intemal and third-party economists and
industry trends,

The estimate of credit losses includes expected recoveries
of amounts preéviously charged off (i.e,, negative allowance), If a
loan has been charged off, the expacted cash fiows on the loan
are nat limited by the currest amortized cost balance. Instead,
expected cash flows can ba assumed up to the unpaid prncipal
palance immediately prior to the charge-off,

The allowance for loan and lease losses for troubled debt
restructurings (TOR) is measured based on the present value of
projected futwee lifotime principal and interast cash flows
discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate, or in
cases where foreclosure s probable or the loan is collateral
dependent, at the loan’s collateral value or its obserable
market price, if avadable, The measurement of ECL for the
renegotiated consumer credit card TOR portfolio is based on the
present value of projected cash fows discounted using the
average TOR portfolio contractual interest rate, excluding
promotionally priced loang, in eflect prod [0 restructufng,
Projected cash flows for TDRs use the same economic outlook
as distugsed above, For purpozes of computing this specific
loss component of the allowance, larger impaired loans are
evaluated individually and smaller impared loans are evaluated
as a poal.

Also included in the allowance for boan and lease losses are
qualitative resarves 1o cover losses thal are axpected but, in the
Cosporation's assessment, may not be adequately reflected In
i quantitative methods of the economic assumptions
described above. For example, factors that the Corposation
congiders include changes in lending pabicies and procedures,
business conditions, the nature and size of the portfolio,
portfolio concentrations. the wolume and severity of past due
loans and nonaccrual loans, the effect of extemal factors such
as competition, and legal and regulatony requirements. among

others, Further, the Corporation considers the  inherent
uncertainty in guantitative models that are built on historical
data,

With the exception of the Corporation"s credit card portfolio,
the Corporation does nol include reserves for interest recelvable
in the measurement of the allowance for credit losses as the
Corporation  generally  classifies  consumer loans  as
nonperforming at 90 days past due and reverses interest
income for these loans at that time. For credit card loans, the
Corparation reserves for interest and fees as part of the
allowance for loan and lease losses, Upon charge-off of a credit
card loan, the Corporation reverses the intenest and feg income
against the income statement line item where it was onginally
ricorded,

The Corporation has identified the following three portfolio
segments and measures the allowance for credd losses using
the following methods.

Consumar Real Estate

To estimate ECL for consumer loans secured by residential real
estata, the Corporation estimates the number of loans that will
default over the life af the existing portfolio, afier factaning in
estimated  prepayments, wsing quantitative  modeling
methodelogles. The atributes thal are most significant n
estimating the Corporation’s ECL include refrashed loantovalue
(LTV} or, in the case of a subordinated lien, refreshed combined
LTV (CLTV), bomower cradit score, months since angination and
geography, all of which are further broken down by present
collection status (whether the loan (5 cument, delinguent. in
default, or in bankruptcy). The estimates are based on the
Corporation’s  historical experience with the loan  portfolio,
adjusted to reflect the economic outlook. The outlook on the
unemployment rate and consumer real estate prices are ey
factors that impact the frequency and severity of loss estimates.
The Comporation doas not réserve for credd losses on thi
unpakd principal balance of foans insured by the Federal
Housing Admenistration (FHA) and long-term standby loans, as
these loans are fully insured. The Corporation records a resense
for unfunded lending commitments for the ECL associated with
the undrawn portion of the Corporation’s HELOCs, which can
only be canceled by the Corporation f certain criteria ane met,
Thir ECL associated with thase unfunded londing commitments
Is calculated using the same models and methodologies noted
above and incorporate wulilization assumplions at time of
default.

For loans that are more than 180 days past duee and
collateral-dependent TDRs, the Corporation bases the allowance
on the estimated fair value of the undedying collateral as of the
reporting date less costs to sell. The fair value of the collateral
securing these loans 15 pgenerally determined using an
automated valuation model (AVM) that estimates the value of a
propeny by reference 1o markel data incleding sales of
comparable properties and price trends specific to the
Metropofitan Statistical Area in which the property being valued
is located. In the event that an AVM value is not available, the
Corporation utilizes publicized indices or If these methods
provide less reliable valuations, the Corporation uses appraisals
or broker pnce opinlons to estimate the fair value of the
collataral. While there is inherent imprecision in  these
valuations, the Corporation believes that they are representative
of this portfolio in the aggregate,

For loans that are more than 180 days past due and
collateraldependent  TDRs, with  the exception of the
Corpaoration’s fully inswred portfolio, the outstanding balance of
loans that is in extess of the estimaled propery value afer
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adjusting for costs to sell is charged off. If the estimated
moperty value decreases in periods subsequent to the initial
charge-off, the Corporation will record an additional charge-off,
however, if the value increases in periods subsequent to the
charge-off, the Corporation will adpust the allowance 1o account
for tha increase but not 4o a leval above the cumulative charge-
off amount,

Credit Cards and Other Consumer

Credit cards are revolving lines of credit without a defined
maturity date. The estimated life of a credit card receivable Is
determined by estimating the amount and timing of expected
future payments (e.g., bomowers making full payments,
minimum paymants of somewhens in betwsan) that it will take
for a receivable balance to pay off. The ECL on the future
payments incorposates the spending behavior of a bomower
through time wusing key borrowerspecific factors and the
economic oullook described above, The Corporation apples all
expected paymemts in accordance with the Credit Card
Accountability Responsibility and Desclosure Act of 2009 e,
paying down the highest interest rate bucket first). Then
forecasied future payments are proritized to pay off the oldest
balance wntil it is brought to zero or an expected chamge-off
ampunt. Unemployment rate cutlook, bomower credit score,
delinguency status and histonical payment behavior are all key
inputs into the credit card receivable loss forecasting model,
Future draws on the credit card lines are excloded from the ECL
as they are unconditionally cancellable.

The ECL for the consumaer vehicle lending portfolio is also
determined using guantitative methods supplemented with
qualitative analysis. The gquantitative model estimates ECL
Biving consideration to key bomower and loan characteristics
such as delinguency status, barrower credit score, LTV ratio,
underlying collateral type and collateral value.

Commurcial

The ECL on commercial loans |5 fonecasted using models that
estimate credit losses over the loan's contractual life at an
individual loan level. The models use the contractual terms 1o
forecasl fulwe principal cash flows while also considenng
expected prepayments, For openended commitments such as
revalving lines of credit, changes in funded balance ar captured
by forecasting a bormower's draw and payment behavior over the
remdaining life of the commitment, For loans collateralized with
commercial real estate and for which the underlying asset is the
primary source of repayment, the loss forecasting models
consider key loan and customer attributes such as LTV ratio,
el ﬂNI"&-ﬁI‘I‘ income and deblt sepice COVETafe, and caplures
wariations in behavior according to property type and region. The
oullook on the unamployment ratle, gross domestic product, and
forecasted real estate prices are utilized to determine indicators
such as rent levels and vacancy rates, which impact the ECL
astimate. For all other commercial loans and leases, the |oss
forecasting model determines the probabilities of transition to
different cradit sk ratngs or defaull at each point over the life
of the asset based on the borrower's current credit risk rating,
industry sector, size of the exposure and the geographic market.
The severity of loss s determined based on the type of
collateral securing the exposure, the size of the oxposure, the
borrower's industry sector, any guarantors and the geographic
markel, Assumplions of expected loss are conditoned to the
economic outlook, and the model considers hey economic
variables such as unemployment rate, gross domestc product,
corporate bond spreads, real estate and other asset prices and
equily market refums,
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In addition to the allowance for loan and |ease losses, the
Corporation also estimates ECL related to unfumded lending
commitments such as letters of credit, financial guaramees,
unfunded bankers acceptances and binding loan commitments,
excluding commitments accounted for under the fair valee
option. Resernes are estimated for the unfunded exposure using
the same models and methodologies as the funded exposure

and are rmeported as mesenves  Tor  wunfunded  lending
commitments,

MNonperforming Loans and Leases, Charge-offs and
Dellnguencies

Nonperforming loans and leases generally include loans and
leases that hawve been placed on nonaccrual status, Loans
accounted for under the fair value option and LHFS are not
reporied as nonperforming.

In accordance with the Corporation’s palicies, consumier real
estate-securad loans, including residential mortgages and home
equily loans, aré generally placed on nonaccrudl siatus and
classified as nonperforming at 90 days past due unless
repayment of the loan is insured by the FHA or through
individually insured longtemm standby agreements with Fannie
Mae (FNMA) or Freddie Mac (FHLMC) (the fully-insured porifolio),
Residential morgage loans in the fullyinsured portfolio are not
placed on nonsccrual status and, therefore, are not reported ag
nonperforming. Juniordien home equity loans are placed an
nonaccrual status and classified as nonperforming when the
underlying first-lien montgage loan becomes 20 days past due
even if the junkor-len loan is curent. The outstanding batance of
real esiate-secured loans that is in excess of the estimated
property value less costs to sell is changed off no later than the
and of the month in which the lean becomes 180 days past due
unless the loan is fully Insured, or for loans in bankruptcy, within
60 days of receipt of notification of filing. with the remaining
balance classified as nonperforming.

Consumer loans secured by personal property, credit card
loans and other unsecured consumer loans are not placed on
nonaccrual status prior to charge-off and, therefore, ane not
reported as nonperforming loans, except for certain secured
COnsumer loans, including those that have been modified in a
TDR. Personal property-secured loans (including aulo lpans) ane
charged off 10 collateral valee no later than the end of the
manth in which the account becomes 120 days past due, or
upon repossession of an auto o, for loans in bankruptcy, within
B0 days of receipt of notification of filing. Credit card and other
unsecured customer loans are charged off no later than the end
of the month in which the account becomes 180 days past due,
within &0 days after receipt of notification of death or
bankruplcy. or upon confirmation of fraud,

Commercial loans and leases, excluding business card
loans, thal are past due 90 days or more as 10 pancipal or
interest, or where reasonable doubt exists as to timely
collection, including loans that are individually identified as
being impaired, are generally placed on nonaccrual status and
classified as nonperdorming unless wellsecured and in the
process of collection.

Business card loans are charged off in the same manner as
consumer credit card loans. Other commercial loans and leases
are generally charged off when all or & porthon of the principal
amount is determined to be uncollectible.

The entire balance of & consumer loan or coemmergial loan or
lease is contractually delinguant if the minmmum payment is nol
received by the specified due date on the customer's billing
statement. Inerest and fiees continue 1o accrue on past due
Inans and leases until the date the loan is placed on nonaccrual
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status, if applicable, Accrued interest recenvable is reversed
when loans and leases are placed om nonaccrual status.
Interest collections on nonaceruing loans and leases for whach
the ultimate collectability of principal is uncertain are applied as
principal reductions; otherwise, such collections are credited to
incoma when received. Loans and leases may be restored o
accrual status when all principal and interest s current and full
repayment of the remaining contractual prancipal and interest is
expected.

Troubted Debt Restructurings

Consumer and commercial loans and leases whose contractual
terms have been restructured in A manner that grants a
concession to a bormower experiencing financial difficultes are
classified as TORs. Concessions could include a reduction in
the interest rate o a rate that is balow market on the loan,
payment extensions, forgvensas of principal, forbearance or
other actions designed to maximize collections. Loans that ane
carried at fair value and LHFS are not classified as TDRs,

Loans and Isases whose contractual terms hawe been
madified in 8 TOR and are curent at the time of restructuring
may remain on accrual stabes if there is  demonstrated
performance prior to the restructuring and payment in full under
the restructured terms is expected, Otherwise, the lans ane
placed on nonaccrual status and reported as nonperforming,
axcepl for fullpinsured consumer redl sstate boans, until therne 5
sustained repayment performance for a reascnable period,
generally six menths. It accruing TDRs cease to perform n
accordance with their modified contractual terms, they are
placed on nonaccrual status and repoated as nORperioming
TDRs.

Secured consumer loang that have been discharged in
Chapter 7 bankruptcy and have not been reaffirmed by the
borrower are classified as TORsS st the time of discharge. Such
loans are placed on nonaccrual status and wniten down to the
estimated collateral value less costs to sell no later than at the
timé of discharge. W these loans e contractually currant,
interest collections are generally recorded in interest income on
a cash basis. Consumar real astate-secured loans for which a
binding offer to restructure has been extended are also
clagsified as TORS. Credit card and other unsecured consumer
loans that have been renegotiated in a TDR generally ramain on
accrual status wntil the loan is either paid in full or charged off,
which occurs no later than the end of the month in which the
lpan becornes 180 days past due or, for loans that have been
placed on a fized payment plan, 120 days past due.

A loan that had previously been modified in a TDR and is
subsequantly refinanced under curment underwriting standards at
a markel rate with no concessionary terms s accounted for as a
new loan and is no longer reported as a TDR.

COWID-19 Pragrams

The Corporation hes implemented vamous consumer and
cammercial loan modification programs to provide its borrowaers
relief from the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic (the
pandermic), In accordance with the Coronavirus Aid, Relied, and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act). the Corporation has elected
1o not apply TOR classification 1o eligible COVID-19 related lpan
madifications that were performed after March 1, 2020 to loans
that were current as of December 31, 2019, Accordingly, these
restructurings are not classified as TDRs. The availability of this
election expires upan the earlier of lanuary 1, 2022 or 60 days
after the national emergency related to COVID-19 terminates. In

addition, for loans modified in response 1o the pandemic that ¢o
not meet the above criteria [e.g. current payment status at
Decarnber 31, 2019), the Corporation is applying the guidance
included in an interagency statement issued by the bank
regulatory  agencies.  This  guidance states that  loan
modifications performed in light of the pandemie, including laan
payment deferrals that are up to six months in duration, that
werg granted to borowers who were current as of the
Implementation date of & loan modification progam o
modifications granted under govemment mandated modification
programs, are not TORs. For loan modifications that include a
payment deferral and ane not TORS, the borrowers” past due and
nonaccrual status have not been impacted dunng the defemal
penad, The Corporation has continued to accrug intenest during
the deferral period using a constant effective yield method. For
most mengage, HELOC and commercial loan modifications, the
contractual interest that accrued during the deferral pericd is
payable at the maturity of the loan, The Corperation Includes
these amounts with the wnpaid pancipal balance when
compiting its allowance for credit losses, Amounts that ane
subsequently deemed uncollectible are written off against the
allowance for cradit losses,

Loans Held-for-sale

Loans that the Corporation intends to sell in the foreseeable
future, including residential morgages, loan syndications, and
to a lesser degree, commercial real estate, consumer finance
and other loans, are reported as LHFS and are carried at the
lower of aggregate cost or fair value. The Corporation accounts
for certain LHFS, including reskdential mortgage LHFS, under the
fair value option. Loan origination costs for LHFS camed at the
lower of cost or fair value are capitalized as part of the camying
valwe of the loans and, upon the sale of a loan, are recognized
as part of the gain or loss in noninterest income. LHFS that are
on nonaccrual status and are reported as nonpediorming, as
defined in the policy herain, are reported separately from
nonperforming loans and leases.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are camied at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amaorization, Depreciation and amortizalion
are recognized using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, Estimated lives range up to 40 years
for buildings, wp to 12 years for fumiture and equipment, and
the shorer of lease term or estimated useful life for leasehold
impravements.

Other Assets

For the Corporation’s fnancial assets that are measwed at
amortized cost and are not Included in debt securities or loans
and eases on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Corporation
evaluates these assets for ECL using vanous techniques. For
assets that are subject to collateral maintenance provissons,
including federal funds sold and securities borrowed or
purchased uwnder agreements to resell, where the collateral
consists of daily margining of liquid and marketable assets
where the margining Is expected to be maintained o the
foreseeable future, the expected losses are assumed 1o be
zero. For all other assets, the Corporation performs gualitative
analyses, including consideration of histoncal losses and
cumrent economic conditions, to estimate any ECL which are
then intluded in a valuation account that s recorded as a
contra-asset against the amortized cost basis of the financial
assol.
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Lesses Arrangemeants

Substantially all of the Corporation’s lessee aangements are
operating leases. Under these arangements, the Corporation
records right-of-use @ssets and lesse llabiltes at lease
commencement. Right-ofuse assels are reported in other
assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, and the related
lease liabalities are reported in accrued expenses and ather
liabilities. All leases are recorded on the Consolidated Balance
Sheel except eases with an initial term less than 12 months for
which the Corporation made the shortterm lease election.
Lease expense IS recognized on a straightding basis over the
lease term and is recorded in occupancy and eguipment
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

The Corporation made an accounting policy election not to
separate lease and nondleass components of & contrect that is
or contains a lease for its real estate and equipment leases. As
such, lease payments represent payments on Both lease and
non-lease components. At lease commencement, lease
liabilites are recognized based on the present value of the
remaining lease payments and  discounted using  the
Cosporation’s incremental borrowing rate. Right-of-use assets
initially equal the lease liability, adusted for any lease payments
made prior to lease commencement and for any lease
meentives,

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the purchase premium after adjusting for the fair
value of net assets acquined. Goodwill is not amortized but is
reviewed for potential impairment on an annual basis, or when
events or circumstances indicate a potential impairment, at the
reporting unit level. A reporting unit is a business segment or
o linver] balow & business segment,

The Corporation assesses the fair value of each reporting
unitl against its carmying value, including goodwill, as measured
by allocated equity. For purposes of goodwill impairment testing,
the Corporation utilizes allocated equity 88 a proxy for the
carrying value of its reporting units. Allocated equity in the
reparting units is compnsed of allocated capital plus capital for
the portion of goodwill and intangibles specifically assigned to
the reportng unit.

In  performing  its  goodwill impairment testing. the
Covporation first assesses qualitative factors to determine
whethar it is more likely than not thal the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its camying value. Qualitative factors
mclude, among  other things, macroeconomic  conditions,
industry and market considerations, financial performance of
the respective reporting wnit and olher relevant entity- and
reporting-unit specific considerations.

If the Corporation concludes i is mone fikely than not that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carmying value, a
quantilative assessment is performed, The Comporation has an
unconditional option to bypass the gualitative assessment for
any reporting unit in any period and procead directly to
performing the guantitative goodwill impairment test. The
Corporation may resume performing the qualitathe assessment
in any subsequent perod.

When performing the quantitative assessment, if the fair
value of the reporting unit exceeds its camying value, goodwill of
the reporting unit would not be considered impaired. If the
carrying vahue of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a
goodwill impatrment loss would be recognized for the amount by
which the reporting unit’s allocated equity exceeds its fair value.,
An impairment loss recognized cannot exceed the amount of
goodwill assigned to a reporting unit. An impairment loss
establishes a new basis in the goodwill and subseguent
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reversals of poodwill impairment losses are not permitted under
applicable accounting guidance.

For mtangibde assets subject to amontization, an imparment
loss is recognized if the camying value of the inlangible assat is
not recoverable and exceeds fair value, The carrying value of the
intangible asset is considered not recoverable if it exceads the
sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected (o result from the
usa aof the assel. Intangible assets deemed to have indefinite
useful lives are nol subject 1o amortization. An impairment foss
is recognized if the carrying value of the intangible asset with an
Indefinite life exceeds its fair value,

Variable Interest Entities

A VIE is an entity that lacks equity investors or whosae equity
investors do not have a controdling financial interest in the entity
through their equity investments. The Corporation consolidates
a VIE if it has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE
that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance
and an obligation 1o absorb losses or the right to receive
banefits that could potentially be significant 1o the VIE. On a
guarterly basis, the Corporation reassesses (s imvolvement with
the WIE and ovaluates the impact of changes in govermning
documents and its financial interests in the VIE. The
consolidation status of the VIES with which the Corporation is
invalved may change as a result of such reassessments.

The Corperation primarlly uses VIEs for s securtization
activities, in which the Corporation transfers whole boans or debt
securities into a trust or other vehicle, When the Corporation is
the sernvicer of whole |oans held in a securtization trust,
ineluding non-agency mesidential mongages, home equity laans,
credit cards, and other loans, the Corporation has the power to
direct the most significant activities of the trust. The Corporation
genarally does not have the power to direct the most significant
activiies of a residential morgage agency trust except in certain
circumsiances in which the Corporation holds substantially all of
the issued securities and has the unilateral Aght to liquidate the
trust. The power to direct the most significant activities of a
commercial morgage securnitization trust is typically held by the
special seracer of by the parly holding specific subordinate
securities  which embody cerain controfling nights.  The
Corparation consolidates a whole-loan securitization trust if it
has the power to direct the most significant activities and also
holds secunties issued by the trust or has other contractual
arrangaments, other than standard representations and
warranties, that could potentially be significant 1o the trust.

The Corporation may also transfer trading account securities
and AFS securlies into municipal bond or resecuritization
trusts. The Corporation consolidates a municipal bond or
resecuritization trust If it has control over the ongoing activities
of the trust such as the remarketing of the trust's liablities or, if
there are no ongoing activities, sole discretion cver the design
of the wust, including the wentification of securiies to bo
transferred in and the structure of securties to be issued, and
also retains securities or has liquidity or other commitments
that could potentially be significant to the trust. The Corporation
does not consolidate & municipal bond or resecuritization trust if
oneg or 8 limited number of thirdparly investors share
responsibiity for the design of the trust or have control over the
significant activities of the trust through liquidation or other
substantive rights,

Cther VIEs used by the Corporation include collateralized
debt obligations (CDOs), imestment velicles ereated on behalf
of customers and other investment vehicles. The Corporation
does not routinely serve as collateral manager for CD0s and,
therefore, does not typically have the power to direct the
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activites that most  significantly mpact  the  economic
performance of a COO. However, following an event of default, if
the Corporation is @ majonty holder of senior securities issued
by a CO and acquires the power to manage its assets, the
Comoration consolidates the COO,

The Corporation consolidates a customer or othar
investment vehicie if It has control over the initial design of the
vehicle or manages the assats in the vehiche and also absorbs
potentially significant gains or losses through an investment in
the vehicle, dervative comtracts or other arrangements. The
Corporation does not consolidate an investment vehicle if a
single investor controfled the inital design of the vehicle or
manages the assets i the vehicles or if the Corporation does
ol hive @ variable intenest that could potentially be significant
to the vehiche.,

Fetained inlerests in secunitized assels ane infially recorded
at fair value. In addition, the Corporation may invest in debt
secunties issued by unconsolidated VIEs. Falr values of these
debt securities, which are classified as trading account assets,
debt securities camed at falr value or HTM securities, are based
primarily on quoted market pices in active or inactive markets.
Generally, quoted market prices for retained residual interesis
ane not available; therefore, the Corporation estimates fair
values based on the present value of the associated expected
future cash flows.

Fair Value

The Corporation measures the falr values of s asseis and
labilities, where applicable, in accordance with accounting
guidance thal requires an entity to base fair value on exit pace,
Under this guidance, an enfity is required to maximize the use
ol obsemvable inputs and minimize the use of unobserable
inputs in measuring fair value. Under applicable accounting
slandards, fair value measurements are categorized into one of
threa levels based on the inputs to tha valuation technigque with
the highest priority given to unadjusted guoted peices in active
markels and the lowest prorty given o unobsenable inputs.
The Corporation categorizes its falir velue measurements of
financial instruments based on this throelevel hisranchy.

Level 1 Unadjusted guoted prices in active markets for
idantical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and
liabilities Inclede debt and equily securities and
derivative contracts that are traded in an active
exchange market, as well as cenain U.5. Treasury
securities that are highly liquid and are actively traded
in OTC markets,

Level 2 Dbsarvable inputs other than Leved 1 prices. such as
quoted prices for similar assets or llabilites, guoted
prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs
that @re observable or can be comoborated by
observable markel data for substantially the full lesm
of the assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets and
liabilities include debt securtios with quoted phces
that are traded less frequently than exchange-traded
instruments and dervative contracts where fair value is
determined using a pricing mode| with inputs that are
observable in the market or can be derived principally
from or corroborated by obsenable market data. This
calegory generally includes U5 government and
agency morigage-backed (MBS) and assetbacked
securities (ABS), corporate debt securities, derivative
contracts, certain loans and LHFS.

Level 3 Unobservable inpuls that are suppored by little or no
market activity and that are significant to the overall

fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets
and liabilities include financial instruments for which
the determination of far valug requires significant
managemant judgment or estimation. The fair value for
such assets and liabilities s generally determined
using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methadologies or similar techniques that incorporate
the assumplions a markel participant woubd use in
pricing the asset or Nability. This category generally
includes retained residual intarests in securilizations,
consumer MSRs, certain ABS, highly strectured,
comples or longdated derivative contracls, certain
loans and LHFS, IRLCS and cerain COOs whare
Independent pricing informatien cannot be obtained for
8 significant portion of the underying assets.

Income Taxes

Thera are two components of income tax expense: current and
deferred, Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid
or refunded for the current pericd, Defarmad income tax expense
results from changes In deferred tex assets and labslities
botween poriods. These gross defered tax assets and liabilities
represent decreases of increases in taxes expacted to be paid
in the future because of future reversals of temposary
differences in the bases of assets and liabilities 8s measured
by tax laws and their bases as reported In the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are also recognized for tax
attributes such as net operating loss camylorwards and faw
credit camyforwards. Valuation allowances are recorded to
reduce deferred tax assels to the amoums management
concludes are more likely than not to be realized.

Inceme tax benefis are recognized end measured based
upon a two-step model: first, a tax position must be more likely
than not 10 be sustained based solely on its technical merits in
ordar to be recognized, and second, the benefit is measured as
thie largest dollar amount of that position that s more likely than
nat to be sustained upon settlement. The differance betwaan
the benefit recognized and the tax benefit claimed on & tax
return s feferred 10 as an unrecognized tax benefit. Tho
Corporation records income tas-related interest and penalties, if
applicable, within income Lax expense,

Revenue Recognition
The following summarizes the Corporation’s revenue recognition
accounting policies for certain nonintersst income activities.

Card Income

Card income includes annual, late and over-limit fees as well as
Interchange, cash advances and other miscellansous items
from credit and debit card transactions and from processing
card wransactions for merchants. Card income is presented net
of direct costs. Interchange fees are recognized upan
setilement of ithe credit and debit card payment transactbons
and are ganerally determined on a percentage basis for credit
cards amd fixed rates for debit cards based on the
comesponding payment network's rates. Substantially all cand
fees are recognized at the transaction date, except for certain
time-based fees such as annual fees, which are recognized over
12 months, Fees charged to cardholders and merchants that
are estimated o be uncollectble are reserved in the allowance
for lsan and lease losses. Included in direct cost are rewards
and credit card parther payments, Rewards paid to cardholders
are related to points eamed by the cardholder that can be
redeemed for & broad range of rewards including cash, travel
and gift cards. The points to be redeemsed are estimated based
on past redemplion behawvior, card product [ype, acCownt
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trangaction activity and other historical card performance, The
liability is reduced as the points are redeemed. The Corporation
also makes payments to credit card partners, The payments are
based on revenue-sharing agreements that are generally driven
by candholder transactions and parner sales volumes, As pan
of tha revenus-sharing agreements, the credit card partner
provides the Corporation exclusive rights (o market to the credit
card partner’s members or customers on behalf of the
Corporaticn,

Service Charges

Sarvice charges include deposit and lendingrelated feas,
Depositrelated fees consist of fees eamed on consumer and
commercial geposit activities and ane generally recognized when
the transactions occur or as the sanice is performed. Consumer
fes ang eamed on CONSuMEer deposil accounts Tor Bccount
maintenance and various transactionbased senvices, such as
ATH transaclions. wire wansfer activiies, check and money
order processing and insufficient funds/overdraft transactions.
Commercial depositrelated fees are from the Corporation’s
Global Transaction Saervices business and consist of commercial
deposit and Weasury management serices, Including account
maintenance and other services, such as payroll, sweep
account and other cash management senvices, Lendingrelated
feas generally rapresent transactional fees eamead from certain
loan commitments, financial guarantees and S8LCs,

Investment and Brokerage Services
Investment and brokerage Senscos  consist of  assel
management and brokerage fees. Asset management fees are
earned fram the management of clent assets under advisory
agreements or the full discretion of the Corporation's financial
advisors (collectively referred 10 as assets under management
(AUM]). Asset management fees are eamed as a percentage of
the client’s AUM and generally range from S0 basis points (bps)
1o 150 bps of the AUM. In cases whare a third party is used to
obtain & clent’s Investment allocation, the fee remitted to the
third party is recorded net and is not reflected in the transaction
price, as the Corporation is an agent for those senices,
Brokerage fees include mcome eamed from transaction-
based senvices that are performed as part of wvestment
management serices and are based on a fined price per unit or
as a percentage of the total transaction amount. Brokerage fees
also include distribution fees and sales commissions that ane
primarily in the Global Wealth & Investment Managemeant (GIWIM)
segment and ane eamed over time. In addition, primarily in the
Global Mavkets segment, brokerage fees are eamed when the
Corporation fills customer orders 1o buy or sell vanous Tinancial
products or when it acknowledges, affirms, settles and clears
trangactions  andfor  submits  trade  information  to  the
appropriate clearing broker. Certain customers pay brokerage,
clearing and/or exchange fees impozed by relevant regulatory
bodies or exchanges in order 0 execule of clear trades, These
fees are recorded net and are nol reflected in the transaction
price, as the Corporation is an agent for those senvices.

Investment Banking Income

Investment banking income imcludes underwriting income and
financial advisory senices income, Undenariting consists of fees
eamed for the placement of a customer's debt or equity
secunties. The revenue |s generally eamed based on a
percentage of the fixed number of shares or principal placed.
Onece the number of shares or notes is determined and the
sefvice is5 completed, the undenwriting fees are recognized. The
Cosporation Incurs certain out-of- pockel expenses, such as legal
costs, in performing these services. These expenses are
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recovered through the revenue the Corporation eams from the
customer and are included in operating expenses. Syndication
fees represent fees eamed as the agent of lead lender
responsible for structuring, amanging and administering a loan
syndication,

Financial advisory services consist of fees eamed for
assisting clients with transactions related to mergers and
acquisiions and financial mestructurings. Revenue  vares
depending on the size of the transaction and scope of semvices
performed and is genarally contingent on successful complation
of the transaction. Revenue is typscally recognized once the
transaction is completed and all serices have been rendened,
Additionally, the Corporation may eam a fised fee in merger and
acquisition transatlions to provide a faimess opinion, with the
fees recognized when the opinion is delivered to the client.

Other Revenwe Measuremant and Recognition Policies

The Corporation dd not disclose the value of any open
performance obligations at December 31, 2020, as its
contracts with customers generally have a fed term that is less
than one year, an open term with a cancellation penod that is
less than one year, of provisions that allow the Corporation 1o
recognize revenue at the amount it has the right to imoice.

Eamnings Per Common Share

Earmings per common share (EPS) s computed by dividing net
income allocated to commen sharehclders by the weighted-
averagle common shares outstanding, excluding  urvested
common shares subject to repurchase or cancellation. MNet
income  allocated to common shareholders is net income
adjusted for preferred stock dwidends including dividends
declared, accretion of discounts on prefermed stock including
accelerated accretion when preferred stock is repaid early, and
cumulative dwidends related to the cumment dividend period that
have ot been declared as of period end, less income allocated
to participating securities, Diluted EPS s computed by dividing
income allocated to comman shareholders plus dividends on
dilutive convertible preferred stock and preferred stock that can
be tendered 1o exercise warrants, by the weighled-average
common shares owtstanding plus amounts representing the
dilutive effect of stock options outstanding. restricted siock.
restricted stock units (RSUs), outstanding wamants and the
dilution resulting from the conversion of comvertible prefesmed
stock, if applicable.

Forgign Currency Transiation

Assets, Nabilittes and operations of forelgn branches and
subsidiaries are mecorded based on the functional currancy of
each entity. When the functional currency of & foreign operation
is the local currency, the assets, liabilties and operations ane
translated, for consolidation purposes, from the local currency
to the LLS. dollar réporing cumency a1 penodend rates Tor
assets and labilities and generally at average rates for results
of operations, The resulting undealized gains and losses ane
reported as a compaonent of accumulated OCI, net-oftax. When
the foreign entity’s functional cumency is the U.S, dollar, the
resulting remeasurement gains or lossas on foreign cumency-
denominated asseis or Hebilithes ane included in eamings,

Paycheck Protection Program

The Corporation is participating in the Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP}, which is a loan program that originated from the
CARES het and was subsequently expanded by the Paycheck
Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement Act. The PPP
is designed 1o provide U.5. small businesses with cash-flow
assistance through loans fully guaranteed by the Small
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Business Administration (SBA). If the borower meets certain
criteria and uses the proceeds towards certain  eligible
expenses, the borower's obligation (o repay the loan can be
forgiven up to the full principal amount of the loan and any
accrued imerest. Upan bomower forgiveness, the SBA pays the
Cosporation far the principal and accrued interest owed on the
toan. if the full principal of the loan s not forgiven, the loan will
operate according to the osiginal loan terms with the 100
percent SBA guaranty remaining. As of December 31, 2020, the

Corporation had spproximately 332,000 PPP loans with a
camying value of $22.7 billion. As compensation for originating
the loans, the Corporation receved lender processing fees from
the 5BA, which are capitalized, along with the loan odgination
costs, and will be amorized over the loans’ contractual lives
and recognized as intarast income. Upon forgivenass of a loan
and repayment by the SBA, any unrecognized net capitalized
fees and costs ralated to the loan will be recognized as interest
income in that period.

MOTE 2 Met Interest Income and Noninterest Income

The table below presents the Cormporation's net interest intome and nenintenest income dissgregated by revenue source for 2020,
2019 and 204B. For more information, see Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Principles. For a disaggregation of
noninterest income by business segment and A Qther, Se6¢ Note 23 - Business Segment Infarmation,

[insdars i relacems) 2020 2019 218
Nel intevoat income
Interest beome
Loans and inases 3 Moz 4 43,086 % AgE11
Dobt serurises 8,790 11 .B06 11,724
Federal fumds soid st - o wrgar pgs LU 903 i Bl 3478
Tracng BoCount ASSES 41X 5,196 4,811
(it inlefesl income 2738 8,305 4247
Total intere s Inceens 51585 71,236 &6, 769
Interest eaponse
Depoails 1,043 7.188 4,405
Shot-bsm borrowings o487 7.008 5839
Trackng nccount Habdites T4 1,340 1,358
Long Berm debd 4321 &, 100 4,918
ol interest vpeepe " [FriN g THETT
Wt morest income § #3380 §  aspal §  asans
Nonlflares! ingsma
Fers ond commssions
Card incemo
Interchange fees ™' 5 3958 & 3834 & 3,866
(Hha card ingoma 170 1863 19568
Total card income 5656 5707 5874
Chepos il related fots 5,991 6,588 6,567
Lending-retated fens 1,150 1,088 1,100
Totd garaice chges T.141 7674 T.767
vt 0nd Beokemge sareiias
Assal managenss fess 10,708 10,241 10,189
fees 3,866 3,651 35811
Tatal imeatment and brmkemge senaces 14574 13,502 14,360
Invelmeil Banking fees
Lindenanbing mcome 45508 2598 72
Synahication ters R&E1 1,184 1.347
Frarcial marvicEs 1621 1,460 1,268
Tortad i, Basaing foas T80 3,E4T 5,337
Tolal fees and commissions 38,551 33,018 33,078
Market masing and similar aciivites LS 9,034 008
Tolal nani Income 3 42168 4 42,353 % 42,358

™ Gy imlevehangs fepd wm 39 7 islion, $70 0 BEon sna 0% Bilon fer 090, 2019 and 2008, nespectsnly, Snd s gresaried saf of §5 5 ion, $5.3 silon s §4 0 Silons of mgensey for

i i AP S TTERIS G el B CETLEh OIN SRR COSES B T RAFTE [N
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MOTE 3 Derivatives

Derivative Balances

Derivatives are entered into on behall of customers, for trading
or 10 support risk management activities. Derivatives used in
risk management activitles Include derivatives that may or may
not be designated in qualifying hedge accounting refationships.
Derivatives that are not designated In qualifpng hedge
accounting  relationships  are referred o as  other  risk

Corporation's dervatives and hedging activities, see Note I -
Summary of Significant Accounting Principles. The following
tables present  dervative  instruments  included on  the
Consolidated Balance Sheet in derivative assets and liabilities
a1l December 31, 2020 and 2019, Balances are presented on a
gross basis, prior to the application of counterparty and cash
collateral netting. Total derivative assets and liabilives ane
adjusted on an aggregate basis o take into consideration the
effects of legally enforceable master netling agreements and

management derivatives. For more  information on the have been reduced b'!' cash collateral received or paid.
December 31, 2030
dirnss Dartvniive Assels Gress Derivalive LiabSties
Teading and Traefing and
Other Rk Qualitying Othed Rtk Duaallfying
Conrasly  Manspement  Azeousting Managemant  Accountieg
IBostars i tnibeni] Motignal M Dervatives Hedges Total Deshvaties Hedges Tatsl
Intereat rate coniencts.
Swajrs § 132428 § 1599 % 0 § 08 % a3 § Ly 3 2100
Futures and forwards 323r32 35 (15§ a6 a6 - 36
Writien optins 15305 - - — 45 - 405
Purchased options 15458 463 - 453 — - -
Foreign eschange controcts
Swajh LATER i 0.3 T4 w7 (1] 403
Spal. futures and forwards ETLIOLT B34 - 534 545 e G5O
Writhen opline 2898 — _ —_ 4.8 —_ 4B
Purchadad oglians Pk ] 50 — 50 —_ - -
Equity contracts.
Swapa T 133 - 133 145 — 145
Futures and Torwists 102 [k | - Lilk ] 14 -_ L
Wrilen options 5551 - — - 48.8 — 488
Furchadad optinng 5413 528 _ 52,6 —_ — —
Commadity conbrocty
Swaps 364 i9 - ig9 44 _ 44
Futures and forwards 636 20 - 20 Lo — L0
Writlan cgfiony 248 — — — L4 — 14
Purchased options 4.7 i5 —_ 156 = - =
Crodit darbvatives '
Purchased cradt dermaties:
Credit defaull swnps 321r7 23 —_ a3 44 —_ 44
Tas| Ui Swigd,/ opliand. 16 [-F] - a2 L0 —_ Lo
Wrillen cred® dervaives)
Crpdit defaull swaps LS 4.4 -— 44 19 —_ i3
Tarlal relurm pwign,/ optisnd LG L] - a4 i —_ ]
Gross derrabive asssets/Babiites ] 4233 8§ 113 & 4348 & 4316 & 24 § 434.0
Less: Legaily erfceneatie master netling agreements (344.9) [344.9)
Loss: Canh collniernl monsd/ 143,81 ]l
Toinl derkvailve ssseis/linbites 5 4732 L] 465
T Hepressnts v tols pomct nononal smoun of dervaie saseis pad Habivtes puisancing.
Ui res) gerwalies waed (Rabisty] o noSoral amon of aTilien et o mhich 1 G L™ credi Wil il Lngarying nienroed raes e 52,7

b il §360.8 Dl 0 Dcainbees 31, 2000
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December 31. 2008

Groks Dadtaniive ASials Grnas Dortvache Lisbilitng
Trading and Tracing and
Oher Hisk Taslifying (theer Rink Qualtying
Goniracty  Masagermert  Accounting Maragement  Accounting
IDwiars n Bedone; Mational ! Distivates Hedges Tetal Crereninan tarcin Totsl
Inbesest mbe contenets
Swaps § 150744 § 1820 § a7 § .t % 185 3§ D4 % 1689
Fulures and forwards a2Tel 1.0 — 1.0 1.0 -— 1.0
Wrrtten options 1,76F.T - - = ew - e AL}
Purchasad options 16736 374 - ar4 — i Ex
Forelgn exchangs controcts
Swaps 1,657.7 0.3 o7 arao LI o 326
Spol. Wutsfes anil Rewands ATy 359 o1 380 m.r B3 FLo
Wrilen Sptions T4 - - - A8 - im
Purchased options PEEG 4.0 - 440 - - -
Equity contracts
Swaps LT 6.5 - .5 a1 - g1
Futunes and forwasds 1251 o3 — 03 i | - 11
Wrinen options TILL - _ - MHa _ 3.6
Purchased options GIE G 42.4 — a4ra —_ — -_—
Commadity contracts
Swaps arm 21 1 i o a4
Futures snd forwards L1 L7 — 1.7 04 — 0.4
Writlen egions 333 — — — 1.4 - 1.4
Purchased options re 1.4 - 1.4 — — -
Ceedn demvatives V'
Purchagad credt dorhalias:
Corprit dedwull saaps kriE ar - - 5.8 —_ 58
Total redum swags,’ opbons BE6 0.4 = 0.4 1.3 = 1.3
WriTien credt deratves:
Crpoi cedmull smaps 3002 B4 —_ G4 2.0 - 20
Toial netuims swaga, optons B86.2 0.8 - [T} 0.4 - o4
Crons Svmilive usets iabilties B - TE I 105 § 48 § 3355 § 16 § 3304
Less: Legally erforoestis masies retling ajieements {27045 (270
Less: Cash Collatersl recesed/ pad [33.9) |28.5]
~ Total derivathe assets/ liabiities 3 a5 E =)
N Hgprewsnts S0 bl oot nobonal smond of ansarty pred -3
B el cerwitier ah et {Balekly | afa cofong drtemail &F wriTlen el IoF which the Do Farig] Lreckl 4 with aletfnal Wnddertig rebeerieed ot weie B8R

sl gl §3HML T hikon at December 171, 7005

Offsetting of Derivatives
The Corporation enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Aggociation, Ing, (ISDA) master netting agreements or similar
agreemeants with substantially all of the Corporation’s derivative
counterparties, Where legally enforceable, these master netting
agreements give the Corporation, i the event of defaull by the
counterparty, the right to liquidate securitbes held as collateral
and 1o offsel receivables and payables with the same
counderparty. For purposes of the Consolidated Balance Sheet,
i Corporation offsets denvalive assels and Labilities and
cash collateral held with the same counterparty where it has
such a legally enforceable master Netting agreement.

The following table presents derivative instruments included
in derivative assets and labilities on the Consefidated Balance

Sheet at December 31, 2020 and 2019 by primary risk (e.g.,
interast rate risk) and the platform, whene applicable, on which
these derivatives are transacted. Balances are presentad on a
gross basis, prior to the application of counterparty and cash
collateral metting. Total gross derivative assets and liabdlities
are adiusied on an aggregate basis to take into consideration
the effects of legally enforceable master netting agredments
which include reducing the balance for counterparty netting and
cash collateral received or paid,

For maore information on offsetting of securities financing
agreements, see Note 10 - Federal Funds Sald or Purchased,
LSecurities Flnancing Agreements, Shortterm Borrowings and
Restricted Cash,
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ALM and Risk Management Derivatives

The Corporation’s ALM and risk management activities inclede
the use of derivatives to mitigate nsk to the Corporatihon
including derivatives designated in qualifying hedge accounting
relationships and derivatives used in other risk management
activities. Interest rate, foreign exchange, equity, commodity
and credit contracts are utilized in the Corporation’s ALM and
righ management activities,

The Corporation maintains an owverall interest rate risk
management sirategy that incorporates the use of interest rate
contracts, which are generally nonleveraged genenc interest
rate and bagis swaps, options, futures and forwards, to
minimize significant fluctuations in eamings caused by interest
rate volatility. The Corporation’s goal is to manage interest rate
sensitivity and volatility so that movements in interest rates do
not significantly adversely affect eamings or capital, As a result
of interest rate fuctuations, hedged fixed-ate assels and
liabilities appreciate or depreciate in fair value. Gains or losses
on the dermative instruments that are linked to the hedged
fined-rate assets and llabilities are expected to substantially
offset this unrealized appreciation or depreciation.

Market risk, including interest rate risk, can be substantial in
the mortgage business, Market risk in the morigage busingss is
the risk that values of morgage assets or revenues will be
adversely affected by changes in market conditions such as
interast rate movements. To mitigate the interest rate risk in
mangage banking production income, the Corporation utilizes

113 Bank of Amefica

forward loan sale commitments and other  dermvative
Imstruments, including purchased options, and certaln deot
securities. The Corporation alse utilizes dervalives such as
interast rale options, interest rate swaps, forward settlement
contracts and euradollar futures to hedge cerdain markel risks
of MSR=.

The Corporation uses foreign exchange contracts to manage
the foreign exchange rnsk associated with certain foreign
currency-denominated assets and labilities, as well as the
Corporation's invesiments in nondl.5. subsidianies. Exposure to
less on these confracis will increase or decrease over their
respective  lives as cumency exchange and interest rates
fluctuate,

The Corporation purchases credit derivatives to manage
credit risk releted to cerain funded and unfunded credit
exposures. Credit dervatives include credit defaull swaps
(COS), total retum swaps and swaptions, These dervatives are
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair value with
changes in fair value recorded in other income,

Derivatives Designated as Accounting Hedges

The Corporation uses vanous types of interest rate and foreign
exchange dervative contracts 1o protect against changes in the
fair value of its assets and liabilites dwe to fluctuations in
imterest rates and exchange rates (fal value hedges). The
Corporation also uses these types of contracts to protect
against changes in the cash flows of its assets and liakklites,
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and other forecasted transactions (cash flow hedges). The the U.5. dollar using forward exchange contracts and cross
Corporation hedges its net investment in consolidated non-U.5.  currency basis swaps, and by issuing foreign curmmency-
operations determined 1o have functional currencies othes than  denominated debt (net investment hedges).

Fair Value Hadges
The following table summarnzes information related to fair value hedges for 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Gains and Losses on Derivatives Designated as Fair Value Hedges

Desrtvative Hedged Hom
ticars b rrifiorm) 2020 2018 2ma 2020 . 018 . a8
Inbarest rain rak on agem debi ¢ F 7091 35 8113 % [1.538) % (1320, § B30 % 1429
Inberosd rate and fomign curmency fak on long-tenm den 83 119 (1.187) (TE3y 1101) 1078
Intwrest rats rak on sunfabie-lorsnke securites ™ = a4 1o (52 49 Sl 80
Total 3 TA¥ 3 6130 3 717§ (1054 § 8413 3§ 2.558

' mneunis s rpoeded in pieeesk pugenae m e Coraokisied Siemend af neome
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g saTear activites. wnd 58 miiom, B1A mison and BT milon n socumutsied OC1, reapectively. Line Gem iosais o 0 e Consoidsted Staiemem of moome and on Te
Lo tatee annon St
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The table below summarizes the camying value of hedged assets and liabilities that are designated and gualifying in fair value
hedging relationships along with the cumulative amount of Fair vakee hedging adjustments ingluded in the camying value that have
been recorded in the current hedging relationships. These fair value hedging adjustments are open basis adjustments that are not
sulject 1o amorization a3 long as the hed@ing relationship remains designated.

Designated Fair Value Hedged Assets (Llabilities)

Cumulatie Cumsative
Fair Varkue Fatir Valus
Carrying Valee Adjustments ' Carrying Value Adjusmants '

{estars bn raiores| Decemisr 31 2020 December 31, 2019
Langnim datit ™ g [150.556] § [Ra10) % 1162.289] § (8.585]
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Cash Flow and Net Investment Hedges
The following table summarizes certain information related to
cash flow hedges and net investment hedges for 2020, 2019

Ird wetn. thasus Rawigng ABtCavRILDA W Tt SiEnAoani

reclassified into eamnings in the next 12 months, These net
gains reclassified into eamings are expected to  primarily
increase net interest income related to the respective hedged

and 2018. Of the $426 million aftertax net galn (3568 million
pretax] on dervatives in accumulated OCI at December 31,
2020, gains of $1%0 million aftertax ($254 million pretax)
related to both open and terminated hedges are expected 1o be

items, For terminated cash flow hedges, the time period over
which the majority of the forecasted transactions are hedged is
approcimately 3 vears, with & maximum leagth of Ume for
certain forecasted transactions of 16 years.

Gains and Losses on Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow and Net Investment Hedges

Gains {Lossas} in Incomo

Mesumstated OC] on Darivatives Reclaeified fram Asoumulated OC1
iDodiars. in milikors, amounts peatax) o0 pait] il ] 2020 2018 poil ]
Camh Maw Redges
Inbesuel rale rish on wntiabietole assets "' 5 T3 5 671 & 1581 % M % (lo4) % [185)
Price ritk on lomecasiod MBS purchases "' 4i = = 6 = =
Price risk en cerain compensation plans 85 4 4 12 iz 7

Total ) 1o88 & e 1155] # u % I ¥ [138)
Ml Inveslmes hedges

Fbrlwlld‘ll-l'qlﬂlhu' 5 i3 5 =2 5 BB 3 4 5 366 § 411
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™ amant frm = g seomn ) e Coractdaled Stateme of Income Aot aachuted hom eflecveness Waing and mcogrieed m marke| mesag

S S SCURALNS i G (0asn) of 3110 mison, B154 milon snd $87 melen in 2020, 7010 and 2018, ot
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Other Risk Management Derivatives

Other risk management denvatives are used by the Conporation
to reduce cerain rsk exposures by economically hedging
various assels and labilities, The following table presents gaing
{losses) on these derivatives for 2020, 2019 and 2018. These
gains (losses) are largely offset by the income or espense
recorded on the hedged item.

Gains and Losses on Other Risk Management Deratives

[Ixrtars mm B 3020 2015 18
Intermet rmin risk on mesignge potvites Y 8 448 8 315 8 (107)
Credit risk om boans (0] |58y ]
Interesl rate and foreign oormency rsk on

ALM acthities ™ 2T 1112 3,278
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Transfers of Financial Assets with Risk Retained
through Derivatives

The Corporation enters into certain transactions involing the
transfer of financial assels thatl are accounled for as sales
where substantially all of the economic esposure to the
trangferred financial 85518 is retained through denvatives (2.,
interast rate and/or cradit), but the Corporation does not retain
contrgd over the assels transferred, At both December 31, 2020
and 20189, the Corporation had transferred $5.2 billion of non-
U.5. government-gueranteed modigagebacked securilies to a
third-party trust and retained economic exposure to the
transferred assets through derivative confracts. In connection
with these transfers, the Corporation received gross cash
proceeds of $5.2 billion as of bath transfer dates. At December
31, 2020 and 2019, the fair value of the transferred securities
was 855 billion and $5.3 billion.

Sales and Trading Revenue

The Corporation enters into trading derivatives to facilitate client
trangactions and 1 manage risk exposures arlsing from trading
account assets and liabilities. it is the Comporation's policy to
include these demalive instruments in its trading activities,
which include derivatives and non-derivative cash instruments.
The resulting risk from these derivatives s managed on a
portfolio basis as part of the Corporation’'s Giobal Markets
pusiness segment, The related sales and Wading revesus
generated within Globa! Markets is recorded in various income
statement line items, including market making and simitar
activities and net interest income as well as other revenoe
categones,

Sales and trading revenue incledes changes in the fair value
and realized gains and losses on the sales of trading and other
assets, net  interesl income, and fees prmarily  from
commissions on equity secunties. Revenue is generated by the
difference in the client price for an instrumant and the price ot
which the trading desk can execute the trade in the dealer
markel, For equily securities, commissions related 1o purchases
and sales are recorded in the “Other” column in the Sales and
Trading Revenue tabde. Changes in the fair value of these
securities are included in market making and similar activities.
For debt securities, mevenue, with the exception af inlemest
associated with the debt securities, is typically included in

115 Bank of Amalica

market making and similar activies, Unlike commissions for
equity securities, the nitial revenue related to brokerdealer
senvices for debt secunties s typically incleded in the pricing of
the instrument rather than being chasged through separate fee
arrangenents, Therefore, this revenue s recorded In market
making and similar activities as part of the initial mark to fair
valug, For derivatives, the majority of revenue s included in
market making and similar activities, In ransactions where the
Corporation acts &s agent, which inclede eschangetraded
fulures and oplions, fees ane recorded in other incame.

The following table, which includes both derivatives and non-
derivative cash instruments, identifies the amounts in the
respective income statement line items attributable to the
Corporation's &ales and trading revenue in Global Markels,
categorized by peimary risk, for 2020, 2019 and 2018. This
table includes debit valustion adpstment (DVA) and funding
valuation adjustment (FWA} gains (losses). Global Markets
results in Note 23 - Business Segment Information are
presented on a8 fully taxable-equivalent (FTE) basis. The table
below 5 not presented on an FTE Bagis.

Sales and Trading Revenue
Market
making Met
and simiar Imenest
aeiivizies Incaene ey Total
|Dedlars o milsar | 200 S
Interest rate nak § 2241 § 2400 § 231 & 4842
FOrmign uChangs ris 1482 120} 3 1,465
Enuity risk Fa56 T LAOL 5.380
Condit rish 81 1638 328 2TTE
Diher risk 306 & ] IEE
e i 138 e
T BAGD 5 2045 % 2407 5 14831
— — mlg .......
Interest mia sk § 1000 § 1817 § 113 4 2,530
Ftiigr fnchunge itk 1.x86 62 a7 1.407
ity risk 31543 16i34) 166G 4,498
Crodit rish 1,084, 1.807 540 3417
Char Hsk 20 7o 53 243
Toinl sabes and trading
YL $ TOE2 § 3d32 § 31§ 13,4985
o] o
Inlerest rate nak H B0 5 1851 § ME 2708
Foreign eschsngs risk 1,804 n 22 1,B47
Enuity risk 3B70 [BST) 1643 4,856
Crodit riahs 1.004 1558 il 3,620
Dhhar nisk 40 187 43 86
e p——r i - I
TR 72586 5 3108 §  2.558% § 13935
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inchecien inpiimend Snd beoketige services ovorus of §1.9 Biloe, $1.7 bason and §1.7
il i 200, 2019 aned JOLA, respectively,

Credit Derivatives

The Corporation enters (nlo credit dervatives primarly to
facilitate client trapsactions and to manage credit risk
exposures. Credit derivatives derive wvalue based on an
underlying thindparty referenced obligation or a portfolio of
referenced obligations and generlly require the Corporation, as
the seller of cradit protection, o make payments to & buyer
upon the occurrence of a predefined credit event. Such credit
events generally include bankruptcy of the referenced credd
entity and fallure to pay under the obligation, as well as
aceeleration of indebtedness and payment repudsation or
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moratorium. For credit derivatives based on a portfolio of
referenced credits or credit indices, the Corporation may not be
required to make payment until 8 specified amount of loss has
occurred and/or may only be required to make payment up to a
apecifed amount,

Credit derivatives are classified as irvestment and non-
investment grade based on the credit quality of the underkying
referenced obligation. The Corporation considers ratings of BEB-

or higher as investment grade, Nomdinvestment grade includes
non-rated  credit  derivative instruments. The Corporation
discloses internal categorizations of imesiment grade and non-
investmant grade consistent with how risk is managed for these
Imatruments.

Credit derivative instruments whera the Corporation is the
seller of credit protection and thelr expiration a1 December 31,
2020 and 2019 are summarized in the Tollowing table.

Credit Dervative Instrumaents
Less than Ome 10 Thiee 1o e Five
O Vet Thers Years Fivn Yeutrs Vb Totsl
Cecomber 1. 0
|Ddlars in mibons) Carying Vishm
Eredn defaiifl panps:
IrreEatmant grade L} - 3 18 EL Lo & 1]
Monnvaatrmarn grissa ] 233 ELT) LUER 1,786
o Yetal EL] 234 AW 1357 Lu16
Tkl mtum swarm, optons:
Iremiimant grade e & - —_ ™
Mo ni presde M5 - - 345
Tetal I a - - aro
Talidl ernelt et ] M 8 238 % ] 1357 & FELTY
Credf reieted naios:
Imetsimens graoe £ — 3 S—_ 1 — 3 12 8 3 5]
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Tolal credit-ralster notes £ L | R I T I T 1519 % 1508
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Credn aefaull swam
Imeestmen grade 5 ERATE 8 TETIL & BT21E & 16X 8 213245
Mor-nvistman! grace AN 28,710 maTe 3 BEZ64
Tatal 47138 104,501 133106 THATE 301500
Total intum pwogsfoplions:
liretrstimen grade 361 1081 " = A3 brirdi
Morcnvesimant grade 36128 364 a7 B 36624
retai &1 om 143 04 E o673
Tatinl ereit dorismth ] 114237 8 105926  § 123300 & POETE 8 ]
Dcambiar X1 2000
Camying Yok
Credd defaull swaim:
Ineestment grade 1 - L 60§ 0§ by
_hennmptmant pas b Eur) S0k 008 1731
Taskal 70 287 621 87 1960
Tatal intim pwaps/ optionm!
Imeesimens giade 35 - - 35
Pygr-myneiTan graca pLEY — — — bl
Total L] = === = ETi
Tokal credt derlsstves 5 g % P! [T ] ¥z % 233
Credi relol 0 ralon.
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Mor-ruv pt=tar grade & El i 1135 1.134
Tatal eredit-relsted nites 5 [ I 3 T 8§ 1764 § LITT
Maxssum Payoed; Notgna!
Credi defauh swaps.
Imvmstment grade 5 55,027 8 BrAE 3 LA § iT.7o8 3 Ju2 83
ck e e gt il 2L T 13,337 il
Takal T4 .70 54,359 100,938 30,045 30027148
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Tatal 85,155 B5T 166 135 BB 154
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The notional amownt represents the maximum amount
payable by the Corporation for most credit dervatives. However,
the Corporation doas nol monitor its exposure to credit
derivatives based solely on the notional amount because this
maasure does nol take nto consideration the probability of
ocourrence. As such, the notional amount is not a reliable
indicator of the Corporation’™s e@xposurg to these contracls.
Instead, a risk framework is used to define risk tolerances and
establish limits so that cerain credit riskrelated losses ocour

within acceptable, predefined limits,

Creditrelated notes in the tabde above include investments
in securities isswed by CDO, collataralized loan abligation (CLO)
and creditlinked note vehicles. These instruments are primarily
classified as trading securities. The carmang valuge of these
imstruments equals the Corporation’s maximum exposure to
loss, Thir Corporation is not obligated 1o make any payments 1o
the entities under the teamms of the securities owned,
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Credit-related Contingent Features and Collateral

The Corporalion execules the majonty of its defvative contracts
in the OTC market with large, intemational financial institutions,
ncluding broker-dealers and, to a lesser degree, with a vanety
of nonfinancial companies. A significant majosty of the
derivalive transactions are executed on a dally margin basia.
Therefore, events such as a credit rating downgrade (depending
on the ultimate rating level) or a breach of credit covenants
would typically require an increase in the amount of collateral
reqguirad of the counterpay, where applicable, and/or allow the
Corporation to take additional protactive measures such as
early termination of all trades, Further, as previously discussed
on page 112, the Corporation enters into legally enforceable
masier netting agreements that reduce risk by pemmitting
closgout and netting of ransactions with the same counterpay
upon the occumence of certain events.

Certain of the Corporation's dervative contracts contain
credit nskrelated contingent features, primanly in the form of
15DA  master netting  agreements  and  credit  suppont
documentation that enhance the creditworthiness of these
mnstruments compared 1o other obligations of the respective
courderparty with whom the Corporation has transacted. These
contngent features may be for the banefit of the Corporation as
well as s counlerparties with respect to changes in the
Corporation's creditworthiness and the mark-to-market exposure
under the derhative transactions. Al December 31, 2020 and
2019, the Corporation held cash and securities collateral of
$26.5 billion and $84.3 billion and posted cash and securities
collateral of $88.6 billion and $69.1 bitlion in the nommal course
of business under dedvative agreements, excluding cross
product margining agreemenis where clients are permitted to
mangin on a net basis for both derivative and secured financing
arangements.

In conmection with certain OTC deratve contracts and other
trading agreements, the Corporation can be required to provide
acditienal collateral or to terminate ransactions with cenain
counterparties in the event of a downgrade of the senior debt
ratings of the Corporation of certain subsidiaries, The amount of
additional collateral required depends on the contract and is
wvaually & fired incremental amount and/or the market value of
he exposune,

At December 31, 2020, the amount of collateral, calculated
based on the terms of the contracts, that the Corporation and
certain subsidiaries could be required to post to counterparies
but had not yet posted 1o counterparties was $2.6 billion,
including $1.2 billion for Bank of America, National Association
{BANAJ,

Some counterparties are cumently able to unilaterally
terminate certain contracts, of the Corporalion of cerlain
subsidiaries may be required 1o take other action such as find a
suitable replacement or oblasn a guaranies, Al December 31,
2020 and 2019, the liability recorded for these derivative
contracts was not significant.

The following table presents the amount of additional
collateral that would have been contractually required by
derivalive contracts and other trading agreemants at
December 31, 2020 If the rating agencies had downgraded their
longtarm senior debt ratings for the Corporation or certain
subsidiaries by one Incrememtal notch and by an additional
second incremental notch.,

117 Bank of Amalica

Additional Collateral Required to be Posted Upon
Downgrade at December 31, 2020

Bae Setend
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Bt o Amrscan Coipeiration i EI 735
sk of America, MA. and subsidiaries " 1 510
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The following table presents the dervative labilities that
would be subject to unilateral termination by counterparties and
the amounts of collateral that would have been contractually
reguired at December 31, 2020 if the longterm senior delbt
ratings for the Corporation or cerain subsidiaries had been
lower by one incremental notch and by an additional second
mcremantal noteh.

Derivative Liabilities Subject to Unitateral Termination
Upon Downgrade at December 31, 2020

one Second
Inceemantasl Incramental
| Dol i P mabch Lo ida]
Dernvatie listlities § 45 5 1035
Colateral postod 73 544

Valuation Adjustments on Derivatives

The Corporation records eredi risk valuation adjustments on
derivatives in order to properly reflect the credit quality of the
counterparties and s own credit quality. The Corporation
calculates valuation adjustments on dernvatives based on a
modeled expected exposune that incorporates current market
risk factors. The exposure also takes into consideration credit
mitggants such as enforceable masier netling agreements and
collateral. CD5 spread data (s used to estimate the default
probabilities and severties that are applied 1o the exposures,
Where no observable credit default data is available for
counterparties, the wrmmﬁon uses proxies and other markel
data to estimate default probabilities and severity.

The table below presents credit valeation adpustment (CWAJ,
DWA and PYA gains {losses] on dervatives (excluding the effect
of any related hedge actiities), which are recorded In market
making and similar activities, for 2020, 2019 and 2018. CVA
gains reduce the cumulative CVA thereby increasing the
derivative assets balance. DVA gains increase the cumulative
DVA thereby decreasing the derivative liabilities balance. CVA
and DVA losses have the opposite impact. FvA gains retated to
derivative assets reduce the cumalative FVA thereby increasing
the dermatve assels balance, PYA gains related 1o dermvative
liabilities increase the cumaulative FVA thereby decreasing the
derivatve liabilites balance. FVA losses have the opposie
impact.

Valuation Adjustments Gains (Losses) on Derivatives '

(D iy SN | 2020 019 2018

Derivatve nesets [CVA] & 118} & T2 % 7T
Owrmvadiven nasois/ labidiies (FVA) [RITY ()] (RE-3]
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NOTE 4 Securities

The tabde below presents the amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of AFS debt securities, other debl

securities carrled at fair value and HTM debt securithes at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Debt Securities
e Oroks
Arnartireid Unreallzed Unrealized Fadr
(Tt Gains Lodes Vol
TDellyrs b il Dpcembar 34, 2030
Avnilablefor-aale dobl securisies
Morigage-bocked secunties:
Agnney 4 0518 % 23T0 % (A % BLEd
Agency-colistraiized mongage obigations 8112 161 % B260
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Totsl rortgnge backed secuntios B0, 550 3.E83 g1 B B0S
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AL December 31, 2020, the accurmulated netl unnealized gain
on AFS debt securities, excluding the amount related to debt
securities previgusly transferred 1o hebd 1o matunty, included in
accumulated OCI was $4.7 billion, net of the related income tax
expense of $1.6 billion, The Corporation had nanperorming AFS
debt securities of $20 millien and $9 million at December 31,
2020 and 2019,

Effective fanuary 1, 2020, the Corporation adopted the new
accounting standard for credit losses that requires evaluation of
AFS and HTM debt securities for any expected losses with
recognition of an allowance for credit losses, when applicable.
For mare information, see Note 1 - Summary of Significant
Accounting Principles. At December 31, 2020, the Corporation
had $200.0 billien in AFS debt securities, which wong primarily

.5, agency and U.5. Treasury Securities thal have a pero credil
loss assumption. For the remaining $34.5 billion in AFS debt
secunties, the amount of ECL was ingignificant. Substantially all
of the Corporation’s HTM debt securities are U.5. agency and
.5, Treasury securities and have a zere credit loss assumption,

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation held
equity securities a1 an aggregate fair value of 3769 million and
$891 million and other equity securities, as valued under the
measurement alternative, at a camyng value of $240 milllon
and 5183 million, bath of which are included in other assets, At
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation also held
meoney markel imvestments at a fair value of $1.6 billion and
$1.0 billion, which are included in time deposits placed and
othar short-term invesimants,
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The gross realized gains and losses on sales of AFS debl securities for 2020, 2019 and 2018 are presented in the table balow,

Gains and Losses on Sales of AFS Debt Securities

! y ! mi‘ — e e
o gaing ] 423 % 336 % 169
_Gross losses I 1118 (18]

Mot gains an sales of AFS dela secuiities 3 411 § T s 54
_Inecsemi s eapanie stirBtntie 1o realied net ghiss on sskes of AFS dali seturifiss 3 i § 54§ ar

The table below presents the fair valug and the associated gross unrealized losses on AFS debt secunties and whether these
sacunties have had gross unrealized losses for less than 12 months or for 12 months or longer at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Total AFS Debt Securities in a Continuous Unrealized Loss Position

Lass (B Twabon Months Torelve Maaths of Longer Tetal
Gres Greds Groma
Fair Unrealied Falr Unrealized Falr Unrealized
Wil Lodsss Walig Loases Walue Liadhéd
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Morgage-Dacked SeCunties:
Agengy 2841 % [H T 2 % — % 2843 fh]
Agencyc morigage obig 18T 2 34 [EEN] (15 13
Commaercis 568 (4} 9 = 575 14
Non-agency resadentisl A4z 9} i 18] 398 {17
Totsd mortgagebacked securties 3935 (1241 431 {15} 4387 {73l
L5, Treasury And agancy seiuriss B2 L1 ELE] 4 B.TRO [FE 1]
o5, securties 1861 1L1] 135 12y 1396 17
Othes bamnble pecurities, subsiantially all assolbacked sacurities 576 12 396 41 a2 5]
Tatal tnaniie secuitios 14655 (1] 1480 {28 16115 (09
Tam-gspmpt securflies 4108 (1 AT 3 4,726 132)
Tolal AFS dobt securiths In o continuous
lized loss poaltion 1mTEY 8 (a8 200 % 3 % 30840 (134
Decambar 31, 2049
Continusnly unresiized loss-pashionsd AFS debt securities
P ARe-tC ke M2ty
Agency 17041 % (41} % 17238 & (142 % 34479 |183)
Agoncycol " Al 255 1} q25 (33| 1,180 (]
Cammaist 2.180 221 442 13 2622 [25)
Har-agency residentisl 12 18} 2 13 14 L]
Total rarlgnpe b ke Lelurties 20,108 (70} 18,8627 1171 3,875 241)
U5, Treaury and agency secumiog 12,838 (71} 18,866 1144 3,702 (185
Monll. 5. securdies B51 - Bay 12 1,608 12
Otreter (anabis Serunes, subsinntally ol nssetbacked sacurities 238 — ) — 1,160 —
Totad tmsabie secuttlios TR FE] 1141} 38,552 1297 TAA75 |48
'I'l.l.n:rru:t secunlies ) o & 285 -1 180 11 4476 5]
o eTap g .
unrenlized loss position 309§ (148} § IMFaz 0§ |288; § 77A51 444
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The remaining contractual maturity distribution and vields of the Corporation’s debl securities carried at fair value and HTM detnt
securities at December 31, 2020 are summarized in the table below. Actual duration and yields may differ as prepayments on the
loans underlying the mongages or other ABS are passed through to the Corparation,

Maturities of Debt Securities Carried at Fair Value and Held-te-maturity Debt Securities

Dre bn ine Duss afir One Yasr D after Frus Vasm Dus sl
Wit o L Earoagh fve Yean roagh Tan Yoo Tan Year Feta
A I T dmowss Vel Amowd el Ameust  Twid't  Amownt el Ameust Vied T
A el G481 0 B B S e B S vis
B e ] e ar
Agurecy 8 — —% B T CT L T A% FBOMNS 1N § R5LE 130 %
gy CONIDATE] A O = = . . M 257 5= 25 5110 b
Commeris ] 104 8668 353 LR T T3 1,078 784 1% 483 343
e ey sevicortia = = Il — 1 - T ) 1,801 6wt
T o mangape backnd secuties 6 LY R ¥ Y 253 .79 T34 07,240 340 BL7E4 323
115 Tranaisy arc ageicy Sdcurtiis 16,530 30 30,533 185 4885 BT B A 114950 167
MRS, serties 2203 o arm 188 Al 149 Eh - 17w 24801 paz
Cofopr i SSCLETHE, SalrklTlaly @ el haceed
ecuntias ol LI 133 Z4B 0565 220 5 160 76 2o
[T r——— 33807 AL 3mATL 199 B340 0T 6,050 e prasal 180
1un-|p|—:mu— e OHT n:ual 1.7F At 160 :l.hi‘_ 141 1BALT 1.8
Tt BuTines coar of det seoaities canied o
Fair aiem B 34470 063 & 60 FE N ] omy & TATTT 1M IAEE LTT
Arrvsntived cost of HTM det L ') itE W 273 & 1.1 188 $AZL0E 240 B4183T0 338
[l sarurdios. corried =l air veiue
B e Bac b e i
hgency R ¥ 7 56l * nLTEL § 61840
AGETE Y TR AU L AT = aa 4 5258 & 260
Commarcial i 1oy LEL 1,180 TLEDS
Ny gy sl - - T 1178 1783
Torlas e e band wecurtleny 0 7,08 8334 [T #5307
L Trmamiary et agency secoriion 10,080 I0,HT2 raan 1 116472
MRS, senTies 23187 prr Az 5 a3
oy Lanibins iestord brn, dalriLinilaniy ol i B ey
it 102 1,363 EI) £ 2714
Tl Lsnatiee saxrrion. ETE ) AL, T 70,7k TRIT
Tas evnpt pevurtien a7a BosL 4500 2.7 67T
[P ————— —— 8 34848 () s BTz % TaBE4 348,801
Fais vaiuss of HTM Gt necursion * 3 W 3 17039 S430.058 344180

" mmﬂummm B oorstand eflective minws) rale rver D Comiracissl We of soo® sscusly. The sveragn yield ootasden. e conimactl moenon and The
0 e ot of retaced hedgng Sarwters
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NOTE 5 Outstanding Loans and Leases and Allowance for Credit Losses
The following tables present tolal outstanding boans and leases and an aging analysis for the Consumer Real Estate, Credit Card
and Other Consumer, and Commercial portfolio segments, by class of financing recelvables, at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Loans
Totad Gurenl  Actounted
‘B0 Darys of Toinl Past  orless Than  for Under the
1050 Days  GO-HD Doays More Doue 30 Days. 30 Doy Fadr Yalun Total
PastDue " Past Due ™ Past Due ™ or Mere Prast Dus Optian Outstandings
[ieskars o rabssen  December 31 2020
Cormumar mal sstaln
Cione poniaso
Resadentisl margags & L1157 3 1756 S TEE § 2118 8 3155 8 5273
Hama seasty 124 &1 80 56 20872 20,338
MNongen portiolia
Residant sl manigage 73 132 13 1,308 6,974 8,283
Homa sguity 2 a7 Ta 121 A REZ 3083
Ceodh card and ather consumses
Credit cord 445 341 903 1688 77,019 78,708
Dhreet/ indineet consumor 0 a7 n LR R 1050 1363
CHfeesr DOMSATHS - -_— -_— _— 124 124
Total consumer 2338 T8I 2.984 6,005 422,056 428,061
Consumer loans sccourind for under the far wmiue
opbon m 5 T35 735
Total o2 foans and leases. 2738 783 2884 6,00h 422,064 i3 Az0 756
Cavnmercial
LLS. commarcial BEL 214 612 1287 JET A4L 288,778
Mon5. commeirsal 81 44 11 118 0,344 80,480
Commercial real estate 128 113 226 48T 59,897 50,354
Commarcial ass inancing Bh 0 &7 1E3 16035 AT.FER
W5, smail business commercal ™ B4 56 123 263 36,206 36,459
Tanal commmncisl =] a47 oz 2296 ABOHZE 423,119
Commarcial lasnk steounied for urded the lnil vaim
cul G046 5,046
Total il lonns ard ases 2o a4T il 2,296 AD0823 5945 439,055
. Tenal lanns and beases 3 3358 3 133 % 3913 9 8301 JRLIATY 3 681 8 WaT.BAL
P, Lage i 034 % LEE R 043 % OLED % BEFD % 072 % L0650 &

m Conaumar mal eetali iars 3059 degn pasf Sus inchaten fufhinmuned loans of $2237% milkon snd roageriomng ene of 3500 milon. Coraurses sl eilats en (-0 Sapy fa] dus mckodes

Vally irmiat ) bt of §103 sslion @nd

s ol 95 mallion. Conumer ssal e5taie 0ans 50 days of Mote el due inchedes fullirmored lans of BTE2 milhon. Cofmamed mal

stals ioans ument o bess than ) day st den inchides: BL.2 bilion and mmumm mmvww-:m For intarmation on e Comonmion's intieest

i Eirual Ereoy e

Alirhan fof iadn

Fuliled 1 U pafalerras, s Note 1 -

= Woaal putsuadngs pemiaiy ey SUM B IPECiaiTy lending e and eeses of §40.4 bdleon, 1.5, mmmﬂﬂi:mmmui Conmae i of $3.0 pilan
= Consumar loans aonguning for Lier (T Teir valon pEton inchudes resicentisl mocgage loans of §798 malion and home sguy ans of $47 milon, Commenial kens oyt lor unden e
U wiken gl inchtes LS. corneniel s of 820 Slns st s S, commrmiel ks of $30 b, Fif s isfeeneion, e Male 20 - Fair Ve Seaseremernts and Aok 31 - far

Ve Clprion

R

Inchudns 11 Kaarm.

Toksi cotsasrdiings inchudes LS. commorc mal ssints: oans of $57 7 bilion snd nondl S, commesoul sl st loans of $3.3 bion,

Totsl Oeistandings inchades ioaes and ieases Diedged a5 colstersl of $15.5 bion. The Coporstion sig pedgen S163.1 Dlson of s with no selaied Duisiandng DOMMngs ie s

et bonowng capacity mith e Pl Bessrs (Link snd Faderal Moma Loan flank

121 Bank of Amanica

570/648



EDINETOOOO
OdoOOooOo0O000000o00o0o0ooo0oooooooo0000000o0oonognonoOond(Eeoes770)
Oooooooa

Total Loans
Tatal Past Currert of Accountsd
S0 Dy or D 30 Less Than or Anager
050 Doys  BOED Mare Doy 30 Daryn the Far Tesal
PapiDua'"  PasiDue ™ Past Due ™ o Whawn Paut Due '™ Value Option  Outsssndings
[ isskars o (e Decerber 1. 2015
Cossumat real eitiin
Corg goniclio
Rarsdeartisl marlgags I e % 281 1 BOE $ 2204 527606 £ 228,770
Homa egquity 135 7o 198 403 34 823 35,226
Foncore potiolia
Recidertisl motgage 458 200 1,763 1,830 8,469 10,389
Homa sguity a4 18 Tz 137 4,560 4,587
Credi card and cthesr oonmumsy
Credit card il 429 1,082 2.035 a5 573 o7,608
Direct Indimet ennsumar ' T BS a5 a1y D581 0,508
Cfaef ponswsTet — — — — 182 182
Tolnl conssmer 2,866 1.070 347E FEET 458,044 408,176
Consumer loans accounted for under the tar value
option . _— - il
 Totnl comsumer loans and lnases 2866 1070 3475 7211 458,084 594 485,760
Carnmercial
U.5. commarcial 788 219 3n 1,438 308,610 307,048
Fon-i, 5. cormmercial as 23 -] L] 1004 S0 1044, 058
Commercial real estats ™ 144 19 119 87 62 407 &2, 689
Commarcinl leass finencing: 100 56 a9 195 19,685 19,880
LS, dimall Business commaital 119 56 107 282 15,051 15.333
Total commerncisl 1,088 433 Ba4 2,263 BOT BL3 508,010
Commarcial kosns accounted for udes the (nir vades
option ™ 7,741 1,741
Tolal commercial loans and kases 1,188 433 a4 2.763 507,653 T.74L 517,657
Totni ioons and leases £ 4052 £ 1500 $ Amig £ 9.a74 5 95 T1Y $ B35 $ 9EA.420
Peseantage of autsiandings LAl % [(ECE] 039 % 0A5% 9E20 % 0.85 % 100.00 %

 Consumer el SIiD loass 3055 diys el dus inchaes Al nsired bosns of $517 mellen el mespefoerng sens of §130 milon Cotsses sl ealsls e B0-50 Soys pasl dus ek
iy ragresd o of $060 melbon arad nenpeviarming, wans of BL1E milaon mwuuwmwmvmmmmnﬁmmm-w BL L belon. Commues mal
awilaln R et o bews Theee K coys pes? due ncaces S8RH malon and denct) sebitcd oo incuders S48 ot of
B DTS DOTAITY Sy B0 B ROy eteng boara el isaass of §50 4 pabon, U 5. secustes oased irdng isans of $35. Fb-mnwml.li. Ccordiames ioare of 53 & paillan
W Consumer loona sconuried R undes e Ia sl oplion inciudes resideniisl mosigage leans of 5757 million and! home sguily osns of 3337 mikon, Commenal e scomming fon undes Se
ikt wiken Bfion ciuded .S, sommercal leans of B4, T Biles and Rl 5. semmarcisl bans of $3.1 bllon. For more islosnation, s Nobe 20 - Far Vil Meakerasnents i ol 31 - Fair

Wikt

.

Dptian
Erital potsisrchogy inchades U5 commenosl real sainte cans of $53 0 bllon ared rankl 5 eoenmaecial mal setaie isane of ©1 T baloe

™ fotal polatatingh Fchaled ass ahel basin phedged ad colatersl ol S350 blish The Copirataon S pheogi §1EE.D Ddbo of fans Wi o selded Dulslasiing DOmawegs B sein

DOV [NV, CADRCHY with e Fdennd Fieservs Bani snd Fegen Horme Loan Bank

The Corporation categorizes consumer real estate loans as
core and non-core based on lean and customer charactenstics
such as origination date, product type, LTY. Fair |saac
Corporatien (FICO) score and delngquency status consistent with
its current consumer and morigage senvicing strategy. Generally,
loans that were orginated after January 1, 2040, gualified
under govemmant-sponsored enterprise (GSE) underwriting
guidelines, of olffwrwise met the Corparation’s underwriting
guidelines in place in 2015 are characterized as core loans. All
other lpans are generally characterized as non-core loans and
represant runofl portfolios.

The Corporation has entered Into long-term credit protection
agriemints with FNMA and FHLMC on leans tataling £9.0 billion
and 7.5 billion at December 31, 2020 and 2019, providing full
crede protection on residential morgage loans that become
severaly delingquent. All of these loans are individually insured,
and therefore the Corporation does not record an allowance for
credit losses related to these loans.

Nonperforming Loans and Leases

Commercial nonperforming loans increased to $2.2 billion at
December 31, 2020 from $1.5 billien at December 31, 2049
with broadbased increases across multiple  industries.
Consumer nonperforming loans incressed to $2.7 billion at
December 31, 2020 from $2.1 billion at December 31, 2019
driven by deferal activity, as well as the inclusion of
5144 million of certain loans that were previously classified as
purchased credit-impaired kpans and accounted for under & pool
basis.

The table below presents the Corporation’s nonperfemuing
loans and leases including nonperforming TORS, and loans
Bccruing past due 90 days or more at December 31, 2020 and
2019, Monpoerforming LHFS are excleded from nonperforming
Ioans and leases as they are recorded at either fair value or the
lower of cost or Fair varlue. For information on the Corporation”s
interest accrual policies, delinguency status for  loan
modifications celated 10 the pandemic and the critera for
classification as nonperforming, see Note 1 - Summary of
Significant Accounting Principles.
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Credit Quality
Manpertomming Laans Scetuing Pasi Due
BNl Lesses ) 90 Diays & Mare ™
December 31
(DDA o) 2020 2019 2020 2019
Residenzisl momgage 5 1006 % 1470 782 & 1,088
‘With na related allreance 1378 nia - -
Home equity ™ 649 536 — —
Wah no rplted aliveance ' 347 na — —
Cradil Cand n'a All ik 1.842
__Direct/indirsct consumer It A7 B 32
_ Teanl consumer 2735 2053 1,696 2,163
LIS, pammanis| 1243 1004 28 104
NondlLS. commencial 418 43 10 -]
Commaorcisl mal agtam 404 280 L 19
Commedcisl leade fimmncing BT a2 20 20
L.E. small business commerncial -] -] 115 87
Total commansial 2397 1480 384 750
Tetnl nonpereming loans 5 4382 % 3552 & 2082 § 2,413
Perzanlage of Sulklandlag bans and heases 054 % 0.36 023 % 0%

[Py TN 0 M GOl s M SIONIA! Pofiers S De iy SUNL fof K MOl FRIeg 1D T [AOeiTes, o il 1 - Seemsry of Sgnifcest Acosuning Prmogse.
' Aewtentisl mongags ens soorving Dend dur S0 4oy of mare e ety insed inans, A Decemibes 11, JOP0 and FLE residestial morigage nciutes 507 mdsen and §T80 meikon o lans on
which inbnisi! Rt bisen artiisd by i FIA, Bndl thirmfors war i lnger Soraing islieeil, SRNcuES prncisl mes W1 iRdure, and $575 st ind S340 matsen of lani sn which ilisye was

S0l BOCENg.

*® Primesity ratries S 0ans tor whoh T estvmensd far vaius of the endnrmpng collatensl less iy CONDN 0 sell s Erester Tan e amortuesd cowt of tha lans s of T reporing daie

ffa = hol spplcatls

Included in the December 31, 2020 nonperfarming loans are
£127 million and $17 million of residential mortgage and home
equity koans that prior 1o the January 1, 2020 adoption of the
new credit boss standard were not included in nonperforming
loans, as they were previously classified as purchased credit-
impaired loans and accounted for under a pool basis.

Credit Quality Indicators

The Corporation monitors credit quakity within its Consumer Real
Estate, Credit Card and Other Consumer., and Commercial
portfolio segments based on prmary credit quality indicators,
For more information on the portfolic segments, see Mote I -
Summary of Significest Accounting  Pringiples.  Within  the
Consumer Real Estate poetfolio segment, the primary credit
quality indecators are refreshed LTV and refreshed FICO score.
Refreshed LTV measures the camying value of the loan as a
percentage of the value of the propedy securing the loan,
refreshed quarterly. Home equity loans are evaluated using
CLTV, which messures the camying valug of the Comporation's
loan and available line of credit combined with any cutstanding
genior liens against the property as a percentage of the value of
the property securing the loan, refreshed quarerly. FICO score
measures the creditworthiness of the bomower based on the
financial obligations of the besrower and the borrower's credit
history. FICD scores are typically refreshed guartery or more

123 Bank of Amarica

frequenily. Certain bomowers (e.g., borowers that have had
debts discharged in a bankrupioy proceeding) may not have their
FICO scores updated. FICO scores are also a primary credit
quality indicator for the Credit Card and Other Consumer
portfolio segment and the business card portfolio within U5,
small buesiness commercsal. Within the Commercial portfalio
segment, loans are evaluated using the internal classifications
of pass rated or reservable crticied as the primary cradit
quality indicators, The term resenvable criticized refers to those
commaernzial loans that are miemally classiied or listed by the
Corporation as Special Mention, Substandard or Doubtful, which
are assel quality categores defined by regulatory authorities,
These assets have an elevated level of risk and may have a
high probability of defsult or total boss, Pass ated refers to all
loans not considered resenvable criticized. In addition to these
primary credit quality indicators, the Corporation uses oaher
creddit quality indicators for certain typas of loans.

The following tables present certain credit quality indicators
for the Corporation's Consumer Real Estate, Credit Card and
Other Consumer, and Commercial portfolio segments by class
of financing receivables and year of ongination for term loan
balances at December 31, 2020, including revolving loans that
comarted 1o torm |oans without an sdditional credit decisien
after origination or through a TDR.
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Residential Mortgage - Credit Quality Indicators By Vintage

Twrrn Loans by Origination Year

Total an of
Depenrrder 31
|Deaey e imalscms| 00 3020 2009 JILE 04T OB iPrior
Total Residential Morgage
Refreshed LTV
Leas than or egual o 50 percent 3 07389 § 63907 § 43771 § 14658 § FL980 0§ 22967 § 354097
Craatis thisn S0 pereanl Dul bas hen of sgusl 18 100
parcont 3138 1,670 E24 iz Ta e 190
Greatnr than 100 parcend 1210 To2 iva AT ] a 211
il ) __aifae = 3s s L C—, SR— L o
Tetal Resldential Morkgage $ 20588 § 75405 §  AEEA3 8 15003 § 2040 5 25070 0§ F0AM
Tetal Residentiol Mortgage
Relnethed IO stone
Leas than 630 5 b B e - iTr % 1 8 iTd % 150 % 1.2568
Greator than or equal to S50 and lss than 880 5463 1,604 et AE8 3gn 368 1,771
Cireier than or equnl 1o G625 and less man T40 26349 8,533 #6710 1972 T4IT 2307 S4A31
Grester than of equal to T4 178209 00,415 35,107 12254 18,714 20,276 27 438
Fully insumd oans. 11818 3,B2E 2004 370 343 1,970 3206
Tetnl Residential Motgage $ 220588 § TS5.405 % 46843 § 15203 F  22{d0 3 IS0T0 § G0N
Home Equity - Credit Quality Indicators
Home Equity Revolving.
Loans and Loars.
Howarsn Rravoiveyg Corvpprtad o
Tatal Mergngm Loans Tarm Loans
ILinstars b rabecars| Decembar 34, 2030
Tetal Home Equity
Relnighamd LTV
Lasis thar of equal bo 50 penent -1 44T 3 1918 & 23638 £ 2489
Greater than 50 pergent but kess than of egusl fo 100 penent 351 128 ET] 131
Gretor than 100 perosnt 6§13 ine 118 23
Totnl Home Equity ] 4311 § 2217 & 2TE61 % 2343
Tednl Homa Equity
Relneshad FCD sone
Loss thas 620 5 1082 3% /0§ 244 % num
Greater than or squal 1o 830 and less then 880 1788 263 E&E asT
Cireator than o aqunl 1o 662 and lags e T40 5762 556 T905 2301
Gregter than or squal 1o 740 0 GBS 1148 19,134 5387
Teinl Home Equity E] 34541 & 3217 & ITEEL & 8243
- i revense monpaes of 513 eion an sorme oty oo of BEED milon which # mo NgET oGl
Credit Card and Direct/indirect Consumer - Credit Quality Indicators By Vintage
Direct ndfirpet:
Tarm Lasna by Drignation Fea Crad Cand o
Neroring
Taisi Dt Tonal Crwdn Liar
ingirect mu of Card aw of Comenriod
Dsarrier 31 Nevosiag Decamber 11 Nesyorsing #a Porm
[Ddary m mitscm| 2000 Loars 20 ot et AT T P 203 Loars Lo
Tefrantied FICO scom
L than fin ] L] % 111 8 W0 O ATE § M3 0§ qam [ a0as § 1A O QsG
Crean Tha OF SOusl W G20
o b Thae (0 2342 o o] o] e ] M 1 ] LT o el
GBI OF Gusl 1 B0
aradl by Tham TAO TAM L] 440 To1s 1012 fag and g Fof o, (L]
Cormatest o of el 8 T80 38,004 130 12.540 10.588 5800 3405 178 1LETE 7 688 37542 44
(Rhwer mloewd crodl
mevics 7 44,188 A i T4 115 Bé a7 a2 28 - - -
Tokal credi cand and ather

3 HLW3 §F 44337 5 162 B 13477 8 VADD B 4Ba5 § FS5T B 2431 B TaI08 § THOET B Bl

' Oty el cedt meses may nchuds Senguency s, grograshy o otfes tactor,

F Dwect S totsmes nchaoes 44,1 beion of seturtiesbases Hnding whics I Specaily SSgoned by Ragnly Sousd colliensl Wil mared ke Eedler Sam of oouml 15 B ouSLEndeg loan
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Commercial = Credit Quality Indicators By Vintage ™9

Term Loans
4 Cost Basks by Dvigination Yes
Total an of
Desembar 32, Revonarg,
(Dollm. in: o) 2020 2030 a9 018 2017 2016 Prior Lopns
LS. Commnerclal
Risk ratings
Pata rited $ MEBLY 5 33458 3 IIFS § ITIEF §F 14002 53 TAN § 2L7B4 % 141382
Resernvabis criticized 19,916 2524 2,542 2885 0 A54 £ 1402 a7
Tatal LS. Commensisl 8 28A728 5 35980 5 35847 § JO05F § p4AMRE £ B118 § 231E5 § 150589
Non.8, Cemmercial
Rish fitings
Pass rated | 1 a5914 £ 18301 § 11396 § 0 Td4f1 § 6037 & 1674 £ 2154 & 41861
_ Reservabis cntsited 4,546 914 572 492 436 14 254 1.735
Total Mon-UL5. Commestial ] S0460 F 17215 % 11068 §  TH43 8§ 5473 % 1822 3 245 3 43506
Commarcinl Real Estate
Risk ratings
Pk rated % BO260 3 B4R 3 140 § BIIE § 4500 § 3200 3 AS42 § 5037
Resenvable criticiced 10,104 ] 28588 2418 1683 oG08 14M 00 AT4
Talal Commssseial Real Eststn s 60,364 & 5 i166B4 5 10343 § G151 § 3905 5§ TETH § 5811
Cammarcinl Lease Financing
Rish ratings
Pass rated 5 16,384 5 30B3 § 3242 § 2685 § 2832 B 1703 5 288 § -
Rt rvakiiy Ciciped T4 117 iy 132 ai &8 i —
Total Commestial Lema Finoncing 5 1T0e8 $ 3200 $ 3360 § 08RO 2613 0§ 1Tl 0§ 304T % —

Risk ratings

Pass raied 3 Z.7TBE 5 24538 & 1111 § BiT & Tas = BT & 855 ¥ 172
[Ir——r— 1,148 L] 239 710 175 113 azz 13
Tolai U5, Small Business Commarcial % 29934 & 74615 & 1300 § 1047 § 910 § 640 & 1377 § 186

C TewE $ 486584 5§ 90377 S GO0 5 42473 5 30133 5 IAJGE § 37841 § JO0281

* Eacmaes $500 Bln oF 10858 SO00UAIE Tir LIROST N T8 VA0 0S0SN B1 Decsener 31, 2020

o sy S8 milkon of ke thet comeied m rvshing i e kees

Cachuden U5, Small Busingys Cord i of 985 bion, Hefrishes GO scons. for P potiei s $765 milion lor ess San D0, S885 million e gastes Saen or sgusl 1o 830 g iess than
BECE K17 e far greaine an o edual oo S50 and s han TS0 and 5.3.5 Dalken gt e of smul b T4

Due to the economic impact of COVID-19, commercial asset
quality weakened during 2020, Commarncial resenable crticized
utilized exposure increased to $38.7 bilion at December 31,
2020 from $11.5 billion (10 7.31 percent from 2.09 percent of
total commercial resanvable utilized exposure) at December 31,
2019 with increases spread across multiple  ndustries,
including travel and entertainment,

Troubled Debt Restructurings

The Comporation has been entering into loan modifications with
borrowers in response to the pandemic, most of which are not
classified as TDRs, and therefore are not included in the
discussion below. For more information on the critena for
classifying loans as TDRs, see Note 1 - Summarny of Significant
Accounting Principles,

Consumer Real Estate

Modifications of consumer real estate loans are classified as
TORS when the bormower i5 axpenencing financial difficulties and
a concession has been granted. Concessions may include
reductions in nterest rates, capitalization of past due amounts,
principal and/or interest forbearance, payment extensions,
principal and/or interest forgiveness, or combinations thereof,
Prior to permanently modifying a loan, the Corporation may enfer
mto trial modifications wilh cerain  borrowers  wnder both
gowemnment and proprietary programs. Tral maodifications
generally represent a three 1o fourmonth period during which
the bomower makes monthly payments under the anticipated

125 Bank of Amafice

modified payment terms. Upon successful completion of the
trial perod, the Corporation and the borrower enter into a
permanent modification.  Binding  trial  modifications  are
classified as TORS when the trial offer is made and continue 10
be classified as TDRs regardiess of whether the bomower enters
into @& permanent modification.

Consumer real estate loans of $372 millkon that have been
discharged in Chapter 7 bankruptcy with no change in
repayment terms and not reaffimed by the borower were
included in TDRs at December 31, 2020, of which $102 million
were classified as nonperforming and $68 million were loans
fully imsured.

Consumaer real estate TDRS are measured pnmarily based on
the net present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at
the loan's original effective interest rate. If the camying value of
a TDR exceads this amownt, a specific allowance is recorded as
a component of the allowance for loan and lease losses.
Alternatively, consumer real estate TDRs that are considered to
be dependent solely on the collateral for repayment (e.g., due to
the lack of income verification) are measured based on the
estimated fair value of the collateral, and a chargeolf is
recorded if the camying wvalue exceeds the fair value of the
collateral. Consumer real estate loans that reach 180 days past
due prior to moedification are charged off to their net realizable
valuee, legs costs o sell, befora they are modified as TORs in
accondance with established policy. Subsequent declines in the
fair value of the collateral after a lpan has reached 180 days
past due are recorded as charge-offs. Fullinsured loans are
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protected against principal loss, and therefore, the Corporation
does not record an allowance for loan and lease losses on the
outstanding pancipal balance, even after they have been
madified in a TDR.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, remaining commitments
to lend additional funds 1o debtors whose terms have been
madified in a consumer real estate TOR were not significant,
Consumer real astate foreclosed properties totaled $123 million
and $229 milion at December 31, 2020 and 2019, The
carrying value of consumer real estate loans, ncheding fully-
insured loans, for which formal foreclosure proceedings were in
process at December 31, 2020 was $1.2 billion. Although the
Cosporation has paused formal loan foreclosure proceedings
and foreclosure sabes for occupied properties, during 2020, the
Cosporation rectassified $182 million of consumer real estate

Inans completed or which were in process prior to the pause in
foreclosures, to foreclosed properties or, for properties acquired
upon  foreckosure of cerain govemmentguaraniesd |oans
|principally FHA-insured loans), to other assets. The
reclassifications represent non-cash investing activities and,
accordingly. are not reflected in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows.

The table below presents the December 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018 unpaid principal balance, carrying value, and average
pre- and post-modification interest rates of consumer real estate
Inans that were modified in TORs duning 2020, 2019 and 2018,
Thex following Consumer Real Estate portfolio segment tables
Include loans that were initially classified as TDRs during the
peried and alse loans that had previously been classified as
TDRs and were modified again during the period.

Consumer Real Estate - TDRs Entered into During 2020, 2019 and 2018 'Y

Post-
Uiripad Prieschpal Catrying Pre=-Modification Mo it
alor Interest Rate  Interest Hate ™
ars m melsare| DIH"FMI 34, 2020
P saralal misgagh $ T % BB ETT L 150 %
Home ety ar 65 3BT 361
Tennd 3 L 75 308 A%
Ducemtior 31. 2019
P saertial mingags [ ITT I 37 L FEER
Home equity 141 101 504 431
Totsl ] 605 % 47 4.33 417
I:_N_lcl'.-rrl:m'ai_"'.‘:l:l!.!
Regential mifgage [ 7A 3 Bl AR 471 %
Hame ecuty 480 258 &.48 a4
Total 3 1353 & a5 438 a0
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The table below presents the December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 carmying value for consumer real estate loans that were
madified in a TOR during 2020, 2019 and 2018, by type of modification,

Consumer Real Estate - Modification Programs ™

TOR: Entéstsd lild Durisag

[ ETU Y ] 200 ity 201k
Modifications undar govesmnient programs. 5 iz 5 a5 § 81
7] under peop ¥ programs L] 174 B33
Lonns dischanged in Chaptes T bankuptey ™ 53 ] 130
Trial modifications ] 201 288
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The table below presents the camyng value of consumer real estate loans that entered into payment default duning 2020, 2019
and 2018 that were modified in a TOR during the 12 months preceding payment default, & payment defaull Tor consumer neal astate
TOHRs is recognized when a bomower has missed three monthly payments (not necessanly consecutively) since modification.

Consumer Real Estate - TDRs Entering Payment Default that were Modified During the Preceding 12 Months ™

{Toiar in rillien| 2030 2019 2008
Mo under g g ] ELEE B . E]
Medifcations under propietany prograns &1 L] 158
Loans dischanged in Chapter T bonkmuptcy ™ 13 a0 4
Trinl modifications ™ 54 57 107

Tulal weedditations ] b & 200 % ]
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Credit Card and Other Consumer

The Corporation seeks (o assist customers that are
axparigncing  financial difficulty by modifying loans  while
ensuring compliance with federal and local laws and guidelines,
Credit card and other consumer loan modifications genarally
involve reducing the interest rate on the account, placing the
customer on a fixed payment plan not exceeding G0 months and
canceling the customer's available line of cradit, all of which are
congigered TORs, The Corporation makes |oan modifications
directly with borrowers for debt held only by the Corporation
{imternal programs). Additionally, the Corporation makes loan
madifications for bomowers working with third-party renegotiation

agencies that provide solutions 10 customers” entire unsecured
debt structures [extemnal programs), The Corporation classifies
ather secured consumer lpans that have been discharged in
Chapter 7 bankrupicy as TDRs, which are wrtten down to
collateral value and placed on nonaccrual status no later than
the time of discharga.

The tatle below provides information on the Corporation’s
Credit Card and Other Consumer TOR portfolic including the
Decermnber 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 unpald principal balance,
camying value, and average pre- and postmodification inlenest
rates of loans that were modified in TDRs duning 2020, 2019
and 2018,

Credit Card and Other Consumer - TDRs Entered into During 2020, 2019 and 2018 '

Pas-
Lisipsid Pricusi pad w Pre-Moditication Mol
Balance Vabig Irmarest Ants Intsrest Fate
[ s iy prebsdva | Dipcamibar 4. 2000
Ciedit card 5 e % 277 1H16 % BEI %
Direci/ Indirect comnsaumiar 5.1 ar EB3 5E3
~ Total B $ T ) 314 16,70 665
December 31, 2016
Credit cand 3 540 % 355 1918 % 35w
Doty Indinct conswETer & a1 533 521
Total [ 80 % Y 1842 5.34
Deoember 31 2018
Credit cand 5 27g § Faz 1949 % L3N
Dt/ Indinn el eoniumar 43 P 5.0 4,95
Total [ =0 3 36 18,45 5.22
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The table below pregents the December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 carrying value for Credit Card and Other Congumer loans that
were modified in a TDOR during 2020, 2019 and 2018, by program type.

Credit Card and Other Consumer - TDRs by Program Type at December 31 ™

[Dsstaan oy prelisaen | 2020 2019 2018
Intienial programs: . 236 B FIEI 188
Exiemal progroms 3 108 83
CHiwr 16 21 P
Total 5 314 5 L 316
M ipies sored mevesl and fees. For s e e Cavp ‘5 b " alffersd n reaponse o e pandenic, moal of which se not THRN, see as |

Srmmarny of Sinificant dccounting Frimcpie.

Credit card and other consumer loans are deemed o be in
payment default during the quarter in which a bomower misses
the secand of two conseculive payments, Payment defaulls ane
one of the factors considerad when projecting future cash flows
in the calculation of the allowance lof loan and lease losses for
credit card and other consumer. Based on historical experience,
the Corporation estimates that 13 percent of new credit cand
TDRs and 19 percent of new direct/indirect consumer TDRs may
e in payment default within 12 months after modification,

Commercial Loans

Modifications of lpbans 1o commercial borrowers that are
experiencing financlal difficully are designed to reduce the
Corporation's loss exposwre while providing the bomowear with an
apporiunity to work thiough finanoal difficulties, often to avold
foreclosure or banknuptcy. Each modification is unique and
reflects the individual circumsatances of the  borrower,
Madifications that result in a TDR may include extensions of

127 Bank of Amalica

matunty al a concessionary [below marked) rate of interest,
payment forbearances or other actions designed to benefit the
borrower while mitigating the Corporation’s risk  exposune,
Reductions in interest rates are rare. Instead, the interest rates
are fypically Increased, although the increased rate may nol
represent a market rate of interest. Infrequently, concessions
may also include principal forgiveness in connection with
foreclosure, short sale or other settlement agreements leading
to termination or sale of the loan,

At the time of restructuring, the loans are remeasured to
reflect the impact, if any, on projected cash flows resulting from
the modified teoms. If a portion of the loan i5 deemed 10 ba
uncollectible, a chargeoff may be recorded &t the time of
restructuring. Alternativaly, a charge-off may have already baan
recorded in a previous period such that no charge-off is required
at the tme of modificaion. For more  information  on
modifications for the U.S. small business commencial portfolio,
see Gredit Cand and Other Consumer in this Note.

576/648

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation had $1.7
billion and $2.2 billion of commercial TORs with remaining
commitments to lend additional funds to debfors of $402
million and $445 million. The balance of commercial TDRs in
payment default was S218 million and $207 mdllion at
December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Loans Held-for-sale

The Corporation had LHFS of $9.2 billion at both December 31,
2020 and 2019, Cash and non-cash proceeds from sales and
paydowns of loans originally classified as LHFS were $20.1
billion, $30.6 billion and $29.2 billion for 2020, 2019 and
2018, respectively. Cash used for originations and purchases of
LHFS totaled approximately $19.7 billion, $28.9 billlen and
$28.1 hillion for 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Accrued Interest Receivable

Accrued interest recenvable for loans and keases and loans held
for-sale at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $2.4 billion and
$2.6 billion and is reported in customer and other receivables
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Quistanding credit card loan balances include unpaid
principal, interest and fees. Credit card loans are not classified
as nonperfgnming but are charged off no later than the end of
the month in which the account becomes 1B0 days past due,
within 50 days after receipt of notification of death or
bankruptcy, or upon confirmation of frawd, During 2020, the
Corporation reversed $512 million of interest and fee income
against the income staternent fing item in which it was ariginally
recorded upon charge-off of the principal balance of the loan.

For the outstanding residential morgage, home equity,
direct/indirect consumer and commercial loan balances
classified as nonpedorming during 2020, the Corporation
reversed Sd44 million of interest and fee income at the tme the
lpans were classifed as nonperforming against the income
statement line item in which it was onginally recorded. For more
information on the Corporation's nonperorming loan poleies,
see Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Principles.

Allowance for Credit Losses
On January 1, 2020. the Corporation adopled the new
accounting standard that reguires the measurement of the
allowance for credit losses to be based on management's best
astimate of lifetime ECL inherent in the Corporation’s relevant
financial assets, Upon adoption of the new accounting standard,
the Corporation recorded a $3.3 bdlion, or 32 percent, increase
in the allowance for credit losses on January 1, 2020, which
was comprised of a net increase of $2.9 billion in the allowance
for loan and lease losses and & $310 milion ncrease in the
reserve for unfunded lending commitments. The net increase in
e allowance for loan and lease losses was primarily driven by
a $3.1 billion increase in credit card as the Corporation now
reserves for the life of these receivables. The increase in the
reserva for unfunded lending commitments included 5119
million i the consumer portfolio for the undrawn portion of
HELOCSs and $191 millkon in the commercial portfolia, For more
information on the Corporation’s credit loss accounting policies
intiuding the allowance for eredil losses ses Note 1 - Summary
of Significant Accounting Principles.

Thir allowance for credit losses s estimated using
gquantitative and gualitative methods that consider a variety of
factars, such as histoncal loss expenence, the curment credit

quality of the portiodio and an economic outlook over the life of
the loan. Qualitative reserves cover losses that are expected
but, in the Corporation's assessment, may not be adequately
reflected in the quantitatve methods or the economic
assumnptions, The Corporation ncorporates  forward-looking
information  through the use of several macroeconomic
scenanos in determining the weighted economic outlook over
the forecasted life of the assets. These scenanos include key
MaCroEconDmic variables such as gross domestic product,
unemphoyment rate, real estate prices and corporate bond
spreads, The scenarios that are chosen each quarter and the
waighting given 10 each scenario depend on a vanety of faclors
Including recent economic events, leading economic indicators,
Intemal and third-pary economist views, and industry trends,

As of lanuary 1, 2020, to determine the allowance for credit
Insses, the Corporation used a senes of economic outloaks that
resulted in an economic outlook that was weighted towards the
potential of a recesslon with some expectation of tall rsk
similar to the severely adverse scenano used in stress testing.
Varous economic oullooks were also used In the December 31,
2020 estimate for allowance for credit losses that included
comsensus  estimales, mulliple downside scenargs  which
assumed a significantly longer period until econamic recovery, a
tail risk scenano similar to the severely adverse scenario used
in stress testing and an upside scenario to reflect the potential
for continued improvement in the consensus outlooks. The
weighted economic  outlook assumes that the LS
unemployment rate et the end of 2021 would be relatively
consistont with the level as of December 2020, slighily above
6.5 percent. Additionally, in this economic outlook, U.S. gross
domestic product returns 10 pre-pandemic levels in the early part
of 2022, The allowance for credit losses considers the impact
of enpcled government Stimulug, including  the COVIDHLD
Emergency Relief Act of 2020, and continues to factor in the
unprecedented nature of the current health crisig,

The Corporation also factored into its allowance for credit
Insses an estimated impact from higherrisk segments that
included leveraged loans and industries such as travel and
entenainment, which have been adversely impacted by the
offects of COVID-19, as well as the energy sector. The
Corporation also holds additional reserves for borrowers who
requested  deferals  that take inte  account their  credit
characteristics and payment behavior subsequent to deferral.

The allowance for credit losses at December 31, 2020 was
£20.7 billion, an Increase of %7.2 bilion compated to
January 1, 2020, The increase in the allowance for credit losses
was driven by the deterioration in the economic outbook
resulting from the impact of COVID-19, The Increase in the
allowance for credit losses was comprsed of a net increase of
$6.4 billign in the allswance for loan and lease losses and a
5755 million increase in the meserve for unfunded lending
commitments, The increase i the allowance for [oan and leage
losses was attributed to $418 million in the consumer real
estate portfolie, $1.8 billlon in the credit card and other
consumer portfolio, and $4.2 billion in the commencial portfolio.

Outstanding loans and leases excluding loans accounted for
under the fair value option decreasad $53.9 billien in 2020,
driven by consumer lgans, which decreased 2£37.1 billion
primarily due to a deching in credit card leans from reduced retail
spending and higher payments.
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The changes in the allowance for credit losses, including mit charge-offs and provision for koan and lease losses, are detailed in

the table below.
Coruma Crasin Card and
Roal Estate aher Consumes Cormmereial Tedal

T Dsoulkar b prélses plak 0]
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MOTE 6 Securitizations and Other Variable

Interest Entities

The Corporation utilizes VIEs in the ordinary course of business.
10 support s own and is customers” financing and imesting
meeds. The Corporation routinely securitizes loans and debt
securities using VIES as a source of funding for the Corporation
and as a means of transfeming the economic risk of the loans or
delit securities 10 third panies, The assets are tranafered into a
trust or other securitization vehicle such that the assets are
legally isolated from the creditors of the Corporation and are not
available to satisfy its obligatsons. These assets can only be
used to settle obligations of the trust or other securitization
vehicle. The Comoration also administers, structures or imests
in other VIES including CDOs, investment vehicles and other
antities. For more information on the Corparatson’s use of VIEs,
see Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Principles,

Thir tables in this Note present the assets and liabilities of
consodidated and unconsolidated VIEs at December 31, 2020
and 2019 in situations where the Corporation has continuing
imvolverment with transferred assets or f the Corporation
olherwise has a varable interest in the VIE. The tables also

120 Bank of Amalica
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present thie Corporation's maximum 1088 exposure Bt Decembser
31, 2020 and 2019 resulting from its imvolvernent with
consolidated WIES and unconsolidated VIES in which the
Corporation holds a varable interest. The Corporation’s
MEXIMUM 1055 exppaurg s based on the unlikely event that all
of the assets in the VIEs become worthless and incorporates
not only potential losses associated with assets recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet but also potential losses
associated with offbalance sheet commitments, such as
unfunded liquidity comméitments and other conftractual
arrangements. The Corporation’s maximum loss exposuse does
nat include losses proviously rmcognized through write-downs of
assets,

The Corporation invests in ABS issued by thirdparty VIES
with which it has no other form of involvement and enters into
certain  commercial  lending  arrangemenis  that may  also
incorporate the use of VIEs, for example to hold collateral.
These securities and loans are included in Note £ - Securities o
Note § - Qutstanding Loans and Leases and Allowance for Credit
Losses. in addition. the Corporation has used VIES in connection
with its funding activities.
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The Comporation did not peovide financial suppor to
consofidated or unconsolidated VIEs during 2020, 2019 and
2018 that it was not previously contractually required (o provide,
nor does it intend to do so.

The Conporation had liquidity commitments, incleding written
put options and collateral value guarantees, with certain
unconsolidated VIEs of £929 milion and %11 billon at
Decambser 31, 2020 and 2019,

First-lien Mortgage Securitizations

As part of its morgage banking activities, the Corporation
securitizes a ponion of the firstdien residential morgage loans
it originates or purchases from thied parties, generally in the
form of residential morgagebacked securities (RMBS)
guaranteed by government-sponsored enterprises. FNMA and
FHLMC ([collectively the GSEs), or the Government National
Mongage Association (GNMA] primarily in the case of FHA-

insured and U.5. Depammermt of Veterans Affairs (VA)
guaranteed morgage foans. Securitization uswally occurs in
conjunction with or shorly after orginaton or purchase, and the
Corporation may also secuntize loans held in its residential
mortgage portfolio, In addition, the Corporation may, frony tame
ta time, securitize commercial morgages it orginates or
purchases from other entities, The Corporation typlcally semvices
the loans it securitizes. Further, the Corporation may retain
beneficial interests in the securitization tusts including senior
and subordinate securies and equity tranches issued by the
trusts. Except as described in Note 12 - Commitments and
Contingencies. the Corporation does not provide gudrantees or
recourse to the secumtization trusts other than standard
representations and warrdnties.

The table below summarizes select information related to
firstlien morgage secuntizations for 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Flrstlien Mortgage Securltizations

Residential Morgage - Ageney

Cornmereinl Mormgage
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Thir Corporation recognizes consumer MSRS from the sale or
securitization of consumer real estate loans., The unpaid
principal balance of loans serviced for inwestors, including
residential mortgage and home equity loans, totaled $160.4
billion and $192.1 billien &t December 31, 2020 ang 2019,
Senvicing fee and ancillary fee income on serviced loans was
£474 million, $585 million and $710 million dusing 2020, 2019
and 2018, respectively. Senvicing advances on seniced loans,
including  Ioans  serviced for olhers &nd [oans held for
imvestment, were $2.2 billion and $2.4 billion at December 31,
2020 and 2019, For more information on MSRs, see Note 20 -
Fair Value Measuremants.

Regurchased loars inciuae FEU-nsuned mongeges colmersining GRVA securiies.

During 2020, the Corporation completed the sale of $9.3
billion of conswmer real esiate lpans through GNMA loan
secuntizations. As part of the securitizations, the Conporation
retained $B.4 bilkon of MBS, which are classified as debt
securities caried at fair value on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. Total gains on loan sales of $704 million were recorded
In other income in the Consalidated Statement of Income,

The following table summarizes select information refated to
first-leen mongage securilization Irusts in which the Comporation
held a variable interest at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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Firstien Mortgage VIEs

At |i) Mg
Apascy Peirm Susspriers Ama Commentisl Morgige
Decwrhar 11
iDuitars m o) 2 e 20} 208 a0 = o200 2019 2D 200w
Urtonacitdated Vika
Bz lows, spouurs ! 0T b Fas 8 = 380 B aem b AT § ) W % lum & Lo
T : i, > o crites et e 2
Sy Rl
Imdng scoount susrts Ll isr & aar % 7% I ] LI - s 7 % M % L -0 a5
Dhebt BascommIaeng LarTeed B faT
Ak 7.6 L= ) 123 1 &0 (L] aa Lr g - =
b 1 Pl DS L& ) 5535 - - - = - = 0 S
Al Sl maREEE _ — ] E L] 48 i 2 50 18
" Totsl eeimrwe prstioes 8 L3ATT 3 12554 8 10 & M0 Wm0 % i#El # a8 % e 8 dows § w3
incipal tal 3 13eT B 16032 8 sl 1 [ (X ] B5M 8 1854 § 1EE 3§ seana § G0
Cornoddaied Vile
Blarnbmiem ks daposars % iLxrE % 1087 8§ & 5 LI B3 % ol § - - - -—
On-lalans Sheel Besals
Trading! mczound Aniats % L 8 LU o 1 FRCO L EE R =4 — % =4 =
Luans st wases, net - T - - - - - - -
AL Dl RS — 8l - = — - — = —_ -
Tokal ansty 5 Lam 3 J08%R 8 o % w8 ELO 40 3 =% =" = =
Tekail iabimties. L3 it i B e § 111 T 105 & = & . ] = & ==
W kenn r:l.n— . uqn-h--‘ one ofter mrengs tor i g i sl
et b e A N CUCkaS BVICE EIRCES 0 DI SONACING NS e DDGEASonE. Fod mote nlSTaLlon. ste

 Mone 13 - mwmwmmm n-mm
= Prifcapal balancs futhliaddhng nciude kaan whets B C n

H-li_mm.mmm—\u‘nm

Other Asset-backed Securitizations

The following table summarizes select information redated to home eguity, credit card and other asset-backed VIES in which the
Cosporation held a variable intarest at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Home Equity Loan, Credit Card and Other Asset-backed VIEs
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Home Equity Loans

The Corporation retaing inledests, primarly semor securties, i
home equity secuntization trusts to which it transferred home
equity loans, In addition, the Cedporation may be obligated 1o
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provide suborchinate funding to the trusts during a rapid
amortization ewent. This obligation is included in the maximum
loss exposune in the table above. The charges that will
ultimately be recosded as a result of the rapid amortization
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events depend on the wndrawn portion of the HELOCs,
performance of the loans, the amount of subsequent draws and
the timing of related cash fows,

Credit Card Securitizations

The Corporation securitizes onginated and purchased credit card
loans. The Corporation’s continuing involemenl with the
securitization trust includes senvicing the receivables, retaining
an undivided interest [Sellecs interest) in the receables, and
holding certain retained intarests including subordinate interests
in accrued imerest and fees on the secuntized recevables and
cash reserve accounts.

Durng 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Corporation issued new
senior debt securities to third-party investors from the credit
card securitization trust of $1.0 billion, $1.3 billion and 4.0
billion, respactively.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation held
subordinate securities issued by the credit card securitization
trust with a notional prncipal amount of $6.8 billlen and 7.4
pillion. These securities serve as a form of credit enhancement
to the senior debt securities and have a stated interest rate of
mero parcent. During 2020, 2019 and 2018, the credit cand
sacuritization trust issued $161 million, $202 million and S650
million, respectivily, of these subordingte securities,

Resecuritization Trusts

The Corporation transfers securities, typecally MBS, into
resecurntization VIES generally at the request of customers
seehing securities with specific characteristics. Generally, thers
are o significant  ongoing  activities performed in a
resecuntization trust, and no single investor has the unilateral
ability 10 liquidate the trust,

The Corporation resecuritized $39.0 billion, $24.4 biflion
and $22.8 billion of securities dunng 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Securities transferred into resecuritization VIEs
were measured at fair vabue with changes in fair value recorded

in markel making and similar  activities prior to  the
resecuritization and, accordingly, no gain or loss on sale was
recorded, Securities received from the resecuritization VIES were
recognized at their fair value of $6.1 billion, $5.2 billion and
$4.1 billion during 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. In 2019
and 2018, substantally all of tha securities wera classified as
trading account assets. All of the securities received as
rasecuritization procesds during 2020 were classified as trading
account assets. O the securities received as resecuritizations
procesds during 2020, $2.4 billion, $2.1 billion and $1.7 billion
were classified as trading account assets, debt securities
carnied @t fair value and HTM  Secunties, respectively,
Substantially all of the trading account securities and delbt
securities carried at fair valee were categorized a5 Level 2
within the fair value hierarchy.

Municipal Bond Trusts

The Cosporation administers municipal bond trusts that hold
highlyrated, longterm, fixed-rate municipal bonds. The tusts
obtain financing by issuing floatingrate trust cenificates that
reprice on a weekly or other short-term basis to third-party
investors.

The Corporation’s liguidity commitments 1o unconsolidated
municipal band trusts, including these for which the Corporation
was transferor, totaled #%3.5 billion and $3.7 bilion at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, The weighted-average remaining
life of bonds held in the trusts at December 31, 2020 was 6.8
years. There were no significant write-downs or downgrades of
assets or issuers during 2020, 2019 and 2018.

Other Variable Interest Entities

The table below summanzes select information related to other
ViEs in which the Corporation held a varisble interesi at
Decernbar 31, 2020 and 2019,

Other ViEs
Total C d Total
sty oy sl | o o e Sy
Masireum loss exposars ' L] 7mATE 5 3055 § N & 25024
O bslaren ahaal DEaes
Trading, nocount assets '’ 1 2080 § E23 8 2703 § 213 0§ E40 & 2,762
Dbt securties carmed at fnl vaue - ] 8 - 1w 10
Loans and lsasas ' 2,108 184 2202 1,810 533 2,343
Mitmnncs for koam and lease losses ™! 3 i3 18] [FJ] — 12)
All piree assants '™ 54 215831 I2807 Bl 19,354 19,435
o [ o 5 4333 & 233668 & TS § IO § 0486 & FA S48
On-baleccs shest iakdnies
Short-tem. bormowings & 2 % e | 2 % - - =
Long e deb 111 — 111 A - A8
1 pimes linbiities. '™ - B.EG8 5855 2 4,596 4,808
Tolal™ ] 133§ BESH § L& T Wy sl ¥ ATy
Tetal ausets of VIEs ™ 5 4130 3§ T7.%84 § E2223 § 4,102 § 10,120 § 74,222
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Customer VIES

Customer VIEs include credit-linked, equitylinked and
commoditylinked note VIEs, repackaging VIES and assetl
acouisition VIEs, which are typically created on behalf of
customers who wish (0 obtam market or credit exposure 1o a
specific company, index, commodity or financial instrument.

The Corporation’s maximum loss exposure 10 consolidated
and unconsolidated customer VIEs totaked $2.3 billion and $2.2
billion &t December 31, 2020 and 2019, including the notsonal
amount of dervatives to  which the Corporation s a
counterparty, net of losses previously recorded, and the

Corporation’s imestment, if any, in securities issued by the
VIEs.

Collateralized Debt Obiigation WIEs

The Corporation receives fees for structuring COO VIEs, which
hold diversified pools of fiedincome securities, typically
corporate debt or ABS, which the CDO WIEs fund by Issuing
multiple tranches of debt and equity securittes. CDOs ane
generally managed by thirdparty portfolie managers, The
Corporation typically transfers assets to these CDOs, holds
securities issued by the CDO3 and may be a denvative
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counterparty to the CDOs. The Corporation’s maximum |0ss
exposure (o consolidated and unconsclidated CDOs totaled
£298 milion and $304 milion at December 31, 2020 and
2019,

Investment VIEs

The Corporation sponsors, mvests in of provides financing,
which may be in connection with the sale of assets, 1o a variety
of inviestment VIES that hold loans, real estate, debl securities
or other financial instruments and are designed to provide the
desired mvestment profile to investors o the Corporation, At
December 31, 2020 and 2018, the Corporation's consolidated
investrment VIES had total assets of $494 million and 5104
million. The Corporation also held inwvestments in
unconsolidated YIES with total assets of $5.4 billien and $5.1
billion at December 31, 2020 and 2019. The Corporation's
maxinum loss exposure associated with both consoldated and
unconsolidated imestment VIEs totaled $1.5 billion and $1.68
billion at December 31, 2020 and 2019 comprised primarily of
onbalance shest assets less nonsecourse liabilities.

Leveraged Lease Trusts

The Corporation’s net investment in consolidated leveraged
lease trusts totabed S1.7 billion at both December 31, 2020
and 2019. The trusts hold longlived equipment such as rail
cars, power generation and distribution equipment, and
commercial aircraft. The Corporation structures the trists and
holds a  significant residual interest, The net  estment
represents the Corporation’s maxmum |oss exposure o the
trusts in the unlikely event that the leveraged lease mvestments
become worthless. Debt issued by the leveraged lease trusts is
non-recourse to the Corporation,

Tax Credit VIES

The Corporation holds investments in unconsolidated limited
partnerships and simdlar entities that construct, own and
operate affordable housing, wind and solar peojects. An
unrelated third party is typically the general partner or managing
mamber and has control over the significant activities of the VIE.
The Corporation eams a return primarily through the receipt of
tax credits allocated to the projects. The maximum |oss
exposure included in ihe Other VIES able was $22.0 billion and
$18.9 billion at December 31, 2020 and 2019. The
Corporation's rsk of |oss is generally mitigated by policies
requiring that the project gualify for the expected tax credits
prior to making (s Investment.

The Corporation’s imestments in affordable  housing
partnerships, which are reported in other assets on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, totaled $11.2 billion and $10.0
billion, incleding unfunded commitments to provide capital
contnbutions of 35,0 bilion and $4.3 billion ot December 31,
2020 and 2019, The unfunded commitments are expected to
b pabd over the next five years. Durng 2020, 2019 and 2018,
the Corporation recognized tax credits and other tax
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benefits from imeestments in afferdable housing parnerships of
$1.2 billion, $1.0 billion and $981 million and reported pretax
losses in other income of $1.0 billion, $882 million and $T98
million, respectively. Tax credils are recognized as part of the
Corporation’s annual effective tax rate used 1o determing tax
expanse in a ghven quarter. Accordingly. the portion of a year's
expected tax penefits recognized in any given quaner may differ
from 25 percant. The Corporation may from time 1o time be
asked to imvest additional amounts to suppor & troubled
affordable housing project. Such additional investments hawve
not been and are not expected to be significant,

MNOTE T Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The table below préesents goodwill balances by business
segment and AY Other a1 December 31, 2020 and 2019, The
reporting units wlilized for goodwill impairment testing are the
operating segments or one level below,

Goodwill
‘Decamdar 31

Doy in makonsl 2030 2049
Canaumar Barking 3 ®ixm § 2 Wik
Gichal Wealth & investrient Maragemant 96T 8677
lchal Banking 23973 73923
obal Mamets LET - 5182
4l O 3 : EAEL.... LA

Tatal gocdwill 3 E8951 § 68,951

Dwring 2020, the Corporation completed its annual goodwill
impaiment test as of June 30, 2020 using a gquantitative
assessment for all applicable reporting units. Based on the
results of the annual goodwill impairment test, the Corporation
determingd there was nd Impairment. For more infomation on
the use of guantitative assessments, see Note 1 - Suwmmary of
Significant Accounting Principles.

Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the net camying value of
intangible assets was $2.2 billion and $1.7 billion. During
2020, the Corporation recognized a 3585 million intangible
asset, which is being amortized over a 10vyear life, related to
the merchant contracts that were distributed to the Corporation
from its merchant senvicing joint venture, For more information,
sea Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies.

Al both December 31, 2020 and 2019, intangible assets
included $1.6 billion of intangible assets associated with trade
names, substantially all of which had an indefinite life and,
accordingly, are not being amornized. Amortization of intangibles
expense was 295 million, $112 million and $538 million for
2020, 2019 and 2018.
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MOTE 8 Leases

The Corporation enters into  both lessor and lesses  LESSEE Arrangements
amrangements. For more information on lease accounting, see P e
Mote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Principles and on 5o o v 020 2019
lease financing recaivables, sae Note 5 - Quistanding Loans 8nd  Aigmotuse ssaet $ 10000 5 9.735
Leases and Allowance for Crodit Losses. Lease linhistes 10,474 10,083
Weightecdavernpe discount mbe used 1o
Lessor Arrangements ckulale plesent waks of At Fsimums
The Comoration's lessor amangements pramarly consist of FRRRC PyTRARLY il 3.60°%
operating, sales-type and ditect financing leases for equipment,  _Yeuhiecaverage lease Wm fin years) L 53
Lease agreements may include options 10 renew and for the  ease Cost scd Supplimantsl Wiormates:
lessea o purchase the leased equipment at the end of the — Opersting lesse coat 5 248 ¥ 2,085
lease terrm, Warinble loase cost ! 4T4 4408
The following table presents the net investment in sales-type Total lease cost ™ ¥ aea 8 2583
and direct financing leases at December 31, 2020 and 2019, POV A GOV I SRR o4
AW O W JERLE lakail iw [ BEL 3 2ai
rpeating cash fiows from opestating
Net Investment —— 2009 2,000
"_' Prananty comumta of paye For ea ] perogerty L,
Degomter 31 M hmnpnin are ne0oRORd B DODUDANGY Bnd egwperenl eigenan B T Consolcaed TLTem
JDearn iy s 20 Lot . Crmacildnin
Lanss meoshesbios % uezr & 15012 e g o s e s e re —
_Llngu.umhudmmh 2,303 2,_5?0_ ™ fimprients e pasd for amousls inckaed in e massrements of s RabiFle,
Tatal met investmant in salos-iype and dimct
financing leasm ¢ wog3n 5 ziesy  Maturity Analysis

i el cael, T Corpoialien QULANG L pany sl vkl FSnon L s 08
Tenas ane e The Camyng W Of SN BRRRE WO TYDOETY IeRdu vale
marsnce for st esad @ portion of The ssasd welon wans B6.0 Bilion snd 5.0 lilion i
Dnpendedd 31, SAOC0 aiel 3010

The following table presents lease income al December 31,
2020 and 2019,

Lease Income
S rararniue It
| Dolars i rreimen| L T
Sxles-byps mnd direc! Drascing lasses k-] ™mr 5 Tar
Cipaiang mass ajL a1
Tatad keaas oome & 1638 § 1,088
Lessee Arrangements

The Corporation's lesses amangements predominantly consist
of operating leases for premises and  equipment; the
Cosporation's financing leases are not significant.

Lease terms may contain renewal and extension options and
early termination features. Generally, these options do not
impact the lease ilerm because the Corporation s not
reasonably certain that it will exercise the options.

Thiz followsng table provides mfemmation on the aghtofuse
assets, lease liabilities and weighted-average discount rates
and lease tems a1 December 31, 2020 and 2019,

NOTE 9 Deposits

The maturitles of lessor and lessee arrangemenis outstanding
at December 31, 2020 are presented in the table below based
on undiscounted cash flows,

Maturities of Lessor and Lessée Arrangements

Lessar Lessos
Sales-lype snd
Opirating Direet Flnaneing Opeealing
Leanes =

(D i [ 31, 2020
2021 B B43 % 5424 % 1337
023 T4B 493x LTS5
2023 630 2637 1454
2024 478 2,089 1308
2025 330 1.143 LO&T
Thareater B 1.G8a o il
Tots! undscounted

cash flows ] 3,526 18,855 12100
Loss: Mot present

valus squstmen ) 1,268 1626

Total " 3 1THIT 3 10,474

M Fones $555 milkSh N COMTRIMG UNDed MAAeE afEngements (hal hews por el
om0 WSS b b, thal wil heggn in 2021

P prchten $17 .7 billian e
L e e T

' Peproserie ieosn wovsbiee for e el
L ]

] 34,9 bilen 0 deecty

e o lewere

The table below presents information about the Corperation's time deposits of $100.000 or more at December 31, 2020 and
2019, The Corporation also had aggregate time deposits of $10.7 billion and $15.8 billion in denominations that met or exceedad
s Fochieral Deposit Insurance Corporation [FDIC) insurance limit at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Time Deposits of $100,000 or More
Doturmber 31
Decomiss 31 2020 B 219
Over Thres
‘Three Months. Months i
| iy v o L Twelve Montks Tharea®ter Tednl Tedal
U.5. pertificates. of doposi and ofher trme deposits & 12485 # 10668 § 14456 & 20538 £ 39,739
Mondl 5. cenificates of deposit nd other time degposits B568 1035 1,433 11935 13,034
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The scheduled contractual maturities for total time deposits at December 31, 2020 are presented i the table below,

Contractual Maturities of Total Time Deposits

[Py bry rralicrey| s, MNan-U.5. Tetal

s in 2021 3 40052 % 10,608 8 B0,BEL
Due in 2022 2604 167 27T
Dua in 2023 a3i 4 435
Due in 2024 22 & 27
Du in 2025 186 13 199
Thamsafor 378 L3867 1863
" Total bme [ 43771 % 12085 & 55,E56

WOTE 10 Federal Funds Sold or Purchased, Securities Financing Agreements, Short-term Borrowings

and Restricted Cash

The table below preasents federal funds sold or purchased, securities financing agreements (which include securities borrowed or
purchased under agreements o resell and securities loaned or sold wnder agreements to repurchase) and short-term borrowings.,
The Corporation elects 10 account Tfor cerlain secunties financing agreements and shor-em borrowings under the fair value option,
For more information on the fair value option, see Note 21 - Fair Valwe Option.

iy i el

Fodem| fusds ssld and lew by d or purch
Averagn during yeer
Pelaccimiam monthwend balance during year

d undar te maali

Fotinral fumia punchased and socurifios Inaned or sald untor agreements 1o repuichae

Avmrage during yead

Placgimvamn montheand balance duning year
Sharl-tarm Borrowings

Avefage dunng year

Maxinresm month-and balance during yoar

Amgsnd Ratn At Rt
2020 2018

% 3945 0% % 2TeB10 1LTa%
451478 va 261,684 na
£ 192478 oEIn 3 201787 2m%
206493 nfe 203,063 n/a

22,486 064 24,300 243
30118 nE 36,538 n'a

R = P B

Bank of America, M.A. maintains a global program to offer up
1o a maximum of $75.0 billion ouistanding at any one time, of
bank notes with fixed or floating rates and maturities of at least
sgwvien days from the date of issue. Shomdesm bBank notes
outstanding under this program totaled $3.9 billion and $11.7
billion at December 31, 2020 and 2019. These shor-term bank
notes, along with Federal Home Loan Bank advances, U.S5.
Treasury tax and loan notes, and term federal funds purchased,
are included in short-term borrowings on the Consolidated
Balance Sheat.

Offsetting of Securities Financing Agreements

The Corporation enters into securities financing agreements 1o
accommodate customirs [also referred o as “matched-book
transactions”), obtain securties to cover shom positions and
finance invemory positions. Substantially 81l of the Corporation's
securities financing activities are transacted under legally
enforceable  master  repurchase  agreements  or  legally
enforceable master securities lending agreements that give the
Corporatien, in the event of default by the counterparty, the right

135 Bank of Amalica

to liquidate securiies held and to offset receivables and
payables with the same counterparty, The Corporation offsets
securnities financing transactions with the same counterparty on
the Conzolidated Balance Sheel whene @ has such a legally
enforceable master netting agreement and the transactions
have the same maturity date,

The Securties Financing Agreements table presents
securities financing agreements included on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet in fedaral funds sold and securities borrowed or
purchesed undes agreements to resell, and n federsl funda
purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to
repurchase at December 31, 2020 and 2019, Balances are
presanted on @& gross basis. prnor o the application of
counterparty netting. Gross assets and lisbilities are adjusted
on an aggregate basis to take into consideration the effects of
legally enforceable master netting agreements. For more
information an the offsetling of dervatives, see Node 3 -
Dervatives,
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Securities Financing Agreements
Lross Avsets, Net Balsneo Finaneial N Adsats/
Lisadiiies ™ Amounts Offsst  Shest Amount  Instruments ' Liabiiies
[Dtars, i rrelicre | Decombser 31, 2030
Securities bomowed or purchased under agreemants 1o resed ™ § 492387 & (188309 & 304068 & (272360 % 707
SeCuries I0aned Or SOi Under NEBRMENES 10 repUIThae 3 358857 § (18832 § 170323 § (158867 3 11488
Ditrer 16,210 - 16210 (AB210) —
_ Total $  3T4EE2 & (188.329] § 186533 & [ATEOTT] & 11465
— I N T
Seeurmies b d o purzhated Leder g b5 1o pesed § 434357 § (1566800 8 774507 §  GAd.488) 3 30411
Securties iaaned of ol under nEFOEMENES 10 repuichass %  J24T6D § (1596600 § 165109 % (141487 § ZAEH
ther i = 15244 (18348 =
Total § 3a0d5 § (1506500 § 180455 8 (15626l 3 #3537
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Repurchase Agreements and Securities Loaned Transactions Accounted for as Secured Borrowings

The following tables present securities sold under agreements to repurchase and securities loaned by remaining contractual term to
maturity and class of collateral pledged, Included in “Other” are transactions where the Corporation 8cts as the lender in a
securitios lending agreement and receives securities that can be pledged as collateral or sold. Certain agreements contain a right to
subsstitute collateral and/or terminate the agreement prior 1o matwity at the opticn of the Cosporation or the counterparty, Such
agreoments are included in the table below based on the remaining contractual term to maturity.

Remaining Contractual Maturity
Dreinight and Aot 20 Dayn Grealor than
Continusu 30 Days or Less Threugh 0 Days B0 Days H Tatal

[ Dovars i Telsares| - Dosember 31. 2020
Securties sold under agresments b fepurchass -] AEBAD0 & 132448 % 32148 § 22584 & 335 684
SeLUfME kkred 12140 a7 1,020 2531 a7
e 16210 — -— -— 16210

Total 8 193760 & 132,749 4§ 331TE § 26216 § AT4863

- December 31, 3019 ) "

Securmen S0k under BgTeWnTE T3 FpUIthi s £} 179,455 3 122685 % = 28333 § near ¥ 399,384
Securtses iowned 18 TG a9 11 2,045 5,385
it 15,346 — = = 15,348

Total E 163,567 3 126,018 § 26.563 % F-1 LY 340,115
b e rends hus maturles. fresim Sac e e
Class of Collateral Pledged

Srcuries Sald
Under Agromants Sncariion
12 Repurchase Loarsd Dhar Tatal

FTars iy i | December 3L, 2020
L5, governement ond sgency seourties H 196,167 8§ 5 8 - 195172
Comporss secufilion, mding lasss and olher HATKD LE2R 1217 114t
Erpuity scurities 148,762 21126 14931 0508
Nondl.5. sovoreign debt 113,142 13 L+ 113447
Mengnpe iradng loans and ABS A098T - — A88T

Total 5 3IHEEL 8§ 22571 8 16210 & 374 HE2

December 31, 2019

U5, gowermanent and agency sHcuion H 173,533 % 1% — % 173,534
Camparsts secwtilien, Wading Sans and olfer 10487 2014 58 12,739
Enquity securities 14,933 200026 16,024 49,983
KonU 5. sawmnsign dobl 96,578 3344 84 O, Q84
Morgage tradng loans and ALS A5 — — AE75

Total 5 299,384 § 263858 § 15,345 & 340,115
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Under repurchase agreaments, the Corporation is required to
post collateral with a market value equal to or in excess of the
principal amount borrowed, For secunties loaned transactions,
the Corporation receives collateral in the form of cash, letters of
credit or other securities, To determing whether the market
valua of the underlying collateral remains sufficient, collateral is
generally valusd daily, and the Corporation may be required 1o
deposit additional collateral or may receive or rélumn collateral
pledged when appropriate. Repurchase agreements and
securities |loaned transactions are generally either overnight,
continuous (|.e., no stated term) or short-term, The Corporation
manages liguidity risks related to these agreements by souscing

NOTE 11 Long-term Dabt

funding from a diverse group of counterparties, providing o
range of securities collateral and pursuing longer durations,
when appropriate.

Restricted Cash

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation hebd
restricted cash included within cash and cash eguivalents on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet of 37.0 bilion and $24.4
billion, predominantly related lo cash held on deposit with the
Federal Reserve Bank and non-U.5. central banks to meet
raserve requirements and cash segregated in compliance with
securities regulations,

Long-term debt consists of borrowings having an osiginal maturity of one year or mose, The table below presents the balance of long-
term debt at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related contraciual rates and maturity dates as of December 31, 2020,

Weighoes [ecombr 31
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Flasiing ] 00 - 450 2021 - 3044 18.THR 19552
Senice nlructuned notes 17.033 16,941
Subominaled notes:

Fregd a.49 294 - AT 2021 - 2048 22337 21,832

Flasting 145 088141 2022 . D6 Ta5 T2
Junior sutsedinatnd notes:

Fuund BTL B0 - BLOG 20T - 206E TIE TaG

Fiagting 0] 103 TO5E 1 1

Total notes kssued by Bank of A Corparation 233081 199,909
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Flanting - 2,500
Securtizations and other BANA WiEs ™ 6206 BAam3
CiFer Lx] i
__ Tetnl noles issued By Bank of America, N.A 12296 20158
Oihar debt
Structred liabdites 18702 20442
Monbank WIEs ™ 57 a7
et & =
" Tetnl notes isued By nanbank and otker enlities 17,568 0,789

Tetal longsem dotn 5 262334 240,856

N inciptes 06 bess stasrteng Tapany ompliang debl
i
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During 2020, the Corporation issued $56.9 billion of long:
term debt consisting of $43.8 billion of notes issued by Bank of
America Corporation, $4.8 billion of notes issued by Bank of
America, NA. and $8.3 bdllion of other debt, Dunng 2019, the
Corporation isseed $52.5 billion of long-term debt consisting of
$29.3 bilion of notes issued by Bank of America Corporation,
$10.9 billion of notes issued by Bank of America. M.A. and
£12.3 billion of other debt.

During 2020, the Corporation had tal longterm debl
maturities and redemptions In the aggregate of $47.1 billion
consisting of $22.6 balon for Bank of Amenca Corporation,
$11.5 billion for Bank of Amerca, N.A. and $13.0 billion of
other detd, During 2019, the Corporation had total longtemm
debt maturities and redemptions in the aggregate of $50.6
bilkon congisting of %211 biNion for Bank of Amerca
Cosporation, $19.9 billion for Bank of Amenca, N.A. and $9.6
Billion of other debt.

137 Bank of Amarica
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Bank of America Corporation and Bank of America, MA.
maintain various U.S. and nonl.S, debt programs to offer both
sénior and subordinated notes. The notes may be denominated
in W.S. dollars or foreign cumencies. AL December 31, 2020 and
201%, the amount of foreign currency-denominated debt
translated into U.5. dollars included in total long-term debt was
254.8 billion and $49.6 billion. Foreign cumency contracts may
be used to convert certain foreign currency-denoménated deit
inte LS. dollars.

At December 31, 2020, lengterm debt of consolidated WIEs
in the table above included debt frem credit card, residential
mortgage, home equity and other VIEs of $6.3 bilion, $491
million, $178 million and $111 mallion, respectively, Longtenmn
debt of VIEs is coflateralized by the assets of the VIEs. For more
Information, see MNole & - Secuntizations and Other Varable
Interest Entites.
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The weighted-average effective interest rates for tatal long-
term debt {excluding senior structured notes), total fized-rate
debt and twial floatingrate debt were 3.02 percent, 3.29
percent and 0.71 percent, respectively, at December 31, 2020,
and 3.26 percent. 3.55 percent and 1.92 percent, respectively,
at December 31, 2019. The Corporation's ALM activities
maintain an overall interest rate sk managemant strategy that
incorporates the use of interest rate contracts 1© manage
flectuations in eamings caused by Inierest rate volatility, The
Corporation's goal i% 10 manage interest rate semsitivity 5o that
maovements in interest rates do not have a significantly adverse
effect on eamings and capital, The waighted-overage rates ane
the contractual interast rates on the debt and do not reflect the
impacts of dervative transactions,

Debt outstanding of $4.8 billion at December 31, 2020 was
issued by BolA Finance LLC, a consolidated finance subsidiary

of Bank of America Corporation, the parent company, and is fully
and unconditionally guaranteed by the parent company.

The table bDelow shows the camying value for aggregate
annual contractual matunties of longterm debt as of
December 31, 2020, Included in the table are certain strectured
notes issued by the Corporation that contain provisions whareby
the bormowings are redeemable at the option of the holder {put
options) at specified dates pror to maturity. Other structured
notes  have coupen of repayment terms linked to the
performance of debt or equity securities, indices, curmencies or
commodities, and the maturity may be acceleraled based on the
vialue of a referenced index or Socurity, In both cases, the
Corporation or a subsidiary may be reguired 1o settie the
obligation for cash or other securities prior to the contractual
maturity date. These bomowings are reflected in the table as
maturing at their contractueal matunty date,

Long-term Debt by Maturity
{Dertars m melsor) 01 2032 2023 2034 2028 Themafier Totai
Bk ol Amarica Corpsinlion
Senkor robes L] 8888 § 15380 §  J3ET? 8§ 11407 % 15793 § 105003 & 100473
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Rl of WIES Pkt 1 10 W R DR 0 [T Conasmonted Basscn She

NOTE 12 Commitments and Contingencies

In thix normal course of business, The Conporation enters ima a
number of off-balance sheet commitments. These commitments.
expose the Corporalion 1o varying degrees of credit and market
rick and are subject to the same credit and market risk
limitateon  renseéws as those instruments recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Credit Extension Commitments

The Corporation enters inle commitments to extend credit swch
as loan commitments, SBLCs and commercial letters of credit
to meat the financing neads of its customars. The following
table includes the notional amount of unfunded legally binding
lending  commitments  nel of  amounts  distributed (i,
syndicated or participated) to other financial institutions. The
distributed amounts were $10.5 bilion and $10.6 billion at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. The camying value of these
commitments at December 31, 2020 and 2019, excluding
commitments accounted for under the fair value option, was

$1.9 billon and 3829 million, which prmarily related to the
reserve for unfunded lending commitments. The carmying value
of these commitments is classified in accrued expenses and
athor fabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheal.

Legally binding commitments to extend credit generally have
specified rates and maturities, Certain of these commitments
have adwerse change clauses that help to protect the
Corparation againg! deteriomation in e Dorrower s ability 10 pay.

The table below includes the notional amount of
commitments of 54.0 billion and $4.4 billion at December 31,
2020 and 2019 that are accounted for under the fair value
option, However, the table excludes cumulative net fair value of
599 million and $90 milion at December 31, 2020 and 2019
on these commitments, which is classified in accrued expenses
and other liabilties. For more information regarding the
Corporation’s loan commitments accounied for wnder the fair
valpe option, sae Note 21 - Falr Value Option.
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Credit Extension Commitments
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Other Commitments

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation had
commitments to purchase loans (e.g.. residential morgage and
commercial real estate) of $33 milion and $86 million, which
upon settlement will be included in trading account assets,
loans o LHFS, and commitments to purchase commercial loans
of $645 million and $1.1 billion, which upon settlemant will be
included in trading account assels,

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation had
commitments (o purchase commodities, primanly lguefied
natural gas. of $582 million and 5830 million, which upon
settlernent will be included in trading account assets.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation  had
commitments to enter inte resale and forward-dated resale and
securities borrowing agreements of $66.5 billion and $97.2
billion, and commitmants te enter into forward-dated repurchase
and securities lending agreements of $32.1 billion and $24.9
billion. These commitments generally expire within the next 12
manths,

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation had a
commitment to ofginate or purchase up to $3.9 billon and
$3.3 billien on a roling 12-month basis, of auto loans and
leases from a strategic partner. This commitment extends
through November 20022 and can be terminated with 12 months
ROOF NOCE,

Other Guarantees

Bank-owned Life Insurance Book Value Protection

The Corporation sells products hat offer book value protection
o insurance camers who affer group life insurance policies o
corpavations, primarly banks, At December 31, 2020 and
2018, the notional amount of these guarantees totaled 7.1
biilion and £7.3 billion, At both December 31, 2020 and 2019,
the Corporation’s mamimum  exposure  related  to those
guarantees totaled $1.1 billion, with estimated maturty dates
betwean 2033 and 2029,

130 Bank of Amalica

Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation enters into
varouws agreaments that contain indemnifications, such as tax
indemnifications, whereupon payment may become due if
cortain extamal events occur, such as a change in tax law. The
Indemnification clauses are often stendard contractual terms
and were entered into in the normal course Of Dusiness based
on an assessment that the risk of loss would be remote. These
agreements Wpically contdin an early lemmination clause that
permits the Corporation to ewxit the agreement upon these
events, The maximum  potental fulure payment  under
indemnification agreements is difficult to assess for several
reasong, including the occurrence of an extemal event, the
inability to predict fulure changes in tax and other laws, the
difficulty in determining how such |aws would apply to panies in
contracts, the absence of exposure limits contained in standand
contract language and the timing of any eary termination
clauses. Historically, any payments made under  hase
guarantees have been de minimis. The Corporation has
assessed the probability of making such payments in the futune
A8 Femote.

Merchant Services

Pricsf o July 1, 2020, a significant portion of the Carporation’s
merchant processing activity was performed by a joint venture in
which the Corporation held a 49 percent ownership interest. On
July 249, 2019, the Corporation gave notice to the joint veniure
partngs of the Wwemination of the joinl venlure upon the
conchusion of its current term on June 30, 2020. Effective July
1, 2020, the Corporation recdived s share of the joimt
venture's merchant contracts and began performing menchant
processing sendices for these merchants, While merchants bear
responskility for any credit or debit card charges properly
reversed by the cardholder, the Corporation, in its role as
merchant acguirer, may be held liable for any reversed charges
that cannot be collected from the meschants due 1o, among
other things, merchant fraud or insolvency.
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The Corporation, as a card metwork member bank, also
sponsors other merchant acquirers, principally its former joint
wenture partnes with respect 10 merchant contracts distnbuted
to that partner wpon the termination of the joint venture. If
charges are properly reversed after a purchase and cannot be
collected from aithar the merchants or merchant acquirers, the
Corporaticn may be held liable for these reversed charges. The
ability w0 revarse a charge is phAmarnly govemed by the
applicable regulatory and card network rules, which include, but
are not limited to, the type of charge, type of payment used and
time limits. For the six-months ended December 31, 2020, the
Comporation processed an  aggregate perchase volume of
$339.2 billlon. The Corporation's risk in this area praimarily
relates to circumstances where a cardholder has purchased
goods of seqvices for future delivery. The Corporation mitigates
this risk by requinng cash deposits, guarantees, letlers of credit
or other types of collateral from certain merchants. The
Corporatien’'s reserves for contingent losses and the losses
incurmed related to the merchant processing activity were not
significant. The Corporation continues 1o monitoe its exposune in
this area due to the potential economic impacts of COVID-19.

Exchange and Clearing House Member Guarantees

The Corporation i5 & member of vanous securities and dervative
exchanges and clearinghouses, both in the U.5. and other
countries. As a member, the Corporation may be required to pay
a prorata share of the losses incurred by some of these
oiganizations as a result of ancther member default and under
other loss scenarios. The Corporation’s potential obligations
may be limited 10 i1 memberahip intérests in such exchanges
and cleannghouses, to the amount {or multiple) of the
Corporation's contribution to the guarantee fund or, in limited
instances, o the full pro-ata share of the residual losses after
applying the guarentee fund. The Corporation’s maximum
potential exposure under these membership agreemenis is
difficult to estsmate; however, the Corporation has assessed the
probability of making any such payments as remots.

Prime Brokerage and Securities Clearing Services

In connection with it prime brokerage and clearing businesses,
the Corporation performs securities clearance and settlement
sesvices with other brokerage firns and clearinghouses on
behalf of its clients, Under these arrangaments, the Corperation
stands ready to meet the obligations of its clients with respect
10 secunties transactions, The Comporation's obligations in this
respect are secured by the assets in the clients’ accounts and
the accounts of their customers as well &5 by any proceeds
recetved from the transactions cleared and settled by the
Cosporation on behall of clients or their cusiomers, The
Corporation's maximum  potential exposure  under these
amangements is difficult to estimate: howewver, the potential for
the Corporation to incur material losses pursuant to these
amangements s remote,

Fixed Income Clearing Corporation Sponsared Member
Repo Program

The Comporation acis as a sponsoring member i a repo
program whereby the Corporation clears certain eligible resale
and repurchase agresments through the Govemment Secunties
Division of the Fixed Income Clearing Corporation on behalf of
clients that are sponsored members in accordance with the
Fiwed Income Clearng Corporation's rules. As part of this
program, the Corporation guarantees the payment and
performance of its sponsored members to the Fixed Income
Cleanng Corporation, The Corporation’s guarantee obligation is

secuned by 8 securty interest in cash or high-quality securities
collateral placed by clients with the clearinghouse and therefore,
the petential for the Cesporation to incur significant losses
under this arrangement is remote. The Corporation's maximum
patential exposure, without taking into conaderation the related
collateral, was $22.5 bilion and $9.3 billion at Decembar 31,
2020 and 2019,

Other Guarantees

The Corporation has enlered into  additional guarantee
agreements and commitments, including sold risk paricipation
ewaps, liguidity facilities, lease-end obligation agreemsents,
partial credit guarantees on certamn leases, real estate joint
venture puarantees, divested business commitments and sold
put options that requirg gross settlement. The maxinmum
potential future payments wnder these agreements ane
approvimately $8.8 billion and 8.7 ballien at December 31,
2020 amd 2018, The estmated maturity dates of these
obligations extend up to 2049, The Corporation has made no
material  payments  under  these guarantees, For  mose
Information on mazimum potential future payments under VIE-
rilated liquedity commitments, see Note § - Securitizations and
Other Variable nferest Entities.

In the rormal course of busingss, the Corparation periodically
guarantees the obligations of its affiliates in a variety of
transactions including 1S0A-related transactions and nondSDA
related transactions such as commodities trading, repurchase
BE.I"EHI‘I‘IEI'IB. pime  brokerage agreemenl: and  olher
transactions.

Guarantees of Certain Long-term Debt

The Corporation, as the parent  company, fully and
unconditionally guarantess the securities issued by BofA
Finanes LLC, @ consolidated finance subsidiary of the
Corporation, and effectively provides for the full and
unconditional guarantee of rust securities issued by certain
statutory trust companies that are 100 parcent owned finance
subsidiaries of the Comporation,

Representations and Warranties Obligations and
Corporate Guarantees

The Corporation securitizes first-len residential momgage loans
generally in the form of RMBS guarantoed by the GSEs or by
GMMA in the case of FHA[nsured, VA-pueranteed and Rural
Housing Service-guarantoed mortgage loans, and sells pools of
firstdben residential mortgage leans in the form of whole loans.
In addition, in prior years, legacy companies and certain
subsidiaries sold pools of firstdien residential morgage loans
and home equity loans as prvale-label securilzations of in the
form of whole loans. In connection with these transactions, the
Corporation or ceramn of 15 subsidianes or legacy companies
make and have made vanous mepresentations and warrantes.
Breaches of these representations and warranties have resulled
in and may continue to resull in the requiremant 1o repurchase
morigage lgans of To otherwise make whote or provide
indemnification or other remedies to sponsors, investors,
secunitization trusts, guarantors, insurers or other parbes
(eollectively, repurchases).

Unresolved Repurchase Claims

Unresolved representations and warranties repurchase claims
represent the notional amount of repurchase claims made by
counterparties, typically the outstanding principgal balance or the
unpaid principal balance at the time of default. In the case of
first-lien morigages, the claim amount is often significantly
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greater than the expected loss amount dee 10 the benefit of
collateral and, in some cases, mortgage insurance or mongage
Buarantes payments,

The notional amount of wnresolved repurchase claims at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $8.5 bilion and $10.7
Billion. These balances included 5$2.9 billion and $3.7 billion at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 of claims related to leans in
specific privatedabel securitization groups or trancheas where the
Comporation owns substantially all of the outstanding securities
or will otherwise realize the benefit of any repurchase claims
paid.

During 2020, the Corporation receved $83 million in new
repurchase claims that were not time-barred. During 2020,
$2.4 billion in claims were resohad, including $168 million of
claims that were deemed time-bamed.

Reserve and Related Provision

The reserve for representations and warranties obligations and
corparate guaraniees was $1.3 bilion and 31.8 billion at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 and is included in accrued
expenses and other labllities on the Consolidated Balance
Sharert and the related provision is incheded n other income in
the Consolidated Statement of Income. The representations and
wifrantes reserve represents the Corporation's best estimate
of probable incumed losses, is based on its experence in
previous negotialions, and |s subject to judgment, a variety of
assumptions, and known of unknown uncertainties. Future
representations and warranties losses may occur in excess of
the amounts recorded for these exposures; howewver, the
Comporation does not expect such amounts 1o be matenal ta the
Corporation's financial condition and liquidity. See Litigation and
Regulatory Matters below for the Corporation's combined range
of possible loss in excess of the reserve for representations
and warranties and the accrued lability for litigation,

Litigation and Regulatory Matters

in the ordinary cowrse of business. the Corporation and its
subsidiaries are routinely defeéndants in or partes to many
pending and threatened legal, regulatory and gowermmerntal
actions and oroctedinga. In view of the inherent dilﬁmll‘y of
predicting the outcome of such matters, particularly where the
claimants seek very large of indeterminate damages or where
the matters present nowel legal theories or involve a large
number of parties, the Corposation generally cannot predict the
aventual outcome of the pending matters, timing of the ultimate
resolution of these matters, or eventual loss, ines or penalties
related to each panding matter.

As a matter develops, the Corporation, in conjunction with
any outside counsel handing the matter, evaluates whether
such matter presents a loss contingency that is probable and
estimable, and, for the matters disclosed in this Note, whether
a loss In excess of any accrued liability is reasonably possible in
future periods. Once the boss contingency s deemed to be both
mobable and estimable, the Corporation will establish an
accrued liability and record a comesponding amount of litigation-
related expense. The Corporation continues to monitor the
matter for further developments that could affect the amount of
the accrued [iability that has been previously established,
Excluding espenses of internal and external legal senice
providers, litigation-related expense of $823 million and $6B1
million was recognized in 2020 and 2019,

For the matters disclosed in this Mote for which a loss in
futwre periods is reasonably possibde and estimable (whether in
excess of an accrued liability or where there is no accrued
fiability) and for representations and waranties exposures, the
Cosporation's estimated range of possible loss is $0 to $1.3

141 Bank of Amanica

billion in excess of the accrued liability, if any, as of December
34, 2020.

The accrued liabality and estmated ronge of possible loss
are based upon cumently available information and subject to
significant judgment, a vanely of assumplions and known and
unknown uncerainties. The matters underlying the accrued
llability amd estimated range of possible loss are unpredictable
and may change from time to time, and actual losses may vary
significanily from the cument estimate and accrual, The
estimated range of possible loss does not represent the
Corporation’s maximum 1085 exposure.

Information is provided below regarding the nature of the
litigation and associated claimed damages, Based on cument
knowledge, and taking into  account accrued liabilities,
management does not believe that loss contingencies ansing
from pending matiers, including the matters describad harain,
will have a8 material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
condition of lquiddy of the Corporation. However, in light of the
significant judgment, vanety of assumptions and uncertainties
Involved in these matters, some of which are beyond the
Corporation’s controd, and the very large or indeterminate
darmages sought in some of these mallers, an adverse outcome
in on& or more of these matters could be matenal to the
Corporation’s business of results of operations for  any
particular reporting period, or cause significant reputational
harm.

Ambae Bond Insurance Litigation

Ambac Assurance Corporation and the Segregated Account of
Ambac Assurance Corparation (tegeiher. Ambac) have filed four
separate lawsuits against the Corporation and its subsidianies
relating te bond insurance policies Ambac provided on certain
securitized pools of HELOCs, first-lien subprime home equity
lpans, fixed-rate seconddien morgage loans and negative
amortization pay option adjustable-rate morgage leans. Ambac
alleges that they have pald or will pay claims as a result of
dofaults in the undertyng loans and asserts that the defondants
misrepresented the characteristics of the underiying leans and/
or breached certain contractual represantations and warranties
regarding the underwriting and senvicing of the loans. In those
actions where the Corporation is named as a defendant, Ambac
contends the Corporation is liable on various swccessor and
vicanous Hability theornes, These actions are al vanous
procedural stages with material developments provided below.

Ambac v. Countrywide |
The Corporation, and several Countrywide entities are named as
defendants in an action filed on September 28, 2010 in Maw
York Supreme Court. Ambac asseris claims for fraudulent
inducamant as well as breach of contract and seeks damages in
excess of $2.2 bilion, plus punitive damages.

On May 16, 2017, ther First Diepartrment issued its docisions
on the parties” cross-appeals of the trial court’s October 22,
2015 summary judgment mulings. Ambac appealed the Frst
Department's rulings requiring Ambac to prove all of the
elemants of its  fraudulent  inducement  claim,  Including
justifiable reliance and loss causation; restricting Ambac's sole
remedy for it breach of contract claims 1o the repurchase
protacol of cure, repurchase or substitution of any materially
defective  [pan; and  dismissing  Ambac’s  claim  for
reimbursements of attomeys” fees. On June 27, 2018, the New
York Couwrt of Appeats affirmed the First Department nelings that
Ambac appealed.
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On December 4, 2020, the New York Supreme Coun
dismissed Ambac's fraudulent inducement claim. Amibac
appealed the dismissal.

Ambae v. Countrywide Il

On December 30, 2014, Ambac filed a complaint in New York
Suprerne  Court  againgt the same defendamts, claiming
fravdulent inducement against Countrywide, and successor and
vicarious llability against the Corporation. Ambac seeks
damages in excess of S600 million, plus punitive damages.

Ambac v, Countrywide IV

On July 21, 2015, Ambac filed an action in New Yok Supreme
Court against Countrywide asserting the same claims for
fravdulent inducement that Ambac assered in the now
dismissed Ambac v. Countrywide 1. The complaint seeks
damages in excess of $350 million, plus punitive damages. On
December B, 2020, the New York Supreme Court dismissed
Ambac's complaint. Ambac appeated the dismissal.

Ambac v, First Frankiin

On April 16, 2012, Ambac filed an action against BANA, First
Frankln and various Memrill Lynch entites, incleding Merrill
Lynch, Peerce, Fenner & Smith Incomporated, in New Yok
Supreme Cowrt relating 10 guaranty insurance Ambac provided
an a First Franklin securitization sponsored by Memill Lynch, The
complaint alkeges fraudulent inducement and breach of contract,
including breach of contract claims against BANA based upon its
senvicing of the loans in the securitization, Ambac seeks as
damages hundreds of millions of dollars that Ambac alleges it
nas paid of will pay i claims,

Deposit Insurance Assessment

On January 9, 2017, the FIMC filed suit against BANA in the U5,
District Court for the District of Calumbia alleging failure to pay &
December 15, 2016 invoice for additional deposit insurance
assessmants and interest in the amount of $542 million for the
quarters ending June 30, 2013 through December 31, 2014.
On Apel 7, 2017, the FDIC amended its complaint 10 add a
claim for additional deposit insurance amd interest in the
amount of $583 million for the quaners ending March 31, 2012
through March 31, 2013. The FDIC asserts these claims based
on BANA's alleged undereporting of counterparly exposures
that resulted in underpayment of assessments for those
quarters and s Enforcement Section s alse conducting a
parallel investigation related to the same alleged reporting emor,
BANA disagrees with the FDIC s interpretation of the regulations
as they existed during the relevant time period and is defending
itself against the FDIC's claims. Pending final resolution, BANA
has pledged securty satisfactory to the FDIC related to the
disputed additional assessment amounts. On March 27, 2018,
thie LS. District Couwrt for the District of Columbia deniod
BANA's partial motion to dismiss certain of the FODIC's claims,

LIEOR, Other Reference Rates, Forelgn Exchange (FX) and
Bond Trading Matters

Government authortes o e US, and vadous intermnatienal
Jjurisdictions continue to conduct investigations of, to make
inquiries af, and to pursue proceedings againet, the Corporation

and its subsidiaries regarding FX and other reference rates as
well as government, sovereign, supranational and agency bonds
in connection with conduct and systems and controis. The
Corporation is cooperating with  these inquines and
investigations, and responding 1o the proceedings.

LIBOR

The Corporation, BANA and certain Memill Lynch entities hawve
been named as defendants along with most of the other LIBOR
panal banks in a number of indvidual and patative class actions
by persons alleging they sustained losses on U5, doliar LIBOR-
based financial nstruments as a result of collusion or
manipulation by defendants reganding the setting of U.5. dollar
LIBOR. Plaintiffs assert & varety of claims, includeng antitrust,
Commodity Exchange Act, Racketeer Influenced and Comupt
Organizations (RICO), Securities Exchange Act of 1934, comman
law fraud and breach of contract claims, and seek
compensatory, treble and punitive damages, and injunclive
reliaf. All but one of the cases naming the Corporation and its
affiliates relating 1o U5, dollar LIBOR are pending in the U5,
District Court for the Southemn District of Mew York.

The [istrict Court has dismissed all RICO claims, and
dismissed all manipulation claims against Bank of America
entities based on alleged trader conduct. The District Court has
also substantially limited the scope of antitnest, Commodity
Exchange Act and varous other claims, including by dismissing
in their entirety certain individual and putative class plaintiffs’
antitrust claims for lack of standing and,/or personal jurisdiction.
Plaintiffs whose antitrust claims were dismissed by the District
Court are pursuing appeals in the Second Circuit. Certain
indrvicual and putative class actions remain pending against the
Corporation, BANA and certain Memill Lynch entites.

On February 28, 2018, the District Court granted certification
of a class of persons that purchased OTC swaps and notes that
refarenced LS, dollar LIBODR fram one of the LS. dollar LIBOR
panel banks, limited to claims under Section 1 of the Sherman
Act, The U5, Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit
subsaquently denied a petition filed by the defendants for
interocutory appeal of that ruling,

U5, Bank - Harborview and SURF/OWNIT Repurchase
Litigation

Beginning in 2011, U.5. Bank, National Association (U.5. Bank),
as trustee for the HarborView Mortgage Loan Trust 200510 and
various SURF/OWHNIT RMBS trusts filed complaints against the
Corporation, Countrywide entities, Memill Lynch entities and
ather affilisxtes in New York Supreme Court alleging breaches of
representations and wamanties, The defendants and certain
cerificate-holders in the trusts agreed to sentle the respective
matters in amownts not matenal to the Corporation, subject to
acceptance by U5, Bank. The litigatlons have been siayed
pending finalization of the settlements.
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NOTE 13 Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock

Declared Quartery Cash Dividends on Common Stock '

Diwidend
_Baclasstion Date Racord el _ Paymiari Dute PorGhen
lamary 19, 2021 March 5, 2021 Warch M, 2021 L1 018
Dotober 21, 2020 December 4, 2020 December 24, 2020 [E1:]
bty 33, 2030 Spptembad 4, 2070 Seplambar 35, 2000 018
Agtil 22, X030 S B 2020 Jure 20, X020 s
Imnuary 39, 2000 March &, 2020 March 27, 2020 018

iy OO0, e e Febeuaty 74, 2021

Thie cash dividends paid per share of comman stock were $0.72
$0.66 and $0.54 for 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively,

The following table summarires common stack repurchases
during 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Commeon Stock Repurchase Summary

#in milon 2020 2019 2018
Tetnl &hE PEpUCRRLEL, REluding CCAR R il i
copital pinn Mpurchases aa 956 BTE
Purchase price of shares repuechaned
and retined
CICAR capial plan reporchases § 7O 25844 §18,754
_fnhar auihanged mpunchases — 2.500 4,340

Tatnl shares repurchased § 7025 §2N.144  §$20,084

Dwring 2020, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (Federal Reserve) announced that due [0 economic
uncertainty resulting from COVID-19, all large banks would be
reqguired to suspend share repurchase programs im the thied and
fowrth quarters of 20240, except for repurchaseas to offset shares
awarded under equitybased compensation plans, and to limit
dividends to existing rates that do not exceed the average of the
last four guarters’ met income,

The Federal Resene's  directives  regarding  share
repurchases algned with the Corporation’s decision to
voluntarnly suspend repurchases during the first hall of 2020,
The suspension of the Corporation’s repurchases did not
include repurchases to offsel shares awarded under 15 equity
based compensation plans,

During 2020, the Corporation repurchased and rotired 227
million shares of common stock, which reduced shareholders'
aquity by $7.0 bitlion,

During 20240, in connection with employes stock plans, the
Corporation sswed 66 millien shares of its common stock and,
to satisfy tax withholding obligations, repurchased 26 million
shares of its common stock. At December 31, 2020, the
Corporation had resenved 513 millon unissuad shares of
common stock for future issusnces under employee stock
plans, conmvertible notes and prefarmed stoock.

Preferred Stock
The cash divdends decisred on prefermed stock were $1.4
billion, $1.4 billion and $1.5 bilkon for 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respeclively,

On January 24, 2020, the Corporation issued 44,000 shares
of Fixed-to-Fioating Rate Mon-Curmulative Prefermed Stock, Seres
MM for $1.1 billion. Devidends are paid semi-annually during the
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limedrate period, then quartedy duning the Noatingrate period,
The Series MM preferred stock has a liquidation preference of
$25,000 per share and s subject to certain restrictions in the
event the Corporation fails to declare and pay full dividends.

On October 29, 2020, the Corporation issued 44,000
shares of 4.375% NonCumulative Preferred Stock, Series NN
for $1.1 biMion, with quanery dividend payments commencing in
February 2021. The Seres NN preferred stock has a liquidation
preference of $25000 per share and Is subject to ceriain
restrictions in the event the Comporation fails 1o declare and pay
full dividends.

On January 28, 2021, the Corporation issued 36,000 shanes
of 4.125% MNon-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series PP for
$915 million, with guarerly dividends commencing in May
2021. The Series PP preferred stock has & ligusdation
preference of $25,000 per share and is subject to cerain
restrictions in the event the Cosporation fails to declare and pay
full drvidends,

In 2020, the Corporation fully redeemed Series Y prefemed
stock for $1.1 billion, Asditionally, on Januaryy 29, 2021, the
Corporation fully redeemsed Seres CC preferred stock for $1.1
bilioen,

All series of preferred stock in the Praferned Stock Summary
table heve a par value of $0.01 per share, are not subject 1o
the operation of a sinking fund, hava no participation rights, and
with the exception of the Semes L Prefermed Stock, are not
comartibla. The holders of the Series B Prefarred Stock and
Series 1 through 5 Preferred Stock have general voting nghts
and vote together with the common Steck. The holders of the
other series Included in the table have no general voting rights.
All putstanding series of praferred $tock of the Corporation hawe
preference owver the Comporation’s common stock with respect to
the peyment of dividends and distibution of the Corporation’s
assats in the evenl of a liguidation or dissolution. With the
exception of the Series B, F, G and T Preferred Stock, it any
dividend payable on these series is in arrears for three or mose
semannual of sk or more quarerly deidend periods, as
appficable (whether consecutive or not), the holders of these
series and any other class or seres of prefered stock ranking
equally as to payment of dividends and upon which equialent
voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable (voting as
a single classh will ba entitted 1o vote for the alection of two
additional directors. These voling rights terminate when the
Corparation has paid i full dvidends on these seres for at
least twe semiannual or four quarerly dividend periods. as
applicable, following the dividend arrearage.

The T.25% Nom-Cumulative Perpetual Convertible Prefemed
Stock, Series L (Seres L Prefered Stock) does nol have early
redemption/call rights. Each share of the Seres L Prefermed
Stock may be comverted at any Lime, at the option of the holger,
inte 20 shares of the Corporation’s common stock plus cash in
lipw af fractional shares. The Corporation may cause some or all
of the Series L Preferred Stock, at its option, at any time or from
time to time, 1o be corvened into shares of commaon stock at
the then-applicable conversion rate if, for 20 trading days during
any penod of 30 consecutive trading days, the closing price of
common stock oxceads 130 percent of the thenapplicable
comversion price of the Senes L Preferred Stock. If a conversion
of Series L Prefered Stock otcurs at the option of the halder,
subsequent to a8 dividend record date but prior to the dividend
payment date, the Corporation will still pay any accrued
dividends. payahle.
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The table below presents & summary of perpetual prefered s1ock outstanding at December 31, 2020,

Preferred Stock Summary
| Dofars i riliond, ERDE0T 88 NotE
Initial Ligwbdirts
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Sprien | Currnditres Foiti p -] 100 S0 141 Fma, LUKHT + 40 D 4058 8T ] Ihtt!n,ﬂ'!?_
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S L Porparbast Cormer Ble S -LOA, 18} 1000 AL ) F.a6% 2. T A
Seres T . Mon-cumdative 011 el e ] ] 6.00% 4,000, 11 El ey telay T, F00E
5.7 10, B e
Figsdhindinatrg Rxe L B/1{37; Jemn. LDOR O ior i
Seren U B 213 40,000 25,000 1,001 ¥ 3105 bos i B30 =3 Jurer 1, 003
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NOTE 14 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The table below prasents the changes in accumuiated OCI after-tax for 2020, 2019 and 2018,

ILnsibars by rrPecera) iDebs Bacirties wmfﬂ B m- Curency Total
Balsese, Decembser 33, 2037 5 11,206] § 1LO0E0) % (B31) § 13,1977 5 783 5 (7,083
" Acceanting changn nelsted 1o carain Lax effects (393) @ [T 7an e (1am)
Cumulsiive sdusiment for hedge sccounting changs = e a7 - - LT
Mot changn 13,953 T49 (533 {405) (54| (3,916}
Balance, December 31 2008 ] 155527 % 531 ¥ 110185 § 1434y & B8] % a2l
_ Motchange . LI - R -
Bslssce, Decomber 31, 2040 5 323 5 {1404 5 o % |4,1868] S (B4 8 6,533
Met change 4,739 (a98) 26 98) (B2 4377
Bslssce, Decomber 31, 3020 5 E122 § (1992 & 126 & 14.266) & (948 & [1656)

The table below presents the net change in fair value recorded in accumulated OCH, net realized gains and losses reclassified
inta eamings and othar changas for each componant of OCI pre- and aftertax for 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Tax Alves o A Tax Aher
Praiay. . Sitent o T - Y ... WL .. L
D i ko] 2030 2019 7018
Debi securiies:
Met ircrease (decreass| in fair value 8§ EEIS S (1712 % SA07 § 8020 §(2,000) § 6,020 §(5.28% § 1319 53860
Nt malired (gains] recinssitied into aamings 411 103 ] 1883 48 1145} 1133 an 03
Met changs Ea0g L6509 4.799 T.EAT 11,952 5875 5,312 1359 (3.953)
Diebil vahsation abjusiments.
Mot ircreass (decrepss) in fair value (869 156 513 (L.2TE ¥H9 1987} 957 224 728
Mot foaliped losses rectailied imo esmings ™' 18 14 18 18 6 FL Fi] 18 21
e T Changs (850 - iaem I1.258) -l 1943} 978 et )
Dorvathvos:
Het ircreans (decreass| m fair wmiue 1088 (2B a3an &9 156 536 (232 Ta [158)
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Mat inlo sl incoihe n i L ] Lk (26 TR 165 [LLe]] 1325
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Nat sehusrinl Keides and sihar isciesdifiod into asmings 261 (=) 198 150 [=14) 114 1m (L1 125
Settiements, cutadments and other 5 - 5 3 w2 1 12) L]
Ml change 13181 7 (3] 4 (58] 138 1531 118 405
Foralgn oamency
Mot idecrease) in falr vaiue [254) 199 [3:+4] (13 14 fiL1] 18 [19%) [203)
HNat realited (gains| ecispsified mto samings ' 13 ) e 1810 83 (i) 1149 a8 (511
el chonge (252 200 (63 [EEE]] a ]l 11567) (47 ]
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NOTE 15 Eamings Per Common Share
The calculation of EPS and diluted EPS for 2020, 2019 and 2018 is presentad below. For maore information on the calculation of
EPS, s Mate 1 - Swmmary of Significant Accounting Principles,

[ miliors, mucepl per share indarration 2020 2019 2018
Earnings per comman share
Nel income 5 17894 % 27430 & 28147
Frefomed siock dridersds (1431} 11433 {1451}
Fist income sopiicatss 1o common shansholders $ 16473 % 25008 § 26600
Ayernge common shares (ssued and cutsinnding 875332 9,350 5 1005
Edrslags pii emmes shine 3 168 % 277 % 264
Dilited eamings ped commss share
Fiet rcome appil i -] B 16473 % 25058 % 20668
Avednpe Comenon shares (asusd and cutstanding 875332 B,350.5 10,0965
Dt pebinial eomrm shams ' 43,7 524 1405
Totad Gihied sverage comman shores ssued ard outaianding 86,7969 89,4409 10,2369
Diluted earmings ped esmmses share £ 16T § 275§ 261

T i, SLTGTRYLE T SRS O S, SOl Shoe B masEe
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For 2020, 2019 and 2018, &2 milion average dilutive
potential common shares associated with the Series L preferred
stock were not included in the divied share count because the
result would have been antidilutive under the “ifconverted®
methed, For 2018, average options to purchase four million
shares of common stock were outstanding but not included in
the computation of EPS because the result would have been
antidilutive under the treasury stock method. For 2019 and
2018, average warranis to purchase three milllon and 136
millicn shares of common stock, respectively, wera included in
the diluted EPS calculation under the treasury stock method,
Substantially all of these warrants wers @xescised on or bafore
thair expiration date of lanuary 16, 20149

NOTE 16 Regulatory Requirements and

Restrictions

The Faderal Resers, Office of the Comptroller of the Curency
(GCC) and FDIC ([collectively, U.S. banking regulators) jointly
establish regulatory capital adequady rules, including Basel 3,
for U.5. banking organizations, As a financial holding company,
the Corporation is subject 1o capital adequscy mles issued by

the Federal Reserve. The Corporation’s banking entity affiliates
are subject to capital adequacy rubes issued by the OCC.

The Corporation and s primary banking entity affiliate,
BAMA, are Advanced approaches institutions under Basel 3. As
Advanced approaches institutions, the Corporation and its
banking entity affiliates are required to report regulatony risk-
based capital ratios and risk-weighted assets under both the
Standardized and Advanced approaches. The approach that
ylelds the lower ratio is used 1o assess capital adequacy,
including wnder the Prompt Corective Action (PCA) framework,

The Corporation is reguired to maintain @ minimum
supplementary beverage ratio (SLR) of 3.0 percent plus a
leverapge buffer of 2.0 percent in order to avold certain
restrictions on capital distributions and discretionary bonus
payments. The Corporation’s insured depository institution
subsidiaries are required to maintain @ minmum 6.0 percent
SLA to be considered well capitalized under the PCA framework.

The following iable presents capltal ratios and related
information in accordance with Basel 3 Standardized and
Advanced approaches 85 measured at December 31, 2020 and
2019 for the Corporation and BANA

Regulatory Capital under Basel 3
Bank. of Ametca Coigoratlon Eimndn & Arneiies, NLA.
a P ab & T e (] - ik 2 w A -
sty loeT, MROODT 8% Notisd) Decamber 31, 2020
Risk-based caphtnl metrics:
Comman eguity ter 1 capfni 3 1TEEE0 8 1TE.EED % 164,693 4 164,693
Tinr 1 capenl Faillee ] Fas el 164,643 14, 593
Tolal capital " 237,936 227,685 181,370 170,922
Aishmeighted assels (in billons) 1480 1,371 1331 1,004
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Tiot 1 cEptal ratis i3s 46 1140 ias 163 A5
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Supplementary k g FAtio T2 % 5.0 68 % 6.0
Decamber 31, 2049
Rink-based capital matrics;
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The capital adequacy rules issued by the U5, banking
regulators  reguire  institutions 1o meet the established
minimums outlingd in 1he table above, Failure to meet the
minimum requirements can lead to certain mandatory and
discretionary actions by regulators that could have a matenal
advarsa impact on the Corporation’s financial position. At
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corporation and its banking
antity affiliates were well capitalized,

In response to the uncertainty arsing from the pandemic,
the Federal Resarve required all large banks to suspend shane
repurchase programs during the second half of 2020, except for
repurchases 10 offsel shares awanded wnder equity-based
compensation plans, and to limit common stock dividends to
existing rates that did not exceed the average of the fast four
quarters’ net income. In December 2020, the Federal Reserve
announced that beginning in the first quarter of 2021, large
banks would be permitted to pay common stock dividends at
existing rates and to repurchase shares i an amount that,
when combined with dividends paid, does not exceed the
average of net income ower the last four gquarters. For maone
information, see Note 13 - Shareholders” Equity.

Other Regulatory Matters

The Federal Reserve requires the Corporation's bank
subgidiaries to maintain reserse requirements based on &
percentage of cerain deposit liabilities., The average daily
regerve  balance requirements, i exgess of wvaull cash,
maintained by the Corporation with the Federal Reserve Bank
were 3.8 billion for 2020, reflecting the Federal Reserve's
reduction of the reserve requirerment to 2ero in the first quarter
due to COVIR-19, and $14.6 billion for 2019, At December 31,
2020 and 2019, the Corporation had cash and cash
eguivalents in the amount of $4.9 billion and $6.3 billion, and
securities with a fair value of $16.8 billion and $14.7 billion
that were segregated in compliance with securities regulations.,
Cash hedd on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank to meet
reserve  requirements and cash and cash equivalents
segregated in compliance with secunties regulations are
components of restricted cash. For more information, see Note
10 - Federal Funds Sofd or Purchased, Securities Financing
Agreements, Shortderm Borrowings and Restricted Cash. In
acditien, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Corparation had
cash deposited with clearing organizations of $10.9 billion and
£76 bilion primarly recorded in other assets on the
Consolidated Balance Shaet.

Bank Subsidiary Distributions
The primary souwrces of funds for cash distnbutions by the
Comporation to its shareholders are capital distributions receved
from its bank subsidiares, BANA and Bank of America
California, N.AL In 2020, the Coeporation received dividends of
$10.3 hiion from BANA and $62 million from Bank of Amenca
California, N.A

The amount of dividends that a subsidiary bank may declare
in a calendar year without OCC approval is the subsidiary bank's
net profits for that year comiined with its retained net profits for
the preceding two years. Retained net profits, as defined by the
OCC, consist of net Income less dividends declared during the
period, In 2021, BAMA can declare and pay dividends of
approdimately $10.3 billion to the Carporation plus an additional
amount equal 1o its relained net profits for 2021 up to the date

14T Bank of Amalice

of any such dividend declaration, Bank of America California,
NA. can pay dividends of $198 million in 2021 plus an
additional amount equal 1o its retained net prafits for 2021 up
to the date of any such dividend declaration.

MOTE 17 Employee Benefit Plans

Pension and Postretirement Plans

Thie Corporalion Sponsors a qualified noncontnbutory trusteed
pension  plan  [Qualified Pension Plan), a number of
noncontibutory nongualified pension plans, and postretirement
health and life plans that cover eligible employees. MNon-U.5.
pension plans sponsored by the Corporalion vary based on the
country and local practices.

The Qualified Pension Plan has a balance guaraniee feafure
for account balances with paricipant-selecled investments,
apphied at the tme a benefit payment s made from the plan
that effectively provides peincipal protection for participant
balances transferred and cenain compensation credits, The
Corporation is responsibde for funding any shortfall on the
guarantee feature.

Benefits eamed under the Qualified Pension Plan have been
frozen. Thereafter, the cash balance accounts continue o eam
inviestment coedits or intemest coedits in accordance with the
terms of the plan document.

The Corporation has an annuity contract thatl guaraniees the
payment of benefits vested under a terminated U.5. pension
plan (Owher Pension Plan). The Corporation, under a
suppbemental agreement, may be responsible for or benefit from
actual experience and imesiment peformance of the annuity
assets. The Corporation made no contribution under this
agreement in 2020 or 2019, Contributions may be required in
the future under this agreement.

Tne Corporalion’s noncontributory, nongualified pengion
plans are unfunded and provide supplemental defined pension
benefits to cenain eligible employess.

In addition to retirmment pension benefits, certain benefits-
eligible employees may become eligible to continue participation
as rotifges in health care and/or life insurance plans sponsarad
by the Corporation. These plans are referred to as the
Postrptirement Health and Life Plans,

The Pension and Postretirement Flans table summarizes the
changes i Usd fair value of plan assels, changes in the
projected benefit obligation |PEO), the funded status of both the
accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) and the PBO, and the
weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations for the pension plans and postretirement plans at
December 31, 2020 and 2049. The estimate of the
Corporation’s PBO associated with these plans conshders
varipus  actuarial assumptions, including assumptions for
mortalty rates and discount rates. The discount mate
assumptions are derived fram a cash flow matching technigue
that utilizes rates that are based on Aaseted corporate bonds
with cash flows that match estimated bonefit payments of each
of the plans. The decreases in the weighted-average discount
rates in 2020 and 2019 resulted in increases to the PBO of
approximately $1.9 bilion and $2.2 bilion at December 31,
2020 and 2019, Significant pains and losses related to
changes in the PBO for 2020 and 2019 primarily resulted from
changes in the discount rate.
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Pension and Postretirement Plans "
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Thi Corporation’s estimate of is contributions o be made
to the MNor-U.S. Pension Plans, Nongualified and Other Pension
Plans, and Postretirement Health and Life Plans in 2021 is $20
million, %93 milion and %14 million, respectively. The
Corporation does not éxpect 1o make a comrbulion to the
Qualified Pension Plan in 2021, It is the policy of the
Cosporation 1o fund no legs than the minsmum funding amaunt

required by the Employee Retnement Income Security Act of
1974 (ERISA).

Pansion Plans with ABD and PEO in excess of plan assels as
of December 31, 2020 and 2010 are presented in the table
below, For these plans, funding strategies vary due 1o legal
requirements and local practices.

Plans with ABQ and PEQ in Excess of Plan Assets

Maongualitiesd
Mon-LLE. mned Oiher
Pension Plans Fansion Plans
[ i rrelonm) 2020 2018 2020 2019
FaO0 i wo § 0 T44 3 L03R & 968
ARG Ba1 130 1028 GRA
Far value of plan nsseis 1 151 i 1
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Components of Net Periodic Benelflt Cost
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The asset valuation method wsed to calculate the expected
returm on plan assets compenent of net perigdic benefit cost for
the Qualified Pension Plan recognizes 60 percent of the prior
year's market gains or losses ai the next measurement date
with the remaining 40 percent spredd equally over the
subsequent four years.

Gaing and losses for all benefit plans except postretirerment
health care are recognized in accordance with the standard
amaortization provisions of the applcable accounting guidance,
Met periedic postretirement health and life expense was
determined using the “projected unit credit™ actuarial method,
For the Postretirement Health and Life Plans, 50 percent of the
unrecognized gain or less at the beginning of the year {or at
subsequent remeasurement) is recognized on a level basis
during the yeas,

Assumed health care cost trend rates  affect  the
postretirement benefit obligation and benefit cost reported for
the Postretirement Health and Life Plans. The assumed health
care cost trend rate used to measure the expected cost of
banefits covarad by the Postretinement Health and Life Plans is
6.25 percent for 2021, reducing in steps to 5.00 percent in
2026 and later years,

The Corporation’s net periodic benefit cost (income)
recognized for the plans s sensitive to the discount rate and
expacted retum on plan assets, For the Qualified Pension Plan,
Nen-U.5. Pension Plans, Nongualified and Other Pension Plans,
and Postretirement Health and Life Plans. a 25 bp decline in
discount rates and expected return on assets would not have
had a significant impact on the net pernodic benefit cost for
2020,

Pretax Amounts Included in Accumulated OC! and OCH
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Plan Assets

The Qualified Pension Plan has been established as a
retirement wehicle for participants, and trusts have been
eatablished 10 securé benefits promiged under the Qualified
Pension Plan. The Corporation’s policy is to invest the trusi
asseis in & prudent manner for the esclusive purpose of
providing benefits to participants and defraying reasonable
expenses of admenistration. The Corporation’s imvestment
strategy is designed to provide a total return that, over the long
term, increases the ratio of assets to liabilities. The strategy
attempts to maximize the investment retum on assets at a level
of risk deemed appropriate by the Corporation while complying
with ERISA and any applicable regulations and laws. The
investment strategy utilizes asset allocation as a peincipal
determinant for establishing the ssk/rstum  profile of the
assets. Asset allocation ranges are established, periodically
reviewsd and  adusted as  funding levels and  liability
characteristics cheange. Active and passive nvestment
managers are employed 1o help enhance the nsk/retum profile
of the assets. An additional aspect of the investment strategy
used to minimize risk (part of the asset allocation plan) includes
matching the exposure of participant-selected mvestment
MEdSUres.

The assets of the MonllS. Pension Plans are primarily
attributable to a8 U.K. pension plan, This UK. pension plan's
assels are invested prudently 5o that the benefits promised o
members are provided with consideration given 1o the nature
and the duration of the plans” liabilities. The selected assel

allocation strategy is designed 1o achieve a higher return than
the lowest risk strategy.

T expected rate of relumn on plan assels assumption was
developed through analysis of historical market retums,
historcal asset class volatility and comrelations, cument market
conditions, anticipated future asset allacations, the funds® past
expenence and expectations on potential future market retums.
The expected return on plan assels assumplion is determined
using the calculated market-related valve for the Qualified
Pansion Plan and the Other Pension Pian and the fair value for
the NorU.5, Pension Plans and Postretirement Health and Life
Flans, The expected return on plan  assets  assumption
represents a longterm averape view of the performance of the
assels in the Qualfied Pension Plan, the Monll5, Pension
Plans, the Other Pension Plan, and Postretirement Health and
Life Plans, a retumn that may or may not be achieved during ary
one calendar year. The Other Pension Plan is invested solely in
an annulty contract, which is primanly Invested in fixed-income
securities structured such that asset maturities match the
duration of the plan's obligations.

The target allocations for 2021 by asset category for the
Qualified Pensson  Plan, Non-U.5. Pension  Plans, and
Mongualified and Mher Pension Plans are presented in the
following table. Equity securities for the Qualified Pension Plan
include common stock of the Corporation in the amounts of
3274 milllon (1.26 percent of total plan assets) and 3315
milion (L.55 percent of total plan assets) at December 31,
2020 and 2019,

2021 Target Allocation

Basst Categary
Equity secunties
Debt sacunties
Renl asinbe
Db

Parcanags
lified
Qualified Nondls. and Other
15 - 500 0-25% [
45 . B0 40 Tom 98 . 100%
o 10% 0-18% [
0-5% 10 - 40 0 - 5%

Fair Value Measurements

For more information on fair value measurements, incheding descriptions of Level 1, 2 and 3 of the fair value hiersrchy and the
valuation methods employed by the Corporation, see Note 1 - Spmmany of Significant Accounting Principles and Note 20 - Fair Value
Measurements. Combened plan investment assels measured at fair valua by leval and in total at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are

summarized in the Fair Value Measurements table.

Bank of Ametics 150
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Falr Value Measurements
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The Leval 3 Fair Value Measurements table presents a reconciliation of all plan investment assets measured at fair value using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Leve! 3 Fair Value Measurements

Actunl Retum on
Plan Aszets 5308
Balance Hedd a4 the Purchoses. Sales Balanca
Sy 1 Anporting (ate ond Seittemesis Bocambes 31
| Do i aksans| 2030
Flied Income
U.5, govemment and agercy seculitos ] i 3 — 3 [V T
Real estate
Fonl esiabe commingled, 'mutal funds 937 i o 243
Limited pastnarships L] 3 im ]
Oihar BIA [ 49 S
Tetal B 1661 8 LIS ElY 1724
2019
Fland incomn
U.5. govemment and agency secunlies 5 g % - i % B
Feal wilate
Prianis fenl axlate ] =" (1] s
Feanl eatate communghed/ mulual hards (125 a3 9 -Fi
Limited partnerships E3 = & 90
Gihar SRA L] 42 L]
.. ¥ 1568 % = %3 & £ ]
2048
Flued Ineamis
U5, ROvemnment and Agercy Seculiles § LI | — § — % ]
Resl mstate
Private real astate 63 [£4] 181) &
Fonl astane commnging/mulusl Reds a1 52 Z RAS
Limiied parinarships B5 a2 & az
Oiher Investmenis T4 _ El4 SE8
Total 3 1000 % 33 5 444 5 1,569
Projected Benefit Payments

Banefit payments projected to be made from the Qualified Pansion Plan, NonU.5. Pansion Plans, Nongualified and Other Pension
Plans, and Postretirement Health and Life Plans are presented in the table below,
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Projected Benefit Payments
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Defined Contribution Plans
The Corporation maintains qualified and nonqualified defined
contnbution retirament plans. Tha Corporation recorded expense
of $1.2 billion, $1.0 bidion and $1.0 bllen in 2020, 2019 and
2018 related 1o the qualibed defned contribution plans. At both
December 31, 2020 and 2019, 189 million shares of the
Corporation's common  stock wera held by these plans.
Payments to the plans for dividends on common stock were
$138 million, 5133 million and $115 million in 2020, 2019 and
2018, respactively.

Cenain nonell 5, employess are covered undér defined
contribution pension plans that are separately administered in
accordance with local laws,

NOTE 18 Stock-based Compensation Plans

The Corporation administers a number of equity compensation
plans, with awards being granted predominantly from the Bank
of America Key Employes Equity Plan (KEEP), Under this plan,
GO0 million shares of the Corporation's common stock are
authoriped 1o be used for grants of awards,

Dwring 2020 and 2019, the Corporation granted 86 million
and 94 milllen RSU swards to cerain employees under the
HKEEP. These RS5Us were authorized to settle predominantly in
shares of commen stock of the Corporation, Ceriain RSUs will
b settied in cash or contain settement provisions that subject
these awards 10 variable accounting whereby compensation
axpanse is adjusted to fair value based on changes in the share
price of the Corporation’s common stock up to the settlement
date. Of the RSUs granted in 2020 and 2019, 61 millien and
T1 milion will vest predominantly over three years with most
vesting occuring in one-third incremants on each of the first
three anniversaries of the grant date provided that the employee
remding continuously employed with the Conporation duning that
time, and will be expensed ratably over the vesting period, net
of estimated forfeitures, for nonsetirement eligible employess
based on the grantdate fair value of the shares. For RSUs
granted 1o employees who are retinement eligible, the awards
are deemed authorized as of the beginning of the year preceding
the grant date when the incentive award plans are generally
approved. As a result, the estimated value is expensed ratably
over the year preceding the grant date, Additonally, 25 million
and 23 million of the RSUs granted in 2020 and 2019 will vest
predominantly over four years with most vesting oocurming in
one-fourth increments on each of the first four anniversaries of
the grant date provided that the employes remains continuously
employed with the Corpostion during that time, and will be
expensed ratably over the vesting percd, net of estimated
forfgituros, based on U grant-date fair value of thi shanes.,

The compensation cost for the stock-based plans was $2.1
Billion, 2.1 billion and $1.8 billon, and the refated income tax
penefit was $505 milion, $511 million and $433 million for

2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, Al December 31, 2020,
there was an estimated $2.0 bilion of total unrecognized
compensation cost related 1o cerain share-based compensation
awards that is expected o be recognized over a pariod of up to
four years, with a welghted-average period of 2,2 years,

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The total fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units
vested in 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $2.3 billion, $2.6 billion
and $2.3 billion, respectively. The table below presents the
status a1 December 31, 2020 of the share-seltled resuncted
stock and restricted stock units and changes during 2020.

Stock-settled Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock

Weighted.
average Grast
Shares Units Dade Falr Value
147,909,315 & 27.83

dstsianding ot fanissy 1, 2020

fLmnted B3, 604, TR 3301
Wesiod |8 ST E 28, 2730
Cannaled (4,982 584) 30.88

Outatanding 31 Docamber 31, 2020 167,963,320 30,60
Cash-settled Restricted Units

At December 31, 2020, approximately two million cash-settled
restricted units remain cutstanding, In 2020, 2019 and 2018,
the amount of cash paid to seitle the RSUs that vested was
$81 million, $84 million and $1.3 billion, respectively,

MNOTE 19 Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense for 2020, 2019 and
2018 are presented in the table below.

Income Tax Expense
Dy in masonaY 2020 2010 2048
Current Inoome fax esponse
L5 fpderal % 1092 § L1388 § 816
5. stals moel local Lath ool 1.377
Monll. 5, B0 s 1203
" Total cument exponss JEIE 7REG 3306
T e
WS federal [Fa5) 2001 2879
L5 stote mnd bocal (23% 223 240
el 8. [ToB) 211 202
FOS) Aol e RS | |,
Total incomn tas saponse $ 1101 § 5324 5 6437

Tatal income tax expense does not reflect the tax effects of
iterms that are included in OCI each period. For mose
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information, see Note 14 - Accumulated Other Comprefensive
Income (Loss), Other tan effects included in OCI each period
resulted in an expense of $1.5 billion and $1.9 billien n 2020
and 2019 and a benefit of $1.2 billion in 2018.

Income tax expense lor 2020, 2019 and 2018 varied from
the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate
1o income before income taxes. The Corporation’s federal

statutoey tax rate was 21 percent for 2020, 2019 and 2018. A
reconciliation of the expected U.5. federal income tax expense,
calculated by applying the federal statutory tax rate, 1o the
Corporation’s actual income tax expense, and the effective tax
rates for 2020, 2019 and 2018 are presented in the table
balow.

Reconcillation of Income Tax Expense

{ Doy i o
Expected 1.5, fedensl mooma b aipenans
InCrenss |decreass) in inaes resuiting froms
Stab e eaponss, nat of bedenl banafit
AMonfable housing/enegyfother credity
Tax w changes
Tan-puampl intome, ncluding dividends
Sharshased compansation
Changes i prior-penicd UTES, including smonsst
Fondeduatinlo aapersas
Hale dfprental on nondl 5. samings
Dt
" Tatal Income lax ml_lllr;ﬂ_l

_ Amgurt  Petce Amount  Percent Amount  Percent
2620 018 038
T 710% § G878 210% § 7263 oW

Tim 18 1283 39 1.387 4.0
[2863) [FLET] §2308) Ty LR 15.8
159%) 3T - - - -
[EELT] (RN 1] (433 113 413 1.3
1299 Lk i [225) LT 1257 1ad

(L] 0.2} EE3p i1.9) 124 04

b 7 290 0.0 302 0.8

211 11 504 1.5 L 0.3

(T4) 9.3y 5 ol {1TEH |0LE)
[T B8% 3 502 2 160% 5 G497 18.6%

The reconcilation of the beginning unrecognized tax benefits
(UTB) balance 1o the ending balante is presented in the
following table;

Reconcilfation of the Change in Unrecognized Tax
Benefits

fesiarn i il @020 018 2018
Bulance, lamuany 1 $ L7 § 2407 § 1773
Inciaases Mdatnd 1o DEToed ke
UfiRg, el ELATHIL FHAT 238 238 35
Incinasan related 1o DORTE L ki
dunng prce years' ] 401 A0
Decreases relaled 1o posticm
Lakin during Dol yeaes [ R {1102} [AT1)
Sottlements —_ 541} L]
Expeniion of sintuts of Gmiiatoes —_ 15} —
Balanco, Decombar 31 ¥ 1340 § 1175 8 2107

! T s of the poatons tskes duing prior yeer @en. from the SI41] malon, HO1E)
sl sl $144 millioh in e Beconclation of scoms Tan [ipense bl dus 1o .

It is reasonably possible that the UTE balance may decrease
by a5 much as S$166 million during the next 12 months, since
resolved tems will be removed from the balance whether their
resolution results in payment of recognition.

The Corporation recognized interest expense of $9 million in
2020, an interest benefit of $19 million in 2019 and interest
espense of $43 million in 2018, At December 31, 2020 and
2019, e Corparation™s accrual for interest and penalties that
related o income taxes. net of taxes and remittances. was
$130 million and $147 million,

The Corporation files income tax retums in more than 100
state and non-U.S. jurisdections each year. The IRS and other
tax authorities in countries and states in which the Corporation
has significant business operations examine taX retwmns
paricdically (continuously in some jursdictions). The Tollowing
table sumemarizes the status of examinations by major
jurisdiiction for the Corporation and vanous subsidianes at
December 31, 2020,

werss sinte e ond enescional offseis. as well 85 the nchiseon of nieseal I e

Hecnnriaiinn of ncome Tac Egenas Lshin

At December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the balance of the
Cosporation's UTBs which would, if recognized, affect the
Conporation's effective 1ax rate was 3976 million, $814 million
and $1.6 billion, respectively. Included in the UTB balance are
some ems the recognition of which would net affect the
effective tax rate, such as the tax effect of certain temporary
differences, the portion of gross state UTBS that would be offsel
by the tax benefit of the associated federal deduction and the
portion of gross nonll.S. UTBs that would be offset by tax
reductions in other jurisdictions.

153 Bank of Amanica

Tax Examination Status
sealus Al
Years unudar Pesombier 31
[Examination ' 2030

United Seates 20172020 Feslad Examination
Caldomia 201322047 Fesld Exnmination
Hw York 20183008 Feeld Examination
United Hingdom & HILE  Feeld Examination

A ik Y SRS B0 T YRANE PO FETLNT SLDHICT I SRMTERGon
M Fikd i rmination for iy e 050 Lo Degn n 021

Significant components of the Corporation's net defermed tax
assats and labélities at Decamber 31, 2020 and 20189 are
presented in the following table,
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Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Decomissr 31
{DoRary o | 2020 21_31_'3_
Dalersed Ly aesels
Het operateg loss camdonmarnds & TTaT % TA7
Allpamnoe for cred losses 4704 2304
Socurity, loan and dobt vnlastions 2571 1.860
Lease |iaadity 2400 23
Emnpioyes compensation and retrement benefis 1,562 1822
Azt papeeied 1481 L7ie
Credit canyforstnis 484 163
Ot .'I...I:I.'.'I 1.21;!3
Cross giferiosd e gisats 2248 15479
Waluyaton slowance 2,345} f1.0En)
Tolnl doferred tax sssets. net of voluation
alowanoe 20,002 104540
Deferted i Rabilities
Erguipanant s financing 3101 1933
Fghtio-use ssant 2296 2248
Fnd ausois 1,867 1,500
ESG-raiatnd Lhx CMil imeesimants 1,030 1577
Avndabin-lorsale socurties 170 100
Otaest 4570 1 8EL
 Ciroaa deferied Lax iaiiises 12 586 1bc2ds
Mt deheried Lan Basels §  TA447 § G444

On January 1, 2020, the Corporation adopted the CECL
accounting standard. The transition adjustment included a tax
penefit of $760 milllon in retained eamings, which increased
deferred tax assets by a corresponding amount.

The table below summarizes the deferred tax assets and
related valuation allowances recognized for the net operating
loss (NOL) and tax credit carmyforwards at December 31, 2020,

Net Operating Loss and Tax Credit Camyforward Deferred
Tax Asseis

Met
- o . Pradberad First Yaat
[ Dxstiary y rabiam| Tan Assst Allcrwanen Tax Assot Explring
Mol opetating iosses -
us 5 s 3 — ¥ ¥ Aser 2028
Pl operaling lnsses -
(TS 5,606 = B.H4 Figre
Mot opeiating Insses
olhar nonUL S, S0 441} =] Warioas
Net opemting losses
LS stabes ™ 1,279 |&7a) 700 arius
Femign tax credas 484 (4B =  AMer 2028

T fippresants LK. becketdeier il oomtaling lones IRt My Bo Gattied Rotwand maefiniter .

Y Wl e DOETITNG KAGEE B AhED VR 0N SROWRnCRS A LS. Shaed DeAME Cordaiening

Ho menefi of ledemi deducions were §3 6 blon ped § 700 melion,

Management concluded thal no valuation allowance was
necessarny to reduce the defemed tax assets related to the UK,
NOL carnforwards and U5, federal and certain state NOL
carryforwards since estimated future taxable income will be
sufficient 1o wtllize these assels priof 10 thelr expiration, The
majerity of the Corporation’s UK. net deferred tax assets, which
congigt primarily of NOLs, are expected to be realized by cerain
subsidiarias ovar an axtended number of years. Management's
conclusion is supported by financial results, profit forecasts for
the relevant antities and the indefinite perdod to carry forward
HOLs, However, a material change in those estimates could
lead management o reassess such valuation  allowance
conclusions.

At December 31, 2020, US, federal incoma taxes had not
been provided on approximately $5.0 bilion of temporary

differences associated with  imestments in nonll5,
subsidiaries that are essentially parmanent in duration. If the
Corporation were 10 record the associated deferred tax liability,
the amount would be approdmately $1.0 billion,

NOTE 20 Fair Value Measurements

Under appliceble accounting standards, fair value is defined as
the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid
to transfer a liability (an exit price) In the principal or most
advantageous market for the assel or liability in an orderly
transaction between market paricipants on the measurement
date, The Corporation detemmings the fair values of its financial
instruments under applicable accounting standards that require
an entity to maximize the use of observable inpuls and minimize
the use of unobsenable inputs. The Corporation categorizes its
financial instruments into three levels based on the established
fair value hierarchy and conducts a review of fair value hierarchy
classifications on & quarterdy basis, Translers inte or out of fair
valwe hierarchy classifications are made if the significant inputs
used In the financial models measuring the fair values of the
assets and labilities become unobservable or obsenvable in the
current marketplace. For more information reganding the fair
vahee hisrarchy and how the Corparation measures fair value,
see Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accownting Principles. The
Corparation accounts for certain financial instruments under the
fair value option. For more information, see Note 21 - Falr Value
Optiar,

Valuation Techniques

The following sections oulline the valsation methedelogies for
the Corporation’s assets and liabilities. While the Corporation
beleves its valuation methods are appropiate and consistent
with other market participants, the wuse of different
methodelogies or assumplions to determine the fair valuee of
cartain financial instrumeants could result in a different astimate
of fair value &t the reporting date.

During 2020, there were no significant changes o valuation
approaches or technigues that had, or are expected to have, a
material impact on the Corporation’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

Trading Account Assets and Liabilities and Debt Securities
The fair values of trading account assets and labilites ane
primarily based on actively traded markets where prices ane
based on eithes direct market quotes or obsensad transactions.
The fair values of debt securities are generally based on quoted
mwarkel prices or market prices for similar assets, Liquidity is a
significant” factor in the determination of the fair values of
trading account &3sets and labilies and debl secunlies,
Market price guotes may not be readily availeble for some
positons Such as positions within 8 markel Sector where
trading activity has slowed significantly or ceased. Some of
these instruments are valued using & discounted cash flow
modeal, which estimates the fair value of the securities using
internal credit risk, and interest rate and prepayment risk
maodals that incorporate managament’s best estimate of curment
key assumptions such as default rates, loss seventy and
prepayment rates. Principal and interest cash flows ane
discounted using &n observable discount rmate for similar
instrumants with adpustments that management baelieves a
market pamicipant would consider in determining fair value faor
the specific security, Othir instruments ane valeed using a net
asset wvalue approach which considers the wvalue of the
underlying  secunities. Underlying assets are valued using
extemnal pricing services, where available, or matnx pricing
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baged on the wintages and ratings. Situations of (lliquidity
generally are trigéered by the market’s perception of credit
uncerainty regarding a single company or a specific market
sector. |n these instances, fair value is determined based on
limited  avallable market information and other factors,
principally from reviewing the issuer’s financial statements and
changes in credit ratings made by one or more rating agencies,

Derivative Assets and Liabilities

The fair values of derivative assets and liabilities traded in the
OTC market ame determined using quanttative modeis that
utilize multiple market inputs including interest rates, prices and
ndices o generate continuous yield or pricang curves and
volatility factors to value the position. The majority of market
nputs ane actively quoted and can be valdated through extemal
sources, including brokers, market transactions and third-party
pricing services, When third-pamy prncing sensces are used, the
mathods and assumptions are reviewed by the Comporation.
Estimation risk is greater for dedvative esset and liability
positions that are either optionbased or have longer maturity
dates where observable market inputs are less readily available,
or  ane  unobsaerable, in which case, quantitative-based
axtrapolations of rate, price or Index scenanos are used in
cetermining fair values, The fair values of demvative assels and
liabilitees include adjustments for market liguidity, counterparty
criadil quality and other instrument-specific factors, where
appropriate. In addition, the Corporation incorporates within its
fair value measuremenis of OTC dervatives a valuation
adjustment to reflect the credit risk associated with the net
position, Positions ame netted by cownterpany, and fair value for
net long exposures is adjusted for counterparty credit risk while
the fair value for net shorml exposwes (o adiusted for the
Corporation's own credit risk, The Corporation also incorporates
Fvi within its fair value measurements to include funding costs
on  uncollateralized dermatives and derivatives where the
Cosporation i3 not permitted 1o use the collateral it recelves. An
estimate of Sevarity of loss 5 also used in the determination of
fair value, primarily based on market data.

Loans and Loan Commitments

The fair values of loans and loan commitments are based on
market prices, where Bvailable, or discounted cash flow
analyses wsing market-based credit spreads of comparable debt
instruments or credit dervatives of the specific bomower or
comparable borowers, Results of discounted cash  flow
analyses may be adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect other
market conditions or the: percenad credit sk of the bormower,

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The fair values of MSRs are primarily determined using an
aption-adjiusted sproad valuation approsch, which factors in
prepayment risk 1o determine the fair value of MSRs. This
approach consists of projecting sendcing cash flows under
multiple interest rate scenarios and discounting these cash
Nlows using nak-adusted discount rates,
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Loans Held-for-sale

The fair values of LHFS are based on quoted market prices,
whare availabie, or are determined by discounting estimated
cash flows using interest rates approximating the Corporation’s
current onigination rates for similar loans adjusted o reflect the
inherent credit risk. The borrowerspecific credit nsk is
embedded within the quoted market poces or @5 imphed By
considenng loan performance when selecting comparables.

Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt

The Corporation isswes structured Rabilities that have coupons
or repayment terms linked to the performance of debl or equity
securities, interast rates, indices, curmancies or commodities.
The fair values of these structured liabilities are estimated using
quantitative models for the combined dorvative and debt
portions of the notes. These models incorporate obserable
and, in some mstances, unobservable inpuls including secunly
prices, Interest rate yield curses, option volatility, currency,
commodity or equity rates and comelalions among these inputs,
The Corporation also considers the impact of its own credit
spread in delermming the discount ratle used to value these
lighilities. The credit spread is determined by referance to
ohsarvable spreads in the secondary bond market.

Securities Financing Agreements

The fair values of certain reverse repurchase agreements,
repurchase agreements and secuntes borowed transactons
are determined using gquantitative models, including discounted
cash flow models that require the use of mulliple market inputs
including interest rates and spreads 1o generate continuous
yleld or pricing curves, and volatiliy factors. The majority of
market inputs are actively quoted and can be validated through
extemnal sources, Including brokers, market transactions and
thirdiparty pricing senices,

Deposits

The fair valves of deposits are determined using quantitative
madals, including discounted cash flow models that require the
use of multiple markel inputs including inlerest rates and
spreads 1o penerate conlinuous yiedd or pricing curves, and
volatiity factors, The majorty of market inputs are actively
quoted and can be validated through external sources, including
brokers, market transactions and thindparty pricing services.
Thix Corparation considers the impact of s own credit Spread m
thi valuation of these liabilities. The credit risk is determined by
refergnce to obsernable credit $preads in the secondary cash
market.

Asset-backed Secured Financings

The fair values of assat-backed securad financings are based an
extemnal broker beds, where awvailable, or are determined by
discounting  estimated cash flows using inlerest  mates
approximating the Corporation’s current origination rates for
similar loans adjusted 1o reflect the inherent credi risk,
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Recurring Fair Value

Agsets and habilites carmed at fair valug on a recurring basis at December 31, 2020 and 2019, including financial instruments that
the Corporation accounts for under the fair value option, are summarized in the following tables.

Decamber 13, 2020
Fair Waluo Moasuremonts

KNatling Aasetn Liabsillilen
fibalirs i ising} -, ! Lara 2 Lol B Apesimerts AL
Asgaty

Timo dirpodils placod and offl ShomS0m meEimants ] 1640 3§ -3 - & - 3 1649
Fedoral fumds soid s secuntes Domowed of purchased under
10 Pesel - 108856 — = 108 856
Tracing aocount assets:
U, 5, Tradsury and agency securfos 46,310 1088 - it 483710
Comporaln securitics, trding loans and othesr —_ 2817 1359 - 4178
Eqpaity pecurivos AT mwane a7t - BTaTl
Nonll 5. sonegn debt 5753 IO 884 354 —_ 891
Morigage trading loans, MBS and ABS:
U5, g d agancy g e == 1566 15 e F1641
mwmr_(mmmm - B.440 1365 = 2,805
Totad trading sccount axsets ™ BT 344 108130 3380 - FLE: L
Drvatten adaits 15614 £16.178 *TEL (38T 3TLH 4TAT
AFS detrt securities;
UL 5. Traadury and sgancy securiies 126506 1114 - - 116,380
Morigngs backed sacunties:
Agancy — [T - —_ ELA4G
Agencycollaieraized mongage chijgators - 5260 = - 5260
Hon-agency makdenlinl — 631 are _— 1009
Comumancial — 16404 —_ _ LEATL
Mon-U 5 securtien - 13999 1B - 14047
CHFde ALl S Cur e - 2640 Y - a7l
Tan-esempl securiss -— 16588 476 - 16774
Total AFS dobl secuntas 125,206 L1RSRT (7] - FETETT
Ottt diabl Securities comioed ot toir v
LS, Trssdury and aancy seturities o —_ — - ol
resiceniial MES _ 50 367 773
Mon-U.8. and olfes secorilios B0 -— - 11244
Total cohir GHbT GOC-FTINS CHTog at fair vakes 2712 CEETY F67 = 12110
Loans and ieases = E.964 v = 6681
Loans rald-on s - &L Pl - L1585
Ottee nazats ' ; S - S L L B e 1ETIR
Total assets™ 4 232433 % TI203T 9964 § (387,371} & 6IT,123
Lisbiitses
Intedusl-benring depasils in U5, oMices 5 - § 481 & - B - as1
Federal fumds purchessd and seourities losned or sold wnces
ARreamants 10 reputhaie -— 138391 - — 135,391
Tradng Account labalites;
LS. Treaury and agancy securiiss 9425 139 —_ -_— 56
Ecuity sitirmios 316D 42315 — - 4243
Mondl 5 soweEign debt 5,853 B4z — - 13896
COpenmn sacaritien and other = GAID 16 it Galb
Totnl trading account kabdiies 53467 17837 18 _ 71330
Dwrivatien linhistis 14,907 &12 881 B2109 [EL UL A5 B3
Short-berm bonmowings _ EAT4 —_ —_ 5874
Accrued sxgerises and olher katulition 12297 4014 - - 16,311
Long ke cedq = 1038 1184 = 32200
Totnl aliites ™ 3 B)6T1 3 607514 & TS 8 (38HA81 & 30T.A03
T aTauns pRrEen T STRacT of gily ShiaTealie Mailoy Remng el ke Al ] O [RBCe] wAIT T ST COUT RS
' inciudes $72 7 bilon of GSE
" inchates soturitioy Wi @ far e of 78 A bilon thal woes segegaied in wiE ¥ o wh organgationy, Fhis smound i ichaded in e
o i o Babarens Shel Trsdf SLolafT el leo Pohades Secoud Sl arertds of S5 sl (el e soosurinl Ton 8 T kv 0 Q062 o Sl

[
RIELEbME VIS, WINCh % T DUTent seling pRCE WOEE BT CORLS B0 el

™ pchas Wit of §1,0 bilon sPich o kb il Lved s

™ Wiokal recumng Ll 3 asaeis seen 0035 peroent of Sl sonsobdaned asars. and inisl securnng Lo 1 Rabities wern 0,20 pewert of 160l eomsafamed Ralsbliss
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i - 31. 2018
g T T
Matting Ansate/Lisbiltes
|Icstars b resasna] Level 1 Lerverl 2 L 3 J fnd i Pt Value
Axnats
Time depoais ploced and offer shor Sem myesiments 11 1,000 * — § -— £ e ] 1,000
Foder! fumds soid ard securties bomowed of porchased wder
agreamants 10 resel - 80,354 - - B0, 364
Trachng account Ssmes;
U.5, Treasury and agency Soourties 49,8517 4187 -— - B3,ET4
Comperala pacuiilien, tading iopas and olfwes e 25,126 L.507 — il
Equaty SBOUeS 53,597 32,612 33 - B6,455
MonLS. sowensign debt A.945 T ESL aE - .80
Merigage ireding loans, MBS ond ARS:
u.5, go agency g o - A - - 24,304
Morigaps rading feans, ABS and cther MBS — 8,786 1,583 _ 10,339
Total trading account ausets ™ ior.ora 118,566 37B1 -_ 3¥.838
Dorvatien adsels 14,079 328,442 2224 {306 262} ARG
AFS deil secunitos:
L5, Treasury and agency socuriies Br.aa2 1,596 —_ - BO 5T
Mergape-acimd wruriss
Agancy - 1232 B2R - - 123828
AgwncysolInlaraited mongage oliligatens - 4,641 - - 4,641
Monagency msidenial = EA3 434 - 1,017
Commarncial == 15021 = = 15001
MonelL 5. mecirties - 11,585 3 - 11,951
(e Lannble pecuries - AETE &5 - A0l
. Tuai ok bectied e A5, 185 — 1853
" Total AFS debl secuntes 67,332 177,708 590 - 245,539
Ot diebt securities camied ot Tair vais:
LS, Trmddisry i Bency Sbiuris 3 - - - 3
Agency MBS - 3,003 - - 3,003
Mon-agercy rewcerdin W65 - 1,035 200 - 1334
e ML i ol i R A L = = Lt ond
Total it SeER SaluMing carmad at fair vikis 03 10,226 99 - 10828
Loans and leases - T.6a2 Gaa —_ 8,338
Loans hald-iargas - 333 avs - 3709
(e assals '™ 11782 1,376 2350 = 15,518
Total assets ™ ;] 1878 4 BGTO5R 4 16331 & (il 262 & 005, T
Liapditari
Intersl-beanng deposis in U5, offces ¥ — § BB § = & = § ]
Federy funds punhesed and seourilios loaned of soid ondes
agmamants 1t repurchas — 186008 —_ —_ 10.008
Traang accgent labdilios:
U.5. Treasury and agency sscurties 13,140 8z — —_ 13,432
Epaity sbcurition A48 4144 i — 42,204
Monell.5. soveneign debt 10, 7HL 11,310 - - 23,061
Corporsin sacutities and osher = 5478 15 — 5493
Total trading sccount lebiliios 2,039 .24 T — B1.270
Durvative linbikbes 11,904 320,478 4,764 (T06 218} 38,229
Shont-berm bormowings - 3,641 -_ - 3041
Az dagbeiEs bt othar labslitis 13.937 1,807 - - 15434
Long Berm debt — I8 B2 1148 - 34,976
Talal linbiites ™ ¥ BTATO % ITH83F 3 G830 ¥ |T0E0I8} 192.365
" Amaunts ropresend he mpact of iegally srdoseatie master retng g andd alwn cawh fad or placed weth e wame coumTiemanies
T wacheten $28. 1 biten of 51
" wchetes secaries Wity 8 far waue of $14.7 bellan thel wies segeegaitd n EarE AT i - weihy ChEang (FRaRRLEDonE. This snmount B daheled m Te
e Fayirra o,

an
W dariaten WSRE of §1 5 biln mheh g claasited g Level T adcets,
™ Wptal mecuing Level 2 osseis weee 0042 peroend nf folsf consofidaned assris. snd ol securnng Leved 1 Rabiities wery 02T povoend of iinl consofdried Reisiies
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The following tables present a reconciliation of all assets  transfers out of Level 3 occur primarily due 10 increased price
and liabilities measwed at fair value on a recurring basis using  observability. Transfers ococur on a regular basis for longterm
significant unobserable inputs (Level 3) during 2020, 2019 and  debl instruments dug to changes in the impact of unobservable
2018, incleding net realized and unrealized gains (losses)  inputs on the value of the embedded derivative in relation to the
included in eamings and accumulated OCI, Transfers into Level  instrument as a whole,

3 occur primanly due to decreased price observability, and

Level 3 - Fair Value Measurements '™

Changs In
Urwaited
Terai G
Fanied [Lomas) b
Lirenei Lived Sl |
Gisrd Gras G Rataea
{Lomann] im Gairm Tromidern  Taarmfamn Finarciasl
Bl Hat [r— L. ] g — L T ——
{Demars o rrefssr) larusry | Vscoms ™ moo ™ saws eiy  Level 3 Lewld Dwosmoer 31 Bl e
‘ear Ended December 31 3000 o : o o S
Trasfiry mccoint st
Corpoinle securilies. reSng loans snd other 8 LS0T & M3 8 (1% 430 S[M:J S 10 8 (I8} S BID 8 (554 B 1358 8 (0m
Equity securites i ] (43 - ™ sn - 3 8 149 T a1
oS, Svireggn a0 - 45 (] T (Bl - 1A 150 253 E= a7
Moigage trodng lnana, AB5 and ofha MES 1553 [EE]] 3 BTT  (T4E) n 198} THT L]l La4o (L5l
Tokal tradvig Sctiunl 348 481 =20 50 L8] 1163 n A2 1G04 (L35 EEC -] (178
Mt derrenlive assaty (kobdiies ) ™ (2/538) 235) - 130 (BB - 1y 25 47E (A4EE (853
AFS detil stcurtion:
Mo bgeeny 1esHoenTin MES &34 [+l 3 BB - a4y 158 (230 £ ] @
Mol S, socurition 2 1 - - 133 - 1] 17 - 1. 1
Citfser Lnesiie Socurmies &5 - - T 11 - - 1 - ki1 -
Taa-tuempl securtns 108 (3] 3 — - — (L6 i (8 1=1] ATE (20
Telal AFS cain serunties L] [F=1] L} 2 154 - [EET ] 441 (248 1] [E31]
Dther ciabil Becurtes camied ml fak wmiue = Nom
Bfoncy seaidentinl MES o ] ] - ] - LFLH 100 (444} FLT a
Leans and ioases " [=H] e} s [TE 2 JETET] 8 - T @
Leany hks for-anin ™™ aTE ] (=11 ] L= 11w =] [ 5] T .11
Diher assets = 2380 R 178 4 -1 (508} 5 @ 1970 (AT
Trafirg Actoun kabiftee - Equity securflies =11 1 - - = - - - 1 - -
Tramtivg Accaisn iRl - Congoniln conition
mnd othi (18] L] T ko] = 1 1 = 18] =
Langinim dett ™ {1,249} (48] 2 £ 1=11] — AT nn 51 14 [R5 L20) 411
‘ear Ended December 31 2019
TemSing SECOU RidetL
Compomin securities. radng kans and other 5 1038 § s F  — 5 B3 RIBmE I8 E (MTEN S 899 5 439§ LBOT & 9
Equity smeuritign Ime 13 — I ] — 1] T |4 m 18]
MoniE. 5. soveregn detr Era] a5 [RE]] 1 - - [LIT] E:] 1) 482 47
MoAgage asng lasns, AiS and ostmar MAS 1635 0 il BEQ  ROW - {175 e 15050 1,553 ol
Total frading scoount assets 3534 FE] {18 1235 (1376, 18 @13} 1585 =] 3,7BL T
Nt certentivr ansats (knbdities) " [Lat] 1am - T8 ATH - (L] WT 07T (.85 T
AFS dotil sbourinen
Mor-agoncy iesidentind MBS L1 13 L2 —  Mw - {am 208 1343 aza -
Menih 5. seeuilen 2 - —_ = - - — — 2 -
Ciihes laabile socurities T z - - = - 0 61 - o= -
Tao-fuermpl securttons — - - - - - 168 - pi- ] -
Total AFS gotn tecontios (] 1 fa - T@ - [T1] ERi] (ERET] 559 -
Diifwer dabi securbes ceried ol fal wiue = Mo
ey et MES 72 kS —_ —_ = — 1T 155 14T 90 38
Leans and leases ** X8 - - 0 AN Hur [ - - =] 1)
Lsans hakd e anin ™ 42 48 ]| 12 T 38 (a5) 50 - s E =]
Other aasets ™ 2532 ] 19 - 1 178 683) 5 m 2,380 [267)
Trmding necoisnt labifnes — Equiy aecuifiss - 2 - - = - - - - o (=11
Testing Accoum kahifling - Coponmin wcitien
and ctrar (8 L] - moom &1} - - - LL]] -
Langtem asit = * |BLT) ] B —_ {4 180 [350) 1 {1,048 {585)
1 Bypeny ghabeiiies | Foo massin. woresss fdecsease) o Leved 3 ang for babemes, inomase) decresss 1 Lewl 3
W ncisdes gairs fosigi) reporied s i e W ncome ime dpna. Tradrg) soccur apsein Gabidm - predommant®y o matong e seeder scivfes, et denvatve

it (Rl | - AT k] el herraiy BTN B DT 00T, WS O Tl SOt Ty O i P D ASCuPl Caivh B P v . Sl SCi, Lo, i
g - Pruioe] MEkeng Srd mIvele aohries e e moome; Laans Red b aale - other wcomae: DU SRASTS - [eITaSy Dftes oo relsled o WESRS: Long berre bl . el making e
simiar arindne

™ wehades UERLMSO fams |basEs) s DC) 00 AFS Osbl seielien. owign CUPenGy TMSAGON ELATmenlL b 0w Sepadl of Chafges i (e Copombos's Credl Speeds (0 i0ng e dedl

m;?mlurmnmmm.mmmmmm-nldm:m-mmﬂmmmm shed i) @i O I, M

and 2R

| wlive Eidcta i P bl aasats of 1§20 bbgn @ 522 Dason @i defyitee labates of §0.2 pER0n a0 §2.8 DRon it Decsribed 31, 2000 a0 2019

™ At tharl arm T sarder the hmr wakae option,

- Kl v et WS recognued teliwmg o Wl s

M1 Spuiermamcs. AT FEDAERS e ML CRangs i T vkl Of T MER Bl S 10 U MecireoDn of oo Cam Mows Be 0 [asags of 1ime.

= Trenafers. nio bong e dabl include B A Bion inanafer in of Lovel 1 dermywisn gassels 10 reflect the Comomton's changs (g prosen] with sy o]
LTI S

Bark of Amadics 158

607/648

Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
OdoOOooOo0O000000o00o0o0ooo0oooooooo0000000o0oonognonoOond(Eeoes770)
Oooooooa

Level 3 - Fair Value Measurements '
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The following tables prasent information about significant unobsenable inputs related 1o the Corporation’s material categones of

Lewel 3 financial assets and liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2018,

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2020

[[ES T =] nperis
[ Waben=on Sigrafican? Lnalsesralia Warges =l Winifhied
Flagnul iramarmesar Watbem Tocrrigurs: impusts. gy Ayarngs
Lodrs msd Securmies
Imirurmeniy hacked by reudoniial raal sulote saset 3 L8 Vel CIE 1 2 .
Ty aocount svsets - Morgage g iana, BB and oirer MBS BT | et gt | PO Red 1% 10 % CPA | 20 CPR
Lusters s e E: [y Lt sates 0% o 3% COA 1% COR
e - e gy | AR Vgt ] 80 1 S108 110
Cefer b secuniies COMd o1 19 kst - honapency seasientisl 267 Liras nepvsiy o b &TH 1%
[} oy real et ausais i &bF Wikt [L AN i
Trasing account muasts - Damonyie securtion, Hicing lsams and ofSer e~ Fnce 5 8200 FEE]
Trisdiny nooounl FYSEEs = Morgage g ans, ABS and oiter MBS a u'“::d“
AVE el e B, furidsrhy (0P Uinslin meuurlies (]
Lusaria fuicd for s 13
Carrrevanst il Iy, Al wimtu flies avad a1tees [T Vel 1P 2% [
TrnSeg ot el resots - Cofpfine sefurilan, alng knk g i 1,087 Prepsyre ajEed L 1 14%
Trading account swarhy - Hondl S wreregn debt E T T —— U R ™ m n
Trdeg mbcownt ivsens - Wumgagn g an, 8BS wd otmes WS = Tirw, Mt Lirks. saresmTy 5 iy L 6%
&S e Ty - nianer il 18 fonpiaie e 010 843 fr
Lisarss. ord s - Longdaied pauchy volalifey ™ wa
Litdfrs M) [ e i
Cihar mats, primarily section rais secusties LI~ (R e — ] S0 1o 07 U
Furw, Al Dencourd rate L3 na
Ly
L $ Lom Weesghtes e s, Eaec raie Ot 11 pary 4 pmary
[nbbiste okt | WesEred averge ite. sriabe mie O'to 10 pars ET L]
Pl D ] moread]. Pl e Fame 14% £
g acysatiod nomad, anabie tate % b 1% 1
Biruatusen labeities B - - 3
[PeT———— T | T 1 1% [
MIH' Fopusty conmviason e 100N L
rmparshae, Lo e Ty Yo i T b kRS
**“'-"'“:';"‘L Tree 8w AN fENS
s s danear pres 1 WY So BRI | £ AR
Bt durhealien st |l e
Cresik darivaties [ Videl EL] Al
I 1 i Updroer; poasin Do 0O poenis T pindin.
Trw, Sdschaane | Preeparymem sposd 15% ip 100% CPA | 3% CPR
T SO | et tate FoLel i
il Condt ernelstion FEN b Sl nTh
Tree 40 in §137 Btk
FaLity cwwamues # LO04N  ncumtry siandany | Tty comsieson T i Lot
derreativs et ™ | Lo coied souity wolaiimes T o G4 I
Commrazity dovtenthems & qilakey DeBoointed BN | hnure g loreand pece P e T
mh. I-mum o Cormmiatios W ko B T
prcng Yokalines W 10 TOW EEL
Irbargnl e der e . ey | Cowrasatans (1L ) 154 b e LTy
Cemiatas (PR O by -~
mm Longdatd infation rates (7P B4 0%
Liw i sl wEnlites w1 1%
inlerest e solslites i m 1%
Total el harimant e aicwets (Ralsitie [

W For loaen ace] ard et

[

wwnrty

e

bane] ugmm Hhe sbeiuie i vahe of He msinareris

W awrings i
= B compgores oo agfragated D ifaen [RS8t Tis wiech Sfler dem Snafeisl Asiemant cassifestion The islowng 6 8 itsrcilaod [ e brs e @ D e o0 pagn 158 Trameg

ST B - OO

LT, g inas i ot of S1.4 biion, Tosdeg Booount BEsets - Hondl 5. sowsgn dett of S35 ralion. Tosding sccoun 55618 - Morpags trading iwase.

RS aedd cthar TS of §1.4 Bllion, AFS debdl securfes of $040 milion, Dther debd securfied cammd o8 far vails - Nen-agancy raidiostisl of $241) million, (Rhar sussty, nchuaseg MG, of 520

e, Lol e W of 470 T st s LHPS of S336 e,
"= ke TG Beh % Montn Carnio smuistion en [k,
i haden. o sech aa Morts Cans

wrmuidshomn.
™ i winghnedavisnge Bhe i @ Deoruot o Changis in misfiet faies of Interast, Drofoyment mles i ol model md cash e @RSEOToes.
Apim

609/648

i Schokin i) Slhar metode hat sl The jon? dynermes of e, rfiton and fesigs suchangs i

Bank of Amatica 160

Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO

OdoOOooOo0O000000o00o0o0ooo0oooooooo0000000o0oonognonoOond(Eeoes770)

Quantitative information about Level 3 Fair Valkue Measurements at December 31, 2019
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In the previous tables, instruments becked by residential
and commercial real estate assets include RMBS, commercial
MBS, whole loans and mongage CDOs. Commercial loans, debt
securities and other include corporate CLOs and CDOs,
commercial loans and bonds, and secunties backed by nonreal
estate assets. Structured fiabilities primarily include equity-
linked notes that are accounted for under the fair value option,

The Corporation uses multiple market approaches in valuing
certain of its Level 3 financial instrumenta, For example, market
comparables and discounted cash flows are used logether. For
a given product, such as corporate debl securities, market
comparables may be used o estimate some of the
unobserable inputs and then these inputs are incorporated into
o discounted cash flow model. Therefore, the balances
disclosed encompass both of these technigues.

The level of aggregation and diversity within the products
dizchosed in the tables result in certain ranges of inputs being
wide and unevenly distributed across asset and lability
categanes.

Uncertainty of Fair Value Measurements from
Unobservable Inputs

Loans and Securities

A significant incresse in market wields, default rates, loss
Savirrities or duration would have resulted in a significantly lower
fair value for long positions. Short positions would have bean
impacied in & directionally opposite way, The impact of changes
in prepayment speeds would have resulted in differing impacts
depending on the senloity of the instrument and, In the case of
CLOs, whether prepayments can be reinvested. A significant
incfease in price would have resulled i a significantly highere
fair value for long positions. and short positions would have
been impacted in a directionally opgosite way,

Structured Liabiiities and Derlvatives
For credit derivatives, a significant increase in market yield,
upfront  polnts (8., & single upfront paymenl made by a

protection buyer at inception), credit spreads, default rates or
loss severities would have resufted in a significantly lower fair
value for protection sellers and higher fair valug for protection
buyers. The impact of changes in prepayment speeds would
heve resulted in differing impacts depending on the senionity of
the instrument.

Structured credd  dervatives are impacted by credi
correlation. Default cormalation is a parameter that describes the
degree of dependence among credit default rates within a credit
portfolio that undedies a credil dervative instrument. The
sensitivity of this input on the fair valwe vanes depending on the
lewel of subordination of the tranche. For senior tranches that
are net purchases of protection, a significant increase in default
correlation would hawe resulted in a significantly higher far
valwe. Met short protection positions would have been impacted
in & directionally opposite way.

For equity derivatives, commadity derivatives, interest rate
derivatives and structured labilities, a significant change n
long-dated rates and volatilities and correfation inputs {i.e., the
degres of cormmalation between an equity security and an index,
between iwo different commodities. between two different
intesest rates, of between interest rates and foreign exchange
rates] would have resulted in a significant impact to the fair
value; however, the magnitude and direction of the impact
depend on whather the Corporation is long or short the
exposure. For structured liabilities, a significant increase in yield
or decrease in price would have resulted inoa significantly lower
fair value.

Nonrecurring Fair Value

The Corporation holds certain assets that are measured at fair
vl anly i certain siuations (eg. the mpairment of an
asset], and these measurements are referred to herein as
nonrecuring, The amounts below represent assels still held as
of the reposting date for which a nonrecumring fair value
adjustment was recorded dunng 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Assets Measured at Falr Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
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The wble below presents information about significant unobservable inputs wilized in the Corporation’s nonrecurring Level 3 fair

value measurements during 2020 and 2019,

Quantifative Information abowt Nonrecurring Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
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NOTE 21 Fair Value Option

Loans and Loan Commitments

The Corporation elects to account for cerain loans and loan
commitments that exceed the Corporation’s single-name credit
nigk concentration guidelines under the fair valwe option,
Lending commitmenis are actively managed and, as
appropnate, credit risk for these lending redationships may be
mitigated through the use of credit dervatives, with the
Cosporation's public side credit view and market perspectives
determining the size and timing of the hedging activity, Those
credit derivatives do not meet the requirements for designation
as accounting hedges and therefore are carmed at fair value,
The fair value option allows the Corporation to camry these loans
and loan commitments at Tair value, which s more consistent
with management’s view of the underlying economics and the
manner in which they are managed, In additien, the fair value
aption allows the Comporation to reduce the accounting volatility
that would otherwise result from the asymmetry created by
accounting for the financial instruments at historical cost and
the credit derivatives at fair value.

Loans Held-for-sale

The Corporation efects to account for residential mongage
LHFS, commercial morigage LHFS and certain other LHFS under
the fair value option, These loans are actively managed and
manitared and, as apgropriate, cortain market risks of the loans
may be mitigated through the use of derivatives. The
Corporation has alected not 10 designate the dervatives as
qualifying accounting hedges, and therefore, they are carried at
fair value, The changes in fair value of the loans are largely
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offsel by changes in the fair value of the denvatives, The fair
value option allows the Corporation to reduce the accounting
valatility that would otherwise resull from the asymmetry created
by accounting for the financial instruments at the lower of cost
oF faif value and the dervatives at fair valug. The Conporation
has not elected to account for certain other LHFS under the fair
value oplion primarly because these loans areé Noatingrate
Inans that are not hedged using derivative instruments.

Loans Reported as Trading Account Assets

The Corporation elects to account for certain loans that are hald
for the purpose of trading and are risk-managed on a fair value
basis under the fair value option,

Other Assets

The Corporation elecis to account for cerain longterm fixed-rate
margin loans that are hedged with demvatives under the fair
valee option. Election of the fair value option allows the
Corporation to reduce the sccounting wolatility that would
otherwise resull from the asymmetry created Dy accounting for
the financial instruments at historical cost and the derivatives at
Tair value.

Securities Financing Agreements

The Corporation elects to account for cerain securlties
financing agreements, including resale and repurchase
apreements, under the fair value option. These elections Include
certain agreements collateraliced by the U.5. government and
itz agencies, which are generally shor-dated and have minimal
interest rate risk.
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Long-term Deposits

The Corporation elects (o account for certain long-term fixed-rate
and rate-linked deposits that are hedgad with derivatives that do
not qualify for hedge accounting. Election of the fair value option
allows the Corporation to reduce the accounting volatility that
would otherwise result from the asymmelsy created by
accounting for the financial instruments at historical cost and
the dervatives at falr value. The Corparation has not elected o
carry other long-term deposits at fair value because they are not
hedged using dervatives.

Short-term Borrowings

The Corporation elects to account for certain short-temm
beorrowings, primarily shorttemm strectured liabilities, under the
fair value option because this debt s rsk-managed on a falr
value basis,

The Corporation elects to account for certain assetbacked
securgd financings, which are also classified in shorttem
borrowings, under the fair value option. Election of the fair value
aption allows the Carporation 1o reduce the accounting volatility

that would ctherwise mesult from the asymmety created by
accounting for the assetbacked secured financings at historical
cost and the comesponding morigage LHFS secunng these
financings at fair value.

Long-term Debt

The Corporation elects o sccount for certain long-term debt,
primarity structured liabilities, under the fair value optian, This
longterm debt is either risk-managed on a fair value basis or
the related hedges do net quality for hedge accounting,

Fair Value Option Elections

The following tables prowide information about the fair value
carrying amount and the contractual principal outstanding of
assets and liabilites accounted for under the fair value optien
at Decamber 31, 2020 and 2019, and information about whane
changes in the fair value of assets and habilities accounted for
under the fair value option are incleded in the Consolidated
Statament of income for 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Fair Value Option Elections

Deearmber 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

Fair Valoe Fair Yok
Falr ¥alus Conlractus Canying Amount Faiir Valus Contractunl Camying
Carriying Pincipal Liia Unpald Carmyrg Preesifinl A Lins
(Dpam o s | At Dot andesg Princhpsi Amaounk Cutstnnding Unpaid Frincipsl
Fedeal funds Soid ard securlag Bie imvwed of e Tl BEEECE R = I PR
Purchasid undar agroements to nigall E ] 10RA56 3§ WEE1L § 45 % 50,364 § 50318 % A8
Lonns mported o trading socount asasts 7867 17,372 9,405 L= 14,703 [T.71d)
Trading imeentory = obter 33 T80 nm 'R 5574 nia nsa
Contumis and commarcial loans LE-8 ETTR {97} A.335 6,372 37
Loans held forsaie ' 15858 2521 a3&) a.T09 4 8TY 11.47a)
P nssels 200 LY a8 4 nfa n'a
Long-berm sepoaits 481 448 k=] S0E A9 12
Fedeml funds porchased and securftss o or
B4 under agreemens o M purchass 135391 1356390 1 18008 16020 1)
Shaort besm bonoaings 54874 5iTE 698 3941 2,930 11
LUinfundad oan comimitrants o9 nfa LT 00 LT nia
Long-term debt 32200 33ATO (1270} 34,576 35,7130 17551

' B pigritcand aion ol the ko reported s Habng scomnd sssets s UIFS o dodtm e Soamm Thal wies orchassd il @ desp dstart fn o, st e remrder am nans. w7t o e i
[EEILITE )

AR o il et
A = el i
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Gains (Losses) Relating to Assets and Liabilities Accounted for Under the Fair Value Option

Markst making
and similar Oifer
aciivities Incama Total

|Dﬂ-lmr|'lhh| 30
Lonns Ieporind ak UAding Bocount Aksels ¥ FT — % 07
Trading imvantery - otfer ' EE-2 T - 2218
Consumesr and commaercial lnans 22 i3 19
Loans hald-orsaie ' — 103 1%
Shorttesm bonowings [ERyT] - )
Unlunded lgan commitmeras —_ |65} {85)
Lang-term ety = (2478 183 (2228
it ™ EL] 22) 13
Tatal 5 1035 3 140 % 895
Lonns regoried o8 Wading Booount asssls [ 3 3 — % o]
Trading imventory = otrer 1! 5,795 - 5,705
Consumer ard commarcial lnans oz i2 104
Loans heid-dor-sae ' - EL R
Sho tesm bommeings 24) - (24)
Unhurdend lgan eammil-eens = ™ 79
Long-term debt (1,008 e (1476
Ot ] 2N (18]
Total ] 4877 3 B 5 5,061

2018
Loans reporied os irading account assets 1 B % - B
Trading immntory - otrer /! 1,750 — 1,750
Cansamisr and commarcial loans [z B3 [476)
Loans heid-ior-saie 1 24 1.}
ENDIT LM BomTeings 2 - 2
Unfunded loan commitmects —_ i (L]
Long teem debt 2,457 |23 2,064
Dtrer ™ 6 18 M
Total | A % (153 $ 3,340

irchades T wides of FILCS Gn Misded i0afe, reiusng Thoss 5 during th (onad
i i e (usa i earht Tusk g el RATELS BV fleE i the ke ety

"' Wi s 0 e mmiong A pmsler motiites a primeily pfsel by iowses o inadieg Ialdaney (Tol facge Tess aasets

I LR L] e

Faige these Rabiltes, For the cumulatve impact of changes i the Comorations owm ekt sprosdy ond e smourr mnogniond N accumniated OCL wre Mole 14 -

il 4w Doty Ofsed iy (lases] geiss on dirhatvas o Seouties et
Appurmadated dgher

Comirmbwriae Wcoee (Lodl For more mbsmalon on S Te Cofasalion 'y Sw Sl adnid 6 deliTiorsd. dea by X - Fay Files Measuremenaii.

wndies agrosedy b gaThae

Inckacen g (95 on Federnl fards 50K Bl BEOUTIRE BOMOWed OF PUThased ince REFEETNIE W sEael, IONEDET GEDOSTE I e s purchased Bo0 SO naned o S0k

Gains (Losses) Related to Borrower-specific Credit Risk for Assets and Liabilities Accounted for Under the Fair Value

Option

[Diprn o riliioees |

Loons reporied an trading socount sesets
Consasmer and commaercial loons

Lonng ol g
Linfunded loan commitments

el 2009 018
1 arz; 41 % ]
19 b (58]
1108) &7 14
[65) i (o)

MOTE 22 Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Financial nstruments ase classified within the fair value
hierarchy using the methodologies descrnbed in Note 20 - Fair
Value Measurements, Cenain loans, deposits, longterm debt,
unfunded lending commitments and other financial instruments
are accounted for wnder the fair wvalue option, For more
information, see Nobe 21 - Fakr Value Option. The following
disclosures include financial instruments that are ot caried at
fair value or only a portion of the ending balance is caried at
{air value on the Consobidated Balance Shest.

Short-term Financial Instruments

The carrying value of short-term financial instruments. including
cash and cash equivalienls, cermain time deposits placed and
other short-term imvestments, federal funds sold and purchased,

165 Bank of Amanica

certain resale and repurchase agreements and short-temm
borrowings, approximates the fair value of these instruments.
These financial instruments generally expose the Corporation to
limited erodit risk and have no stated maturities or have shost-
term matwrities and camy interest rates that approximate
market. The Corporation accounts for cerain resale and
repurchase agreements under the fair value aption.

Under the fair valee hierarchy, cash and cash equaalents
are classified as Level 1, Time deposits placed and other shost-
ferm imvestments, such as U5, govermment securities and
short-tesm commercial paper, are classified as Level 1 or Level
2, Federal funds sold and purchased are classified as Level 2,
Resale and repurchase agreements are classified as Level 2
because they are generally shor-dated and/or variable-rate
instruments collateralized by U5, government or agency
securities, Short-term borrowings are classified as Level 2.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The camying values and fair values by fair value higrarchy of
certain financial instruments whera only a portion of the ending
balance was camed at fair value at December 31, 2020 and
2015 are presented in the following table.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair Value
Carmying
Walua Lowal 2 Lewveld 3 Total
{icmarn wh B December 34, 2020
Finantial pasets
Loans § BETZEI § 49372 § ATTGEZ 0§ 927054
Loans. haldfor-saks 0243 T.884 1379 9243
Financial liablitias
Dapgoaita "' LTOSAH0 L7664 e
Longtenm detd 262934 371,315 1164 ITTATY
Cammarcisl
unfsrdisd wadng
conmimants L1977 L 6189 G268
Dhsgaentest 31, 2010
Finantial ossets
Lonns § 950,083 § 63,633 § 144,507 § 978,230
Loang held-foreaike 9.1568 BAFD 718 8,158
Finantial linbiites
Depasis 'V 1434803 1,434,800 — 1,434,803
Long-term cebl 240,856 MTATE 1148 248,526
Commareial
unfurded erang
cosmamitmants 03 o0 4,777 4 BET

gy, derhade oepaaits of IT000 tilass o $585 & palas willi fod SLEbed FRELLFLRES B

_ Dascember 1. 2004 wrad 20010,

= Mhwi carrping wilos of comewresl onfucdied enadng commitmenis B ecleded R acciusd
R 0 O AR ) e Covsonaaned Balinos Shiel Tha Copenslas does il
aafarain the taw veus of Fungisd N Decaums, N My
mmlanoe, e Copom@on can mduts or canesi e commilmants by prisidang ndlce 1o
i Doimowes. For moss STleTlon On codTiimenis. Bed e 1D - Comebmends el
Cormegenes

MNOTE 22 Business Segment Information

The Corporation reports its results of operations through the
following four Busingss segments: Consumer Banking, GWIM,
Global Banking and Global Markets, with the remaining
aperations reconded in Al Other,

Consumer Banking

Consumer Banking offers a diversified range of credit, banking
and investiment products and services to consumers and small
businesses. Consumer Banking product offerings  include
raditional savings accouwnts, money markel savings accounts,
CDs and IRAs, checking accounts, and investment accounts and
produets, s well as credit and debit cands, residential
morgages and home equity loans, and direct and indirect loans
1o consumers and small businesses |n the LS. Consumer
Banking includes the impact of sendicing residential mongages
and home equity loans in the cone portfolio.

Global Wealth & Investment Management

GWIM provides a high-towch client experience through a network
of financial advisors focused on clients with over £250,000 in
total imvestable assets, including tailored solutions to meet
clents’ needs through a full set of investment managemant,
brokerage, banking and retirement products. GWIM  also
provides comprehensive wealth management solutions targeted
to high net worth and ultra high net worth clients, as well as
customized solutions to meet cliemis’ wealth structuring,
imvestment managament, trust and banking needs, including
specialty asset management senvices.

Global Banking

Global Banking provides a wide range of lending-related products
and senrices, integrated working capital management and
treasury solutions, and underwriting and advisory sewices
through the Corporation’s network of offices and  client
relationship teams. Global Banking also prowides Investment
banking products e clients, The economics of certain
investment banking and underwriting activities are shared
primanly between Global Banking and Global Markets under an
internal revenue-sharing amangement. Giobal Banking clients
generally nclude middlemarke! companies, commercial real
estata firms, not-for-profit companies, large global corporations,
financial Institutions, leasing chients, and mid-sized U.5.based
businesses requiring customized and integrated financial advice
and solutions.

Global Markets

Giobal Markets offers sales and trading sendces and research
senices 1o mstiiusonal chents across fixeddncome, cradit,
currency, commodity and equity businesses, Giobal Markets
provides  market-making, financing,  Securites  cleanng.
settlement and custody services globally to institutional investor
chients in support of thelr investing and trading activities, Global
Markets product coverage includes securities and derivative
products in both the pamary and secondary marhets, Global
Markets also works with commercial and cornporate clients to
provide risk management products, As 8 resull of market
making activities, Global Markets may be required to manage
risk in &8 broad range of financial products. In addition, the
economics of certain investment banking and  underwriting
activities are shared primarly between Global Markets and
Giobal Banking under an Intemal revenue-Sharing arrangement,

All Other

Al Other consists of ALM activities, equity investments, non-
cofe  morgage loans and sendcing  activities, liquidating
businesses and certain expenses not otherwise allocated to
business  segments.  ALM  aclivities  encompass  certain
residential morigages, debt securities, interest rate and foreign
cufréncy rish management activities, Substantially all of the
resufts of ALM activiies sre allocated to the business

Segents,

Basis of Presentation
The management accounting and reporting process derives
segment  and  business  results by utilizing  allocation
methodologies for revenue and expense. The net income
derived for the businesses is dependent upon revenue and cost
allecations using an activity-based costing madel, funds transfer
pricing. and oiher methodologies and assumptions management
beleves are appropriate to reflect the results of the business.
Tatal revenue, net of interest expense, includes net interest
income on an FTE basis and mnoninterest income. The
adjustment of net interest income 1o an FTE bagis resulis in &
cofresponding increase in income tax expense. The segment
results also reflect certain revenue and expense methodologies
that are wlilieed to detesmine net income. The net intesest
income of the businesses includes the results of a funds
transfer pricing process that matches assets and Habilities with
similar interest rate sensitivity and maturity characteristics. In
sepments where the total of hablities and equity excesds
@ssets, which are generally deposittaking segments, the
Corporation allocstes assets to match liabilities. Net interest
income of the business segments also includes an allocation of
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net interest income penerated by cerman of the Corporation's
ALM activities.

The Corporation’s ALM activities include an overall interest
rate risk management strategy that incorporates the use of
various derwatives and cash instruments 1o manage
fluctuations in eamings and capital that are cawsed by intarast
rate wolatility. The Corporation’s goal is 1o manage interest rate
sensitivity S0 that movements in interest rates do not
significantly adversely affect eamings and capital, The results of
substantially all of the Corposation’s ALM activities are allocated
to the business segments and fluctuale based on the
performance of the ALM activibes, ALM  activities include
aexternal product pricing decisions including deposit prcing

strategies, the effects of the Corporation's intemal funds
transfer pricing process and the net effects of other ALM
activithes,

Cerain expenses not directly attributable o a specific
business segment are allocated to the segments, The costs of
cartain centralizad or shared functions are allocated based on
methodologies that reflect utilization.

The following table presents net income (loss) and the
components thereto (with net interest income on an FTE basis
for the business segments, Al Other and the total Corporation)
for 20020, 2019 and 2018, and ioial assets at December 31,
2020 and 2019 for each busingss sepment, as well as AN
Other.

Results of Business Segments and All Other

&1 and o the yeor ended December 31 Total Corporation '™ Banki
[l - 2020 2018 018 2020 019 2018
Mottt irgome $ 43850 3 A0486 3 4B777 § 24008 § 28158 & 2025
MNoninlares! incdme 4 168 A42.351 A2 BEH H.554 10429 10503
Total =T I BE.027 ETCET] 91,630 33 362 38,587 ERCIT]
Preinesn Tor ciedil ioised LR FE 3,590 3067 6,788 ATz A.604
Nonimerest oxperse 55213 54,000 53,154 18,678 17,8485 17,672
Incomp bafore Incone lases 19404 33,340 35,194 A,619 17169 16,782
Ineeme 182 apends 1500 5,010 TO4T 2112 4,207 4,150
_ Metimoome % 1784 § 27430 § 28147 8 es07 § 12862 § 1313
Pevlod-and toial asanis 3 2819637 £ 2434070 4 OEREROD §  ROADDI
Global Wealth & Invesimeni Managoment Global Banking.
2020 201% FOLE 2000 s 2018
Met interest rcome 5 GABE 5 6504 & 2 GIER 8 8043 § 10575 § 109893
Naninieres] intoms 13118 13034 13,188 0074 5808 4,008
Tots! rewunue, rel of infemest sxponss 1B 584 19,538 19,453 18 887 20483 20,001
Froviseon for credit bosses 357 82 i 4897 14 B
Honinlares] s 14,154 13,825 14015 33T 4011 B.745
Income before intomes axes 4073 6,631 6.352 4,763 11,058 11,248
Inceena tax aspenso e 1380 a3s4 4283 o4ss 243
Mot incoma 5 3ot 4 4251 ¥ EE AT 3 AOTR 4 #3215
Periodend iotal assats 5 a7 § ssaqi0 s Bs0BEL § 454037
Ghaizal Markets All Dnher
T wEe T T 2000 TR HiE
Mot mtenst imcoms ] 4546 § EE-T L 1 3BAT § ETHE 7 FET T 632
Honinienes! intoms 14,120 11,880 12,328 3,606} (A1) [2.257)
Total revenue, ml of inanest exponss 16,766 15,614 16,183 (3572 12,383 [1535]
Provision for credit losess 261 [1:]] —_ 1] LT A7)
Nonintanes! sgpsis 11432 10,7248 10835 1422 3,800 1.887
income (ioas | beforn income tanes 7.093 4.5ah B3 (5,044} (5 B0 3,036
InGoem 8% pipansn (B} LBa4 1,395 1.350: {8 83T) 4,048} 12,780}
Fut Inacure (lasa) E ] 5348 & 3E00 §  3WE 3§ won) § (L3 § i@
Peslodand tolal assels 3 B16609 3 GALADE §  deA1dl 3 2aaTs )

W Brete mmie no maiensl nsmsgrmest revenies
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The table bedow presents nonimerest income and the associated componenis for 2020, 2019 and 2018 for esch business
segment, Al Other and the total Corporation. For more information, see Note 2 - Net Interest Income and Nonindenest Incomse.

Noninterest Income by Business Segment and All Other

Gilohal Wealh &
Totad Corparatian Ceemumar Banking Investmant Management
1Dl b RO | 2020 el 18 2020 2018 2018 2000 2018 1A
Fees and commibsslons:
Card inczme
Interchangs fees § 3954 % 38 § 318456 § 3027 § 3aT4a & X194 & % % 69 % Bl
Othar eand income 1702 1963 14% 1648 1810 3907 42 42 4
Tatal card income 5,656 5,787 5874 4673 5,084 5,103 T8 10 137
Service chargss
Deposisolnied foes E991 BSER B.6ET 3417 4718 4,300 LT L) L]
Lisndeg-related lnas LA50 1,068 1400 — — — — — —
Totsd sarvce Rea 7141 TAa T T6T 41T 4218 &, 300 L1 [0} 1a
Inveiiment and Brobemge sarvoes
Adsirl Fnahifereadd i L0 TR 13241 1188 14k 144 147 10678 10:130 oA
Brokerge fees 3,856 3001 3871 127 149 172 1,693 1,740 1917
Tod g @ Ekemg L] 14,574 13,002 14,160 vy 93 R 12270 11,870 11,959
vt banking fees
Uindenariting ncoma 4,538 2908 iy <] - - - 3al 401 kL]
Syndcanon lees 6L L.164 1,347 <= . = e = b
Fircinl avisory services 1821 L A6 1.258 —_ _ _ _— — 2
Total investment basking feas 7480 5542 5337 - - - 331 01 337
Total fees and commisaions 34351 33045 33008 B363 058 9772 13806 12,440 17,406
Market making and similar activities BASG 9,034 008 F & [ 53 113 112
Othar ncome lost) 8 304 712 09 BB 863 ;w7 4B 560
Tatal nenintarest incams 4 427368 % 42353 § 42858 $ G564 4 10430 § 10593 $ 13148 § 13014 § 13388
faghal Banking Glabal Markats Al Othes
2020 2009 FLT] 2020 2018 2018 2030 2019 2015
Foes and sommbkalonic
Card Ineeme
Interchangs fees 5 499 § 519 § 503 8 3L 0§ L 8 B & 1% 1% -
i eaed incoens 14 13 a — {11 {2 — EA] (&1
Tolad camd meome 13 552 511 391 B0 A4 1 —_ (51
Service tharges
Daipaan ralated tiag 2.208 2121 2111 i 156 181 . = 25 n
Lendirg-related fees B0 aas a16 210 192 154 — - -
Total service charges 33 WS  GoaT S 9 £ = £
Assel managermen fees - - - - - - |24 (L] -
fees T4 el ol 1473 1,738 1,780 — — B
ol investment ard EXkeBEs SHNACeS T4 kT [ 181 1,738 1,780 (14 (33} ]
Investmeni banking fees
Uindanatiting incoma 2,070 BT 1,090 2449 1,555 1,495 [F =] |1B5] raas)
Syndication lees LLF] 74 Lih] am 610 698 - == 1
__ Fraecial ndvisory servicas 1458 L33 1183 163 123 o3 — . =
Total investmant basking feds 4,010 3,131 2,891 20491 2,788 2,196 [ 1] 1184} 1197)
Tolal fees and commissions. TEEG 6,718 LFE] B.Taz 454 &, 505 {198 182} [168)
Markeq making and similar setivities 103 FET 260 BATL T.065 T.2560 (284) 1,618 1,368
Ohhar income (less) 3,084 3.855 3.3235 1) 180 Bl 3.13T) (4.040) i3.457)
Total I Incoma $ 9974 3% GAOA 5 DO § 14300 % 11600 § 12326 & (3606 ¥ [2.617) % (2257

1 Ad Oxeer inciaiey piminatmne of intsscormpeny anssciiarn
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Business Segment Reconciliations
[ Dedlars iy rribiarm | priiedi) 2019 J018
Sefrmenis’ tolal revenue. net ol interest sipense 5 B3 589 § BiET § [ER-1LY
Adjusimants ',
ALM activities 3TE 241 (328
Liguidaing busireises, siminaions and caher 1384T) 12 B2 (1.300)
FIE basis adaestment {499 |5aE) |&10)
e e ¢ e T G160
Eegmenis’ tolnl not reome 16304 78,786 8,403
Adjustments, nal-oftax
ALM aethvites ane FLey 12231
Ligquidating busressas, siminalions and other [EHE] (1,658 iad)
Eansclidated nel Incoens $ 178§ A0 % FBAAT
Decombar 31
2020 2018
Sepmiels’ (16| BsEs L 2555486 53 2200704
Adjustmants
ALM pctivibies, ncluding securntes potfole 1176074 121,806
Elimination of segreet assel slocaions i malcs Labilitieg 7T.6AS) (565,378
e BE.THB &7.947
Consobidated 106sl a4sety 5 2819627 § 2434079
1 g irressts aivie COPAHELIIEd OH0ve, Baperan B S0 SMOuTEy SOl Do aily ] i b
NOTE 24 Parent Company Information
The followsng tables present the Pasent Comparny-only financial informathen,
Condensed Statement of Income
ars i o) 2o 2018 218
Inezemi
Disidands from subskiares:
Blank holdeg companies and relsted subsidases & 10352 £ a0 S 284678
Pionbank pankes and relabed ‘ — — 91
Inisres] from subs idisfies BEZE G502 Baz5
Ctheay Koo {1om) -] S _lnoas)
Tetal incarme 19,050 37396 36066
Expanse
Interes on bormowed funds Trom miated subsidiares 136 481 2365
Ot imlonest auparela 4419 586 BA25
HMoninterest saperas 1861 1541 1600
Tenl apenss 5,906 7091 B.260
Incaeme bofore income taus and equity In undistribubed eamings of subsidianes 13133 20,405 27808
Incoame tas eapense [Becedi) (=51 341 Ij_g!l;.'t
Incoene balone equity In LASSTDW o samegs of sbwdanes 12,484 29,064 2B.08T
Equity b undistributed samings {lostes) of subsidistse:
Bank holdirg companies and related subsidiaries 5372 [E ] 306
Monbank i and redabed sunea 38 a3 (246
Taitnl equity in undiirtoted samings of wiaiSar B0 (1.634) B0
Net Incame 5 17E34 § 27430 & 28147
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Condensed Balance Sheet
Degamber 31
[ Dvsllars by e 2020 2019
Assers
Caah hokl Bt bk aubsidinias £ S8 % 3895
Seturies Tl 658
RE: feom
Bank hakbrg companien dnd roted sulisidads Fas R 173301
Blanks snd relabsd subsifanes Ha B
and refated wib 410 391
Imalereenvls (0 Sulisidisries
Bank halding companios and relsted subsidardies 305,818 FaT.405
Pionbank comy ———— a,745 3,663
CliFar AssS 850 DA
Toinl nswets % 533186 § 490680
Lisbiitess and sharehokens’ oquily
i i g s arddl ather habilg * o8 % 13.381
Fayabies b0 subscianes:
Bnnks and related silsaSanes 1 458
Fionbank .. and rlabed 11,067 12182
5t iders’ equity 73924 Hd 810
Tetnl listdities and sharchoilers’ equity % 533188 § 490,560
 Balmce Ichies T 0Ty taah ekl of §7 malen med B4 mimon o Decesber 31 020 and 2080
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
JIElars: uh ralscee| 2020 2018 2018
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NOTE 25 Performance by Geographical Area

The Corporation's operations are highly integrated with
operations in both U.S. and non-U.%. markets. The non-U.5,
busingss activities ane largely conducted in Europe, the Middle
East and Africa and in Asia. The Corporation identifies its
geographic perdormance based on the business unit structure
used 1o manage the capital or expense deploved in the region

as applicable, This requires cerain jedgments related to the
allocation of revenue so that revenue can be appropriately
matched with the related capital of expense deployed in the
region. Certain asset, liability, income and expense amounts
have been allocated 1o arive at todal assets, total revenue, net
of interest expense, income before income taxes and net
income by gecgraphic area as presented below,
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FLal ] rAxa.0re 1044 A2TE4 27,430

2018 LI 34564 T8,447
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Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Bank of America Corporation is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controd over
financial reporting.

The Corporation’s intemal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes In accordance with
accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of
America, The Corporation’'s Inemal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain
te the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurataly and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assels of the Corporation; (il) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions ame recorded as necessary 1o parmit
preparation of financial statements in  accordance  with
accounting principles gendrally acceplad in the United States af
America, and that receipts and expenditures of the Corporation
arg baing made only in accordance with authonrations of
management and directors of the Corporation; and (i} provide
reasonable assurance regarding pravention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Corporation's assets that could have a matenal effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its nherent bmitations, intemal control over
financial reporting may nol prevent or detect misstatemants.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness 1o future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management  assessed  the  effectivenass  of  the
Corporation’s intemal control over financial reporting as of
Decernber 31, 2020 based on the framework set fonh by the
Committee of Sponsosing Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in intemal Control - Inlegrated Framework (2013},
Based on that assessment, management concluded that, as of
December 31, 2020, the Corporation’s Intemal control over
financial reporting is effective.

The Corporation’s Intemal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2020 has been oauwdited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, an independent registersd public
accounting firm, as stated in Ihelr accompanying report which
expresses an ungualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2020.

Brian T, Maynihan
Chalrman, Chief Executive Officer and Prasident

Paul M. Donalrio
Chief Financial Officer

Bk of Amarica 4
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Bank of America Corporation:

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bank of America Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the “Corporation”) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2020, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial
statements’). We aso have audited the Corporation's internal control over financia reporting as of December 31,
2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Corporation maintained, in
al materia respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Corporation changed the manner in which it
accounts for credit losses on certain financial instrumentsin 2020.

Basisfor Opinions

The Corporation’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financia
reporting, included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on the Corporation’'s consolidated financia statements and on the
Corporation's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Corporation in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
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We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financia reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financia reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposesin
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’
s assets that could have a materia effect on the financia statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

645/648



EDINETOOOO
OoooDo0ooDooooo0oooooooooooo0oDoO000O000O000bDO00oDOoO0oo(ees770)
oOoOooodn

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated
financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i)
relate to accounts or disclosures that are materia to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the
accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses - Commercial and Consumer Card Loans

As described in Notes 1 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements, the allowance for loan and lease losses
represents management’s estimate of the expected credit losses in the Corporation’s loan and lease portfolio,
excluding loans and unfunded lending commitments accounted for under the fair value option. As of December 31,
2020, the alowance for loan and lease losses was $18.8 billion on total loans and leases of $921.2 billion, which
excludes loans accounted for under the fair value option. For commercial and consumer card loans, the expected
credit loss is estimated using quantitative methods that consider a variety of factors such as historical loss
experience, the current credit quality of the portfolio as well as an economic outlook over the life of the loan. In its
loss forecasting framework, the Corporation incorporates forward looking information through the use of
macroeconomic scenarios applied over the forecasted life of the assets. These macroeconomic scenarios include
variables that have historically been key drivers of increases and decreases in credit |osses. These variables include,
but are not limited to, unemployment rates, real estate prices, gross domestic product levels and corporate bond
spreads. The scenarios that are chosen and the amount of weighting given to each scenario depend on a variety of
factors including recent economic events, leading economic indicators, views of internal as well as thirdparty
economists and industry trends. Also included in the allowance for loan losses are qualitative reserves to cover
losses that are expected but, in the Corporation’'s assessment, may not be adequately reflected in the quantitative
methods or the economic assumptions. Factors that the Corporation considers include changes in lending policies
and procedures, business conditions, the nature and size of the portfolio, portfolio concentrations, the volume and
severity of past due loans and nonaccrual loans, the effect of external factors such as competition, and legal and
regulatory requirements, among others. Further, the Corporation considers the inherent uncertainty in quantitative
models that are built on historical data.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the allowance for loan
and lease losses for the commercial and consumer card portfolios is a critical audit matter are (i) the significant
judgment and estimation by management in developing lifetime economic forecast scenarios, related weightings to
each scenario and certain qualitative reserves, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity
and effort in performing procedures and in evaluating audit evidence obtained, and (ii) the audit effort involved
professionals with specialized skill and knowledge to assist in evaluating certain audit evidence.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming

our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of
controls relating to the allowance for loan and lease losses, including controls over the evaluation and approval of
models, forecast scenarios and related weightings, and qualitative reserves. These procedures also included, among
others, testing management’s process for estimating the allowance for loan losses, including (i) evaluating the
appropriateness of the loss forecast models and methodology, (ii) evaluating the reasonableness of certain
macroeconomic variables, (iii) evauating the reasonableness of management’'s development, selection and
weighting of economic forecast scenarios used in the loss forecast models, (iv) testing the completeness and
accuracy of data used in the estimate, and (v) evaluating certain qualitative reserves made to the model output
results to determine the overall alowance for loan losses. The procedures also included the involvement of
professionals with specialized skill and knowledge to assist in evaluating the appropriateness of certain loss
forecast models, the reasonableness of economic forecast scenarios and related weightings and the reasonableness
of certain qualitative reserves.

Valuation of Certain Level 3 Financial Instruments

As described in Notes 1 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the Corporation carries certain financial
instruments at fair value, which includes $10.0 billion of assets and $7.4 billion of liabilities classified as Level 3
fair value measurements on a recurring basis and $1.7 billion of assets classified as Level 3 fair vaue
measurements on a nonrecurring basis, for which the determination of fair value requires significant management
judgment or estimation. The Corporation determines the fair value of Level 3 financial instruments using pricing
models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable
and are significant to the overall fair value measurement. Unobservable inputs, such as volatility or price, may be
determined using quantitative-based extrapolations or other internal methodol ogies which incorporate management
estimates and available market information.

The principa considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the valuation of certain
Level 3 financial instruments is a critical audit matter are the significant judgment and estimation used by
management to determine the fair value of these financial instruments, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor
judgment and effort in performing procedures, including the involvement of professionals with specialized skill and
knowledge to assist in evaluating certain audit evidence.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming

our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of
controls relating to the valuation of financial instruments, including controls related to valuation models, significant
unobservable inputs, and data. These procedures also included, among others, the involvement of professionals
with speciaized skill and knowledge to assist in developing an independent estimate of fair value for a sample of
these certain financial instruments and comparison of management’'s estimate to the independently developed
estimate of fair value. Developing the independent estimate involved testing the compl eteness and accuracy of data
provided by management and evaluating the reasonableness of management’s assumptions used to develop the
significant unobservable inputs.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
February 24, 2021

We have served as the Corporation’s auditor since 1958.
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